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(1) UBS AG
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
33,474 35,828 34,915 33,675 42,323
(48,079) (51,460) (50,148) (48,367) (60,789)
25,081 27,012 25,927 29,011 39,346
(36,024) (38,797) (37,239) (41,668) (56,513)
7,699 8,964 8,960 4,521 2,433
(11,058) (12,875) (12,869) (6,494) (3,495)
6,196 7,032 7,084 3,290 1,481
(8,899) (10,100) (10,175) (4,725) (2,127)
1,125,327 1,116,145 1,105,436 1,156,016 1,568,060
(1,616,307)| (1,603,119)| (1,587,738)| (1,660,386)| (2,252,205)
57,754 58,102 56,598 55,234 94,003
(82,952) (83,452) (81,292) (79,333) (135,017)
25,251 27,912 31,746 28,235 7,838
(36,268) (40,090) (45,597) (40,554) (11,258)
338 338 338 386 386
(485) (485) (485) (554) (554)
10.9 12.3 12.6 6.0 1.9
286,743 299,005 317,823 333,979 495,110
(411,849) (429,461) (456 ,489) (479,694) (711,126)
Tier 1
13.3 13.9 13.5 13.2 14.9
18.3 18.5 17.2 17.0 18.1
34.2 33.3 32.0 33.3 36.7
1,036,771 1,067,679 1,029,561 1,104,408 1,523,277
(1,489,114)( (1,533,507)| (1,478,758)| (1,586,261)| (2,187,883)
Tier 1
3.7 3.9 4.2 4.0 4.8
189.7 186.1
119.6 124.1
36,581 30,563 10,630 -28,202 -27,065
(52,541) (43,898) (15,268) (-40,507) (-38,873)
-6,506 -1,860 -12,283 -4,924 122,406
(-9,345) (-2,672) (-17,642) (-7,072) (175,812)
12,498 10,927 -5,257 19,690 -32,137
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(17,951) (15,694) (-7,551) (28,281)|  (-46,158)
173,430 207,755 195,200 190,469 243,350
(249,008)|  (298,309)|  (280,366)|  (273,571)|  (349,537)
47,546 47,067 47,628 47,590 68,982
UBS AG 2022
2020 SRB
FINMA 2016/1 UBS AG
2023
(2) UBS AG
( C )
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
4,265 6,013 6,817 1,364 4,684
(7,459) (10,516) (11,922) (2,385) (8,191)
12,116 14,923 15,015 12,422 16,307
(21,188) (26,007) (26,258) (21,724) (28,518)
450,756 464,814 466,550 470,106 718,576
(788,282) (812,867) (815,903) (822,121) (1,256, 646)
46,397 49,599 53,018 44,506 76,560
(81,139) (86,739) (92,718) (77,832) (133,888)
( 303 303 303 386 386
C » (687) (687) (687) (675) (675)
UBS AG GAAP  FINMA FINVA 2020/1
1862
1872 1998 29
2014 TBTF
UBS AG 2015
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
2016 UBS LLC
UBS SE 2019
UBS UBS SE
2023 162 1856
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453,812 428,356 1,533 72,987 33,779 19,742 1,010,209
1,2
297,602 270,165 9 17,497 1,660 3,243 590,176
18,978 46,986 5 34,516 2,211 17,164 119,859
3 79,462 65,749 0 452 4 3,233 148,900
14,900 5,034 0 46,076 66,009
2, 4
11,705 4,594 0 17,371 33,670
186 0 0 18,352 18,538
3,009 440 0 10,353 13,802
! 1,421 4,187 0 595 1,289 0 7,492
302 1,914 0 382 922 6 3,527
97 269 0 110 4 6 487
68 247 0 142 166 0 623
138 1,398 0 130 751 0 2,417
5
2023 12 31
342,690 275,787 1,331 81,971 3,621 32,179 737,579
1,2
213,377 174,425 0 13,657 168 4,941 406,568
12,323 28,385 0 15,744 1,728 19,049 77,229
3 13,438 27,574 0 4,714 0 1,694 47,421
8,789 952 0 34,712 44,454
2, 4
6,668 938 0 8,124 15,730
0 0 0 16,792 16,792
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. 925 1,698 0 331 12 1 2,966
224 783 0 225 6 6 1,244
74 171 0 57 0 6 308
52 165 0 56 0 0 272
97 448 0 112 6 0 664
Y Irrs
2 UBS AG IFRS % UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
4
5
UBS AG AG 1,110
2024 12 31 4,540
UBS AG
2024 12 31
1,790 92 UBS AG
2024
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13
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87
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FINMA
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UBS AG
CFO
UBS
UBS AG
UBS
2023
50
UBS
2024 12 31 UBS AG
UBS AG
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 2022 12 31
42,323 33,675 34,915
«C ) 544 143 2
39,346 29,011 25,927
C ) 2,433 4,521 8,960
«C ) 1,481 3,290 7,084
.0
( ) 1.9 6.0 12.6
( ) 2.0 6.7 14.2
Tier ( ) 2.2 7.6 16.8
( ) 3.0 3.2 3.4
( ) 93.0 86.2 74.3
( ) (55.0) (53.6) 0.7
Q@
1,568,060 1,156,016 1,105,436
94,003 55,234 56,598
Tier ® 73,792 44,130 42,929
® 495,110 333,979 317,823
Tier ( y® 14.9 13.2 13.5
( @ 18.1 17.0 17.2
( @ 36.7 33.3 32.0
® 1,523,277 1,104,408 1,029,561
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Tier ( )y ® 4.8 4.0 4.2
( y @ 186.1 189.7
( ) 124.1 119.6
( y®-® 6,087 4,505 3,981
( ) 68,982 47,590 47,628
@ ygs a6
@ UBS AG 2023 Alternative performance measures
® 2020 UBS AG 2023
Capital, liquidity and funding, and balance sheet ®
2024 64 2023 63
UBS AG 2023 Capital, liquidity and funding, and balance
sheet ®
31
APM
UBS
APM
APM APM
UBS AG 2023 Alternative performance measures
APM SEC GAAP
UBS AG
2023 2024
2024 31 UBS AG AG 2024
2024
2023
2023 2024
2024 18 900 14 8,100
20 8,800 46 24 3,300
103 3,500 36 393 4,600 37 3,700
54 3,000 43 300
200
2023 4,300 4,400
86 4,800 26 423 2,300
31 3,700
48 2,800 8,200

100/619



3,700

AG

AG
5,500
8,000

AG

56 6,900

2,500

176 3,700

2023

48 2,800

22 3,700

UBS
11 600
AG

6,600
2023

UBS

AG

5,800

11 8,300

61 2,900

234 3,800

113 2,800

AG

10 200

12 4,800

2024
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UBS AG
4,400
6,300 800
2023 4,300
AG 43 300
199 5,800 37 3,100
4,400
54 3,000 165 4,800 AG
UBS AG
26 5,900
9,800 UBS 2024
2,000 5,400
5,100
200 28 4,000
AG
2023
600
2024 UBS AG 2023 12 600 26.7
37.0
2024 6,100
3,900
UBS AG 6,700
DTA 6,500 600
3,100
DTA
800
3,100 DTA
1,700 UBS AG
5,200

DTA
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2024
0Cl 3,500
oClI

2024 12 31

100

UBS AG

UBS AG
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14 8,100
4,700
12 6,100
oClI 3,500 ocClI
100
12
11
UBS AG 2024 12 31
UBS AG 2024

Capital, liquidity and funding, and balance sheet

Tier 1
Tier 1 CET1

CET
CET1 2024 12 31
AG

93.0

7.6 2.2
CET1 243

297 738 UBS AG
414 24
26
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130 20 13
RWA 1,611 4,951 UBS AG
AG RWA 1,900 RWA
289 233
102 46
CET1
UBS AG CET1 13.2 14.9 CET1 297
RWA 1,611
LRD 4,189 5,233 UBS AG
AG LRD 5,164
LRD 975 499
476
CET1
UBS AG CET1 4.0 4.8 CET1
LRD
2024 12 31 2023 12 31 21,392 68,982
2024 31 UBS AG AG
2023 2024
5,900 10 32 5,500
UBS AG
AG
36 900 19 221 4,800
AG
5,600 10 59 100
AG
19 3,900 19 120 8,200

AG
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10 4,300 34
AG
2,800
2024
UBS
2023 2,500
39 9,300 27
AG
80.4 85.3
9,950 31
AG 1,140
410
839 3,022
1,153 4,706
2023 2024
5,000
16 1,600 34
AG
1,100

AG

12

41 2,200

4,300
6,400
2,100
AG

100

188 9,300

1,820

18 500

63 500

35 5,400
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3,900 11 9,000
AG
5,000 15 2,900
AG
8,300 3,200
2023 6,100
2024 5,400
4,800 AG
2023
4,600
15 6,300 60 41 5,200
AG
55.2 65.9
2023 2024
9,900 27 6,500
AG 2,500
2,800 35 27 9,900
AG 2,500
6,100 28 25 3,800
AG
2023
UBS
6,600 94 3,600
AG
2023
2,800 37 23 3,400

AG
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82.4 83.4
5,510 45 7,730 UBS AG
AG 1,400 610
480
340
2023 2024
5,700 8,700
20 5,300 26 98 3,700
7,300 48 23 8,200
6,700 44 7,100
M&A
600 50 15 1,100
12 8,000 21 74 5,500
7,800 28 17 1,400
8,600 21 34 4,6000
1,600 16 22 9,600
5,100

11 600 25 55 6,300
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18 9,300
6,700
11 6,500
2023 2024
5,200
33 9,200
3,500
AG
100
2023 10 1,000
2024
2023
6,500

2023 2024

15

2023

6,700

AG
13 3,800
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9,800
87 5,300
UBS AG AG
97.5
UBS AG
7,700
2024
5,500
36 7,300
600
2023

108/619

ooooood
10

89.0

AG

2024

UBS



2,100 3,500
UBS AG Tier 1 CET1
UBS AG UBS AG
CET1 TLAC
2024 12 31 CET1 14.9 CET1
SRB BCBS
UBS AG
2025 CAO
2025 UBS AG
UBS AG RWA 10
10
FRTB
RWA 70
RWA 10 2025
2028
UBS AG LRD
CET1 10
SRB
UBS AG
SRB
UBS AG
Pillar 3 disclosures 2024 12 31
SRB UBS AG
ubs.com/investors Annual reporting UBS
UBS AG AG
2024 31 UBS AG AG UBS AG
AG
UBS

IFRS
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UBS AG

TLAC

4.8
UBS AG

UBS AG

CAO

UBS

CET1

RWA 70

RWA 30

FINMA

UBS AG

ubs.com/investors

2024

AG

AG



UBS AG AG
414
2013
SRB
SRB
TLAC CET1
CET1
AT1
Tier 2
TLAC
SRB
AT1
FINMA UBS AG
TLAC
25
SRB
12.86
LRD
LRD
RWA 1.44 LRD
37
52
UBS AG
FINMA
2024 12 31

14.89

too-big-to-fail

Tier 2

RWA

BCBS

2024 12 31

14.89 LRD
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CAO CAO
TBTF
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Tier 1 AT1 Tier 2
CET1
AT1
Tier 2
75
RWA
UBS AG
0.72 LRD 0.25
2.5
2024 12 31 CET1
15
2024 12 31 CET1
3,800
CET1
RWA
5.02 RWA
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4.3 AT1
UBS AG AT1
5.02 3.52
CET1 1.5 AT1
UBS AG AT1
UBS AG SRB
LRD
2022 11 2023
UBS SIB
75
FINVA 2024
SIB
25
2024 UBS AG
UBS AG
CET1 AT1 Tier 2
2024 12 31 UBS
2022
RWA LRD 10.0 3.75
RWA
RWA
2024 12 31 TLAC 707 1,818
CET1
2024 12 31 CET1 297 738 UBS AG
AG 414 24
26
130 20 13 2024
12 31 UBS AG 130 65
65 2025
2025
UBS AG AT1 AT1 35
UBS AG AG UBS AG AT1
33 158

10 AT1
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2024 UBS AG 2023

AT1
UBS AG 2023 AT1
UBS AG AT1
2024 12 31 377 922
UBS AG 920 TLAC
377 UBS AG AG UBS AG 416
TLAC 97 TLAC
103 TLAC 31

Tier 2

UBS AG CET1 13.2 14.9 CET1 297

RWA 1,611
UBS AG CET1 4.0 4.8 CET1
LRD 4,189
UBS AG 17.0 18.1
330 RWA 1,611
UBS AG 5.1 5.9
LRD 4,189
UBS AG 16.3 18.6
377 RWA
UBS AG 4.9 6.1
LRD

UBS AG

UBS AG

UBS AG
ubs.com/investors Annual reporting UBS

2024 Financial and regulatory key figures for our significant regulated

subsidiaries and sub-groups

UBS AG UBS AG
2015
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG

FINMA FINMA
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UBS AG 24
2024 RWA
2024 RWA 1,611
AG RWA 1,900
2024 12 31
UBS AG
RWA 1,152
266
RWA
RWA
RWA
2024 12 31
FINMA
VaR VaR
FINMA
UBS AG AG
RWA
UBS AG
AMA

RWA

26
UBS AG
4,951
233
AG
98
266
RWA
RWA 66
RWA 125 272
RWA 41
2024 12 31 689
AG
RWA
48

RWA
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2023 12 31

UBS AG
RWA 289
102

722 2,923
RWA 430

66

UBS AG

2024

2024
65
RWA
19

1,454
RWA 642

UBS AG 2024
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2024 LRD 4,189 5,233 UBS AG
AG LRD 5,164 LRD
975 499
476
LRD

810

180

165

21

UBS AG

2024 UBS AG AG AG UBS AG

UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG

UBS AG UBS AG
ALCO ALCO BoD EB

UBS AG
BoD
UBS AG BoD UBS AG EB UBS AG ALCO

UBS AG HQLA
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UBS AG ALCO BoD

UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS AG
AG
UBS AG

UBS AG

UBS AG

UBS UBS

ALCO
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UBS
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
0TC
2024 12 31 UBS AG UBS SE UBS AG
UBS AG
11
oTC
2024 UBS AG Aa3 Aa2
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG HQLA

HQLA
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LCR
HQLA
UBS AG HQLA
UBS AG HQLA
UBS AG
UBS AG HQLA
563 UBS AG H
UB
BCBS
FINMA
UBS AG HQ
2024 UBS AG LCR
186.1
2024 UBS AG HQLA UBS
3,316 HQLA
2024 UBS AG
UBS AG AG
too-big-to-fail
2023 FINMA
UBS AG 2024
NSFR
RSF
RSF
BCBS NS
2024 12 31 UBS AG NSFR 4.5
2,444 8,470

6,825

LCR
HQLA

QLA

S AG
100

LA

LCR
2023

AG

NSFR

FR

117/619

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

OooooOodd
UBS AG
2024
LCR
HQLA LCR
189.7
AG 771
HQLA
439 1,782
TBTF 2024
ASF
ASF
100
124.1
1,787



UBS AG
UBS
UBS AG AG
UBS AG
AG
2024 12 31 5,681 2023 12 31
UBS AG AG
515 2024
633
SNB
2024 2,298
581
2024
442 1,183
241 2024
86
2024
664
241

50

2024 109

50 HQLA

59
2024
314 974

129

52
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AG

4,121

2024 4,893

1,148

HQLA

1,717

284
158

155

423

366
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UBS AG HQLA
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2024 12 31

0.9 0.1 222.3 0.0 223.3
2.5 15.6 0.0 18.1
118.3 118.3
8.0 0.0 35.9 44.0
71.9 0.2 515.2 0.1 587.3
8.7 4.2 37.7 8.7 59.3
81.5 15.0 790.9 163.0 1,050.3
711 0.3 87.9 0.0 159.2
186.4 186.4
25.9 25.9
3.6 20.4 45.1 26.1 95.2
74.7 20.6 132.9 238.4 466.7
1.9 0.3 2.2
21.6 27.2 48.8
2024 12 31 156.2 37.5 945.7 428.7 1,568.0
2023 12 31 115.5 30.7 723.0 286.7 1,156.0
2024 12 31 383.2 7.5 191.0 0.0 581.8
2023 12 31 357.0 5.3 127.1 489.5

2024 12 31
539.4 45.0 1,136.8% 428.7 2,149.8

2023 12 31
472.6 36.0 850.2° 286.7 1,645.5

23
2024 12 31 3,390 2023 12 31 2,617
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2024 12 31
2024
SNB
1,938
UBS
17
67
66
2024 12 31
UBS AG
oClI
0Cl 3,500
UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG

18 20 21h 23 28

UBS AG

4,734
4,297

AG

2024

414

2024 397

91
78

387 6,900

AG

4,700

3,500
0Cl112 6,100

AG 30

IFRS
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2024
308
705
162
2,170
940 300
14 8,100
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3,730
AG

90
2,246

406
543

414 3,200

oClI

UBS AG

10 11



UBS AG
UBS AG
2024 12 31 384
AG
2024 2023
UBS AG
2024
356 796
UBS AG
UBS AG
2023
2024 1,100
2023 12 31 8,800

3,200

UBS AG
UBS AG
2024 UBS AG

UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
79
2024 12 31 FINMA UBS AG

2024 12 31 UBS AG
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2023 12 31 315
69 UBS AG
1,015 1,489
145
1,300
2024 12 31
UBS AG
16
UBS AG



UBS AG

2024

1,085

2024

31

2024

212

2024

2024

2024 12 31
12 31 UBS AG
24b
UBS
UBS AG
24b
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
12 31
529 2,434
2024
2023 28
276
196 134
61
2023 49
UBS AG AG
24
2023
153
62

36
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1,438

UBS AG

2023 12

271
417
23
1,224
1,213
321

103



IFRS
UBS AG
UBS AG
Tier 1 CET1 CET1
UBS AG
UBS AG IFRS
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG 1ASB IFRS
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG AG
20
21
18
26
13

28
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2024 12 31

UBS AG

40

UBS AG

44

UBS AG

725
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UBS AG 0.10
D 2024 12 31
) ) CH)yo )
4,238,408, 466 3,858,408, 466 1,080,000,000
« ) 0.10
( ) 2024 23
0.10 380,000,000 38,000,000
UBS AG
0.10 700,000,000
70,000,000
2024 12 31
0.10 3,858,408, 466 385,840,846.60 (55,418)
)
3,858,408, 466
( 0.10 )
()
@)
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©)) 2024 12 31
) ) ( (
) )

2014 12 31 - | 3,844,560,913 - 384,456,091

(67,234)
2015 12 31 13,847,553 |  3,858,408,466 1,384,755 385,840,847 [2015

(242) (67,476) UBS AG

2022 12 31 0| 3,858,408,466 0 385,840,847

(67,476)
2023 12 31 0| 3,858,408,466 |28,860,895.32568 385,840,847 (2023

(55,418)

(5,047)
2023
0.10
0.10

2024 12 31 0| 3,858,408,466 0 385,840,847

(55,418)
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UBS AG 2024 12 31 UBS AG 100.00 2024 12 31
UBS AG UBS AG
®)
2024 12 31
UBS AG 45 CH-8001 3,858,408, 466 100.00%
UBS AG
€Y
UBS AG 620
Aktiengesel Ischaft UBS AG
CH-8001 45 Bahnhofstrasse
45, CH-8001 Ziurich, Switzerland +41-44-234 11 11 CH-
4051 Aeschenvorstadt 1, CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland +41-
61-288 50 50 UBS AG CHE-101.329.561
1862 1872
UBS AG 1998 29 UBS AG
UBS UBS AG UBS AG
2024 23
UBS AG NYSE
UBS AG
716b UBS AG AoA 24 26
UBS AG BaoD UBS AG UBS AG
2024 12 31 UBS AG
2024 UBS AG 3,858,408 ,466
0.10 385,840,846.60
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2024 BoD
0.10 380,000,000
38,000,000
2010 14 UBS AG AGM 2014
11 26 EGM BoD
2024 12 31 UBS AG 0.10 700,000,000
70,000,000 UBS
AG
2024 23 AGM
2025 17 UBS AG
UBS AG
0.10 UBS AG
UBS AG
2024 BoD 2025 AGM AGM 65
65
2025
EGM
2024 12 31 UBS AG 3,858,408,466 0.10
385,840,846.60
UBS AG

UBS AG UBS AG 100 UBS AG
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AoA BoD BoD
AGM 12 31 2025 AGM
EGM BoD
10 AGM
EGM
BoD AoA 12
BoD EB UBS AG
BaoD UBS AG
BoD UBS
BoD 2022
UBS AG 2023 UBS
BoD
BoD UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
2024 BoD
UBS AG UBS AG BoD
AGM BoD
BoD BoD BaoD
AoA BoD
2024 BoD UBS AG 32 UBS AG 4
BaoD
BoD
2024 BoD 2024
AGM
2002
NYSE
10A-3 BoD
2024 BoD

UBS AG UBS
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IT

AG
2024 14
UBS AG UBS
2024
G.
AGM
2024
UBS AG UBS
2024 AGM
G.
AGM
2024
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG
BoD
BoD
1980

BoD

100

BaD

95

100

IT
2014
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BoD
2016
UBS
UBS AG
GEB
2023 UBS
40 UBS UBS
too-big-to-fail
€00
Coo
UBS AG
BoD
UBS AG BoD
FINVA 2017/1 NYSE
2024 UBS AG BoD
UBS AG BoD
BoD
UBS AG BoD EB
BoD EB UBS AG
EB EB
EB
EB
EB UBS AG BoD BoD
EB
EB BoD BoD EB AoA
BoD EB
UBS AG EU

UBS

BoD EB
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UBS AG UBS AG EB  EB UBS AG
EB GEB UBS AG
2024 30 AG CEO
EB 2024 EB GEB 31 UBS
AG 4
UBS AG EB ALCO FRC
ALCO  UBS AG UBS AG
2024 ALCO 11
FRC  UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
FRC UBS AG
2024
FRC
UBS AG A0A
BoD EB
EB 12 EB
UBS AG
UBS UBS UBS AG
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS D&O UBS D&O UBS
D&O
@ 2024 12 31
UBS AG 18 31

)
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(Colm Kelleher)

2022

2022

2022

1957

UBS

UBS
2023

2009

2022

2019

CFO

UBS

2007

30
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Lukas Gahwiler

2022

2023

2023

1965

UBS
UBS
UBS
AG
UBS
UBS
UBS
UBS
20
2023
AG
MBA
AG
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Jeremy Anderson

2018

2018

2019

1958

30
2017 KPMG
IT 1980
IT
IT
2014 KPMG
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(William C. Dudley)

2019

2019

2019

1953

CEO
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(Patrick Firmenich)

2021

2021

2021

1962

2023

2016

12

2023

CEO

dsm

dsm

MBA
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Fred Hu

2018

2020

1963

CEO

2010

IMF
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(Mark Hughes)

2020

2020

2020

1958

35

LL.B.

RBC

UBS

RBC

MBA
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(Renata Jungo
Briingger)

2025

2025

1961

2016
AG
2025 10
AG
2011
EMEA
EMEA
AG
Bar & Karrer
AG
AG
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(Gail Kelly)

2024

2025

2024

1956

35
2002 2007
2008
2015
CEO
CEO
2008 2009
2008
12
2016 2023
UBS

144/619




EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
ooooodn

(Julie G.
Richardson)

2017

2019

2017

1963

JP

BXP

25
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(Lila Tretikov)

2025

2025

1978

SA

Al

2018

Al

CEO
Al

20

Al

SE

Al

24

CEO

NEA

Al
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2019 1960
(Jeanette Wong) 30
2019
2019 DBS
2020
M&A
DBS
DBS
DBS CFO
JpP
16
FX
MBA
PSA
)
P. 1960 2011 2020 2023
(Sergio P. Ermotti)
1969 2024
(George Athanasopoulos)
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(Michelle Bereaux)

1964

2023

(Mike Dargan)

1977

2021

2023

(Aleksandar lvanovic)

1976

2024

2025
AG
UBS

(Robert Karofsky)

UBS

1967

2018

2021 2024

2024 UBS

2025 UBS

(lgbal Khan)

UBS

1976

2019

2022 2024

2024

UBS

2025 UBS
APAC

(Barbara Levi)

1971

2021

(Beatriz Martin Jimenez)

UBS

1973

2023

UBS
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1965 2018
(Markus Ronner)
1974 2023
(Stefan Seiler)
1965 2023
(Todd Tuckner)
1972 2024
(Marco Valla)
1972 2024
(Damian Vogel)
30
®
)
@
UBS AG UBS 1998
Ernst & Young Ltd
2006
BDO
BDO AG
1A BoD
2024 AGM EY UBS AG 2024
UBS 2024 EY
EY AoA UBS
EY
2020
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2025
EY UBS
2021 FINMA
2019 FINMA
2024 14
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS SE EU
UBS SE 2024
BoD UBS
SE UBS
UBS AG
BoD 2022 EY
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118,302 118,302 0 0 ® &) 0 0
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587,347 560,531 22,300 4,506 (2,830) @76) (323) (2,230)
251,955 241,690 9,009 1,256 (166) (46) (70 (0
83,780 79,480 4,071 229 (100) 249) @7 (49)
25,599 21,073 3,493 1,083 (828) 72 (123) (632)
21,002 17,576 2,293 1,133 (9%63) (55) “7) (860)
147,714 147,326 266 122 (107) 6) 0 (101)
1,978 1,533 406 39 “D) ©® (1D (25)
4,204 4,089 106 9 (122 o) 0 (113)
8,058 7,136 922 0 e ) (16) 0
2,814 2,468 114 232 (137) (15) (19 (102)
59,279 58,645 439 194 (135) (25) @ (103)
2,723 2,568 59 95 (41) @ @ 37
1,050,326 1,022,550 23,074 4,701 (3,195) (304) G20 (2,369)
2,195 2,195 0 0 0 0 0 0
ECL
1,052,521 1,024,746 23,074 4,701 (3,195) (304) G20 (2,369)
ECL
(ECL )

40,280 38,860 1,242 178 (61) (s6) @4) 2
7,818 7,008 635 85 (18) ©® @ @
2,524 2,074 393 57 @n ® (15 )
21,590 21,449 141 0 0o o 0 0
3,709 3,652 24 33 @ ben) 0 e
2,678 2,676 2 0 1)) 1)) 0 0
79,579 75,158 4,178 23 192) (105) (61) (26)
47,381 43,820 3,393 168 (155) ) i) a0
24,896 24,896 0 0 0 0 0 0
148,900 146,496 2,149 255 @@5) (59) an 0
7,674 7,329 345 0 ® @ @ 0
14,692 14,001 584 17 @2 19 @ @
9,812 9,289 333 190 (34) (28) (6) 0
73,267 73,181 84 1 0 0 0 0
10,074 9,604 467 3 ® ©® @ 0
4,608 4,602 4 2 3 @) 0 0
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171,806 171,788 18 0 (26) 0 (26) 0
28,206 28,191 14 0 ) 6) [6h) 0
74,128 74,128 0 0 @) ) 0 0
32,300 32,300 0 0 0 0 0 0
405,633 385,493 18,131 2,009 (935) (173) (185) (77)
174,400 163,617 9,955 828 (156) (39) (69) 8
54,305 50,252 4,038 15 (46) 0) (25) @
14,431 12,594 1,331 506 (241) (34) (32) (174)
12,694 10,662 1,524 508 262) (34) @4 (204)
117,924 117,874 0 50 2 ) 0 an
2,041 1,564 438 39 “42) ®) 11) @4)
2,889 2,873 12 4 (119) @) 0 (111)
54,334 53,882 312 141 87) (16) ) (66)
2,615 2,422 79 114 (49) “@ [6)) 44)
766,407 745,782 18,475 2,150 @1,057) @97) @170 (643)
2,233 2,233 0 0 0 0 0 0
ECL
768,640 748,015 18,475 2,150 (1,057) 97 @17 (643)
ECL
(ECL )
33,211 32,332 761 118 (40) (14) ©) (19)
3,624 3,051 486 87 (10) 16)) &) ®)
1,506 1,299 177 31 @) @ 6)) ®)
22,549 22,504 46 12 ) @A) 0
3,009 3,009 0 [6)) 0 0 [6))
1,811 1,803 8 0 [6)) @ 0 0
44,018 42,085 1,878 56 (95) (55) (38) @)
26,096 24,444 1,622 30 (76) “45) ©8) &)
10,373 10,373 0 0 0 0 0 0
47,421 45,452 1,913 56 (49) (39) (10) 0
9,439 8,854 585 @ (€)] @ 0
5,110 4,951 151 () “@ 3) 0
5,408 5,188 191 29 ¢i)) an 16) 0
8,964 8,964 0 0 0 0 0
10,458 9,932 522 4 (10) ) &) 0
537 537 0 0 0 0 0 0
4,183 4,169 11 4 [O)) 3) 0 0
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37 2023 12 31 15
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31 2023 12 31 9
2024 12 31
«C ) ECL
( ) (bps)
252,121 241,736 9,079 1,306 7 2 77 5 386
83,880 79,504 4,008 278 12 3 66 6 1,768
336,000 321,240 13,177 1,584 8 2 73 5 628
26,427 21,145 3,617 1,665 313 34 341 79 3,795
21,966 17,631 2,341 1,993 439 31 203 52 4,316
48,393 38,776 5,958 3,659 370 33 287 67 4,079
147,821 147,332 267 222 7 0 8 0 4,531
2,019 1,539 416 64 205 39 256 85 3,857
4,327 4,098 106 122 283 22 40 23 9,258
8,089 7,150 938 0 38 20 175 38 0
2,951 2,484 134 334 464 62 1,447 133 3,057
40,576 38,188 1,636 752 83 7 56 9 3,965
2,764 2,571 60 132 149 14 159 17 2,785
208,547 203,363 3,558 1,627 39 4 161 7 4,152
@ 502,041 563,379 22,693 6,869 48 5 143 10 3,301
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8,473 8,271 176 2% 4 4 2 4 81
8,694 8,300 394 0 7 6 33 7 0
17,167 16,571 570 26 6 5 30 6 81
69,896 65,013 4,612 271 28 17 151 2 528
13,944 12,788 842 315 59 30 324 48 532
83,840 77,800 5,454 586 33 19 177 30 530
80,390 80,235 120 35 1 0 1 0 2,330
10,074 9,604 467 3 8 6 36 8 0
3,487 3,464 23 0 3 3 51 3 0
2,669 2,663 6 0 13 13 49 13 0
134 134 0 0 6 6 0 6 0
22,842 22,378 464 0 1 1 8 1 0
52,765 52,268 468 29 4 2 28 2 2,945
172,360 170,745 1,549 67 3 1 23 2 2,470
2
@ 273,367 265,117 7,572 678 12 7 135 10 704
3
® 866,308 828,495 30,265 7,547 37 6 141 10 3,067
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(&) ©)
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2023 12 31
) ECL
( ) (bps)
174,555 163,656 10,044 856 9 2 88 7 326
54,351 50,272 4,063 16 9 4 61 8 594
228,906 213,928 14,107 872 9 3 81 8 331
14,671 12,628 1,363 680 164 27 237 48 2,558
12,956 10,696 1,548 712 202 32 155 47 2,861
27,627 23,324 2,911 1,392 182 29 193 48 2,714
117,946 117,879 0 67 2 0 0 0 2,487
2,083 1,571 449 63 200 40 253 87 3,801
3,008 2,881 12 115 304 25 62 25 9,676
26,997 26,083 837 7 18 10 4 1 2,379
2,665 2,426 80 159 185 17 122 20 2,793
152,699 150,840 1,378 481 18 3 117 4 4,462
@ 409,232 388,002 18,396 2,744 2 5 101 9 2,263
ECL
( ) (bps)
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13,609 13,609 0 1 1 1 0 1 0

10,458 9,932 522 4 10 8 35 10 0

2,354 2,346 8 0 4 4 36 4 0

25,378 25,148 230 0 5 4 157 5 0

16,869 16,596 264 9 12 5 170 8 0

68,668 67,630 1,024 14 7 4 97 6 5,921

@ 128,833 124,037 4,562 234 15 9 122 13 908
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0. ®.3) [ONO) (ONE)]
42.1 36.6 3,649.8 16,843.5 35.3 32.8 2,471.7 13,749.0
(OTC)(4) 0.1 0.0 92.9 851.5 0.1 0.0 114.0 1,061.4
(0TC) 27.1 20.3 1,360.1 14,974.2 23.0 18.2 768.0 11,884.1

(orc) 14.7 16.1 2,189.1 12.1 14.4 1,569.4
(ETD) 827.5 707.4
(ETD) 0.1 0.0 7.8 190.3 0.0 0.0 0.2 96.1

3.1 3.7 143.8 1.8 1.6 93.1

©T10) 2.8 3.3 138.7 1.6 1.5 91.4

(010) 0.0 0.3 1.0 0.0 0.1 0.7
101.1 94.6 7,216.1 268.8 65.4 71.7 6,367.1 179.6

©T10) 36.9 32.3 2,268.3 15.6 18.9 1,881.7
ore) 55.5 53.5 3,793.5 267.0 43.5 46.7 3,587.2 178.7

ore) 8.6 8.7 1,145.2 6.2 6.1 892.6
36.9 2.7 1,364.8 93.3 27.3 32.9 1,191.1 84.3

ore) 59 8.2 352.8 6.0 8.9 263.4

(o10) 4.4 8.3 226.1 2.8 5.9 193.4
(ETD) 84.6 77.3
(ETD) 13.4 13.5 784.7 8.7 10.3 10.0 732.7 6.9

(ETD) 13.1 12.7 8.1 8.0

2.6 2.2 155.4 17.1 1.6 1.3 128.6 15.5

(U] 0.9 1.1 58.3 0.7 0.5 44.8

(orc) 0.8 0.4 42.2 0.6 0.3 38.4
(ETD) 12.6 13.0
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558.4 50.3 70.2  116.2  130.5  124.7 1,050.3
16.7 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.2 0.1 18.1
164.9 33.3 62.0  108.9  112.5  105.7 587.3
9.9 0.9 5.3 6.6 17.7 18.9 59.3
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0.0 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.7
@ 299.7 11.9 27.7 26.7 13.1 22.4 401.6
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13.1 11.3 21.8 23.0 8.0 9.1 86.3
5.2 2.8 0.0 0.1 0.4 0.1 9.2
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@
43.0 0.5 0.4 0.0 0.0 44.0
33.4 33.4
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2024 12 31 UBS AG o
Credit Suisse International London, UK usb 7,267.5 97.6
UBS Americas Holding LLC Wilmington, Delaware, US usD 2,900.0? 100.0
UBS Americas Inc. Wilmington, Delaware, US usD 0.0 100.0
UBS Asset Management AG Zurich, Switzerland CHF 43.2 100.0
UBS Bank USA Salt Lake City, Utah, US usD 0.0 100.0
UBS Europe SE Frankfurt, Germany EUR 446.0 100.0
UBS Financial Services Inc. Wilmington, Delaware, US usb 0.0 100.0
UBS Securities LLC Wilmington, Delaware, US usb 1,283.1(3) 100.0
UBS Switzerland AG Zurich, Switzerland CHF 10.0 100.0
D ygs A @ 1,000 29
2 100,000 13

UBS AG

SEC UBS AG
2024 12 31 UBS AG
Banco de Investimentos Credit Suisse (Brasil) S.A. Sao Paulo, Brazil BRL 164.8 100.0
Credit Suisse (UK) Limited London, UK GBP 245.2 100.0
Credit Suisse (USA) LLC Wilmington, Delaware, US usb 0.0 100.0
Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited London, UK UsD 9.6 100.0
Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC Wilmington, Delaware, US usD 0.0 100.0
Credit Suisse Securities (Japan) Limited Tokyo, Japan JPY 78,100.0 100.0
UBS Asset Management (Americas) LLC Wilmington, Delaware, US usb 0.0 100.0
UBS Asset Management Life Ltd London, UK GBP 15.0 100.0
UBS Business Solutions US LLC Wilmington, Delaware, US usD 0.0 100.0
UBS Credit Corp. Wilmington, Delaware, US usD 0.0 100.0
UBS Fund Management (Switzerland) AG Basel, Switzerland CHF 1.0 100.0
UBS (Monaco) S.A. Monte Carlo, Monaco EUR 49.2 100.0
UBS Securities Australia Ltd Sydney, Australia AUD 0.3(1) 100.0
UBS Securities Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong SAR, China HKD 3,254.2 100.0
UBS Securities Japan Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan JPY 44,908.7 100.0
UBS SuMi TRUST Wealth Management Co., Ltd. Tokyo, Japan JPY 5,165.0 51.0
@
SE
UBS AG SE 2024 2023
UBS AG SE
UBS AG UBS AG SE
UBS AG UBS AG
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4 6,275 5,430 5,730 4,862
463 405 409 363
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8,821 7,068 7,960 6,323
18,286 13,832 16,307 12,422
6 5,511 3,408 4,868 3,063
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13,608 7,526 12,012 6,747
4 543 3,715 500 3,343
1,028 765 907 687
8 1,078 33 942 29
16,258 12,040 14,361 10,805
2,028 1,792 1,946 1,617
9 4,211 34 3,693 32
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13, 24 96,243 56,082 87,399 47,204
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12, 13, 24 148,955 107,463 135,266 90,451
o 12, 13, 24 43,652 29,380 39,640 24,729
12, 13 8,438 5,116 7,662 4,306
14 148,686 124,682 135,022 104,943
15 21,941 10,056 19,925 8,464
16 39,850 40,874 36,188 34,403
13 4,194 3,000 3,808 2,525
4 73,103 48,090 66,385 40,477
5,364 5,049 4,871 4,250
12, 13, 17 13,918 9,905 12,638 8,336
791,297 558,527 718,576 470,106
34,918 20,183 31,709 16,988
33,344 19,250 30,279 16,202
24 87,538 62,428 79,493 52,545
11, 24 42,638 23,774 38,720 20,011
24 227,493 147,388 206,587 124,055
UBS A6 21, 24 113,898 70,620 103,431 59,440
14 29,316 27,280 26,622 22,961
15 14,005 16,921 12,718 14,242
14, 20 102,901 80,859 93,444 68,058
UBS AG 20, 21, 24 4,998 2,711 4,539 2,282
21 72,673 67,144 65,994 56,514
8,230 5,474 7,474 4,608
17 5,196 1,755 4,718 1,475
13 3,101 2,008 2,816 1,690
706,989 505,650 642,016 425,600
22 386 386 380 380
65,627 36,334 60,185 35,655
@ 77,661 22,190 70,626 23,936
(12,034) 14,144 (10,441) 11,719
13,157 14,642 11,311 7,107
) 5,138 1,515 4,684 1,364
84,308 52,877 76,560 44,506
791,297 558,527 718,576 470,106
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13, 24 138,234 80,551 152,843 82,550
11, 13, 24 168,533 99,652 186,343 102,126
12, 13, 24 213,944 154,349 236,553 158,181
o 12, 13, 24 62,697 42,198 69,322 43,246
12, 13 12,119 7,348 13,399 7,530
14 213,558 179,081 236,126 183,524
15 31,514 14,443 34,845 14,802
16 57,237 58,707 63,286 60,164
13 6,024 4,309 6,659 4,416
4 104,998 69,072 116,094 70,786
7,704 7,252 8,518 7,432
12, 13, 17 19,990 14,227 22,101 14,578
1,136,540 802,212 1,256,646 822,121
50,153 28,989 55,453 29,709
47,892 27,649 52,952 28,334
24 125,731 89,665 139,017 91,891
11, 24 61,241 34,147 67,714 34,995
24 326,748 211,693 361,279 216,947
UBS A6 21, 24 163,592 101,432 180,880 103,949
14 42,107 39,182 46,557 40,154
15 20,115 24,304 22,241 24,906
14, 20 147,797 116,138 163,415 119,020
UBS AG 20, 21, 24 7,179 3,894 7,938 3,991
21 104,380 96,439 115,410 98,832
11,821 7,862 13,071 8,058
17 7,463 2,521 8,251 2,579
13 4,454 2,884 4,925 2,955
1,015,448 726,265 1,122,758 744,289
22 554 554 665 665
94,260 52,187 105,252 62,353
@ 111,544 31,871 123,511 41,859
(17,284) 20,315 (18,259) 20,494
18,897 21,030 19,781 12,429
) 7,380 2,176 8,191 2,385
121,092 75,947 133,888 77,832
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2024 12 31 2024 12 31 ©
5,138 7,380 4,684 8,191
') 0 0 0 0
5,138 7,380 4,684 8,191
(5.138) (7,380) (4,684) (8,191)
« ) 0 0 0 0
13,157 18,897 11,311 19,781
(1,362) (1,956) (1,219) (2.132)
11,795 16,941 10,092 17,649
© 6,500 9,336 5,903 10,323
™ 6,500 9,336 2024 12 31
1.10 5,903 10,323 4,684
8,191 1,219 2,132 @
6,500 5,903 9,336 10,323

2025

360/619



32

UBS AG
UBS AG
Zurich Aeschenvorstadt 1, CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland UBS AG
Aktiengesel Ischaft
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG UBS
UBS AG
UBS AG 2024 12 31 18,161
31 10,398
a
UBS AG GAAP  FINMA FINMA 2020 1
AG 2024 UBS AG
GAAP IFRS UBS AG
UBS AG
- UBS AG 33
UBS AG UBS AG
- ubs.com/investors Annual reporting
Compensation Report
UBS AG UBS AG UBS
Tier AT UBS AG
- UBS AG 27
- UBS AG AG 2024
c
UBS AG UBS AG
- UBS AG 32

361/619

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8001

620
UBS AG
2023 12
UBS

33

UBS AG 2024

UBS AG

AG



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooooo
UBS AG
UBS AG
2024 31 UBS AG AG 2024
AG 2024 31 AG
UBS AG
2024 31 2024 31
N c
UBS AG
R 20
UBS AG UBS AG
Tier
UBS AG
TLAC
UBS AG
- UBS AG 21
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG

UBS AG

Capital Adequacy Ordinance 29 30

362/619



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

363/619



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
FX FX
FX
FX
UBS AG FX
FX FX
FX
UBS AG
UBS AG

UBS AG UBS

AG

UBS AG

364/619



GAAP
UBS AG
IFRS
S 23
UBS AG
- UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG
GAAP ECL
UBS AG IFRS
GAAP IFRS
UBS AG
- UBS AG
GAAP ECL
IFRS ECL
RWA
AG 2024
RWA

PD

UB

12

IFRS
IFRS
GAAP FER 26
S AG GAAP FER 26
IFRS IAS 19
26
ECL
IFRS
ECL
12
EL

Risk management and control

LGD

365/619

ECL

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

UBS AG

IFRS

ECL

ECL

EL

UBS



UBS

UBS AG IFRS

2024

UBS AG

2024

UBS AG
2023 12 UBS
2024

2024
27
31,343
46,690

UBS AG
598 5

2024

2023 12 31

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooooooo
ECL
ubs.com/investors Annual reporting UBS AG 2024
Risk management and control
13
UBS AG
AG
UBS AG
UBS
ubs.com/investors Annual reporting UBS AG 2024
Our business model and environment
AG
AG UBS AG AG
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USA
2024 UBS AG AG
d
e
UBS AG UBS AG 2024
Risk management and control
UBS AG
11 25
- UBS AG 11 25
a
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 7,450 6,575 6,586 5,922
2,001 678 1,748 605
9,451 7,253 8,334 6,527
(€]
b
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
( ) 6,198 5,479 5,485 4,930
1,588 1,128 1,397 1,017
( ) 1,780 524 1,551 471
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UBS Wilmington,
Delaware, USA 100 31,834 31,484 28,908 26,500
UBS AG Zurich, Switzerland 100 20,996 7,985 19,066 6,721
London,
United Kingdom 98 5,040 4,577
UBS SE Frankfurt, Germany 100 4,175 3,914 3,791 3,294
UBS AG Zurich, Switzerland 100 2,260 1,732 2,053 1,457
8,799 2,976 7,990 2,505
73,103 48,090 66,385 40,477
2024 UBS AG AG
339 285
USA 64 54 AG 136
115 82 69
2024 UBS AG
USA UBS UBS
63 57
2024 UBS AG AG UBS AG
130 117
2024 UBS AG 543 500
2023 UBS AG 3,715
3,343
UBS
2024 UBS AG 3,996 3,497
2024 2023 6,275 5,730
5,430 4,862 UBS AG UBS
UBS AG UBS SE
2024
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UBS AG o 2,779 1,511 2,436 1,354
( H® 0 70 0 59
36 14 34 14
2,814 1,59 2,470 1,426
UBS AG (641) (394) (566) (355)
( H® (116) 0 (98) 0
42 (13) (36) (¢4
(800) (407) (700) (366)
@ ugs a6 @ 16a
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12 31 12 31 12 3 12 3
2,929 1,710 2,588 1,536
1,450 1,115 1,280 1,003
308 83 274 74
55 27 49 25
340 242 300 217
277 124 243 115
@ 9 31 6 31
152 106 134 95
5,511 3,408 4,868 3,063
® 1as 19
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 3
630 451 556 404
275 75 243 67
IT 242 98 214 88
229 129 202 115
101 65 89 58
88 35 78 31
48 12 2 11
43 9 38 8
4 2 3 2
2 0 1 0
487 173 431 153
5,997 3,081 5,288 2,757
UBS 46 5,572 2,806 4,911 2,514
8,007 4,118 7,144 3,684
2024 1,005 905

UBS AG
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® 3,996 9 3,497 10
198 9 181 8
16 10 14 9
1 5 1 5
4,211 34 3,693 32
UBS AG AG
@ 598 0 504 0
3 2 1 2
600 2 505 2
@ @ c
2024 AG
UBS AG 169
155
UBS AG AG
UBS AG AG UBS AG AG 2024
598 504
UBS AG IFRS AG US GAAP
559
471 537
452 AG
AG
TLAC UBS AG
432
10
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
« D 461 279 416 255
492 277 443 254
(€)) 2 (¢ 2
40 31 35 28
«c D 501 310 451 283
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31 2024 12 31 2023 12 31

200.9 157.0 182.4 132.1
(83.5) (87.6) (75.8) (73.7)
117.3 69.4 106.6 58.4
126.2 111.4 114.6 93.7
(83.5) (87.6) (75.8) (73.7)
42.6 23.8 38.7 20.0
74.8 75.7 67.9 63.7
61.8 68.2 56.1 57.4
4.5 49.9 40.4 42.0
13.0 7.5 11.8 6.3
12.8 7.4 11.7 6.2
425.2 372.6 386.1 313.6
266.1 246.5 241.6 207.5
29.3 27.3 26.6 23.0
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® ®
® 4 102,479 4,515 43,6309 150,665
8,446 8,446
5,242 5,242
® 3,204 3,204
43,675 43,675
8,486 102,479 4,515 87,305 202,786
) (209) (40) (1,584) (1,740)
8,479 102,370 4,475 85,721 201,045
31 20,590 1,276 13,002 34,989
737 23,883 2,728 17,120 44,469
64,036 64,036
5 5
768 108,510 4,004 30,217 143,499
2023 12 31
@ @
® 65,884 48 41,733W 107,665
5,116 5,116
2,854 2,854
® 2,263 2,263
29,403 29,403
5,116 65,884 48 71,136 142,184
0 (63) 0 (161) (225)
5,116 65,821 48 70,974 141,959
21,245 990 9,125 31,360
550 9,365 154 9,831 19,900

375/619



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

ooOooood
63,527 63,527
5 5
550 94,136 1,144 18,961 114,791
@ @ ®@
*

®

376/619



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

0000000
2024 12 31
® @

® 37 93,061 4,100 39,620 136,818

7,669 7,669

4,760 4,760

® 2,908 2,908

39,662 39,662

7,706 93,061 4,100 79,281 184,148

®) (99) @n (1,438) (1,580)
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21.9 27.5 1,343 16.1 20.7 1,094
2.2 2.7 121 1.2 1.1 80
0.0 0.3 1 0.0 0.1 1
0.3 0.0 4 0.1 0.0 1
2.5 3.0 126 1.4 1.2 81

398/619



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)

Oooooooo
® 0.5 0.3 7 0.1 0.1 41
0.8 1.0 53 0.6 0.5 38
0.0 0.0 11 0.0 0.0 11
(010) 0.7 0.4 38 0.5 0.2 32
0.3 0.4 8 0.2 0.3 4
2.3 2.1 181 1.4 1.1 126
157.9 153.5 25,536 106.8 113.9 20,432
157.0 152.7 106.4 113.2
156.1 151.9 105.9 112.6
1.0 0.9 0.4 0.6
1.0 0.9 0.4 0.6
(18.4) (21.2) (15.1) (16.4)
(119.7) (119.6) (83.2) (83.2)
19.9 12.7 8.5 14.2
0.6 0.2 0.4 0.2
2.7 3.8 1.7 1.7
16.6 8.7 6.3 12.3
)
)
14.1 2023 12 31 11.6
®
® 203 12 31 3.5 UBS
AG AG ®
2024 12 31 200 2023 12 31 50
125 2023 12 31 17
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16a
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
38,710 38,190 40,857 40,864
21,095 20,413 20, 760 20,474
17,615 17,776 20,097 20,390
1,140 1,144 16 19
1
@ 1 1 2 2
0 0 1 1
39,850 39,334 40,874 40,884
&)
34,381 33,744 36,255 36,065
@ UBS AG 10 10 @
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
35,153 34,680 34,388 34,395
19,157 18,537 17,473 17,233
15,996 16,143 16,915 17,162
1,035 1,038 14 16
1
@ 1 1 1 1
0 0 1 1
36,188 35,719 34,403 34,412
&)
31,221 30,643 30,515 30,355
@ UBS AG 10 10 @
16b
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS w
0-1 25,113 31,902 22,805 26,852
2-3 13,231 8,929 12,015 7,515
4-5 363 24 330 20
6-8 0 0 0 0
9-13 0 0 0 0
3 1 3 1
38,710 40,857 35,153 34,388
@) 19
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17a
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
9,129 6,824 8,290 5,743
® 1,290 1,372 1,172 1,155
282 242 256 203
428 344 388 290
823 425 747 357
1,966 699 1,784 587
uBS A6 UBS 1,459 483 1,325 407
@ 13,918 9,905 12,638 8,336
@ UBS AG 18b 1 @ UBS AG UBS
2024 12 31 2,172 1,972
2023 12 31 918 772 13d
17b
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
401 115 364 97
61 66 55 56
@ 108 82 98 69
4,626 1,491 4,201 1,254
2,493 490 2,264 412
uBS A6 UBS 1,885 900 1,712 758
5,196 1,755 4,718 1,475
@
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18
2024
12 31 11 2023 12 31 35 29
11
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1
@ 12,112 8,011
2
@ 2,025 2,187
14,137 10,198
@
@
uBS AG 2024 12 31 2,521 2023 12
31 2,804
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) 10,999 6,743
@ 1,839 1,841
12,838 8,584
@
@
UBS AG 2024 12 31 2,289
2023 12 31 2,360
19
ubs.com/investors Annual reporting UBS AG 2024

Risk management and control
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
UBS
® S
o 1 Aaa ARA ARA 343,884 43 251,204 45
2 Aal Aa3 AA+ AA- AA+ AA- 134,479 17 90,612 16
3 AL A3 At A A A 93,246 12 71,893 13
4 Baal Baa2  BBB+ BBB BBB+ BBB 18,082 2 10,340 2
5 Baa3 BBB- BBB- 6,872 1 5,328 1
6 Bal BB+ BB+ 828 0 127 0
7 Ba2 BB BB 2,765 0 774 0
8 Ba3 BB- BB- 246 0 1,940 0
9 Bl B+ B+ 1,805 0 750 0
10 B2 B B 454 0 503 0
1 B3 B- B- 129 0 121 0
12 Caal Caa2 CCC+ ccc CCC+ ccc 4,659 1 261 0
13 Caa3 C ccc- C ccc- C 121 0 134 0
D D 119 0 29 0
607,688 77 434,016 78
183,608 23 124,511 22
791,297 100 558,527 100
™ UBS AG 2024 Risk management and control
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
UBS
o sep
0 1 Aaa ARA ARA 312,281 43 211,428 45
2 Aal Aa3 AA+ AA- AA+ AA- 122,121 17 76,271 16
3 AL A3 At A At A 84,676 12 60,511 13
4 Baal Baa2 BBB+ BBB BBB+ BBB 16,420 2 8,703 2
5 Baa3 BBB- BBB- 6,240 1 4,485 1
6 Bal BB+ BB+ 752 0 107 0
7 Ba2 BB BB 2,511 0 651 0
8 Ba3 BB- BB- 223 0 1,633 0
9 Bl B+ B+ 1,639 0 631 0
10 B2 B B 412 0 423 0
1 B3 B~ B~ 117 0 102 0
12 Caal  Caa2 Ccc+ ccc - cec+ ccc 4,231 1 220 0
13 Caa3 C cce- ¢ cce- ¢ 110 0 113 0
D D 108 0 24 0
551,841 77 365,302 78
166,734 23 104,803 22
718,576 100 470,106 100
™ UBS AG 2024 Risk management and control
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20
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
8,684 5,679 7,886 4,780
53,917 46,220 48,962 38,903
22,373 16,681 20,316 14,040
4,787 4,287 4,347 3,608
™ 3,620 3,704 3,288 3,118
1,253 699 1,138 589
UBS AG
@ 4,998 2,711 4,539 2,282
C ) 3,268 877 2,968 738
102,901 80,859 93,444 68,058
W @ ’
2024 12 31 8,258 7,499 2023 12 31
7,555 6,359
63 57 2023 12 31 58 49
21 UBS AG
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
UBS AG
UBS AG 108,185 67,292 98,243 56,639
UBS AG 4,998 2,711 4,539 2,282
218 546 198 460
UBS AG ® 113,401 70,549 102,980 59,381
@ GAAP SRB
2024 12 31 UBS AG 108,004
98,079 2023 12 31 66,951 56,352 SRB
UBS AG

22a
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UBS AG
2024 12 31 UBS AG 386 380
3,858,408,466 0.10
UBS AG
2023 12 31 UBS AG

UBS AG
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2024 12 31 UBS AG Board of Directors BoD
0.10 2023 12 31 380,000,000
38,000,000
2010 14 UBS AG Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
AGM 2014 11 26
2024 12 31 UBS AG 0.10 700,000,000
70,000,000 UBS AG
2024 23
UBS AG 50 2024 12 31 193 190
2023 12 31
22b
UBS AG UBS AG UBS AG 100
UBS AG 2024 12 31 2023
12 31 UBS AG UBS AG UBS
AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) )
UBS AG
UBS AG 386 100 386 100
UBS AG
DTC (Cede & Co.), New York™ 25 6 29 7
Nortrust Nominees Ltd., London 14 4 15 4
Chase Nominees Ltd., London 44 11
™ DTC (Cede & Co.), New York The Depository Trust Company
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
) )
UBS AG
UBS AG 380 100 380 100
UBS AG
DTC (Cede & Co.), New York™® 25 6 28 7

406/619



Nortrust Nominees Ltd., London

Chase Nominees Ltd., London

14
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15 4
43 11

@

DTC (Cede & Co.), New York
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0000000
23
a
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
)
428 344 388 290
428 344 388 290
® 2004 12 31 428 388 362 329 UBS
36 33 22 20
UBS
2023 12 31 344 290 341 287
UBS UBS
b
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
0 0 0 0
1
W 61 66 55 56
61 66 55 56
UBS UBS 293 11 266 10
UBS 15 34 14 29
369 112 335 94
M 2024 12 31 61 55 35 32 UBS 12
11 UBS UBS 2023
12 31 66 56 37 31 UBS 14
12 UBS 1 UBS
c
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
)
1,195 343 1,085 288
UBS AG ) 6 0 6 0
C D 0 0 0 0
177 28 157 25
7 3 6 3
184 31 163 28
™ GAAP FER 26
GAAP FER 16 2024 12 31 2023 12 31 UBS AG
UBS AG FER 16 IFRS IAS 19
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2024 277 243
130 116 148
127 2023 124 115
76 68
49 47
2024 12 31
2023 12 31
- IFRS UBS AG 26
24
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
W 3,009 123,802 4,344 77,258
2,047 2,590 3,804 2,535
UBS AG 113,898 70,620
UBS AG 4,998 2,711
187,707 116,401 116,967 68,654
88,211 73,492 35,235 51,206
33,376 4,869 35,319 1,267
17,475 35,526 15,979 15,121
43,652 29,380
@ 502 1,307 16,644 2,004
0 0 14,821 1,194
416 889 904 232
23 4
©® 63 21 2
@ ygs Ac UBS AG @ 2023 12 31 UBS AG UBS AG (
A y ©
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
W 2,815 112,424 3,656 65,027
1,859 2,352 3,201 2,134
UBS AG 103,431 59,440
UBS AG 4,539 2,282
170,457 105,704 98,450 57,785
80,105 66,738 29,657 43,099
30,309 4,422 29,728 1,067
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0000000
15,869 32,261 13,450 12,727
39,640 24,729
@ 456 1,268 14,009 1,687
0 0 12,475 1,005
378 808 761 195
20 3
® 58 19 2
@ ygs Ac UBS AG @ 2003 12 31 UBS AG UBS AG (
AG y @
2024 12 31 142 129
2023 12 31 86 72 84 76
2023 12 31 64 54 19
17 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
10
25
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 3 12 31
2,435 39 2,211 33
2,435 39 2,211 33
0 0 0 0
2,435 39 2,211 33
UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
26a
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 3 12 31 12 31 12 31
106 60 96 51
799 434 726 365
) 905 494 822 416
12 23 ayn 21

@
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26b
2024 2023 2024 2023
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 3
@ 494 468 416 432
UBS AG AG
@ 382 345
12 23 an 21
& 67 3 61 1
10 2 25 37
(16) @ (¢D)) @
O 905 494 822 416
@ @ yss ac AG UBS AG 31
UBS 2024 31 ®
N UBS AG 31
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UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG IFRS UBS AG
IFRS
2024 31 UBS AG AG IFRS
2024 31 AG
IFRS UBS
AG UBS AG
- UBS AG AG
UBS AG UBS AG
UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG UBS
AG UBS AG
UBS AG UBS AG
2024 UBS AG 1,533 UBS AG
5,146 3,613
UBS AG PPA
UBS AG UBS AG
PPA UBS AG UBS AG
PPA UBS AG
AG 2024 31 UBS AG
UBS AG AG UBS
AG UBS AG UBS AG
2024 12 31 UBS AG UBS AG 91
UBS AG 51
PPA UBS AG
IFRS 39
2024 12 31 UBS AG UBS AG
19 UBS AG
Tier CET 24
Tier AT
UBS AG CET 24 UBS AG IFRS
91 UBS AG 28
UBS AG UBS AG 102
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UBS AG UBS AG
2024 12 31
UBS AG UBS AG
« ) « ) ( )
42,323 48,611 (6.288)
( 544 551 @)
39,346 41,239 (1,893)
( 2,433 6,821 (4,388)
« ) 1,533 5,146 (3,613)
1,568,060 1,565,028 3,033
1,473,394 1,479,454 (6,060)
94,666 85,574 9,092
Tier 73,792 71,367 2,425
89,623 87,739 1,884
495,110 498,538 (3,429)
Tier ( ) 14.9 14.3 0.6
) 18.1 17.6 0.5
( ) 36.7 37.2 (0.5)
1,523,277 1,519,477 3,799
Tier ( ) 4.8 4.7 0.1
o 186.1 188.4 2.3)
( 124.1 125.5 (1.4)
(€Y} 2024 64
UBS AG 2024 Capital, liquidity and funding, and

balance sheet
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UBS AG
2024
BCBS
2024 Tier 85 909
CET 11
85
2024 12 31 UBS AG
65 65
2025
2025
UBS AG Tier AT
4
2024
RWA RWA
RWA 572 5,080
2024 LRD
139 451 8,993
HQLA
UBS AG CET RWA
14.7 14.8 UBS AG
LRD 10.5 10.1
UBS AG LCR
244.0 FINMA
LCR HQLA 275 1,427
HQLA
HQLA 18
2024 12 31 3.1
362 4,102

231 4,218

414/619
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Tier
UBS AG
81 751
130
158
RWA
312
CET
Tier
38.3
586
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KM
2024 2024 2024 2024 2023
12 31 30 30 31 12 31
C )
1 Tier (CET ) 75,051 83,113 82,329 51,971 52,553
2 Tier 90,881 99,363 97,461 66,175 65,051
3 90,882 99,365 97,461 66,175 65,052
« !
4 (RWA) 507,964 565,180 554,478 356,821 354,083
4a 2 40,637 45,214 44,358 28,546 28,327
(RWA )
5 CET ) 14.77 14.71 14.85 14.56 14.84
6 Tier () 17.89 17.58 17.58 18.55 18.37
7 () 17.89 17.58 17.58 18.55 18.37
CET (RWA )
8 () 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50
9 ) 0.19 0.19 0.18 0.12 0.12
% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
)
10 6-SIB D-SIB )
1 CET Y 2.69 2.69 2.68 2.62 2.62
12 CET
9.89 9.58 9.58 10.06 10.34
)
13 899,348 944,404 921,796 641,315 643,939
14 ) 10.11 10.52 10.57 10.32 10.10
(LeR)®
15 (HQLA) 142,661 170,179 137,003 123,742 129,961
16 58,620 60,445 50,458 46,115 50,376
16a 231,213 228,228 197,846 174,814 163,836
16b 172,593 167,783 147,387 128, 700 113,460
17 LCR(C ) 243.95 282.26 269.55 268.69 260.16
(NSFR)’
18 410,197 446,435 448,005 274,568 279,758
19 421,792 444,875 437,275 288,322 304,938
20 NSFR( ) 97.25 100.35 102.45 95.23 91.74
! Rwa
2 CET
RWA s SRB
UBS AG UBS AG 4
BCBS > CET
CET BCBS CET CET BCBS Tier
6
2024 64 2024 65

Pillar 3 disclosures

415/619
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Pillar 3 Report 17h UBS AG
UBS AG NSFR 80 NSFR 100
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UBS AG SRB
RWA 10.26 CET 0.19
14.56 0.19
LRD
3.54 CET 5.04
CET AT
2024 12 31 UBS AG UBS AG AT
12 FINMA
UBS AG i UBS
75 UBS AG
30 2024
RWA LRD
Tier
Tier
UBS AG
FINMA 2028
200 2019
250 400
20
2024 12 31 230
320
UBS AG UBS AG ubs.com/investors Annual reporting UBS
2024 Capital, liquidity and funding, and balance sheet

Capital and capital

ratios of our significant regulated subsidiaries
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SRB  RWA LRD
FINMA
SRB
RWA
RWA 2028
2024 12 31 LRD

14.56% 73,948 14.55% 80,869 5041 45,305
Tier 10.26 52,106 10.25 56,973 3.54 31,815
4.50 22,858 4.50 25,008 1.50 13,490
5.50 27,938 5.50 30,565 2.00 17,987

0.19 971 0.19 1,063
Tier 4.30 21,842 4.30 23,896 1.50 13,490
Tier 3.50 17,779 3.50 19,450 1.50 13,490

Tier 0.80 4,064 0.80 4,446
17.89 90,881 16.35 90,881 10.11 90,881
Tier 14.77 75,051 13.51 75,051 8.35 75,051
Tier 3.12 15,830 2.85 15,830 1.76 15,830
Tier 2.87 14,585 2.62 14,585 1.62 14,585
Tier 0.25 1,245 0.22 1,245 0.14 1,245

507,964 555,726
899,348

RWA  LRD
2024 12 31
2
75,339
92,174
122.35
1
RWA 1.51 RWA
1.50 LRD 0.54 RWA
RWA LRD
FINVA 338 2 25
75
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SRB
2024 2024 2023
12 31 30 12 31
90,881 99,363 65,051
Tier 90,881 99,363 65,051
Tier 75,051 83,113 52,553
Tier 15,830 16,250 12,498
Tier 14,585 15,012 11,286
Tier 1,245 1,239 1,212
92,174 96,470 54,452
Tier 204 286 533
Tier 204 286 533
TLAC 91,970 96,184 53,920
183,055 195,833 119,504
507,964 565,180 354,083
1 83,221 87,083 43,448
162,098 200,092 121,374
2028 555,726 622,776 399,369
1 90,458 94,656 48,276
202,623 250,115 161,832
899,348 944,404 643,939
17.9 17.6 18.4
Tier 14.8 14.7 14.8
2028 16.4 16.0 16.3
Tier 2028 13.5 13.3 13.2
)
10.1 10.5 10.1
Tier 8.3 8.8 8.2
(D)
122.3 120.1 112.5
1
230 320
250 400
20
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UBS AG

Annual reporting
2024
Our focus on sustainability
and climate risk

Annual reporting
Group Sustainability Report 2024
strategy
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UBS
UBS 2024
ubs.com/investors UBS
How we create value for our stakeholders
Risk management and control Sustainability
ubs.com/investors UBS
Strategy Our sustainability and impact
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UBS AG consolidated financial statements

Primary financial statements and share information

Audied
Income statement

For the year ended
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LD

3
"

ELRFE. ) 123

Initeest incose tom Enandal instnements measured ol ssorized coit and (s value through

{29,745 [19,643)

3455 1,765

Oiher et income fom Snandal instiuments. measued &1 Tair walue Soough proft or leds

4578 4,566

139589 9,934

L .. . .
(2,368} {1,731

Mt fee and cosmisdion income

CRETIETRET Y PN P PR PN

438 18,610

1248 566

Tedsl revenies

433 33,675

Crenfit s openise | (pedease)

44 143

Personnal epanses

Geesdandadunisatheepnes
Depreciation, amerlization end ispaistent of non-fnandal ssets

S B S
L S

LE4D 2,238

.1‘3.5.

Cperating expedes

B3E 19,011

25,917

e L T L T —

Tast expense | (banelit)

2433 4,521

B.960

Wt prnfit | s}

1533 335

FA R

Mt prois | ioss) attributatde to mon-contralling interests

3 25

Met proiin | floss) attributably to sharsholders

1481 3,390

7084

Annual Report 2024 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments
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Statement of comprehensive income
Fer the year ended
LS Muote 30324 34213 3.12.22

Commprek ive income attributable to shanshaold

e predi / floss) 1,481 3,290 7,084
Other compreheniive income Sat may be redasfied o the income statement

Fﬂﬂmmmqmwﬂnﬂmmmdiﬂgnmwmm _  (2629) 1,747 |BES
Effectioe particen of changes in fai walue of hedging instruments designated & netinvestment hedges, beloe 1 1,340 1] ELL

Effective partion of changes in fair walue of hedging instruments designated & net imvestment hedes necleaified 1o

theiesmestatement ma L I H,
Income L relating bo foreign curmency transtatioss, inchading the eMect of net investiment hedge b1 [ik] 4

Subbotal foreign cunency tandlafion, net of Lix (1,261) 845 1519

Finencial assets measused at fair valle theough ather comprehensive income

R S ey i R N )
Subbotal fimancial ssets seaiuned 5 (air value through other comprehensive incose, met of 1] 5 i
Cash Tiow hediges of imtenest rate rik =

Effecive partion of changes in lair walue of derhative insusents designated as cah low hedges, belors L {1,198) 136) 15,758
mmrﬂ:mrﬁmﬂdmﬂmwhm 1.!1? T T
Income 1ae selating bo cash fiow hedge (74} 1309) 1,124
Subbotal cash flow hedges, net of s 5 1,400 [LRET]
Coat of hedging 5

Costolhedging bekooetax e e
neeeme 1t selationg o cost of hedying 1] ] ]
Subtotal cout of hedging, met of tax 1B7) {19 45

Tiotal cither comprehensive income that may be pecaified o the income statesent, et of {714} 1735 (5.2600

Other compreherdie incomee Sl vill ot be redassified 1o the income stateseent
Defined benefi plars, - —
(G lmses) o defied beeli plans, beforeras fwep L o

Subtotal defined benefit plans, net of tax

0
186]
“Own credit on firancial Fbiltie desirated i vahe _ N
G | (lekses]) from cvn cvedit an Enandal lisbiities desgnated ol far value, belore Lax _ T 1B61) B67
v
b5

Income te relating bo own credit om finencial liabiities deignated & {sir value
Subbobal cwn eoesdil on Frandial Habiltes designated at fair value, met of lax
Tetal aiher comprehendive income that will not be redesilied 1o the income stalement, et of tax 21 1327 77

Teksl cither comprehenive income {735} 1,308 {4,283
Tetsl comprehensive income attritatable 1o shereholder TAT 4,598 2,70

Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests

Met profit / foss) 51 25 EF]
Teksl cither compreherive income that will not be reciailied to the incomme stalement, et of ta [48) 2 (14
Tetal comprehensive income atsritutable 1o non-controling interesits 3 7 18

Total compret ive income

et prciit / fioss) 1,533 3,315 7,116

Other comprsbengive iocome e B3 14398
o ibicy amter compveeenie Soome thar may be el fo the Soome SEABTR (e 2235 (5280

i g oo that e o e o the e sty o — o

Tenal comprehensiee income T4 4625 LM

1 et a dhlﬁﬂ'mﬁmmﬂhm rﬁ‘mﬁﬂ 123, a portolio of msess provioesly dasied a5 Financiil asres messered at fal value throagh ooher
m:ﬂ'mlmm mmmmﬂlmmhmhﬂhm
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Balance sheet
LS Hase 312M 31,12.23
Assels

Cash snd balances & ceniral hanks

Recsivablis b seourities fnancng Iransecions meatured o smortised cost
Ctdntl.uerd Mﬂmd&h&em

i =
Dithes firancial sssets ssamured st amartized cost

Tensl firancisl siets meausred o smontized cost
Fingncidl assets ol fair vee b e wending

WWMMIMHMWMMM
Mmmmmnuml@mmm

Tetal firancisl abiities measued &t smartized cost 1,054, 796 762,840

Dierivative Snandal instnements . 11._1_1,2 180,678 140,707

Brckerage papsbles deignused slstvaloe . N 8 a.1ms

Dbt issued designated at i e OSSO . 5 SO ... bl

ik e ORI . i A et
Tetal firancial abilities measued o1 {air value throwgh profis on loss 401,555 328,401
Frowisions 182 5131 2524

Total Fabiities and equity 1,568,060 1,156,116
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Statement of changes in equity

LoD
Balance a5 of 31 Dmrhr e

Shureof dange in reaived eomigs of sodtes djontvenures
mmrwmmmrw

- #M m H'm‘m S
Batance a1 of 31 mrhr 072

(3,000
Tﬂﬂdﬂmﬁdmﬁhmw (33
Shareof danges i iaed comieg ofamodes el jomevenwres @
%

Balance a5 of 31 Decernber 2024 38 B4, 177 7838

7 Esclazes TiET COMEIEbETG T Income 1oaned 2 defined Bercih plars and wn CsedE, which & reconded diectly It Ariained saimings. dees decseases siaied (0 rharges By B3 Group AV o share-baed
| FP of UBS &G of s subsidimies. 3 Inchides an inossas of US04 5m selaned o the bssanor of high-wigga o tier 1 cagical with an eguity

featzre. 4 Rrles 1o i 2 for mese infonracicn. 4 Mainly selieciing ehects dnm tansacions beoween Crod Sebise AG and s susislases and UES AG and Rs sebskiares pior m e mesger I May 2034,

l.n:h-sm|uudmmnhhmqmimuuuhr-g-dmsm—mmnﬁ.
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Share information and eamings per share

Ordinary share capital

As of 31 December 2024, UBS AG had 3858408466 issued fully paid registered shares (31 December 2023:
3,858, 408 466 shares) with a nominal value of USD 0.10 each, leading to a share capital of USD 385 840,846.60. The
shares were entirely held by UBS Group AG.

Conditional capital

As of 31 December 2024, the following conditional capital was available to the Board of Directors (the BoD) of UBS AG:

- Conditicnal capital in the amount of USD 38,000,000, for the issuance of a maximum of 380,000,000 fully paid
registered shares with a nominal value of USD 0.10 each, to be issued through the voluntary or mandatory exercise of
conversion rights and / or warrants granted in connection with the issuance of bonds or similar financial instruments
on national or intemational capital markets. This conditional capital allowance was approved at the Extracrdinary
General Meeting held on 26 Novemnber 2014, having originally been approved at the Annual General Meeting
ithe AGM) of UBS AG on 14 April 2010. The BoD has not made use of such allowance.

Conversion capital

As of 31 December 2024, UBS AG had conversion capital in the amount of USD 70,000,000, for the issuance of a
maximum of 700,000,000 fully paid registered shares with a nominal value of USD 0.10 each. The issuance of fully paid
registered shares only occurs through the mandatory conversion of daims arising upon the ccourrence of one or more
trigger events under finandial market instruments with contingent conversion features issued by UBS AG. The creation
of this conversion capital was approved at the AGM held on 23 April 2024,

Capital band and reserve capital
As of 31 Decernber 2024, UBS AG has not introduced a capital band or any reserve capital.

Earnings per share

In 2015, UBS AG shares were delisted from the SIX Swiss Exchange and the New York Stock Exchange. As of 31 December
2024, 100% of UBS AG's issued shares were held by UBS Group AG and therefore were not publicly traded. Accordingly,
earnings per share information i not provided for UBS AG.
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Statement of cash flows

Far the year ended
L0 ERR ) EL R k] EL N kX

Cash flows from / {used in) operating activities

el s s S, .. .- .. SUS. L.
Movcarh fhems inchaded it et profit and oher afustmanss:

Payables Trom securities finsncing trareaclions measused al assonized ool 4 1,543 {1247

T ey s ™™™ 1 463 pis

.101)

L .
235

e

Met cash flow frofn / {used inj opesating acivities

Cash flows fram / (used in) investing activities
Cash &nd cash equivabents obteined due to the serger of UBS AG and Crefil Suisse AG 121,258

Puchse of bl seoniies messu st st ol B (e pemn
Cispassl and redemption of debl seourifies sesured & amorlized cost B384 10,435 18,799

e cash flonw from J used in) imeting scivities 172,406 4924 (12.283)

Tabde continues below.
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Statement of cash flows (continuad)

Tabde continued from above.
For the year ended
LoD AT 3.12.23 31222

Cash flow fram / (uied in) finanding activities
Rspayment of Swiss Matianal Bank funding’ (10,304}

quwﬁdmaummdlmu ) {5,163} 7,161 (12,245
aince of debt Aot i vas s pre— ep— e e
w:ﬁﬂxnﬂqnﬂn'ﬁduﬂlﬂg—mﬂuwlww
Inflicans from securifies finanding transactions mesured mantized cosl®
mmmm rmmndn;mdmf e
Mt cach florws from ocher financing acihvities

Mt cash flow from / {used i financing activites

Total cash flow
Cash and cash ecuivalents ot the begnning of the yesr U .. .. S ... ...
Mt cash flow fom | {used ) operating, ivestiog and fnaeing scidies ——— @xs (1343
Eflu:sduﬁuguedlﬂunumtdimduﬁquhﬂn' (10,315} B,704
Cash and cash equivalents & the end of the year™ 243,354 130,469

o e cach and afinies af conal hanks 7 _ 1M 171,72

o ibicly e obe thom baaks T.65 12078

of e scmey maches paper 24 ' ) X 888

Additional information
Met cazh Tl Trom J {used in) opersting scvities includes:

R
Interest paid in cash CmI 8315

Dividends an quily investsents, investment funds and sssncistes nceive in cash' 1780 Y TR

1 Fodwign CHmenCy and foitign s on o2 g desters, aned ladiies ans on Grh and cash SOk ane mewmed wWikin the o nmhmﬁmihﬂg
ol I-i;llh:urﬂrﬂnwm“-ﬂnmmhhmﬂmmmnhnﬁiwhmﬂ NoFCasn s
H-L for the merger of UBS &G and Credit Sabse AG. Rrler m Kimg 2 for mom infosrasion. Jﬂﬂmhﬂgpﬂmmm i-l'lch-&ﬂﬂ-n'ui'lmﬁuh:fhru
amh-mnllnl-: mmuﬁ-mmqq. 4 Bafor to Mot 1 for mose Enfoenaion aoun the meger of UBS A5 and Coedic Sulse AG. & Indeces disidends received fom amocdians.
T Raflocs T g of the L-zth?hrn faciliny 1o they Sawiss Wanional Bank, which was in the 2alanoe shoo Fne Amoests dee 1o ek :mmmm“saupm

a ot [iecognized on shemt in Funging from LSS Geoep &G and meaaned a ﬁrmmﬁhﬁn:ﬁ-llmmlﬂk i valae].
immmmmfnﬂgmm.mmﬁmmﬂ 10 A5 of 31 mmmmmlﬁ,mﬂl
Decanizer 2023 USD 5, 205m; 31 Docmber 2022: mmmm:ﬂnm-pmum-hﬂrhgﬂn-,dullsus,-umﬂmmmmmumam*smm
Decamzer 202% USD 4,253m) conskdemd by UES AL as sesihced (refer 12 Ko 23 for mor infounanion) and USD 1 LA55m (31 Deoomben 2003: USD 4,856m; 31 December 20232: USD 4,395n) placed af cenmal
taniks 32 et kol statuoosy minirum e mgeiemenns, 10 The alance indudes USD 0.3ba relned m cish beld in At of dispoml groeps held to sl within Coaen naeefinancial aswers.
13 Inchades only Rakanoes with an original maeriy of tres momibs of less. 15 Money marken paper & inchsded in the balanan shee uncer Financial assess at fair valee not beld for mading (31 Decemizer 2004: USD
2.58%m; 31 December 2073 USDE, 345m; 31 Deomnber 2002; VS0 E,043m), Ochie financial asees mossuned a2 amonimd oos {31 Deosmber 2024 USD &30 31 Decenizer 2003 LD 295m; 31 Deosnbe 2022;
S0 6,453 el Fimancial assets at fair vales held for tadieg {31 Deemzer 2024; 15D 126m; 31 Decamber 2073: USD 39 31 Deopnber 202E USD 2l 14 Inchudes chigends seosiwd fom assocines sepomd
within Kt cash 1w fam | (esed in) irvesting aoities.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Dbt insued Iransscsions Twisg
measuned &t meatured 51 Deblissued  Mational  Owershe-  Funding
amortized  ofwebich  ofwhid  amortized  designated Benk counierdebt s UBS
LS ool dhevr-er’ dg-ner coat’ atbairvake  hnding' instuments®  Group AGE Total

Batance 2 of 31 Decerribar 2002 58,459 A7 AR 71,842 1684 57,843 190958
Hu'rudid'lu'gu

Bolance as of 31 December 2023 BATEA 7S 32499 6,341 1566 Tz 998
e ity T AT 1S MBL B
Cash flve e 0SS0 (BTN M

Movahdwgs _ @sw e L)

| ohwhch fin cunsny rasot (@049 1Y (142 Iiff:f:f:'Ififﬁffﬁfi s 109 25 2117

Balance 82 of 31 Dacember 2024 101,104 L L) BJ772 102,567 0 5536 113,260 331,139

1 Dt it s ol coetracieal u|h:rhnul 2 Db wich an neiginal manu Bty greaier an o 10 one ._' i of gty bsued ima sh and e, EE Dansider
qukuﬂmﬁihu ,!Hd‘hu:m vl ‘# .Endmu .FH F i 4 Rrllects the MTH failivg from the
mmﬂmmﬁumm-nuﬁndﬁhm“unm Lhdmmmm-mhmuhumzﬁrﬁ & Inclaes funciag fion LIES Gsep
A5 meaamed a1 aenized o ek o Mote |50 and mooxsund an fain valse (erer 0 Kone 1560, 7 Rl oo Move 2 o1 maoss information about the o of UBS &G and Ciedic Suise 4G
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Notes to the UBS AG consolidated financial statements

Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies

The following table provides an overview of information induded in this Note.

157 a) Material accounting policies 168 3) Fee and commission income and expenses
157 Basis of accounting 168  4) Share-based and other deferred compensation plans
157 1) Consolidation and business combinations 189  5) Post-employment benefit plans
158 2} Financial mstruments 169 6) Income taxes
158 3. Recognition 170 71 Investments in associates
158 b. Classification, measurement and pressntation 170 B} Property, equipment and software
162 ¢ Loan commitments and financal guarantess 17 9) Goodwill and other separately identifiable intangible
162 d. Irterest income and expense assets
162 e Derecognition im 10) Provisions and contingent liabilities.
163 £ Fair value of financial instruments 171 11)Fareign currency translatian
163 g. Allowances and provisians for expected credit 171 12} Cash and cash equivalents
losses
166 b Restructured and modiBad Francil aceafe 172 b) Changes in IFRS Accounting Standards and
167 i Offsstting Interpretations
167 L Hedge accounting
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

a) Material accounting policies

This Mote describes the material accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial staterments
(the Financial Staterments) of UBS AG and its subsidiaries (UBS AG). On & March 2025, the Finandal Statements were
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (the BoD).

Basis of accounting

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the |ASE), and are presented in US dollars.

Disclosures marked as audited in the "Risk, capital, liquidity and funding, and balance sheet™ section of this report form
an integral part of the Financial Statements. These disclosures relate to requirernents under IFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Discloswres, and 1AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and are not repeated in this section.

The accounting policies described in this Note have been applied consistently in all years presented unless otherwise
stated in Mote 1b.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Preparation of these Finarcial Statements under IFRS Aceounting Stancards requines. managermsnt to apply judgrment ard make estimates snd asurmptions that
alfect reported amounts of assets, liabilies, income and esperses and discosure, of contingent assets and liabilties, and may invobe significant uncertaingy a1 the
tirme: they ase made. Such estimates and sssumptions ane based on the best svailable information. U85S AG regulary resssesses such estimates and assumplions,
which encomguss historical experience, expectations of the futie and other pemtinent factors, o deterrmine their continiing reevance based on current condition,
updating thern as necessary, Changes in those estimates and assumptions may have & significant effect on the Fnancal Statements. Furthenmose, actual resuss
iy differ significantly fram UBS AG's extimustes, which could result in significant loases 1o UBS AG, beyand what was antidpated or provided for.

The fallowing afess contan extimaton uncsmainty of require critical judgment and have & gnificant effect on smounts recognized in the Fnancal
Szatements:
= desenmination of carrying amounts. of assets and liabilites and treatment of resenes for business combinations under comaman controd irefer to item 1 in
this Nate and Nate 2)
expected credit o measurement (refer 1o iem 2g in this Note and 1o Note 200
fair value mezsuserment (refer 1o item 21 in this Nobe and 1o Note 21%
income taxes (reder 1o item & in this Mote and to Note 3);
provisions and contingent lisbilities {refer to item 10 in this Mote and 1o Note 185
post-emphoyirent benefit plans ifrefer to iterm 5 i this Note and 1o Nate 261
goodwill {refer to isem 9 in this Note and to lote 13); and
consolidation of structu red entities {refer to isem 1 in this Note and to Note 2E).

1) Consclidation and business combinations

Consofidation

The Finandal Statements include the financial statements of UBS AG and its subsidiaries, presented as a single economic
entity; intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. UBS AG consclidates all entities that it controls,
including structured entities (SEs), which is the case when it has: (i) power over the relevant activities of the entity;
(i) exposure to the entity"s variable returns; and (i) the ability to use its power to affect its own returns.

Consideration is given to all facts and circumstances to determine whether UBS AG has power over another entity, e
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of an entity when decisions about those activities need to be made.

Subsidiaries, induding SEs, are consolidated from the date when control is gained and deconsolidated from the date
when control ceases. Control, or the lack thereof, is reassessed if facts and circumstances indicate that there is a change
to one or more elements required to establish that control is present.

¥ Refer to Note 28 for more information

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Each individual entity i assessed for consolidation in line with the sferermentioned corsolidation prindphs. The assessment of control can be corglex and
requines the wse of significant judgment, in particular in determining whesher UBS AG has power over the entity. As the nature and extent of UBS AG's
innahement i unigue for each entity, thene i ro unifern consobdation outcome by entity. When carfying aut the consalidation asiessament, judgrment i
exercised corsidering all the relevant facts and circumstances, including the nature and activities of the investes, & well a3 the substance of voting and similsr
righits,

¥ Refer to Mote 28 for more information

Transactions with subsidiaries of UBS Group AG that are outside of the consolidation scope of UBS AG are accounted
for and presented as transactions with third parties. This may lead to differences in presentation between the financial
staternents of UBS Group and those of UBS AG, e.g. personnel expenses incurred by UBS Business Solutions entities and
recharged to UBS AG entities are presented by UBS AG in General and administrative expenses.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinalions
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The amount of non-controlling interests, if any,
is measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acguiree's identifiable net assets.

Business combinations under common contral

A business combination in which the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by UBS both before and
after the business combination and where that control is not transitory is considered to constitute a business combination
under commaon control as defined by IFRS 3, Business Combinations. Business combinations under common control are
outside the scope of IFRS 3.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

UBS AG accounts for business combinations under common eontrel using the historic carrying values of assets and lisbilities of the wanslerred entity o
business a5 of the date of the transfer, determined under IFRS Accounting Standards. The batances of each of the equity resenves of the trarsbered entity,
seeumidatied after that entity becames part of the UBS Group, are combined with the coffesponding equity reenes (Share prermivm, Retained samigs and
Cther comprehandie income recognized directly in equity, net of tax) of UBS AG. The difference: between the aggregate carrying value of the asssts and
limbslitiess arvd equity reserves i recognized & an adjustment to Shane premium, net of any considerstion that may be peyable. Comparative periods prior to
the date of the busines combination under commeon contral are not restated, because such trarsactions are accounted for prospectively.

2) Financial instruments

a. Recognition

LBS AG generally recognizes finandal instruments when it becomes a party to contractual provisions of an instrument.
However, UBS AG does not recognize assets received in transfers that do not qualify for derecognition by the transferor
lapplying derecognition principles under IFRS Accounting Standards as described in item 2e below). UBS AG applies
settlement date accounting to all standard purchases and sales of non-derivative financial instruments. UBS AG may act
in a fiduciary capacity, which results in it holding or placing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts, retirement benefit plans
and other institutions. Unless these iterms meet the definition of an asset and the recognition criteria are satisfied, they
are not recognized on UBS AG's balance sheet and the related income is exduded from the Financial Statements.

Client cash balances associated with derivatives clearing and execution services are not recognized on the balance sheet
if, through contractual agreement, regulation or practice, UBS AG neither obtains benefits from nor controls such cash
balances.

b. Classification, measurement and presentation

Financial assets

Where the contractual terms of a debt instrurment result in cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
iSPEY) on the principal amount outstanding, the debt instrument is dlassified as measured at amortized cost if it is held
within a business model that has an objective of holding financial assets to collect contractual cash flows, or at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if it is held within a business model that has an objective of both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

All other finandal assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), including those held for trading or
those managed on a fair value basis, except for derfvatives designated in certain hedge accounting relationships (refer to
itern 2j in this Mote for more information).

Business model assessment and contractual cash flow characteristics

LIBS AG determines the nature of a business model by considering the way portfolios of financial assets are managed to
achieve a particular business objective at the time an asset is recognized.

In assessing whether contractual cash flows are SPPI, UBS AG considers whether the contractual terms of the financial
asset contain a term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows arising over the life of the
instrument. This assessment includes contractual cash flows that may vary due to environmental, social and governance
(ESG) triggers.

Financial iabilities

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include Debt ssued measured at amortized cost and Funding from UBS
Group AG measured at amovtized cost. The latter includes contingent capital instruments issued to UBS Group AG prior
to Novernber 2023 that contain contractual provisions under which the principal amounts would be written down upon
gither a spedified commaon equity tier 1 (CET1) ratio breach or a determination by the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory
Authority (FINMA) that a viability event has oocurred. Such contractual provisions are not derivatives, as the underlying is
deemed to be a non-financial variable spedific to a party to the contract. lssuances after Movember 2023 include a
contractual equity conversion feature with the same triggers, i.e. a CET1 ratio breach or FINMA viability event. When the
debt is issued in US dollars, these conversion features are classified as equity and are accounted for in Share premium
separately from the amortized cost debt host.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

When the legal bail-in mechanism for write-down or conversion into equity does not form part of the contractual terms
of issued debt instruments, it does not affect the accounting dassification of these instruments as debt or equity.

If a debt were to be written down or converted infio equity in a future period, it would be partially or fuIL!Iy derecognized,
with the difference between its carrying amount and the fair value of any equity issued recognized in the income
staternent, with the conversion features classified as equity always remaining in Eqguity attributable to sharsholders.

Financial liabilities measurad at fair value through profit or loss

UBS AG designates certain issued debt instruments as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, on the basis
that such financial instruments include embedded derivatives that are not dosely related and which significantly impact
the cash flows of the instrument and /or are managed on a fair value basis (refer to the table below for more
information). Financial instruments including embedded derivatives arise predorninantly from the issuance of certain
structured debt instruments.

Measurement and presenialion

On initial recognition, financial instruments are measured at fair value adjusted for directly attributable transaction costs,
unless the instrument is cassified at FVTPL, in which case transaction costs are excluded. Financial instruments acquired
through business combinations under common control are initially measured wsing the historic carrying values of financial
assets and finandal liabilities of the transferred entity or business as of the date of the transfer, determined under IFRS
Accounting Standards.

After initial recognition, UBS AG dassifies, measures and presents its financial assets and labilities in accordance with
IFRS 9, as described in the table below.

Classification, measurement and presentation of finandial assets

Finandial assets dassification Significant items inchuded Measurement and presentation
Measured at This dlassification includes: Measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
smortized cost = cath s balsroes st centrsl banks miethod hess allowances for expected credit losses (ECL)

_ S S — {refer to mems 2d and 2g in this Note for more information].

— receiables from securities financing transactions;

— cash colatersd 1 on desiative Thie following iterre are recognized in the income

Alabeimnent

instruments;
. ' . = interest income, which & accounted for in socordance

~ residential and commercial morbgages; with [term 2el in this Mote:
- CoipoEle mnd . — ECL and reversak: and
— secured Ians, induding Lombard loans, and e ;

" redt loans: and foreign exchange (Fx) trarslation gairs and losoes,
— debt securities held a3 high-quality liquid assets

(HOLAY When a financial aseet at amortized cost is derecognized,

the gain of kst is recognized in the ncome statement.

For amounts arsing from settlerment of cemain derivatives,
aee below in this table,

This dlassification primarily includes debt securities
bl &= HOQLA

Measured at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
reported in Other compraensive inoome, net of applicable
income taxes, until such investments ane derecognized,
Upon derecognition, any socumulated balances in Othar
comprehentie income ane reclasified to the income
atatement and reported within Otfer incame,

Fvocl

Thie following iterre, which are determined on the same

bursis s for finandal assets measuned at amortized cost, ane

recognized in the income statement:

- inbenest income, which & actounted Tor in socordance
with item 2d in this Mote;

= ECL and reversaks; and

= Fi transiation gaing and lodges.

Annual Report 2024 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments 159

432/619



Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Classification, measurement and presentation of finandial assets

Financial assets chassification  Significant items induded Measurement and presentation
Measured at | Held lor Finardal assets held for trading include: Measured at fair vale, with changes recognized in the
FVTPL trading — ol derivatives with & positive rlplluﬂ'trl.ull.le. pxcept income statement.

thiose that are designated and effective hedging

instruments; and Dierivative azets fincluding derivatives that are designated

~ other financial assets acquired principally for the
pupose of seling or rehasineg in the nears term, or
Mammm?wmﬂgmw
irstruments that are managed together and for which
there & evidence of a recent actual pattern of shom-
term pralit taking. Included in this category are debt
irstruments (including those in the lorm of securties,
money market paper, and traded corporate and bank
Ieang) and equity instiuments.

Mandatoriy Finarrdal assets mandatonly measured a2 FUTPL that ane
measured at ot hekd for trading include:
FUTPL- Ot _ urpin structured instruments, certain commercial

Imans, and receivables from securities financing
transsctions that are managed on & fain value besi;

= Ians managed on a fair value bass, incuding those
hedged with credit derivatives;

— certain debt seourities held as HOLA and managed on a
Lair value basis;

— brokerage receivables, for which contractual cash Flows
do nat meet the SPPI criterion because the angreoate
halance i sooounted for &5 & single wnit of account,
with interest being caloulated on the individual
COMpOnents;

— equity instruments; and

— asets Peld under unit-inked investment contracs,

and efiective hedging instruments) are generally
presenbed &5 Derdathe financial inctruments, scept those
exchange-traded derivatives (ETD) and over-the-counter
{OTC)cleared deshvatives that ane legaly settled on a daily
basis or econamically net ssttled on a daily basis, which
afe presenbed within Casch collaters) receiables on
derivative irsruments,

Changes in Fair value, initial transaction aosts, dividends.
and gaing and locies ansing on deposal of redemplion are
rem;tmdlnﬂﬁwndhh frovm firnancial
instruments measured af fair valie through prafit ar fos,
excepl inberest income on instruments ather than
derivatives (refer to item 2d in this Mote), interest on
derivatives desipnated as hedging irstruments in hedges
of interest rate risk and forward points on certain short-
and long-duration FX, contracts acting &% econamic
hecges, which are repored in Net interest incame,

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that ane

desig rasted and effective hedging irstrumenits ane
presented either in the incorme staterment o Other
comprehentie incame, depending an the type ol hedpe
redationship (reles o item 2j in this Note for more
infafmation],
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Classification, measurement and presentation of finandial liabilities

Financial liabilities dassification  Significant items included

Measurement and presentation

Measured at amortized cost This dassification includes:

~ demand and time deposits;

= retail savings / deposits;

- wweep deposits;

— payables from securities financing transactions;

= ror-struciued delbd ssued,

— subordinated dabi;

- commerdal paper and centificates of depait;

- ohligations agairst funding from UBS Group AG; and

= cash collateral payables on derivative nstruments.
Held for trading Financial lishilities hebd for trading include:

= all derivatives with & negative replacement value
{including certain loan commments), sxoepd thise
that ane nated and eflective hedging
insiruments; and

- obligations 1o deliver financial instrumenits, such as

debt and equity instruments, that LIBS AG has sold to
third parties but does mot cwn (short posttions).

Financial liabilites designated at FVTPL include:

— sued hybeid debit instruments, primarily equity-
linked, creda-linked and rates-linked bonds or notes;

— isued debit instruments managed on & faif value
b

Designated at
FWYTPL

— obligations agairat funding from UBS Group AG
managed on & fair value besi;

— certain payables from securities financing
Lransactions,

— amounts due under unit-inked imsestment contracts,
the cash flows of which are linked 1o financal assets
meatuned &t FYTPL and eliminate an accounting
mismateh; and

= brokerape payables, which arise in conjunction with
brakerape receivables and ane messured at FYTPL to
achieve measurement consistency.

Measured at amortized oot using the effective interest
et

When a linancial kability at amortized oodt is
derecognized, the gain o ko & recognized in the income
Statement,

Inberest income generated from client deposits
derecogrized puriiant to certain depost seeep programs
i presanted within Net interest income from Fnancial
nstruments meauned af far valie through prafn or los
and ather,

Measurement and presentation of financial Eabilties
dassified at PVTPL follow the same prindples as for
Tinancial asets dassified at FUTPL, except that the amount
of chanpe in the fair value of a financial Kebility

ristes] a2 FUTPL that is atiributable 1o i
ﬁl?m‘snmaadn ritupruemdlnmurw

iy directly within Retained samings

and is never redassified to the indome stabement,

Derivative liabilities (rcluding dervatives that ae
desin rasted and effective hedging irstrumenits) are
generally presented as Derivative financial

excepl those excha and OTC-cleased
derivatives that are legaly settled on a daily basis o
economicaly ret settied on a daly basis, which are
presenbed within Cash callatersl payables on daratie
EngrumenE.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

. Loan commitments and financial guarantees

Loan commitments are arrangements to provide credit under defined terms and conditions. Irmevocable |oan
commitments are classified as: (i) derivative loan commitments measured at fair value through profit or loss; (i} loan
commitrents designated at fair value through profit or loss; or (i) loan commitrents not measured at fair value, in
which case the ECL reguirerments as set out in item 2g in this Note apply.

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require UBS AG to make spedified payments to reimburse the holder for
an incurred boss because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a specified
debt instrument. The ECL requirements as set out in item 2g in this Mote apply to financial guarantees issued that are
not accounted for at FYTPL.

Financial guarantee contracts held by UBS for credit risk mitigation purposes that are assessed to be integral to the
guaranteed exposure are accounted for as a component of that exposure, with cash flows expected from the credit
enhancement included in the measurement of the ECL of the respective exposure. Rights to reimbursement arising from
financial guarantees held that are not integral to the terms of the exposure they cover are recognized when their
realization is considered to be virtually certain.

d. Interest income and expense

Interest income from financial instruments measured at amortized cost and FYOCI and interest expense from financial
instruments measured at amortized cost are recognized in the income statement based on the effective interest method.
When calculating the effective interest rate (the EIR) for financial instruments (other than credit-impaired financial
instruments), UBS AG estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the instrument, but not expected
cradit losses, with the EIR applied to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortized cost of a financial
liability. Howewver, when a finandial asset becomes credit impaired after initial recognition, interest income is determined
by applying the EIR to the amortized cost of the instrument, which represents the gross carrying amount adjusted for any
credit loss allowance.

Upfront fees, including fees on loan commitments not measured at fair value where a loan is expected to be issued, and
direct costs are included within the initial measurernent of a financial instrurnent measured at amortized cost or FYOCI
and recognized over the expected life of the instrument as part of its EIR.

Fees related to loan commitments where no loan is expected to be issued, as well as loan syndication fees where UBS AG
does not retain a portion of the cated loan or where UBS AG does retain a portion of the syndicated loan at the
same effective yield for comparable risk as other participants, are induded in Met fee and commission income and either
recogrized over the life of the commitrment or when syndication occurs.

* Refer to item 3 in this Note for more information

Interest income on finandal assets, excluding derivatives, is included in interest income when positive and in interest
expense when negative, Similarly, interest expense on financial liabilities, excluding derivatives, is included in interest
expense, except when interest rates are negative, in which case it is included in interest income.

¥ Refer to item 2b in this Note and Note 4 for more information

e, Derecognition

Financial assets

UBS AG derecognizes a transferred finandal asset, or a portion of a financial asset, if the purchaser has obtained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or a significant part of the risks and rewards combined with a practical
ability to sell or pledge the asset.

Where financial assets have been pledged as collateral or in similar arrangements, they are considered to have been
transferred if the counterparty has received the contractual rights to the cash flows of the pledged assets, as may be
evidenced by, for example, the counterparty’s right to sell or repledge the assets. In transfers where control over the
financial asset is retained, UBS AG confinues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement,
determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset following the transfer.

¥ Refer to Mote 23 for more information
Fimancial liabilities
UBS AG derecognizes a financial liability when it is extinguished, i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, canceled or expires. When an existing financial liability is exchanged for a new one from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an esisting liability are substantially modified, the original liability is
derecognized and a new liability recognized with any difference in the respective camying amounts recorded in the
income staterent.
Maost OTC derivative contracts and exchange-traded futures and option confracts ceared through central dearing
counterparties and exchanges are considered to be settled on a daily basis, as the payment or receipt of a variation
margin on a daily basis represents a legal or economic settlerment, which results in derecognition of the associated
derivatives,

¥ Refer ta Mote 22 for more information
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

f. Fair value of finandal instruments
UBS AG accounts for a significant portion of its assets and liabilities at fair value. Fair value is the price on the
measurement date that would be received for the sale of an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal market, or in the most advantageous market in the absence of a principal
market.

¥ Refer to Mote 21 for more information

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The use of valuation techniques, modeling assumptions and estimates of unobsenable market inguts in the fair valuation of financisl instruments reqLires
sgnificant judgment and could affect the amount of gain or loss recorded for @ particulas position. Valuastion technigues that rely maore heawily on
unobsenable inputs and sophisticated medels inhesently require a higher level of judgment and may require adjustment 1o reflect factors that market
panticiparts would corsides in estimating fsi value, such as dose-cut costs, which are presented in Note 21d.
LIES 4G governance framework over i value measurement i described in Mote 2 1b, and UBS AG provides & senstivity snalyiis of the estimated effects
arising from changing significant unobservable inputs in Level 3 financial instruments to reasonably possible altemative ssumptions in Nobe 211
¥ Refer to Note 21 for more information

g. Allowances and provisions for expected credit losses

ECL are recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost, finandial assets measured at PVOCI, fee and lease

receivables, financial guarantees, and loan commitrments not measured at fair value, induding those acquired through a

business combination under common control. ECL are also recognized on the undrawn portion of committed

unconditionally revocable credit lines, which include UBS AG's credit card limits and master credit facilities, as UBS AG is
exposed to credit risk because the bomrower has the ability to draw down funds before UBS AG can take credit risk
mitigation actions.

Recognition of expacted cradit losses

ECL are recognized on the following basis.

- Stage 1 - those instruments for which no significant increase in credit risk (SICR) has been observed (see Significamt
increase in credit risk below): Maximum 12-month ECL are recognized from initial recognition, reflecting the portion
of lifetime ECL that would result if a default occurs in the 12 months after the reporting date, weighted by the risk of
a default occurring.

- Stage 2 - those instruments for which an SICR is observed but which are not credit impaired: Lifetime ECL are
recognized reflecting lifetime cash shortfalls that would result from all possible default events over the expected life
of a finandal instrurnent, weighted by the risk of a default occurring. When an SICR is no longer observed, the
instrurnent will move back to stage 1.

= Stage 3 = creditdmpaired finandal instruments (as determined by the occurrence of one or more loss events): Lifetime
ECL are always recognized by estimating expected cash flows based on a chosen recovery strateqy. Credit-impaired
exposures may include positions for which no allowance has been recognized, for example because they are expected
to be fully recoverable through collateral held.

- Changes in lifetime ECL since initial recognition are also recognized for assets that are purchased credit impaired (PCI).
PCI financial instruments indude those that are purchased at a deep discount or newly originated with a defaulted
counterparty; they remain a separate category until derecognition.

All or part of a financial asset is written off if it is deerned uncollectible or forgiven. Write-offs reduce the principal amount

of a claim and are charged against related allowances for credit losses. Recoveries, in part or in full, of amounts previously

written off are generally credited to Credit foss expense / (release).

ECL are recognized in the income staterment in Credlt foss expense [ (refeasa). A cormesponding ECL allowance is reported
as a decrease in the carmying amount of financial assets measured at amortized cost on the Ealance sheet. For financial
assets that are measured at FVOC, the carrying amount is not reduced, but an accumulated amount is recognized in
Other comprehensive income, For off-balance sheet financial instruments and other credit lines, provisions for ECL are
presented in Provisions.

Default and credit impainment
LIBS AG applies a single definition of default for credit risk management purposes, regulatory reporting and ECL, with a
counterparty classified as defaulted based on quantitative and qualitative criteria.

¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contral” section of this report for more information

Measurement of expected credit losses

IFRS 9 ECL reflect an unbiased, probability-weighted estimate based on loss expectations resulting from default events.
The method used to calculate ECL applies the following principal factors: probability of default (PD), loss given default
ILGD) and exposure at default (EAD). Parameters are generally determined on an individual financial asset level. Based
on the materiality of the portfolio, for credit card exposures and personal account overdrafts in Switzerland, a portfolic
approach is applied that derives an average PD and LGD for the entire portfolio. PDs and LGDs used in the ECL calculation
are point-in-tinme (PIT-based for key portfolios and consider both current conditions and expected cyclical changes. For
material portfolios, PDs and LGDs are determined for different scenarios, whereas EAD projections are treated as scenario
independant.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

For the purpose of determining the ECL-relevant parameters, UBS AG leverages its Basel ll advanced internal ratings-
based (4-IRB) models that are also used in determining expected loss (EL) and risk-weighted assets under the Basel I
framewark and Pillar 2 stress loss modeds. Adjustments have been made to these models and IFRS-9-related models have
been developed that consider the complexity, structure and risk profile of relevant portfolios and take account of the fact
that PDs and LGDs used in the ECL calculation are PIT based, as opposed to the comesponding Basel Ill through-the
(TTC) pararneters. All models that are redevant for measuring expected credit losses are subject to UBS AG's model
validation and oversight processes.

Frobability of default: PD represents the probability of a default over a specified tirme period. A 12-month PD represents
the probability of default determined for the next 12 months and a lifetime PD represents the probability of default over
the remaining lifetime of the instrument. PIT PDs are derived from TTC PDs and scenario forecasts. The modeling is region,
industry and client segment specific and considers both macroeconomic scenario dependencies and dient-idiosyneratic
information.

Expasure af default: EAD represents an estimate of the exposure to credit risk at the time of a potential default occurring,
considering expected repayments, interest payments and accruals, discounted at the EIR. Future drawdowns on facilities
are considered through a credit corversion factor (a CCF) that is reflective of historical drawdown and default patterns
and the characteristics of the respective portfolics.

Loss given default LGD represents an estimate of the loss at the time of a potential default occurring, taking into account
expected future cash flows from collateral and other credit enhancernents, or expected payouts from bankruptoy
proceedings for unsecured claims and, where applicable, time to realization of collateral and the senicrity of daims. LGD is
commanly expressed as a percentage of EAD.

Estimation of expected credit losses

Number of scenarios and estimation of scenario weights
Determination of probability-weighted ECL requires evaluating a range of diverse and relevant future economic conditions,
espedially with a view to modeling the non-inear effect of assurnptions about macroeconomic factors on the estimate,

To accommodate this requirement, UBS AG uses different economic scenarios in the ECL caloulation. Each scenario is
represented by a specific scenario narrative, which is relevant considering the exposure of key portfolios to economic
risks, and for which a set of consistent macroeconomic variables is determined. The estimation of the appropriate weights
for these scenarios is predominantly judgment based. The assessment is based on a holistic review of the prevailing
economic or political conditions, which may exhibit different levels of uncertainty. It takes into account the impact of
changes in the nature and severity of the underlying scenario narratives and the projected economic variables.

The determined weights constitute the probabilities that the respective set of macroeconomic conditions will ocour and
not that the chosen particular narratives with the related macroeconomic variables will materialize.

Macroecanamic and other factors

The range of macroeconomic, market and other factors that i modeled as part of the scenario determination is wide,
and historical information is used to support the identification of the key factors. As the forecast horizon increases, the
availability of information decreases, requiring an increase in judgment. For cycle-sensitive PD and LGD determination
purposes, UBS AG projects the relevant economic factors for a period of three years before reverting, over a specified
pericd, to cycle-neutral PD and LGD for longer-tern projections.

Factors relevant for ECL calculation vary by type of exposure. Regional and client-segment characteristics al'en?eneﬁlly
taken into account, with specific focus on Switzerland and the US, considering UBS AG's key ECL-relevant portfolios.

For UBS AG, the following forwarddooking macroeconomic variables represent the most relevant factors for ECL

caloulation:

- gross domestic product (GDP) growth rates, given their significant effect on borrowers’ performance;

= wunemployment rates, given their significant effect on private clients’ ability to meet contractual obligations;

- house price indices, given their significant effect on mortgage collateral valuations;

— interest rates, given their significant effect on counterparties’ abilities to senice debt;

- consumer price indices, given their overall relevance for companies’ performance, private dients’ purchasing power
and economic stability; and

= equity indices, given that they are an important factor in UBS AG's corporate rating tools.
¥ Refer ta Mote 20 for more information
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

ECL measuremant pemnod

The period for which lifetime ECL are determined is based on the maximum contractual pericd that UBS AG is exposed
to credit risk, taking into account contractual extension, termination and prepayment options. For irmevocable loan
commitrents and financial guarantee contracts, the measurement pericd represents the maxirmum contractual pericd
for which UBS AG has an obligation to extend credit.

Additionally, some financial instruments include both an on-demand loan and a revocable undrawn commitrment, where
the contractual cancellation right does not limit UBS AG's exposure to credit risk to the contractual notice period, as the
client has the ability to draw down funds before UBS AG can take risk-mitigating actions. In such cases UBS AG is required
to estimate the period over which it is exposed to credit risk. This applies to UBS AG's credit card limits, which do not
have a defined contractual maturity date, are callable on dernand and where the drawn and undrawn components are
managed as one exposure. The exposure arising from UBS AG's credit card limits is not significant and is managed at a
portfolio level, with credit actions triggered when balances are past due. An ECL measurement period of seven years is
applied for credit card limits, capped at 12 months for stage 1 balances, as a proxy for the period that UBS AG is exposed
to credit risk.

Custornary master credit agreements in the Swiss corporate market also include on-demand loans and revocable undrawn
commitrments. For smaller commercial facilities, a risk-based monitoring (RbM) approach is in place that highlights
negative trends as risk events, at an individual facility level, based on a combination of continuously updated risk
indicators. The risk events trigger additional credit reviews by a risk officer, enabling informed credit decisions to be
taken. Larger corporate facilities are not subject to Rb, but are reviewed at least annually through a formal credit review.
LIBS AG has assessed these credit risk management practices and considers both the RbM approach and formal credit
reviews as substantive credit reviews resulting in a re-origination of the given facility, Following this, a 12-month
measurement period from the reporting date is used for both types of facilities as an appropriate proxy of the period
over which UBS AG is exposed to credit risk, with 12 months also used as a look-back period for assessing an SICR,
abways from the respective reporting date.

Significant incraase in credit risk

Finangial instruments subject to ECL are monitored on an ongoing basis. To determine whether the recognition of a
maxirmum 12-month ECL continues to be appropriate, an assessment is made as to whether an SICR has ocourred
since initial recognition of the financial instrument, applying both quantitative and qualitative factors.

Prirnarily, UBS AG assesses changes in an instrument's risk of default on a quantitative basis by comparing the annualized
forward-looking and scenaric-weighted lifetime PD of an instrument determined at two different dates:

- at the reporting date; and

- at inception of the instrument.

If, based on LUBS AG's guantitative modeling, an increase excesds a set threshold, an SICR is deemed to have occurred
and the instrument is transferred 1o stage 2 with lifetime ECL recognized.

The threshold applied varies depending on the original credit quality of the borrower, with a higher SICR threshold set
for those instruments with a low PD at inception. The SICR assessment based on PD changes is made at an individual
financial assat level. A high-level overview of the SICR trigger, which is a multiple of the annualized remaining lifetime
PIT PD expressed in rating downgrades, is provided in the "SICR thresholds™ table below. The actual SICR rt.ﬂreshulds
applied are defined on a more granular level by interpolating between the values shown in the table.

SIOR thresholds

mm:tmwm ww:
-3 3
8 z
013 1

¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contral” section of this repart for more details about UBS AG"s internal reting system
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Irrespective of the SICR assessrent based on default probabilities, credit risk is generally deemed to have significantly
increased for an instrument if contractual payments are more than 30 days past due. For certain less material portfolics,
specifically the Swiss credit card portfolio, the 30-day past due criterion is used as the primary indicator of an SICR. Where
instruments are transferred to stage 2 due to the 30-day past due criterion, a minimum period of six months is applied
before a transfer back to stage 1 can be triggered, where applicable. For instruments in Personal & Corporate Banking
and Global Wealth Management Region Switzerand that are between 90 and 180 days past due but have not been
reclassified to stage 3, a one-year period is applied before a transfer back to stage 1 can be triggered.

Additionally, based on individual counterparty-specific indicators, external market indicators of credit risk or general
economic conditions, counterparties may be moved to a watch list, which is used as a secondary qualitative indicator for
an SICR. Exception maiiﬁement is further applied, allowing for individual and collective adjustments on exposures
sharing the same credit risk characteristics to take account of spedific situations that are not otherwise fully reflected.

In general, the owverall SICR determination process does not apply to Lombard loans, securities finanding transactions and
certain other asset-based lending transactions, because of the risk management practices adopted, induding daily
monitoring processes with strict margining. If margin calls are not satisfied, a position & dosed out and dassified as a
stage 3 position. In exceptional cases, an individual adjustrnent and a transfer into stage 2 may be made to take account
of specific facts.

Credit risk officers are responsible for the identification of an SICR, which for accounting purposes is in some respects
different from intemal credit risk management processes. This difference mainly arises because ECL accounting
requirements are instrurent specific, such that a borrower can have multiple exposures allocated to different stages, and
maturing loans in stage 2 will migrate to stage 1 upon renewal irespective of the actual credit risk at that tirme. Under a
risk-based approach, a haolistic ml.nterpartg credit assessment and the absolute level of risk at any given date will
determine what risk-rnitigating actions may be warranted.

¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contrel” section of this repoart for more information

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The caleulstion of ECL requires management to.apply significant judgment and ke estimates and assumptions that can result in significant changes 1o the
tirring and the amount of ECL recognized.

Determination of & Sgnificant increase i creoit risk
IFRS 9 does not include & definition of what constitutes an SICR, with UBS AG's asesment corsidering qualative and quantitative criteria. An FRS 9 ECL
Managerrent Forum has been established 1o review and challenge the SICR results.

Sosnarios, SCenaris waights and macroeconomic variies

ECL reflect an wnbimsed and probability-weighted amount, which UBS AG determines by evalusting a range of posshble cutcomes. Management selects
fonward-ooking scenarios that indude relevant macroeconomic varisbles and management's assumptions around future emnomic conditions. IFRS @
Seenario Sounding Sessicns, in sddition to the IFRS 9 ECL Managerment Farum, are in pleoe to derive, revisw and challenge the scenario selection and weights,
and to determnine whether any additional post-modsd adjustrents are required that may significantly affect ECL.

ECL measuramant pasod

Lifetime ECL are gersrally determined based upon the contractissl maturity of the transaction, which significantly sffects ECL. For credit card limits and Swiss
callshle master credit facilities, judgment is required, as UBS AG must detemine the period over which it i expossd to cedit risk. & seven-yesr period i
applied for credit card limits, capped at 12 months for stage 1 position, and a 12-month period appliied for master credit faclities.

Modaling and posl-madsl sdiustmants

& number of comples modek have besn developed or modified to caleulste ECL, with additional pest-model adjustreents required that may sigrificantly
affect ECL. The models are govemed by LUBS AG"s model validation controls and approved by the GRGC. The post-model adjustments are approved by the
ECL Marsgement Forum and endorssd by the GMGC.

A sersitivity analysis covering key macroscanomic variables, scenarnic weights and SICR trigger points on ECL messurement i provided in Nose 201
¥ Refer to Mote 20 for more information

h. Restructured and modified financial assets
When payment default is expected, or where default has already occurred, UBS AG may grant concessions to borrowers
in financial difficulties that it would not consider in the normal course of its business, such as preferential interest rates,
extension of maturity, modifying the schedule of repayments, debt / equity swap, subordination, etc.

¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contral” section of this repart for more information

Modifications result in an alteration of future contractual cash flows and can ooour within UBS AG's nommal risk tolerance
or as part of a credit restructuring where a counterparty is in financial difficulties. The restructuring or modification of a
financial asset could lead to a substantial change in the terms and conditions, resulting in the original finandial asset
being derecognized and a new financial asset being recognized. Where the modification does not result in a
derecognition, any difference between the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the original EIR and the existing
gross carrying amount of the given financial asset is recognized in the income statement as of the date of modification.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

i, Offsetting

LBS AG presents recognized financial assets and liabilities net on its balance sheet only if (i} it has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts and (i) it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. Metted positions include, for example, certain derivatives and repurchase and reverse
repurchase transactions with various counterparties, exchanges and clearing houses.

In assessing whether UBS AG intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously, emphasis is placed on the effectiveness of operational settlernent mechanics in eliminating substantially
all credit and liquidity exposure between the counterparties. This condition Eredudes offsetting on the balance sheet for
substantial amounts of UBS AG's financial assets and liabilities, even though they may be subject to enforceable netting
arrangerments. Repurchase arrangements and securities financing transactions are presented net only to the extent that
the settlement mechanism eliminates, or results in insignificant, credit and liquidity risk, and processes the receivables
and payables in a single settlement process or cyde.
¥ Refer to Mote 22 for more information

j. Hedge accounting

LBS AG applies hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 where the criteria for documentation and hedge effectiveness
are met. If a hedge relationship no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued.
Voluntary discontinuation of hedge accounting is not permitted under IFRS 9.

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk related to debt instruments and loan assets

The fair value change of the hedged item attributable to a hedged risk is reflected as an adjustrment to the carrying
amount of the hedged itern and recognized in the income statemnent along with the change in the fair value of the
hedging instrument.

Fair value hedges of FX risk related to debt instruments

The fair value change of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is reflected in the measurement of the hedged
itern and recognized in the income statement along with the change in the fair value of the hedging instrument. The
foreign currency basis spread of cross-currency swaps designated as hedging derivatives is excluded from the designation
and accounted for as a cost of hedging with amounts deferred in Other comprehensive income within Equity. These
armounts are released to the income statement over the term of the hedged item.

Discontinuation of fair value hedges

Discontinuations for reasons other than derecognition of the hedged itern result in an adjustment to the carrying amount,
which is amortized to the income statement over the remaining life of the hedged item using the effective interest
method. I the hedged item is derecognized, the unamortized fair value adjustment or deferred cost of hedaging amount
is recognized immediately in the income statement as part of any derecognition gain or loss.

Cash flow hedpges of forecast transactions

Fair value gains or losses associated with the effective portion of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges for cash flow
repricing risk are recognized initially in Other comprehensive income within Equity and reclassified to Inferest income
from financial instruments measured at amortized cost and fair value through other comprehensive income or Interest
expense from financial instruments measured at amortized cost in the peniods when the hedged forecast cash flows
affect profit or loss, induding discontinued hedges for which forecast cash flows are expected to occur. If the forecast
transactions are no longer expected to occour, the deferred gains or losses are immediately redassified to the income
staterment.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of a hedge are recognized directly in Other
comprehensive income within Eqguity, while any gains or losses relating to the ineffective and / or undesignated portion
ifor example, the interest element of a fonward contract) are recognized in the income statement. Upon disposal or partial
disposal of the foreign operation, the cumulative value of any such gains or losses recognized in Equity associated with
the entity is reclassified to Other income.

¥ Refer to Mote 25 for more information
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

3) Fee and commission income and expanses

LIBS AG earns fee income from the diverse range of services it provides to its dients. Fee income can be divided into two
broad categories: fees eamed from services that are ided over a certain period of time, such as management of
clients’ assets, custody services and certain advisory services; and fees eamed from PIT services, such as undenwriting fees,
deal-contingent merger and acquisitions fees, and brokerage fees (e.g. securities and derivatives execution and dearing).
LBS AG recognizes fees eamed from PIT services when it has fully provided the service 1o the dient. Where the contract
requires services to be provided over time, income is recognized on a systematic basis over the life of the agreement.

Consideration received is allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations in a contract. Owing to the
nature of UBS AG's business, contracts that include multiple performance obligations are typically those that are
considered to include a series of similar performance obligations fulfilled over time with the same pattern of transfer to
the client, e.g. management of dient assets and custodial services. As a consequence, UBS AG is not required to apply
significant judgment in allocating the consideration received across the various performance obligations.

PIT services are generally for a fixed price or dependent on deal size, e.g. a fixed number of basis points of trade size,
where the amount of revenue is known when the performance obligation is met. Fixed-over-time fees are recognized on
a straight-ine basis over the performance period. Custodial and asset management fees can be variable through reference
to the size of the customer portfolio. However, they are generally billed on a monthly or quarterly basis once the
customer’s portfolio size is known or known with near certainty and therefore also recognized ratably over the
performance period. UBS AG does not recognize performance fees related to management of clients’ assets or fees
related to contingendies beyond UBS AG's control until such uncertainties are resolved.

LIBS AG's fees are generally earned from short-term contracts. As a result, UBS AG's contracts do not include a finanding
component or result in the recognition of significant receivables or prepayment assets. Furthermore, due to the short-
term nature of such contracts, UBS AG has not capitalized any material costs to obtain or fulfill a contract or generated
any significant contract assets or liabilities.
LBS AG presents expenses primarily in line with their nature in the income staterment, differentiating between expenses
that are directly attributable to the satisfaction of specific performance obligations associated with the generation of
revenues, which are generally presented within Total revenues as Fee and commission expense, and those that are related
to personnel, general and administrative expenses, or depreciation and amortization which are presented within
Operating expenses. For derivatives execution and clearing services (where UBS AG acts as an agent), UBS AG only records
its specific fees in the income statement, with fees payable to other parties not recognized as an expense but instead
directly offset against the assodated income collected I;:'om the given dient.

¥ Refer to Note 5 for more information, including the diseggregation of revenues

4) Share-based and other deferred compensation plans

LBS AG recognizes expenses for defermed compensation awards over the period that the employes is required to provide
service to become entitled to the award. Where the service period is shortened, for example in the case of employees
affected by restructuring programs or mutually agreed termination provisions, recognition of such expense is accelerated
to the termination date. Where no future service is required, such as for employees who are eligible for retirerent or
who have met certain age and length-of-service criteria, the services are presumed to have been received and
compensation expense is recognized over the performance year or, in the case of off-cycle awards, immediately on the
grant date.

Share-hased compensation plans

LIBS Group AG is the grantor of and maintains the obligation to settle share-based compensation plans that are awarded
to employees of UBS AG. As a consequence, UBS AG classifies the awards of UBS Group AG shares as equity-settled
share-based payment transactions. UBS AG recognizes the fair value of awards granted to its employees by reference to
the fair value of UBS Group AG's equity instruments on the date of grant, taking into account the terms and conditions
inherent in the award, including, where relevant, dividend rights, transfer restrictions in effect beyond the vesting date,
market conditions, and non-vesting conditions.

For equity-settled awards, fair value is not remeasured unless the terms of the award are modified such that there is an
incresnental increase in value. Expenses are recognized, on a per-tranche basis, over the service period based on an
estimate of the number of instruments expected to vest and are adjusted to reflect the actual outcomes of service or
performance conditions.

For equity-settled awards, forfeiture events resulting from a breach of a non-vesting condition (i.e. one that does not
relate to a service or performance condition) do not result in any adjustment to the share-based compensation expense.

For cash-settled share-based awards, fair value is remeasured at each reporting date, so that the cumulative expense
recognized equals the cash distributed.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Other deferred compensation plans
Compensation expense for other deferred compensation plans is recognized on a per-tranche or straight-line basis,
depending on the nature of the plan. The amount recognized is measured based on the present value of the amount
expected to be paid under the plan and is rereasured at each reporting date, so that the cumulative expense recognized
equals the cash or the fair value of respective financial instruments distributed.

¥ Refer to Mote 27 for more information

5) Post-employment benefit plans

Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans specify an amount of benefit that an employes will receive, which usually depends on one or more
factors, such as age, years of service and compensation. The defined benefit liability recognized in the balance sheet is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation, measured using the projected unit credit method, less the fair value
of the plan’s assets at the balance sheet date, with changes resulting from remeasuremnents recorded immediately in
Other comprehensive income. If the fair value of the plan's assets is higher than the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, the recognition of the resulting net asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. Calculation of the net defined benefit
obligation or asset takes into account the specific features of each plan, including risk sharing between employes and
employer, and is calculated periodically by independent qualified actuaries.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The et defined benefit Rability or asset ot the balance sheet date and the related personne| expense depend on the sxpected future benefits 1o be provided,
determined wing & numbsr of economic and demographic assumptions. & range of ssumptions could be applied, and diffesent ssumptions could
dgnificanitly alter the defined benefit Rabilty o ssset and persion expense recognized. The most significant assumptions include life expectancy, disoount
rate, expected salary increases, pension inoesses and interest credits on retiement savings account balances. Sensitivity analysis for ressonable possible
movernents in sach sagnificant assumption for LBS AG™s post-employment obligations is provided in Note 26.

¥ Refer to Note 26 for more information

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan pays fixed contributions into a separate entity from which post-employment and other
benefits are paid. UBS AG has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts if the plan does not hold
sufficient assets to pay employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.
Compensation expense is recognized when the employees have rendered services in exchange for contributions. This is
generally in the year of contribution. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in future payments is available.

&) Income taxes

UBS AG is subject to the income tax laws of Switzerland and those of the non-Swiss jurisdictions in which UBS AG has
business operations.

UBS AG's provision for income taxes is composed of current and deferred taxes, Current income taxes represent taxes to
be paid or refunded for the current pericd or previous periods.

Deferred tax assets (DTAs) and deferred tax liabilities (DTLs) are recognized for temporary differences betwesn the
carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities that will result in deductible or taxable amounts, respectively in
future periods. DTAs may also arise from other sources, including unused tax losses and unused tax credits. DTAs and
DTLs are measured using the applicable tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and that will be in effect when such differences are expected to reverse.

DTAs are recognized only to the extent it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which these
differences can be used. When an entity or tax group has a history of recent losses, DTAs are only ized to the
extent that there are sufficient taxable ternporary differences or there is convinging other evidence that sufficient taxable
profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred and current tax assets and liabilities are offset when: (i) they arise in the same tax reporting group; (i) they relate
to the sarne tax authority; (i) the legal right to offset exists; and (iv) with respect to current taxes they are intended to
be settled net or realized simultanecusly.

Current and deferred taxes are recognized as income tax benefit or expense in the income statement, except for current
and deferred taxes recognized in relation to: (i) the acquisition of a subsidiary (for which such amounts would affect the
amount of goodwill arising from the acquisition); (i} unrealized gains or losses on financial instruments that are classified
at PVOCI; (i) changes in fair value of derivative instrurnents designated as cash flow hedges; {iv) remeasurements of
defined benefit plans; or (v certain foreign currency translations of foreign operations. Amounts relating to points (i)
through (v) above are recognized in Other comprehensive income within Equity.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

LBS AG reflects the potential effect of uncertain tax positions for which acceptance by the relevant tax authority is not
considered probable by adjusting current or deferred taxes, as applicable, using either the most likely amount or expected
value methods, depending on which method is deemed a better predictor of the basis on which, and extent to which,
the uncertainty will be resobved.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Tax lawes are complex, and judgment and interpretations sbout the application of such laws are requined when accounting for income taves, UBS AG corsidess
the performance of its businesses and the socuracy of historical forecasts and other factor when evaluating the neooverability of its DTAS, including the
remaining tae lom carry-forvard period, and it sseument of expected future toable profit in the borecast period used lor recognising DTAL. Etimating
future peofitability and business plan forecasts is inherently subjective and is particularly senditive 1o future economic, market and other conditions.

Forecasts are reviswed annually, but adjustments may be made st other times, i requised. If recent losses have besn incurred, comvingng evidence i
required io prove there i aulficient fuiune profitabdity given that the value of LBS 4G DTAS may be affected, with efects primarily recognized through the
ireccsroe Staberment.

In addition, judgment i requined 1o aosess the expected value of uncertain tax positions and the relsted probabilities, including inberpretation of tax lawa,
the resolution of ary income tax-related appeals and litigation.

¥ Refer to Mote 9 for more information

7) Investments in associates

Interests in entities where UBS AG has significant influence over the financial and operating policies of these entities but
does not have control are classified as investments in assodates and accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. Typically, UBS AG has significant influence when it holds, or has the ability to hold, between 20% and 50%
of an entity’s woting rights. Investments in assodates are initially recognized at cost, and the carmying amount is increased
or decreased after the date of acquisition to recognize UBS AG's share of the investee's comprehensive income and any
impairment losses. The net investrment in an associate is impaired if there is objective evidence of a loss event and the
carrying amount of the investment in the associate excesds its recoverable arount.
* Refer to Note 28 for more information

8) Property, equipment and software

Froperty, equipment and software is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, Software
developrment costs are capitalized only when the costs can be measured reliably and it is probable that future economic
benefits will arise. Depreciation of property, equipment and software begins when they are available for use and is
calculated on a straight-line basis over an asset's estimated useful life.

Property, equipment and software are generally tested for impairment at the appropriate cash-generating unit level,
alongside goodwill and intangible assets as described in item 2 in this Mote. An impairment charge is recognized for such
assets if the recoverable amount is below its carrying amount. The recoverable amounts of such assets, other than
property that has a market price, are generally determined using a replacement cost approach that reflects the amount
that would be currently required by a market participant to replace the service capacity of the asset. If such assets are no
longer used, they are tested individually for impairmnent.

¥ Refer ta Mote 12 for more information

9) Goodwill and other separately identifiable intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration over the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired that arises in a business combination. Goodwill is not amortized but is assessed for impairment at the end
of each reporting period, or when indicators of impairment exist, UBS AG tests goodwill for impairment annually, mespective
of whether there is any indication of impairment.

Business combinations under common control do not result in recognition of goodwill or other intangible assets incremental
to those already recognized by the acquired entity prior to the date of transfer. Goodwill assumed is subsequently allocated
to respective cash-generating units and tested for impairment.

An impairment charge is recognized in the income statement if the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount of a
cash=-generating unit.
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

LIRS AG's methadology lor goodwill impainment testing & besed on a model that & most sendtive 1o the fallowing key sumptions: () forecaits of earnings
availsble to sharsholders (typically estimated on a discrese basis for years one to thres but could extend up to five years, & permitted under IFRS Accounting
Staredarch, in order to reflect facts and cGrcumatances spadtic to a cash-generating wnit); (i) changes in the discount rates; and (i) changes in the kong-term
grewih rate.

Earnings svailable to sharsholders are estimated on the basis of forecast results, which are pan of the basiness plan approved by the BaD. The discount
rates and growth rates ane determined using external information, and alo cordidering inputs from both internal and exsernal analysts and the view of
mandsgement.

The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amounts of each cash-generating unit ase tested for sensitivity by applying ressenably pessible
changes te those asumpticns.

¥ Refer to Motes 3 and 13 for more information

10) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount, and are generally recognized in accordance with 1AS 37, Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Confingent Assets, when: (i) UBS AG has a present obligation as a result of a past event; (i) it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and (i) a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be made. 1AS 37 provisions are measured considering the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present cbligation at the balance sheet date.

When conditions required to recognize a provision are not met, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the likelihood of
an outflow of resources is remote. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed for possible obligations that arise from past
events, the existence of which will be confirmed cnly by uncertain future events not wholly within the control of UBS AG.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Recognition of provisions often involves significant judgment in assesing the existence of an obligation that results from past events and in estimating the
prabshility, the timing and the amount of any outfiows of resources. This is particulary the case for itigation, reguistory and smilar matters, which, due o
their nature, ae subject to mary uncertainties, making their outcome difficult to predict.

The: amounit of any provision recognized is serditve to the aisumptions used, and thene could be & wide range of possible outcomes for any particular
Fratber.
Management regulary reviews sl the svailable information regarding such matiers, induding legal advice, to aisess whether the recognition criteria for
provisions have been catisfied and to determine the timing and the amount of any potentisl cutfiows.

¥ Refer to Note 18 for more information

11) Foreign currency translation

Transactions dencminated in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency of the reporting entity at the
spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction. At the balance sheet date, all monetary assets, including those at
FWOCI, and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the
closing exchange rate. Translation differences are reported in Other met income from financial instruments measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

Mon-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate on the date of the transaction.

Upon consolidation, assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into US dollars, UBS AG's presentation
currency, at the dosing exchange rate on the balance sheet date, and income and expense iterns and other comprehensive
income are translated at the average rate for the period. The resulting foreign currency translation differences are recognized
in Equity and redlassified to the incorme statement when UBS AG disposes of, partially or in its entirety, the foreign operation
and UBS AG no longer controls the foreign operation.

Share capital issued and share premium held are translated at the historic average rate, with the difference between the
historic average rate and the spot rate realized upon repayment of share capital reported as Shave premium. Curnulative
armounts recognized in Other comprehensive income in respect of cash flow hedges and financial assets measured at FYOC
are translated at the dosing exchange rate as of the balance sheet dates, with any translation effects adjusted through

¥ Refer to Mote 32 for more information

12) Cash and cash equivalents

For the punposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with an original maturity
of three months or less including cash, money market paper and balances with central and other banks.

In certain croumstances cash and cash equivalent balances held are not available for the use by UBS AG, for example
armounts placed at central banks to meet local statutory minimum reserve requirements, balances protected under client
asset segregation rules and balances pledged under depositor protection schemes,
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Note 1 Summary of material accounting policies (continued)

b) Changes in IFRS Accounting Standards and Interpretations

IFRS 1B, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statemeants

In April 2024, the 1ASE issued a new standard, IFRS 18, Presentation and Discloswre in Financial Statements, which

replaces 145 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The main changes introduced by IFRS 18 relate to:

= the structure of income statements;

- new disclosure requirements for managerment performance measures; and

- enhanced guidance on aggregation and disaggregation of information on the face of financial staterments and in the
notes thereto.

IFRS 18 is effective from 1 January 2027 and will also apply to comparative information. UBS AG will first apply these
new requirements in the Annual Report 2027 and, for interim repaorting, in the first quarter 2027 interim report. UBS AG
is assessing the impact of the new requirements on its reporting but expects it to be limited. UBS AG will evaluate the
grouping of iterns in the primary financial statements and in the notes thereto based on new principles of aggregation
and disaggregation in IFR5 18.

Arendments to IFRS 9, Fnancial Instruments, and IFRS 7, Anancial instruments: Disclosures
In May 2024, the |ASE issued Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments -
Amandments to IFRS § and IFRS 7 (the Amendments),

The Amendments relate to:

- derecognition of financial liabilities settled through electronic transfer systemns;

- assessment of contractual cash flow characteristics in dassifying financial assets, induding those with environmental,
sodal and corporate governance and similar features, non-recourse features, and contractually linked instrurnents; and

= disclosure of information about financial instruments with contingent features that can change the amount of
contractual cash flows, as well as equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Amendments are effective from 1 January 2026, with early application permitted either for the entire set of
armendments or for only those that relate to classification of financial instruments. UBS AG is currently assessing the
impact of the new requirements on its financial statements.

Other armendrments to IFRS Accounting Standards
The 1A5B has issued a number of minor amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards, effective from 1 January 2024 and
later. These amendments do not have or are not expected to have a significant effect on UBS AG when they are adopted.
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Note 2 Accounting for the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG

Merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG

The merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG effected on 31 May 2024 with no consideration payable by UBS AG
constitutes a business combination under common control accounted for based on the accounting policies set out in
Mote 1 to these financial staternents.

Assets and liabilities
LBS AG accounted for the merger with Credit Suisse AG using the historic camying values of the assets and liabilities of
Credit Suisse AG as at the date of the transaction (31 May 2024), determined under IFRS Accounting Standards.

- Mo fair value adjustments were made to assets and liabilities (which is different to the UBS Group AG consolidated
financial statements where acquisition method accounting was required under IFRS 3, Business Combinations, on
31 May 2023 for the acquisition of Credit Suisse Group AG).

— UBS AG has elected to retain historic accumulated depreciation and impairment of non-financial assets arising since
31 May 2023, iLe. the date on which Credit Suisse AG came to be under the common control of UBS Group AG.

~ Expected credit loss allowances and provisions for performing and credit-impaired exposures were recognized under
IFRS 9.

= Mo mew goodwill, intangible assets or contingent liabilities have been recognized as a result of the merger of UBS AG
and Credit Suisse AG.

— Uniform accounting policies for like transactions and events have been applied throughout UBS AG and Credit
Suisse AG as of 31 May 2023 (the date of the acquisition of Credit Suisse Group AG by UBS Group AG).

Equity reserves
UBS AG has taken on the carrying amount of the total IFRS equity of Credit Suisse AG as of 31 May 2024. This was
allocated to the individual components of equity for UBS AG as follows:

- The individual equity reserve balances of Credit Sulsse AG recorded from 31 May 2023 to 31 May 2024 have been
added to the corresponding equity reserves of UBS AG, with the exception of the foreign currency translation reserve.

= UBS AG has elected to reset the foreign currency translation reserve. As a result, the net investment hedge accounting
reserve has been added to Retained eamings as if no net investment hedge accounting had been applied by Credit
Suisse. The remaining balance of the foreign currency translation reserve was then added to Share premium.

- Equity reserve balances of Credit Suisse AG recorded prior to 31 May 2023 {i.e. the date on which Credit Suisse AG
came under the common control of UBS Group AG) have not been individually retained.

- The difference between the net camying value of the Credit Suisse AG assets and liabilities as of 31 May 2024 and the
individual equity reserve balances established as outlined above has been recognized as an adjustment to
Share premium (reflecting the contribution of the Credit Suisse AG business to UBS AG from the common parent,
LIBS Group AG)

Comparability

Income statement, statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2024 indude seven months of consolidated data following the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG (June to
December 2024) and five months of pre-merger UBS AG data only (January to May 2024). Statement of changes in
equity includes seven months of consolidated r:]f’:ta, following the addition of the equity reserve balances of Credit Suisse
AG recorded from 31 May 2023 to 31 May 2024 as desoribed above, and five months of pre-merger UBS AG data only.
gmﬂparlatiue information for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 Decernber 2022 includes pre-merger LIBS AG

ata only.

Balance sheet information as at 31 December 2024 includes post-merger consolidated information. Balance sheet
information as at 31 December 2023 reflects pre-merger UBS AG information only.

The comparative periods prior to the ma;lger date have not been restated, as the transaction has been accounted for
prospectively since 31 May 2024, i.e. the date on which the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG was effected.
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Note 2 Accounting for the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG (continued)

The table below presents the assets, liabilities and equity of Cradit Suisse AG that were recognized by UBS AG on 31 May
2024 as a result of the merger.

Credit Suisse AG azsets, liabilities and equity transferred to UBS AG on the merger date
LED

Totsl firancisl sasts mesnsed 5 smontized cost 394,163
Finencial astets al fair valoe held for ieading 15,504
Do fnancisl it
e |
T e T}
Totsl firancisl saets mesnsed o1 (ot ualue through peokit of loss. 84,201
Financial atbets messused ot fai valie Bwoush dthes comprehendive mtome 0

Invesitrmenits in aiucrianes 1,330

Other financial atilifies seaured 51 smonized cost
Tetsl firancisl abiities meatued 1 smartized cost
Finenciel labilites at fai veleheldborwding M

“Debt designated al
Total fisancial Fabilities measured a1 fair value throwgh peofit o loss
Prowisions

Total abiities

Equity
Equity attibutable to sharshalders! 41,432
Equity attrbutable 1o non-contralling inereals 40

Tl exuity 41,922
1 Eefer v Stnemant of changes in eguity i s nopo for moe i

Transactions between UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG have been eliminated from the balances presented in the table
above. They amounted to USD 7.1bn of assets and USD 24.8bn of liabilities of Credit Suisse AG.
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Note 2 Accounting for the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG (continued)

Transactions related to businesses and subsidiaries of Cradit Suisse

In June 2024, the Credit Suisse supply chain finance funds (the SCFFs) made a voluntary offer to the SCFFs' investors to
redesmn all cutstanding fund units.
¥ Refer to Note 18 for more information

In August 2024 and October 2024, respectively, UBS AG has also entered into the agreements to sell Select Portfolio

Senicing, the US mortgage servicing business of Credit Suisse, and its 50% interest in Swisscard AECS GmbH.
¥ Refer to Mote 29 for more information

MNote 3a Segment reporting

UBS AG's businesses are organized globally into five business divisions: Global Wealth Management, Personal &

Corporate Banking, Asset Management, the Investment Bank, and Mon-core and Legacy. All five business divisions are

supported by Group functions and qualify as reportable segments for the purpose of segment reporting. Together with

Group functions, the five business divisions reflect the management structure of UBS AG.

- Global Wealth Management provides financial services, advice and solutions to private wealth dients. Its offering
ranges from investrment management to estate planning and conporate finance advice, in addition to specific wealth
management and banking products and services.

- Personal & Corporate Banking serves its private, corporate and institutional clients’ needs, from banking to
retirement, financing, investments and strategic transactions, in Switzerland, through its branch network and digital
channels.

- Asset Management is a global, large-scale and diversified asset manager. It offers investment capabilities and styles
across all major traditional and alternative asset classes, as well as advisory support to institutions, wholesale
intermediaries and wealth management clients.

- The Investment Bank provides a range of services to institutional, corporate and wealth management clients globally,
to help them raise capital, grow their businesses, invest and manage risks. Its offering indudes research, advisory
services, facilitating clients raising debt and equity from the public and private markets and capital markets, cash and
derivatives trading across equities and fixed income, and financing.

- Non-core and Legacy includes positions and businesses not aligned with our long-term strategy and risk appetite. It
consists of selected assets and liabilities from the Credit Suisse business divisions, as well as residual assets and liabilities
from UBS's former Non-core and Legacy Portfolio that preceded the acquisition of the Credit Suisse Group and smaller
armournts of assets and liabilities of LUBS's business divisions that have been assessed as not strategic in light of that
acquisition.

- Qur Group functions are support and control functions that provide services to the Group. Virtually all costs incurred
by the Group functions are allocated to the business divisions, leaving a residual amount that we refer to as Group
Items in our segment reporting. Group functions incdude the following major areas: Group Services (which consists of
the Group Operations and Technology Office, Group Compliance, Regulatory & Governance, Group Finance, Group
Risk Control, Group Human Resources and Corporate Services, Communications & Branding, Group Legal, the Group
Integration Office, Group Sustainability and Impact and the Chief Strategy Office) and Group Treasury.
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MNote 3a Segment reporting (continuad)

Financial information about the five business divisions and Group Items is presented separately in internal management
reports to the Executive Board, which is considered the “chief operating decision-maker” pursuant to IFRS 8, Operating

Segments.

LBS AG's internal accounting policies, which include management accounting policies and service-level agreements,
determine the revenues and expenses directly attributable to each reportable segment. Transactions between the
reportable segrents are carried out at intemally agreed rates and are reflected in the operating results of the reportable
segments. Revenue-sharing agreements are used to allocate external client revenues to reportable segments where
several reportable segments are involved in the value creation chain. Total intersegrment revenues for UBS AG are
imraterial, as the majority of the revenues are allocated across the segments by means of revenue-sharing agreements.
Interest income eamed from managing UBS AG's consolidated equity is allocated to the reportable segments based on
average attributed equity and currency composition. Assets and liabilities of the reportable segments are funded through
and invested with Group functions, and the net interest margin is reflected in the results of each reportable segment.

Segment assets are based on a third-party view and do not indude intercompany balances. This view is in line with
internal reporting to management. If one operating segment is involved in an external transaction together with ancther
operating segrment or Group function, additional criteria are considered to determine the segment that will report the
associated assets. This will indude a consideration of which segment's business needs are being addressed by the
transaction and which segment is providing the funding and / or resources. Allocation of liabilities follows the same
principles.

Mon-current assets disclosed for segment reporting purposes represent assets that are expected to be recovered more
than 12 months after the reporting date, exduding finandal instruments, deferred tax assets and post-employment
benefits.

As part of the continued refinement of UBS AG's reporting structure and organizational setup, in the first quarter of
2024 certain changes to Group Treasury allocations were made with an impact on segment reporting for UBS AG's
business divisions and Group Items. Prior-period information has been adjusted for comparability.

LBS AG has allocated to the business divisions nearly all Group Treasury costs that historically were retained and reported
in Group Items. Costs that continue to be retained in Group ftems include costs related to hedging and own debt, and
deferred tax asset funding costs. In parallel with these changes, UBS AG has increased the allocation of balance sheet
resources from Group Treasury to the business divisions.

Following the changes outlined above, prior-pericd information for the twelve-month period ended 31 December 2023
has been restated, resulting in decreases in Operating profit /(loss) before tax of USD91m for Global Wealth
Management and USD 69m for Personal & Conporate Banking, and increases in Operating profit / (loss) before tax of
USD 134m for Group Itemns, USD 25m for the Investrnent Bank and USD 1m for Asset Management, with no change to
Mon-core and Legacy.

Prior-period information as of 31 December 2023 has also been restated, resulting in increases of Total assets of
USD 35.6bn in Global Wealth Management, USD 26.9bn in Personal & Corporate Banking and USD 21.4bn in the
Investrnent Bank, with a commesponding decrease of assets of USD 83.9bn in Group Items.

These changes had no effect on the reported results or financial position of UBS AG.
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Note 3a Segment reporting (continued)

Personal &
Glubal Weshh Cofparale Banpt vestment  Mosecore and Goup
LS Menagement Barking  Munasgessen Bank Legacy Ne=s LIBS AG
For the year ended 31 Dec 2024
et nterest income 5201 L B G Mz (708 a6
Mofriffefes | ifome 16,47 1123 1,853 13,341 47 1./ 17645
Totl revenues. 13,148 7,153 2,799 9,837 335 45 42,313
Gedit s expense [ ebessel m_ TR R I I [ 54
Operaling sxpedded 18,893 4,714 1314 BT53 3,673 arg 30,346
Dpersting pecki  fospbeforetas Ans o 1) EECE {935} A
Tax expense | (ensfit) a0
ettt s 533
Additional information
Tl el I .10 e ma LT 67,600 153771368000
Bl b pon-cLmen] ey 186 T4 7 o] b1 [1] 1717
Panomal &
Glubal Washh Cofparale Aanel Pestment  Mos-core and Group
L8 Mznagement Banking  Muanagesserni Bank Legacy = LIBS AG
For the year ended 31 December 20230
L M5 a0 B (2,586} . S 11,238} _A566
Morrirterest income 13,194 158 2,108 10,371 34 1244 29,109
Taal reveniie 18,539 5216 2,0M T.TE4 58 & 13675
Creaft bois expense | release) S - i &7 1 LI
Operaling saperdes 14,200 1R 1,706 7588 1,010 19 2901
Operstngpeolh i foodbelovetex L L B L. JO— s o 450
Tax expense / (ensfit) 1,206
Mes pookia | fless) 3315
Additional information
Tenal faets! 04 74T 283,980 19,662 202415 13,845 31,368 1,156,016
T s e T 7
Panomal &
Glubal Weshh Cofparale Aanel Pestment  Mof-core and Group
LS Menagement Baniking  Managesent Bank Legacy [ LIS AG
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Metinberestineome a4 awr o pe @ 1 B8O BSIT
Morrirfefes| intome 13,689 113 29800 B8 136 413 18,398
Taal revenues 18,963 4,304 2,961 8T 237 [267) 34915
Crefit boeis. enpense | (release) 1] Ex] 0 (12 2 1] F]
T I R T Wy T}
Tax | (henelit) 1,844
et | fosg) 1116
Additional information
N me: PEELL] 1520 e 1336r B0 1NN
Bl b Ruof-cLmen aias a1 13 1 Ex] n 1,773 1,862
1 Conarathepeicd | s Deen rescend Fox Groap Treasury aliocations.  Incuces an LED) BAE gai in Aai Managenent selaied to the saie of USS AG'5 shaveholzing in Miteisihl Com.-U2S Realty
Inc.
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Note 3b Segment reporting by geographic location

The operating regions shown in the table below comespond to the regional management structure of UBS AG. The
allocation of total revenues to these regions reflects, and is consistent with, the basis on which the business is managed
and its performance is evaluated. These allocations involve assumptions and judgments that management considers to
be reasonable and may be refined to reflect changes in estimates or management structure. The main principles of the
allocation methodology are that dient revenues are attributed to the domicile of the given client and trading and portfolio
management revenues are attributed to the country where the risk is managed. This revenue attribution is consistent
with the mandate of the regional Presidents. Certain revenues, such as those related to Non-core and Legacy and Group
Iterns, are included in the Global line.,

The geographic analysis of non-current assets is based on the location of the entity in which the given assets are recorded.

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Tenal revenie
LIS by Share %
187 r
17
H
100
For the year ended 31 December 2023
Total resenues? Tatsl nos-cusment ssets
LIS b Shive % USD bn Shane S
Astpiicas 133 g BB 47
T T e
Euepe, Widdle Exut and Wica (mchodiog Switzsslena) &1 w7 7ae BT
Switzerfand a2 i) 59 a2
Gebal an g o .
] a7 100 18.3 100
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Tanal revenues Tatel nof-cusment siets
LIS b Shese % USD bn Share

Ameiica’ 138 40 5.0 48

1 Fiecominandy relaed 1o the US. 3 Comparanies-periad inlsmanion has beon restaed for changes in Groap Trasury alincations.
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Income statement notes

Note 4 Met interest income and other net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through

profit or loss

Far the yeer ended
LD 31,1234 EIAFFI] EIRF¥7]
mmmmmw-ﬂumﬂumrmmmmmmu 5455 1,765 1,410
"Cither et incme from finadal instuments. measred o1 far salue Seough geok e bess’ 1288 983 7489
Tenal et incosse from finandal instrements measused at fair value Swough profit o lots and other 18414 11,688 £,903
Met intenest i
Imereat income from loare and depesits’ e RS WREXT G634
Initefet incose frofm Lecuities finincing Iinsactions méasured &1 moftized costi ) EN 3,450 1,378
Iterest incose from other finencial inusents seeured 2 amaoized cost SO S, ' S ... 2
Inmerest income o debt instrumess messued at Lair vaue through othes comprehensvsingome T q0e M8 T
IriteFedt pesiiting Trom deivatiee ingiiuments dedigaated s cach fow hedaes {1,343 11,858 173
Tenal inerest income from finandal insuiments meassned & amanized cost and fir vakee through other cosiprehensie intome 28,967 22,444 11,803
Imerest expense cn kuns and deposats’ - - - .
Inesest expense cn securities inasding ransicticn: sess 8] o -
Imerest espense on deblissaed A aEss
Iiterest expense on lease Fabiilies 132 a7 B
Tensl innerest expente from financisl iatmments sesiuned at amortited cost 29,745 10,643 6,606
Tekal net interest incorne from finandal instruments measured at amonized cost snd fair value teough other comprehersive income T 2801 5,108
Tenal et intesest incorme from finandal instruments measuned at Rair vl theough prolit of lois and other 5,455 1,765 1,410
Toksl ped ifilises innfe 4578 4,566 &51?
1I'Ehclsmhﬂshﬂ‘lﬂmmtﬂ'*dmmnlms:flm-hmhhmﬂn,ﬂuullmIl'.ﬂlihmﬂ"' b "ol wihich® ik
tinancial Fabiitios desigrarcd ar fair valee sockides i ke 1o firandal fad vakie, uﬂh‘ﬂgln—qmmm&m
mnﬁmimﬁmmﬂ-ﬁnmﬂlmmmmiﬂlnmmmhlmwﬁhumhpulmmm
Eabiies desiguated ar fais valee included net lases of LED 1,40 (et nsses of S0 2,04 5m and et of U150 4,112 in 2003 and 2022, respecieely] from financial Rasdi

s s by UES AG's Asset Maragqement Desiness disision. Thess gain ! (lssesh ave fully atiser Crer et income drom financial inssaments moasared at i valu thivsgh prodit o ks iy the fai valee
charge o the financial awets odging the unit-Enkod insvesmom cmiacs, which e ot dsckesed o par of Ket gais / (leses) from financial Raddies designated ar fab valee.  § Comsists of imees income
from cash and balances ar comsal Banks, amounts due from banks and ousomers, and csh ool neal secevazles on dervathe insTumens, i well a5 BegaT | RS on amounts due o ks, aimmen deposhs,
and cash collmesal payabies on denvathe insnmems, 3 Incides negathve imesest, inchifing e, on pagables fom secerties financing ranmaions meserd af anonized st 4 Comits of imeest tepenss
o amonants dun 10 banks, Geh-collnel prables on dervatke insruments, asiomen depasits, and funding bon USS Groug AG moemured o amanized omt, & well o negate: inmres o1 csh and balnoes
eninal banks, amouns dus from banks, and csh collaceral osisables o dervathes insanents. & Inchedes negative imesest, indeging fees, on mosisables from searites Erandng manscions mexred a1
anvoatizd cosL

Total combined net interest income and other net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through
profit or loss increased by USD 3,137m to USD 17,637m, mainly driven by the consolidation of Credit Suisse AG revenues.

Mote 5 Met fee and commission income

nin
633
., - S ...}
5605 4,730 4,342
o e Py
1,548 1,950 1.3
duﬂ*m IT065 F4.008 M9
o il ranssctioe-fased’ L. 6320 58T
Fée and commission expense 1,365 1,750 1823
Hed fex: snd commission income 23,438 1E510 19,023
1 For the year ended 31 Deoenier 1034, reflaas Tind-pany tee and aenmbsion incoms of USD 15,527 for Giobhal Weakh Maragenest, USD 2, 538m fe Pesonal & Cosporaie a.-hg.tma.aaanhmm
U500 &, I35 for the Irvesamen Bank, USD 730 for Mateoor and Legacy and nsgathas LSO Gm for Groug iens for e -ma'lnnm-muuml:.mnhﬁu u-na:m.

WSO 1, B40m for Pessonal B Corporaie Banking, USD 2, 773m dor et Management, USD 3, 153m for the Invesmen Sank, USD T for Monecore and Legacy and negative USD 1 0m dar Groug s, foo

erded 31 Decemizer 2023 USD 12,530m im Glozal Weahh Kanagemest, USD 1,657m for Persoral & Corpourie Baniing, USD 1380m dor Awet Managenet, USD 3,350m iu'd'lrlnﬂ'-'ntl't.meh
Fir=coue angl Lagacy and LISD SO dor Geowp Hems).

Met fee and commission income increased by USD 4,828m to USD 23 438m, mainly driven by the consolidation of Credit
Suisse AG revenues.
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Mote 6 Other incomea

Far the year ended
L ETRFR) .12.23 ETRFR
Agsocistes, joint veniures and subsidiaries.
Met gaies | (feasest) from acquisitions and dispossls of subsidiaries! g 4 148

Met gaire | fosses) from diposals of irvesiments in socisbes and joint veriure 118 0 B

T

Tensl ] {138) 1,024
[i]
p.:]

Mot gabs / fosses) feom ok o feandl assets sesmed ot e vaiue Wrouch clercorpmivehfooome 0 )

lugﬂu.ﬂ ..... P T == Jaamnnnaes g o
Income fross shaved seniced provided 1o UBS Group AG of its subsidiaries 73
s o

Taal aither incosse 1,248 566 1,882
1 Inclices fusinn echangt qains § i) sdas ed tsan oher canzeek Tacome related 10 the disosal or clasune of Foreign opesations, Fefer [0 N 23 for mone inkemation about UE5 AL 'S acquisiions
and disposaks of setsidiaries and tusnesses. 3 Inchices an LED BAEm gain selaced 1o the sale of UES AS's shamholding in Mirsabishi Conp AJES Realty Inc. 5 2024 indudes @ loss of USD 30m Sue o UES s shass
of pary ! diecoed in the profit ans ks of an assodane (003: loss of LISD 255m). 4 Includes vent seooiwed fom i paries. 4 2004 inchides gairs of LD Om rekined 10 the repaichase
of UES AG's detn 2 b -:*dm:m-mn:g-dtmnnhmm & Inchudes USD 113m nen gain in Asser Maragenent fom the sale of e Sraiien neal st faed
margene besiness. 7 Mainly relates 0 a pormion of 1he toral IS0 133m gain on the sale of LSS A5's domestic wealth management besiness in Spain of USD 11 1m jwith the mmaising amoum disdossd within
Ko gains ¢ fissos) fom aoguisiions and diposaks of sebaidiries) and imcome of LED 11 1m seknod to a legacy rigation st an 2 lngacy Rank dair.

MNote 7 Personnel expenses

Far the year ended

LS EYRFE 301223 1.12.22

Total peraonne] epensts 18,358 15,655 15,080
1 Inletes robe-based alwances. 3 Rrler o King 27 foo mose infoemenion. 3 Financial advisoe compennion consits of Grh compestion, demnmined wing a foamulae appmach based on procucrion, and
deferrer aswars. i alse inchides caperses relaed 1 COTOERSITN commivnens with nandal advises entered imoa te dne of reorement that as sebjec m vestieg mguiemens. 4 Refen 10 Kooe 26 dw mos
imlarmanion. Inclazies cunailmem of W50 7l fi whe pear enced 31 Decerber 2004 for the year ended 31 December 023 USD 3a; for the yoa eaged 31 December 2002 USD 13n), which mpmesent a
mcudion in the defined bearfc redaind 1o The Saiss persion plas iesilting fomn a deovn in headoent foliowing ssmciming aniides

Personnel expenses increased by USD 4,303m to USD 19,958m, mainly driven by the consolidation of Credit Suisse AG
EHDENSES,

Note 8 General and administrative expenses

Far the year ended
LED EaR bl ) E1 R k] 122z
Outsounding costs 9 478 451

Tetel qenessl and adesinistratioe expenses 16548 11,118 8,001

T Euflects T BT NG, IR RODREES O (1S paries, i prostsiens for Eigatior, squiTiory and siniar Matlees wcogabed Ia T8 Ioome SIIement, Befer 1o hiow 18 for mome | In 20324, in
aomdance: with e applicable comtiacal amangenents, UES AG reosived a ssimbs soment of USD 177m fom a direc subsidiary of UBS Gaoep AG

General and administrative expenses increased by USD 5430m to USD 16,548m, which included the effect of
consolidating Credit Suisse AG expenses.
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MNote 9 Income taxes

Far the year ended
LS ETRFET ETRFFE] 1222

Tax enpenie § (benefit)

Total nim-Swiss
Total income tax expense ! (benefit) recogrized in the incose stxiement

Income tax recognized in the income statement

The Swiss current tax expenses related to taxable profits of UBS Switzerland AG and other Swiss entities.
The net Swiss deferred tax benefit mainly related to a net upward revaluation of deferred tax assets (DTAs) of USD 65m.

The non-Swiss current tax expenses included USD 831m that mainly related to US corporate alternative minimum tax
with an equivalent deferred tax benefit for DTAs recognized in respect of tax credits camied forward and USD 608m in
respect of other taxable profits of non-Swiss subsidiaries and branches.

The net non-Swiss deferred tax benefit induded benefits of USD 831m related to the atorementioned deferred tax
benefit, USD 417m in respect of a net upward revaluation of DTAs and USD 252m in respect of an increase in deferred
tax asset recognition for UBS AG's US branch. These benefits were partly offset by an expense of USD 500m that primarily
related to the amortization of DTAs previously recognized in relation to tax losses caried forward and deductible
temporary differences.

Far the year ended
LS EjRPE) 3.12.23 iz
Operating prafit ! feas) bedore lax 2433 4521 8,950
Income taess &1 Swiss tax rabe of 18 5% for 2024, 18.5% for 2033 and 18% for 2022 450 B3h 1613

L L L
WomSudss v rabes dllaring Bom Swlss e e & BT
Tax effacts ol bosoes not recoguioed o ! M

Mao-tasatle snd hower-laued income [riki] {165) (318
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Mote 9 Income taxes (continuad)

The components of operating profit before tax, and the differences between income tax expense reflected in the financial
staternents and the amounts calculated at the Swiss tax rate, are provided in the table above and explained below.

Component Description

Mon-Swiss tax rates Tio the eatent that LBS AG profits of lodtes arise outside Switzerland, the applicable local tae rate may diller from the

differing from the Swvis e rate. This iem redlects, for such peofits, an sdjustment from the tax expense that would arise st the Swiss tax

Swwiss tax rate rate to the tax experse that would arise a2 the applicable local tax rate. Similary, it reflects, for such losses, an adustrment
from the tax benefit that would arise at the Swiss tax rate 1o the tax berefit that would arse at the applicable local tax
rate,

Tax effects of losses Thits ibesm relates to tax losses of entities arising in the year that are not recognized & DTAS and where no tax berefit arises

not recognized in refation 1o those loses. Thenefone, the ta caloulated by applying the local tax rate 1o those kosses a3 described
above i reversed,
Thits itesrm redates bo taxable of the year that ane offset by tax losses of previcus far wehiich mo DTAS were

::Mnmw:dmhuu mnhlmmrmd.Cuneqm,nnﬁ;:ntmmﬂﬂuwmwnargulnmw;mmm&pnﬂfsmd

now utilized the tax expense calculsted by applying the local tax rate on those profits is reversed,

Mon-taxable and lower- Thits ibesm redates to tax deductions for the year in respect of permanent differences. These indude deductions in respect of

income prafits that are eithes not tasable or are taxable at a hower rabe of tae than the local tax rate, They also inclisde deductions

made Tor tax purpases, which are not reflected in the sccounts.

Mon-deductible Thits ibesm redates to addtional taxable income lor the year in respect of nent differences. These include income that

expenses and is recognized Tor tax purposes by an entity but i not included in its tht is reported in the financial statements, &

additional taxable well &% experes for the year that ane non-deductible (g dient entertainment costs are not deductible in cerain

income locations).

Adjustments related to Thits ibesm redates to adjustments to cumment ta sdpenss for pror years (e.g. il the tax payable for a year i agreed with the

prior years, current tax ta Buthoritien in &n amount that differs from the amount previously reflected in the financial gatements),

Adjustments related to Thits ibesm refates to adjustments to deferned tax positions recognized in prior years (e.g if & tax boss hor a year is fuly

prior years, deferred recagnized and the amount of the tax loes agreed with the tax authorites i expected to differ from the amount previously

tan recagnized & DTAS in the socounts).

Change in deferred tax Thits ibesm refates to changes in DTAS, including chamges in DT.As préviously recognized resulting from resssessments of

recagnition expected future taxable profits. it ko includes chamges in temporary differences in the year, for which delemed tax i not
fecognized.

Adjustments to Thits ibesm relates to remeasunements of DTAs and lishilities recognized due to changes in tax rates. Thse have the eflect

deferred tax balances of changing the futuse tax swing that & expected from tax loses of deductible tax diffenences and thenefiore the amount

of OTAs recognized o, alernatively, changing the ta oot of additionsl taxable income from taable termporany
diflerences and theselore the defered tax lishility.

Orther isems include other differenoes between prolits or losses a2 the local tax rate and the actual local tax expense or
beeredit, ircluding movemernts in provisions lof uncertain positions. in relation 1o the current year and other iberrs,

Income tax recognized directly in eguity

A net tax expense of USD 40m was recognized in Other comprehensive income (2023: net expense of USD 288m) and
a net tax benefit of LISD 18m was recognized in Share premium (2023: net benefit of USD 12m).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

UBS AG has gross DTAs, valuation allowances and recognized DTAs related to tax loss carry-forwards and deductible
temporary differences, as well as deferred tax liabilities in respect of taxable ternporary differences, as shown in the table
below. The valuation allowances reflect DTAs that were not recognized because, as of the last remeasuremant period,
management did not consider it probable that there would be sufficient future taxable profits available to utilize the
related tax loss carry-forwards and deductible temporary differences,

The recognition of DTAs is supported by forecasts of taxable profits for the entities concerned. In addition, tax planning
opportunities are available that would result in additional future taxable income and these would be utilized, if necessary.
Deferred tax labilities are recognized in respect of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates, and interests in
joint arrangements, except to the extent that UBS AG can control the timing of the reversal of the associated taxable
temporary difference, and it is probable that such will not reverse in the foreseeable future. However, as of 31 December
2024, this exception was not considerad to apply to any taxable temporary differences.
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Mote 9 Income taxes (continuad)

LS 3.12.24 Nn.1223

Walustion Valluation
Deferred tax assets’ Gross allwancs Recogrized Gross allowance Recogrized
T luzs camy-forwands ) 18,871 (17.594) 2217 145 18,436 2,957
Uirnsied 1t cvefils 75 [] 675 1] 1] a5

Tewporarydifesces WA s 1S &AM T 6dE
o iy pelafed o real Bxtate costs capimied for U

B T ... SN S . N . S N~ .
of ilich slated o copensatice dvd ety a0 1) 47 1457 (205 1252
Cofwhih b fowhebes ay gy g g
o hich: onter A6 el 2575 1997 arg 1818
Tenal defered 1a¢ sssets 30,669 |20,188) 10,481 16,319 (9,078 9244
of iedich rdatec’ o phe LS EYETS B505
o e < .-

Deferred tax Rabilities
Total defered e bites : % 62
1 Aer otse of DL, as applcable. 2l.=u‘|3'lmmmlﬁwhﬂmﬁ;‘mmﬁ1mm:lﬂﬂﬁﬂhmdmﬁmbﬂhﬁﬂ\ﬂum.

In general, US federal tax losses incurred prior to 31 December 2017 can be carried forward for 20 years. US federal tax
losses incurred after that date can be carried forward indefinitely, although the utilization of such losses is limited to 80%
of the entity's future year taxable profits. UK tax losses can also be carried forward indefinitely; they can shelter up to
either 25% or 50% of future year taxable profits, depending on when the tax losses arose. The amounts of S tax loss
carry-forwards that are included in the table below are based on their amount for tederal tax purposes rather than for
state and local tax purposes.

Unrecognized tax boss canry-forswards
LS A2 1223
R L U ... MU, . 3

oy
Tedsl 57,535 30,630

of i rdated fo b L5V [TFTS 12354
S

i e ot e B _{ﬂﬂ
T Blawe 1 UES AG 5 US brandh.

Pillar Two top-up taxes under Global Anti-Base Erosion rules

Certain countries in which UBS AG operates have enacted legislation implementing the Pillar Two Global Anti-Base
Erosion rules published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development that introduced domestic top-
up taxes that applied to local UBS AG entities during 2024, These indude Switzerdand, the UK, Japan, Canada and most
EU Membser States. Moreover, Switzerland and, also, most EU Member States had enacted legislation by 31 December
2024 that introduced non-domestic top-up taxes that are effective from 1 January 2025, which apply to UBS AG's
The exception in paragraph 4A of 145 12, lncome Taxes, which requires that deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
be neither recognized nor disdosed in respect of such top-up taxes, has been applied for the purposes of these financial
staternents.

UBS AG's current tax expenses for 2024 do not include a material expense in relation to top-up taxes because, to the
extent that UBS AG's profits arose in entities to which top-up taxes applied, these were almost all in countries that had
effective tax rates of 15% or more.

An assessment of UBS AG's potential future exposure to top-up taxes under legislation that was enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules by 31 Decernber 2024 but was not yet in effect was performed,
reflecting country-by-country reporting and, also, the corporate tax expenses of UBS AG entities that are expected in
future years. This assessment indicated that UBS AG's profits in future years are expected to be almost entirely eamed in
countries with corporate tax expenses that are at an effective tax rate of 15% or more and will not, therefore, be subject

to top-taxes. Consequently, UBS AG is not expected to have a material annual exposure to top-up taxes for future years
under this legislation.
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Balance sheet notes

MNote 10 Financial assets at amortized cost and other positions in scope of expected credit loss measurement

The tables below provide information about finandal instruments and certain credit lines that are subject to expected
credit loss (ECL) requirements. UBS AG's ECL disclosure segments, or "ECL segmants” are aggregated portfolios based
nnbm;red risk characteristics and on the same or similar rating methods applied. The key segments are presented in the
table below:.

¥ Refer to Note 20 for more information about expected credit loss measurement

Segment Segment deseription Description of credit risk senaitivity Business division

Private clients with Lending to private chents secured by Seraitive to Swiss GDP, interest s - Personal & Corporste Banking

mortgages owwner-peoupisd real estate and environiment, unemployment evels, real Mada
personal scoount ovendrafts of these  estate collabersl values and ctber regional (Globel Weslth gement
dienits ity

Real estate finanding Rerital or income-producing real estate  Serditive bo Swiss GOP, urermgloyment - Personal & Comporate Banking
financing to private and cosporate bevels, the interest rate enviranment, 58l _ i) Wealth Management

dients secured by real estate eatate collatersl values and other iegional " -
Aupecty
Large corporate clients  Lending to larpe corporate and multi-  Sersitive bo GOP developments, = Personal & Comporate Banking
national chents unemployment levels, oredit default 8Wap  _ ooeermens Bank
{CDS) indices, seasonality, business cpcles

and collateral values (diverse collateral,  ~ 008! Weaith Management
including real estate and other collsteral  — Non-core and Legacy
Typst)

SME clients Lending to small and redium-sized Sersitive to GDP developments, - Personal & Corporate Banking
orporate dients unemployment levels, the interest rate
environment and, to Some sdent,
spasonaity, business epcles and collaseral
walues (diverse collateral, including real
estate ard other colateral types)

Lombard Loars secired by pledges of marketable  Serditive to equity and debt markets (eg. - Global Wealth Managemen:
aecufities, guarartes and othes lorme  changes in colatersl vahiss)
of collateral {including hedge: funds,
private equity and unlisted equlties)
Cradit cards Credt card exposures in Switserkand Seraitive to unemgloyment keels - Personal & Comporate Banking
and the US = Global Wealth Management
Commaodity trade Working capital finandng of commedity  Serditive primarily Bo the strength of - Personal & Comporste Banking
finance traders, generally extended on a sefl-  individual transsction structures and
liquidating transactional bass enllateral values (price wolstility of
commodities), as the prmary source for
debit service i directly linked 1o the
shiprrents financed
Consumer financing Consumer loans and car kesging Serditive to unemployment levels - Personal & Corporate Banking
Ship financing Ship financing mainly inchudes bulk Serditive to resl GOP, earnings of tankers - Global Wealth Manapement
cartiers, ol tankers, containers and and eamings of bulk camiers
liquefied ratural gas cariers
Aircraft financing Comporate aircralt financing Serditive bo collateral values = Glabal Wealth Manaperment
Financial intermediaries  Lending to linancal indtitutions and Serditive to GDP develapment, CDS - Personal & Comporste Banking
and hedige funds persion lunds, induding exposures o indices, the inbenest rate enviranment, = Iriestroent Bank

broker-dealers and clearing houses price ard volatility risks in financial
muarkets, regulatory and political risk, ang  ~ Siabal Weaith Management
collateral values [diverse oollsteral, - Mon-core and Legacy
including real estate and other colateral

Types)
¥ Refer to Note 20f for more detalls regarding sensitivity
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Note 10 Financial assets at amortized cost and other positions in scope of expected credit loss measurement
(continued)

The tables below provide ECL exposure and ECL allowance and provision information about financial instruments and
certain non-financial instruments that are subject to ECLs.

LD IIIH
Camying amount! ECL llewences

Finencial instruments measured & smartized cost Tolsl  Sagel Sagel Suge Total Sage ! Sisgel Staged

Cash snd halances o ceniral hanks 223,201 1% 1] (188 0 (1E8)

0

Other finangial ssets meaired & amonized cost

e e 7 Rt
Todsl firancisl sasts mesnsed 5 smorized cost
Financial assets measured at fai value Swough oiher comprehensive income
Tensl or-halance sheet firancial st in scope of ECL requinements.

Off-buslance sheeet (in scopst of ECL)

o it Large corporate alen
Forward starting reeese repurchase and securties barowing agresmenss

Teasl aiff-bakance shest financil instruments and other credit lines

508

Totel Hlowances and provisions ) BSIT T
1 T iy i of Hinancial Tses meamnsd 3T SToTiasd our ipresents the moal e sepee tot of T st ECL allrwancs.
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Note 10 Financial assets at amortized cost and other positions in scope of expected credit loss measurement
(continued)
L IR
Canrying asount’ ECL alwances
Financial instruments measwred at amortized cost Tolsl  Stagei  Stagel  Slaged Totsl  Slagel  Slagel  Sumge

Dduﬁufﬂlmuﬂudlmm: 54334 SEE Nz

oy

oy

]

e
14 (6]
e T e e e
2,150 1643

[1]

2,150

Tedal firancisl sasts mestsed 5 smortized cost TEEADT THSTED  1BATS
Financial astets measused at fair value Bwough ather comprehensive income 2 113 o
Teksl o halarece shest firncial s within the soope of ECL regainsents TEEED  T4E015 1847

Off-balance sheet (within the scope of ECL) Tolsl Stagei  Stagel  Slage 3 Totel  Stage 1
Gueanles AN W3R T T @B 04

RE. . esest

o BE o3

=

aEr ~BERE

sininininialie

4
Tetsl off-bakance shest financial instruments and credit lines 130G 13410 4562 3 (188} m

Eli{

Tetal allowances snd provisions 0,288}
1 T camying amaum of tinancial st neamned 31 aTOTEM 000 epresents the ol g s eeposer met of T sspective ECL allrwancs.
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Note 10 Financial assets at amortized cost and other positions in scope of expected credit loss measurement
(continued)

Coverage ratios are calculated for the core loan portfolio by taking ECL allowances and provisions divided by the gross
carrying amount of the exposures. Core loan exposure is defined as the sum of Loans and advances to customers and
Loans to financial advisors.

These ratios are influenced by the ful|m¥ln?1 key factors:

= Lombard loans are generally secured with marketable securities in portfolios that are, as a rule, highly diversified, with
strict lending policies that are intended to ensure that credit risk is minimal under most circumstances;

= mortgage loans to private clients and real estate financing are controlled by consenative eligibility criteria, including
low loan-to-value ratios and strong debt service capabilities;

- the amount of unsecured retail lending (including credit cards) is insignificant;

- contractual maturities in the loan portfolio, which are a factor in the calculation of ECLs, are generally short, with
Lombard lending typically having average contractual maturities of 12 months or less, real estate lending generally
between two and three years in Switzerland, with long-dated maturities in the US, and corporate lending between
one and two years with related loan commitrments up to four years; and

= write-offs of ECL allowances against the gross loan balances when all or part of a financial asset is deemed uncollectible
or forgiven reduce the coverage ratios.

The total combined on- and off-balance sheet coverage ratio was at 37 basis points as of 31 December 2024, 15 basis
paints higher than the ratio as of 31 December 2023. The combined stage 1 and 2 ratio of 10 basis points was unchanged
compared with the ratio as of 31 December 2023; the stage 3 ratio was 31%, 9 percentage points higher than the ratio
as of 31 December 2023.

LM

Shi | sicralt fnanding LAgs 1,663 L] o (L T - R— 0
Eﬂmmu'ﬂ'ﬂfﬂl] 134 134 1] 1] & & 1] & L]
Fingncial kﬂmﬁdﬂlﬂ.lﬂhﬂ#hﬁh 12 B4Y 22,378 Ah4 1] 1 1 B 1 L]
Other off-balance sheet cosmitments 53,765 52,268 &68 ) 4 z 18 z 1,945
Tatal ather kending ' 172360 170,745 158 (18 3 1 P | 2 14T
Teaal? 13367 265,117 T.572 EBTE 12 T 135 0 TO4
Tensl o and off-balance cheet? EEE30E  H2EAIS 30065 T547 £l ] 141 n 3,067
1mmmmnmnmmiwmﬂﬂummﬁmd-hmiﬂm at  Enchusios, Faraand siaming revers
P g 3y junuuﬂhnn-npumgm-dhﬁnd-mm-mh*ummmm
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Note 10 Financial assets at amortized cost and other positions in scope of expected credit loss measurement
(continued)

iRl
Grogs camying asount (USD &) ECL comerage (ps)

Tartal athes kending 152,609 150,840 1378 481 18 3 17 4 4482

Total' 409,232 38R0 18356 2,744 Fa 5 0 9 1263
Gress exposure (USD ECL ecwerage (Bps)

Suagel  Stagel  Siaged Totl Sl Stagel Slage 182 Staned

L N - . N .. B4

LR - | I, - - L T—

16,624 B4 15 [ [ 4 [ 40

4w 1359 125 7 16 147 .3 [21:3

NN N T T . N

WIE LTS 205 0 18 161 = 827

13,602 ] 1 1 1 ] 1 [

4 s 4 W BB w0

T o .| A L 4 .0

25,148 230 ] 5 4 157 5 [

"""""""""""""""""""""""""" W% 4 9w 5w B 0

67,630 1,024 14 7 4 97 6§ 5921

40T 4562 I 15 5 m EN ]

S1L1M 12958 2978 2 [ 105 10 LI57

1 Inleckes Loans and advancrs 10 cemenis and Loams m Snandal adeisen, shich o presemied on 1he alance sioet Ere Coher tinancal asets measured o anonind aof. 1 Esdutes Forsad saning mestss
e and sp0uthes bomowing agrements, 3 lncudes on-Salanon sheet oqose, o and off balance shoet exposun (notional) and the rkned E0L cossage i (bes)

Mote 11 Derivative instruments

Owverview

Over-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracts are usually traded under a standardized Intemational Swaps and Derivatives
Association (I5DA) master agreement o other recognized local industry-standard master agreements between UBS AG
and its counterparties. Terms are negofiated directly with counterparties and the contracts have industry-standard
settlement mechanisms prescribed by 1SDA or similar industry-standard solutions. Other OTC derivatives are deared
through clearing houses, in particular interest rate swaps with LCH, where a settled-to-market method has been generally
adopted, under which cash collateral exchanged on a daily basis is considered to legally settle the market value of the
derivatives. Regulators in various jurisdictions have introduced rules requiring the payment and collection of initial and
variation margins on certain OTC derivative contracts, which may have a bearing on price and other relevant terms,

Exchange-traded derivatives (ETD) are standardized in terms of thelr amounts and settlernent dates, and are bought and
sold on regulated exchanges. Exchanges offer the benefits of pricing transparency, standardized daily settlement of
changes in value and, consequently, reduced credit risk.

host of UBS AG's derivative transactions relate to sales and market-making activity. Sales activities indude the structurin
and marketing of derivative products to customers to enable them to take, transfer, modify or reduce current or expecte
risks. Market-making aims to directly support the facilitation and execution of client activity, and involves quoting bid
and offer prices to other market participants with the aim of generating revenues based on spread and volume. UBS AG

also uses various derivative instruments for hedging purposes.
¥ Refer to Notes 16 and 21 for more information about derivative instruments
¥ Refer to Note 25 for more information about derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships

Annual Report 2024 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments 168

461/619



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Mote 11 Derivative instruments (continuad)

Risks of derivative instruments

The derivative financial assets shown on the balance sheet can be an impartant cormponent of UBS AG's credit exposure;
hioweever, the positive replacement values related to a respective counterparty are rarely an adeguate reflection of
LBS AG's credit exposure in its derivatives business with that counterparty. This is generally the case because, on the one
hand, replacement values can increase over time (potential future exposure), while, on the other hand, exposure may be
mitigated by entering into master netting agreements and bilateral collateral arangements. Both the exposure measures
;Jsed intemally by UBS AG to control credit risk and the capital requirements imposed by regulators reflect these additional
actors.
¥ Refer to Nate 22 for more information about derivative financial assets and liabilities after consideration of netting potential
permitted under enforceable netting arrangements
¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contral” section of this repart for more information about the risks arising from derivative
Instruments

Derivative instruments

E) Rk ELR PR

Derientiee  Deerivative 1o desiative Dby Derivative  Derivative 1o dpfatiee Dther
finencid fnandal firancial ssets notional Fnancial financiel finencid assets national
LS b atets  lishilges  end Fabiities  amounts\d as56T fabiities and labiities™?  amoustsld

L . . . N . . . N . N N L]

e =

E:

RREEE au

a0
o3
[T L] B6.9 L] 0.4 ]

186.4 1807 126168 17078 131 T 140.7 103376 14,0284
1IN Cases wAEH dBIvaTRAY filancial EUTETETS 398 QIeTed on & ret hask on i bakincn shee, th SeEeclve BBl amodms o the remed e sl 0 3 H0s bk
rmﬂmdhﬁmmmmﬂﬂ%mmm“uhhaquﬁ*ﬁuﬁpm'lh ll:d'-mmrhmm
thar v cloawed thegh cicher ‘—"‘:ll-ﬁﬂ'hlﬂnln[l:l‘uﬂ'rl: seied DU h
Mnm-mmmﬁﬂm:ﬁhu Bal hmdhmmmmcﬂuﬁ-ﬂ“mM|—m
w{ﬂﬂrnwﬁmmmmunmhqurhmm 4 Inclaes ceriain fswand starting my and seaTsE than are dassiied as
measaied ar ta wrugh profit ar loss and a wog & Inchudes mainly Izan -P!Tﬂ,swiul.ﬂ'lﬁlp.lduﬂ—n-:dm

derkeriee tinancial mhlhdlﬁﬂna:ﬂ thee fail arki Derseen made daie and woiiner ding s eagniad as deivache firandal ismaners. & Defvatie Haancil asas and Razdies am
presenred net on 1he balanoe sheer FUES AG has the uscnditonal and legally enfoscsable right 1o offen the secgaized amounts, totb in e sommal coarse of busess and in the sene of delak, tantsapicy o
indeency of the enthy and 2l of e coummiganies, and inmnds sither 10 semle on & rex asis of 00 malte the asset and seike 1he Rabdiy simuhascossly. Aefor m Kot 32 for mose information: on mewing
ATAENRLS.

On a notional amount basis, approximately 55% of OTC interest rate contracts held as of 31 Decernber 2024
(31 December 2023: 51%) mature within one year, 27% (31 December 2023: 30%) within one to five years and 18%
{31 December 2023: 19%) after five years.
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Mote 11 Derivative instruments (continuad)

Motional amounts of interest rate contracts cleared through either a central counterparty or an exchange that are legally
settled or economically net settled on a daily basis are presented under Other notional amournts in the table above and
are categorized into maturity buckets on the basis of contractual maturities of the cleared underying derivative contracts.
Other notional amounts related to interest rate contracts increased by USD 3.1tm compared with 31 December 2023,
mainly reflecting the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG, and higher business volume in the Investrent Bank, partly
offset by unwinding activities in Mon-core and Legacy.

Note 12 Property, equipment and software

At historical cost less accumulated deprediation

Dwned Laatad
properties and  propeies snd
LS quipsen! equipment? Sotwire 023
w m o e e 8 8t e Bt s 8 £ B £ 8 8o B 8 £ B 8 8 £ 8 o o 8 8 8t £ S s o e e o
Balance al hbegrrhg of the yur 24893

Balance rexogined upoh the merger of UES MG and Credd Subse AG?
Bddition

mummmﬂuw T30 2,058 5,548 o 15,126 13,577
mﬂgﬁmemﬁwMUEmm . 486 435 o 1514

Depreciation &7 713 1437 o 3,1 1,974
e e T - o T s
Wooss/wlealy =~~~ 0000 6. W 00 M 0 0 0 EWm 0 (MW
Lo AU | NSO .. NS -. NSNS S, B 26
Fareign currency translation {a07} [t} (118} o {554} 576
Balance at the énd of the yesr 7500 1,036 6343 o 17,885 15,126
mmm . S, rmaey - re P, . - - T . S, S - v P, tmrmrr ey - .-
e bk vl at the beginnion of the year 3843 2,321 4341 40 11,044 11,316
Mhﬂmﬂthﬂﬂhﬂ 447 814 4412 607" 12,09 11,048
1 nchides btk ] sighal s ammors Ty USE A a5 leswon. UES AG pieSominarmdly emes I kase coRTacts, of cortiacss Mal inckde Ie
hlﬁdﬂnmﬂmldﬂgd‘hﬂrﬂhduﬂdudlmﬂﬂnd‘lmhhhmduhgmlmmimlmmmmwuh“ﬁhmm
Imeses drum financial labiliies b induted sithin Other tinancial Hobiliies mesured a1 amonized st Reke o Mo £ and 19, sepeciely. There wes
m mu@mhﬂaﬂhﬂdmnmnhm 3 Bafer v Moo 2 o o [nfoematian abowt 1hs menger of UBS &G and Croch Sulss AG 4 Includes walle-offs of
tully depreciand mses & The 1ol amant for T patinds e peclams iun.lml:ﬂwluﬂn'ﬂllm & Impad imet changes icorded in 2024 gererally ek
nﬂmd‘mnmhﬂ'mmmmnmhmmm“ﬂmmﬂua dui-in ppsach mas o be m ¥ Comits of USD 315m sl 1o softease and
LS00 291 pefared 1 Cowhed ppetios. and equipmen.

Note 13 Goodwill and intangible assets

Introduction
LBS AG performs an impairment test on its goodwill assets on an annual basis or when indicators of impairment exist.

LBS AG considers Asset Management, as reported in Mote 3a, as a separate cash-generating unit (a CGLU), as that is the
level at which the performance of investment {and the related goodwill) is renewe? and assessed by management. Given
that a significant amount of r?mdml in Global Wealth Management relates to the acquisition of PaineWebber Group,
Inc. in 2000, which mainly affected the Americas portion of the business, this goodwill remains separately monitored by
the Americas, despite the formation of Global Wealth Management in 2018, Therefore, goodwill for Global Wealth
Management is smaralz;; considered for impairment at the level of two CGUs: Americas, and Switzedand and
International {consisting of EMEA, Asia Pacific and Global).

The impairment test is performed for each CGU to which goodwill is allocated by comparing the recoverable amount
with the carrying amount of the respective CGU. UBS AG determines the recoverable amount of the respective CGlUs
based on their value in use. An impairment charge is recognized if the camying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.
Upan the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG in May 2024, an existing goodwill balance of USD 0.5bn in Personal
& Corporate Banking was transferred to UBS AG. This goodwill balance was included in the impairment test as of
31 December 2024.

¥ Refer 1o Note 2 for more information about the merger of UBS AG and Credit Sulsse AG
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MNote 13 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

As of 31 Decernber 2024, total goodwil recognized on the balance sheet was USD 6.5bn, of which USD 3.7bn was
carried by the Global Wealth Management Americas CGU, USD 1.2bn was carried by the Global Wealth Management
Switzerland and International CGU, USD 1.1bn was camied by Asset Management and USD 0.5bn was carried by Personal
& Corporate Banking. Based on the impairment testing methodology described below, UBS AG conduded that the
goodwill balances as of 31 December 2024 allocated to these CGUs were not impaired. For each of the CGUs, the
recoverable amount substantially exceeded the carrying value as of 31 December 2024, and there was no indication of
a significant risk of goodwill impairment based on the testing performed as of 31 December 2024.

Methodology for goodwill impairment testing

The recoverable amounts are determined using a discounted cash flow model, which has been adapted to use inputs
that consider features of the banking business and its regulatory environment. The recoverable amount of a CGU is the
surn of the discounted eamings attributable to shareholders from the first three forecast years and the terminal value,
adjusted for the effect of the capital assumed to be needed over the next three years and to support growth beyond that
period. The terminal value, which covers all r|3|=_briu:3-::|s beyond the third year, is caloulated on the basis of the forecast of
the third-year profit, the discount rate and the long-term growth rate, as well as the implied perpetual capital growth.
For the Global Wealth Management Americas CGU, the methodology is consistently applied, but the forecast period
covers five years (with a terminal value thereafter) in order to provide for the CGU's specific planning assumptions, namely
the ongoing investments in the core banking infrastructure in the US to enhance the product capabilities and offerings
in this rmarket in the medium term. The extended forecast period of five years did not trigger, defer or avoid an impairment
of goodwill as of 31 Decernber 2024,

The carrying amount for each CGU is determined by reference to UBS's equity attribution framework. Within this
framework, UBS attributes equity to the businesses on the basis of their risk-weighted assets and leverage ratio
denominator (both metrics include resource allocations from Group functions to the business divisions), or by their
common equity tier 1 {CET1) capital equivalent of risk-based capital if higher, their goodwill and their intangible assets,
as well as attributed equity related to certain CET1 capital deduction items. The frarework is primarily used for the
purpose of measuring the performance of the businesses and indudes certain management assumptions. Attributed
equity is equal to the capital a CGU requires to conduct its business and is currently considered a reasonable
approsimation of the carmying amount of the CGUs. The attributed equity methodology is also applied in the business
planning process, the inputs from which are used in calculating the recoverable amounts of the respective CGLL

Assumptions

Valuation parameters used within UBS AG's impairment test model are linked to external market information, where
applicable. The moded used to determine the recoverable amount is most sensitive to changes in the forecast eamings
available to shareholders in years one to three, to changes in the discount rates and to changes in the long-term growth
rate. The applied long-term growth rate is based on long-term economic growth rates for different regions worldwide.
Earnings available to shareholders are estimated on the basis of forecast results, which are part of the business plan
approved by the Board of Directors.

The discount rates are deterrnined by applying a capital asset pricing model-based approach, as well as considering
quantitative and qualitative inputs from both internal and external analysts and the view of management. They also take
into account regional differences in risk-free rates at the level of the individual CGUs. In line with discount rates, long-
term growth rates are determined at the regional level based on nominal GDP growth rate forecasts.

Key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amounts of each CGU are tested for sensitivity by applying a
reasonably possible change to those assumptions. Forecast earnings available to shareholders were changed by 20%,
the discount rates were changed by 1.5 percentage points, and the long-term growth rates were changed by
0.75 percentage points. Under all scenarios, reasonably possible changes in key assumptions did not result in an
impairment of goodwill or intangible assets reported by Global Wealth Management Americas, Global Wealth
Management Switzerland and International, and Asset Management.

If the estimated earnings and other assurnptions in future periods deviate from the current outlook, the value of goodwill
attributable to Global Wealth Management Americas, Global Wealth Management Switzerland and Intermational, and
Asset Management mar become impaired in the future, giving rise to losses in the income staternent. Recognition of any
irmpairment of goodwill would reduce IFRS Accounting Standards equity and net profit. It would not affect cash flows
and, as goodwill is required to be deducted from capital under the Basel Il capital framework, no effect would be
expected on UBS AG's capital ratios.

Discount and growth rates

Discount rates Goorwth rales
31224 31213 iz 1223
a5 a5 18 EE]
................................................................ e T
G “an 3 5
i =
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Note 13 Goodwill and intangible assets (continuad)

LS
Balance at the beginning of the pear

Acomulsed smotizaion wdivsiment
Bucestebegpngolegeer 0 M3

25 |
E

1 Imtangible assets mainly inchide cesmome sfatonsips, oon deposits, conmactual rights and the fally amanized banch reowork imiangible asset reoognized in cosnedion with T aoguisition of Pale\ebber
Group, IncC in 20000 Rrler oo Koo 2 for mon inlermation about s mesger of UBS &5 and Crodit Suiee &5 jmhmmdﬁmm;huﬂmuﬂn.dmmhﬁw
encivies that hase boen disposed of, 4 In 024, cenain intangible e were edassified m Ames of dkposl qroup held for sie. Eefer 1o Mote 19 for mom inlermation.

The table below presents estimated aggregated amortization expenses for intangible assets.

LS Frengithe assen

Mote 14 Other assets

a) Other financial assets measured at amortized cost

iz 311223

Tetsl ather Enandal assets messured st amertized cost 59,2719 54,334
1 Frecominandy inciudes cich collatnal pasiod o echanges and chaasing howses 10 secum secuilios. weling acisiy teoegh hose coumepartie.

Effective 1 April 2022, UBS redassified a ﬁrm‘fnlb of HOLA finandal assets from Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income with a fair value of USD 6.9bn (the Portfolic) to Other financial assets measured at
amortized cost.
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Mote 14 Other assets (continuad)

The Portfolio’s cumnulative fair value losses of USD 449m pre-tax and USD 333m post-tax, previously recognized in Other
comprehensive income, were removed from equity and adjusted against the value of the assets on the reclassification
date, so that the Portfolio was measured as if the assets had always been classified at arnortized cost, with a value of
USD 7.4bn as on 1 April 2022. The reclassification has had no effect on the income statement. At the time, the accounting
reclassification arose as a direct result of the planned transformation of UBS's Global Wealth Management Americas
business, involving significant growth and extension of the business, generating substantial cash balances, with a number
of new saving and deposit products being launched that are longer in duration. Additional lending, and a broader range
of customer segments were targeted. As a consequence, the Portfolio is no longer held in a business model to collect
the contractual cash flows and sell the assets but is instead solely held to collect the contractual cash flows until the
assets mature, requiring a reclassification of the Portfolio in line with IFRS 9 with effect from 1 April 2022,

b) Other nen-financdial assets

LS 1224
Precious el and ether physial commmadilies 7,381
..... e clamd ool oo il P T B B e e

 Clament B assets 1,504

29
Ciher 1,148
Tetal ather Ron-Snamcal asset 17,282

1 Beter v Mote 13 fol mom inlomation. 3 Reter 10 Kime 25 fa1 moe abowt e ag o5l Select Fomtolio Sewiding.

Note 15 Ameounts due to banks, customer deposits, and funding from UBS Group AG

a) Amounts due to banks and customer deposits

Tetal amounts dee o banks and cestomes depodits 772,822 572,393
7 Inclasies cesiomel depsis in UES G lorsty Buanch and UBS A5 Guermsey Buanch placed by UES Smitzedand &G ans UIES Al Smiss Branch on Befall of ther dioms.

Customer deposits increased by USD 193.8bn, with the increase of USD 224.6bn in May 2024 relating to the merger of
UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG. Exduding the effects of the merger, there was a decrease of USD 30.8bn, driven by
currency effects and net nevs deposit outflows mainly in time deposits due to maturities, partly offset by shifts into retail
savings / deposits as a result of the aforementioned maturities.

b) Funding from UB5S Group AG measured at amortized cost

LTS 1
5,051

Tkl funding from UBS Group AG messured at amortized cost™ 107,518 7,282
TFar 31 Doconber 2028, ok S0 6.508 (31 Decemzer 1072 USD 3,600} TRl AIE, pon 748 GOCENCD 01 3 IS0 S¥ERL Of & G 90T, SbRect D Corwersion i oidnaty UBS shass. 3 g coin
o lnger alighie & TLAC hwing & residual materty of ke Than one v and bighemigger Ist-atemsing addidonal ter | cankal inssamens hat aaced o o abgihle when UBS Grosp AG Bisd notior of
BT ,\TnTnlﬁnmgimmsswmm:mmmu‘mmmnﬂuﬁmmmmmsﬁmmmmﬂmuu
ohiigations than ase conradually sisordinaned in right of pagren w2 all other presear and funiss nan-seted nned chiigations of the respecies isuing et AN istmments comtining o TLAC 2 subsidinaed
sinop 11,3020 4 UES AS bas alse meoaaized fending from UBS Gsoup A5 that b designaied ai fair walue. Fofer 1o Kooe 156 Jor mase infonmanion.
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Note 15 Amounts due to banks, customer deposits, and funding from UBS Group AG (continued)

LIBS AG uses interest rate and foreign exchange derfvatives to manage the risks inherent in certain debt instruments held
at amortized cost. In some cases, UBS AG applies hedge accounting for interest rate risk as discussed in item 2j in Note
1a and Note 25. As a result of applying hedoe accounting, the life-to-date adjustment to the carrying amount of Funding
from UBS Group AG measured at amorfized cost was a decrease of USD 5.8bn as of 31 December 2024 and a decrease
of USD 3.2bn as of 31 December 2023_ The movement was mainky the result of the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse
AG.

Of the Total funding from UBS Group AG measured at amortized cost outstanding as of 31 Decernber 2024,
USD 105.8bn pays a fived interest rate and USD 2.1bn pays a floating rate of interest,
3 Refer to Note 24 for maturlty information

Note 16 Debt issued designated at fair value
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Mote 17 Debt issued measured at amortized cost
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LIBS AG uses interest rate and foreign exchange derfvatives to manage the risks inherent in certain debt instruments held

at amortized cost. In sore cases, UBS AG applies hedge accounting for interest rate risk as discussed in item 2j in Note 1a
and Note 25. As a result of applying hedge accounting, the life-to-date adjustment to the carrying amount of Debt issued
measured at amortized cost was an increase of USD 0.0bn as of 31 December 2024 and a decrease of USD 0.4bn as of
31 December 2023, reflecting changes in fair value due to interest rate movernents.

Subordinated debt consists of unsecured debt obligations that are contractually subordinated in right of payment to all
other present and future non-subordinated obligations of the respective issuing entity. All of the subordinated debt
instruments outstanding as of 31 December 2024 pay a fixed rate of interest.

¥ Refer to Note 24 for meturity infarmation
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MNote 18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

a) Provisions

The table below presents an overview of total provisions.

L AL 31233
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Tosal provisions 3191 =M
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The following table presents additional information for provisions other than provisions for expected credit losses.
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Restructuring provisions are generally recognized as a consequence of management agreeing to materially change the
scope of the business or the manner in which it is conducted, including changes in management structures, Restructuring
provisions relate to onerous contracts and personnel-related provisions. Onerous contracts for property are recognized
when UBS AG is committed to pay for non-lease components, such as utilities, service charges, taxes and maintenance,
when a property is vacated or not fully recovered from sub-temants. Personnel-related restructuring provisions are
generally used within a short pericd of time. The level of personnel-related provisions can change when natural staff
attrition reduces the number of people affected by a restructuring event, and therefore results in lower estimated costs.

Information about provisions and contingent liabilities in respect of litigation, regulatory and similar matters, as a dass,
is included in Note 18b. There are no material contingent liabilities associated with the other classes of provisions.

b) Litigation, regulatory and similar matters

LIBS operates in a legal and regulatory environment that exposes it to significant litigation and similar risks ansmt_? from
disputes and regulatory proceedings. As a result, UBS is involved in various disputes and legal proceedings, including
itigation, arbitration, and regulatory and criminal investigations. “UBS", "we" and “our”, for purposes of this Note,
refer to UBS AG and / or one or maore of its subsidiaries, as applicable.

Such matters are subject to many uncertainties, and the cutcome and the timing of resolution are often difficult to
predict, particularly in the earlier stages of a case. There are also situations where UBS may enter into a settlement
agreement. This may occur in order to avoid the expense, management distraction or reputational implications of
continuing to contest liability, even for those matters for which UBS believes it should be exonerated. The uncertainties
inherent in all such matters affect the amount and timing of any potential outflows for both matters with respect to
which provisions have been established and other contingent liabilities. UBS makes provisions for such matters brought
against it when, in the opinion of management after seeking legal advice, it is more likely than not that UBS has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required, and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Where these factors are otherwise satisfied, a provision may be established for
claims that have not yet been asserted against UBS, but are nevertheless expected to be, based on UBS's experience with
similar asserted daims. If any of those conditions is not met, such matters result in contingent liabilities. If the amount of
an obligation cannot be reliably estimated, a liability exists that is not recognized even if an outflow of resources is
probable. Accordingly, no provision is established even if the potential outflow of resources with respect to such matters
could be significant. Developments relating to a matter that occur after the relevant reporting period, but prior to the
issuance of financial statements, which affect management’s assessment of the provision for such matter (because, for
example, the developments provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period), are adjusting
events after the reporting period under 145 10 and must be recognized in the finandal statements for the reporting
period.
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Mote 18 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continuad)

Specific litigation, regulatory and other matters are described below, induding all such matters that management
considers to be material and others that management believes to be of significance to UBS due to potential financial,
reputational and other effects. The amount of damages claimed, the size of a transaction or other information is provided
where available and appropriate in order to assist users in considering the magnitude of potential exposures.

In the case of certain matters below, we state that we have established a provision, and for the other matters, we make
no such statement. When we make this statement and we expect disclosure of the amount of a provision to prejudice
seriously our position with other parties in the matter because it would reveal what UBS believes to be the probable and
reliably estimable outflow, we do not disclose that amount. In some cases we are subject to confidentiality obligations
that preclude such disdosure. With respect to the matters for which we do not state whether we have established a
provision, either: {a) we have not established a provision; or (b) we have established a provision but expect dischosure of
that fact to prejudice seriously our position with other parties in the matter because it would reveal the fact that UBS
believes an outflow of resources to be probabde and reliably estimable.

With respect to certain litigation, regulatory and similar matters for which we have established provisions, we are able to
estimate the expected tirming of outflows. However, the aggregate amount of the expected outflows for those matters
for which we are able to estimate expected timing is immaterial relative to our current and expected levels of liquidity
over the relevant time periods.

The aggregate amount provisioned for litigation, regulatory and similar matters as a class is disclosed in the *Provisions”
table in Note 18a above. UBS provides bedow an estimate of the aggregate liability for its litigation, requlatory and similar
matters as a dass of contingent liabilities. Estimates of contingent liabilities are inherently imprecise and uncertain as
these estimates require UBS to make speculative legal assessments as to claims and proceedings that involve unigue fact
patterns or novel legal theories, that have not yet been initiated or are at early stages of adjudication, or as to which
alleged darmages have not been quantified by the daimants. Taking into account these uncertainties and the other factors
described herein, UBS estimates the future losses that could arise from litigation, regulatory and similar matters disclosed
below for which an estimate is possible, that are not covered by existing provisions are in the range of USD Obn to
UsD 3.7bn.

Litigation, regulatory and similar matters may also result in non-monetary penalties and consequences. A guilty plea to,
or conviction of, a crime could have materal consequences for UBS. Resolution of regulatory proceedings may require
LIBS to obtain waivers of regulatory disqualifications to maintain certain operations, g entitle requlatory authorities to
limit, suspend o terminate licenses and regulatory authorizations, and may permit financial market utilities to limit,

suspend or terminate UBS's participation in such utilities. Failure to obtain such waivers, or any limitation, suspension or
termination of licenses, authorizations or participations, could have material consequences for UBS.

Provisions for litigation, regulatory and similar matters by business division and in Group lemst
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1. Inquiries regarding cross-border wealth management businesses

Tax and regulatory authorities in a number of countries have made inguiries, served requests for information or examined
employees located in their respective jurisdictions relating to the cross-border wealth management services provided by
UBS and other finandial institutions. Credit Suisse offices in various locations, induding the UK, the Netherlands, France
and Belgium, have been contacted by regulatory and law enforcement authorities seeking records and information
concerning imestigations into Credit Suisses historical private banking services on a cross-border basis and in part
through its local branches and banks. The UK and French aspects of these issues have been dosed. UBS is continuing to
cooperate with the authaorities.
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Mote 18 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Since 2013, UBS (France) 5.A., UBS AG and certain former employees have been under imvestigation in France in relation
to UBS's cross-border business with French clients. In connection with this investigation, the investigating judges ordered
UBS AG to provide bail (" caution™) of EUR 1.1bn.

In 2019, the court of first instance returned a verdict finding UBS AG guilty of unlawful solicitation of clients on French
territory and aggravated laundering of the proceeds of tax fraud, and UBS (France) S_A. guilty of aiding and abetting
unlawful solicitation and of laundering the proceeds of tax fraud. The court imposed fines aggregating EUR 3.7bn on
UBS AG and UBS (France) 5.4 and awarded EUR 800m of civil damages to the French state. A trial in the Paris Court of
Appeal took place in March 2021, In December 2021, the Court of Appeal found UBS AG guilty of unlawful solicitation
and aggravated laundering of the proceeds of tax fraud. The court ordered a fine of EUR 3.75m, the confiscation of
EUR 1bn, and awarded civil damages to the French state of EUR 800m. UBS appealed the dedision to the French Supreme
Court. The Supreme Court rendered its judgment on 15 Novernber 2023, It upheld the Court of Appeal’s decision
regarding unlawful solicitation and aggravated laundering of the proceeds of tax fraud, but overturned the confiscation
of EUR 1bn, the penalty of EUR 3.75%m and the EUR 800m of civil damages awarded to the French state. The case has
been remanded to the Court of Appeal for a retrial regarding these overturned elernents. The French state has reimbursed
the EUR 800m of civil damages to UBS AG.

In May 2014, Credit Suisse entered into settlermnent agreements with the SEC, Federal Reserve and New York Department
of Financial Services and entered into an agreement with the US Departrnent of Justice (DOJ) to plead guilty to conspiring
to aid and abet US taxpayers in filing false tax returns (2014 Plea Agreement). Credit Suisse continued to report to and
cooperate with LS authorities in accordance with its obligations under the 2014 Plea Agreement, including by conducting
a review of cross-border services provided by Credit Suisse. In this connection, Credit Suisse provided information to US
authorities regarding potentially undeclared US assets held by clients at Credit Suisse. UBS continues to cooperate with
the ongoing investigation by the DOJ.

Our balance sheet at 31 December 2024 reflected a provision in an amount that UBS believes to be appropriate under
the applicable accounting standard. As in the case of other matters for which we have established provisions, the future
outflow of resources in respect of such matters cannot be determined with certainty based on currently available
information and accordingly may ultimately prove to be substantially greater (or may be less) than the provision that we
have recognized.

2. Madoff

In redation to the Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities LLC {BMIS) investment fraud, UBS AG, UBS (Luxembourg) 5.4
inow UBS Europe SE, Luxembourg branch) and certain other UBS subsidiaries have been subject to inguiries by a number
of regulators, induding the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA) and the Luxembourg Comimission de
Surveillance du Secteur Financier. Those inquiries concerned two third-party funds established under Luxembourg law,
substantially all assets of which were with BMIS, as well as certain funds established in offshore jurisdictions with either
direct or indirect exposure to BMIS. These funds faced severe losses, and the DJ:HrbDLI:? funds are in liquidation. The
documentation establishing both funds identifies UBS entities in warious roles, including custodian, administrator,
manager, distributor and promoter, and indicates that UBS employees serve as board members.

In 2009 and 2010, the liquidators of the two Luxernbourg funds filed daims against UBS entities, non-UBS entities and
certain individuals, induding current and former UBS employees, seeking amounts totaling approximately EUR 2.1bn,
which includes amounts that the funds may be held liable to pay the trustee for the liguidation of BMIS (BMIS Trustes).

A large number of alleged beneficiaries have filed claims against LUBS entities (and non-UBS entities) for purported losses
relating to the Madoff frawd. The majority of these cases have been filed in Luxemnbourg, where decisions that the claims
in eight test cases were inadmissible have been affirmed by the Luxembourg Court of Appeal, and the Luxembourg
Supreme Court has dismissed a further appeal in one of the test cases.

In the LS, the BMIS Trustee filed claims against UBS entities, among others, in relation to the two Luxembourg funds and
one of the offshore funds. The total amount daimed against all defendants in these actions was not less than USD 2bn.
In 2014, the US Supreme Court rejected the BMIS Trustee's motion for leave to appeal dedsions, dismissing all daims
against UBS defendants except those for the recovery of approsirately USD 125m of payments alleged to be fraudulent
corveyances and preference payments. Similar dlaims have been filed against Credit Suisse entities seeking to recover
redernption payments. In 2016, the bankruptcy court dismissed these claims against the UBS entities and maost of the
Credit Suisse entities, In 2019, the Court of Appeals reversed the dismissal of the BMIS Trustee's remaining claims. The
case has been remanded to the Bankruptcy Court for further proceedings.
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Mote 18 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continuad)

3. Foreign exchange, LIBOR and benchmark rates, and other trading practices

Foreign-exchange-refated reguiatory matters: Beginning in 2013, numercus authorities commenced investigations
concerning possible manipulation of foreign exchange markets and precious metals prices. A5 a result of these
investigations, UBS entered into resalutions with Swiss, US and UK regulators and the European Commission. UBS was
granted conditional immunity by the Antitrust Division of the DOJ and by authorities in other jurisdictions in connection
with potential competition law violations relating to foreign exchange and precious metals businesses. In December 2021,
the European Commission issued a decision imposing a fine of EUR 83_.3m on Credit Suisse entities based on findings of
anticompetitive practices in the foreign exchange market. Credit Suisse has appealed the dedision to the European
General Court. UBS received leniency and accordingly no fine was assessed.

Foreign-exchange-related civil itigation: Putative class actions have been filed since 2013 in US federal courts and in other
jurisdictions against LUBS, Credit Suisse and other banks on behalf of putative classes of persons who engaged in foreign
currency transactions with any of the defendant banks. UBS and Credit Suisse have resolved LS federal court class actions
relating to foreign cumency transactions with the defendant banks and persons who transacted in foreign exchange
futures contracts and options on such futures. Certain class members have excluded themselves from that settlement
and filed individual actions in US and English courts against UBS, Credit Suisse and other banks, alleging viclations of US
and European competition laws and unjust enrichment. UBS, Credit Suisse and the other banks have resolved those
individual matters. Credit Suisse and UBS, together with other financial institutions, were named in a consolidated
putative class action in Israel, which made allegations similar to those made in the actions pursued in other jurisdictions.
In April 2022, Credit Suisse entered into an agreerment to settle all claims in this action. In February 2024, UBS entered
into an agreement to settle all daims in this action. Both settlements rernain subject to court approval,

A putative class action was filed in federal court against UBS and numercus other banks on behalf of persons and
businesses in the US who directly purchased foreign currency from the defendants and alleged co-conspirators for their
own end use. In May 2024, the Second Circuit upheld the district court's dismissal of the case.

LIBOR and other benchmark-related regulatory matters: Numerous government agencies conducted investigations
regarding potential improper attempts by UBS, among others, to manipulate LIBOR and other benchmark rates at certain
times. UBS and Credit Suisse reached settlemnents or othenwise concluded investigations relating to benchmark interest
rates with the investigating authaorities. UBS was granted conditional lendency or conditional immunity from authorities
in certain jurisdictions, induding the Antitrust Division of the DOJ and the Swiss Competition Commission (WEKD), in
connection with potential antitrust or competition law violations related to certain rates. Howewver, UBS has not reached
a final settlernent with WEKOD, as the Secretariat of WEKD has asserted that UBS does not qualify for full immunity.

LIBOR and other benchmark-related civl litigation: A number of putative class actions and ather actions are pending in
the federal courts in Mew York against UBS and numerous ather banks on behalf of parties who transacted in certain
interest rate benchmark-based derivatives. Also pending in the US and in other jurisdictions are a number of other actions
asserting losses related to varous products whose interest rates were linked to LIBOR and other benchmarks, including
adjustable rate mortgages, preferred and debt securities, bonds pledged as collateral, loans, depository accounts,
investrments and other interest-bearing instruments. The complaints allege manipulation, through various means, of
certain benchmark interest rates, including USD UBOR, Yen UBOR, EURIBOR, CHF UBOR, and GBP LUBOR and seek
unspecified compensatory and other damages under various legal theories.

USD LBOR dlass and indivicdual actions in the US: Beginning in 2013, putative class actions were filed in US federal district
courts (and subseguently consolidated in the US District Court for the Southern District of New York (SONY)) by plaintiffs
who engaged in over-the-counter instruments, exchange-traded Eurcdollar futures and T1):::‘Iptir.'u"|5, bonds or loans that
referenced USD LIBOR. The complaints allege viclations of antitrust law and the Commodities Exchange Act, as well
breach of contract and unjust enrichrment. Following various rulings by the district court and the Second Circuit dismissing
certain of the causes of action and allowing others to proceed, one class action with respect to transactions in over-the-
counter instruments and several actions brought by individual plaintiffs are proceeding in the district court. UBS and
Credit Suisse have entered into settlement agreements in respect of the class actions relating to exchange-traded
instruments, bonds and loans. These settlements have received final court approval and the actions have been dismissed
as to UBS and Credit Suisse. In addition, an individual action was filed in the Northemn District of California against UBS,
Credit Suisse and numerous other banks alleging that the defendants conspired to fix the interest rate used as the basis
fior loans to consumers by jointly setting the USD ICE LIBOR rate and monopolized the market for UBOR-based consumer
lpans and credit cards. The court dismissed the initial complaint and subsequently dismissed an amended complaint with
prejudice. In January 2024, plaintiffs appealed the dismissal to the Minth Circuit Court of Appeals, which affirmed the
dismissal in Movember 2024,

Other benchmark class actions in the US: The Yen LBOR/Eurcyen TIBOR, EURIBOR and GBP LIBOR actions have been
dismissed. Plaintiffs have appealed the dismissals.

In Movember 2022, defendants moved to dismiss the complaint in the CHF LIBOR action. In 2023, the court approved a
settlement by Credit Suisse of the daims against it in this matter,
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Mote 18 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continuad)

Gowernment bomds: In 2021, the Eurcpean Commission issued a decision finding that UBS and six other banks breached
European Union antitrust rules between 2007 and 2011 relating to European government bonds. The European
Comrmission fined UBS EUR 172m. UBS has appealed the amount of the fine. Also in 2021, the Eurcpean Commission
issued a decision finding that Credit Suisse and four other banks had breached European Union antitrust rules relating
to supra-sovereign, sovereign and agency bonds denominated in WSD. The European Commission fined Credit Suisse
EUR 11.9m, which amount was confirmed on appeal.

Credit Suisse, together with other finandial institutions, was narmed in two Canadian putative class actions, which allege
that defendants conspired to fix the prices of supranational, sub-sovereign and agency bonds sold to and purchased from
investors in the secondary market. One action was dismissed against Credit Suisse in February 2020. In October 20232,
Credit Suisse entered into an agreement to settle all claims in the secand action, which was approved by the court in
Movemnber 2024,

Credit default swap auction litigation = In June 2021, Credit Suisse, along with other banks and entities, was named in
a putative dass action complaint filed in the US District Court for the District of New Mesico alleging manipulation of
cradit default swap (CDS) final auction prices. Defendants filed a motion to enforce a previcus CDS dass action settlement
in the SDNY. In lanuary 2024, the SDNY ruled that, to the extent claims in the New Mexico action arise from conduct
prior to 30 June 2014, those daims are barred by the SDNY settlement. The plaintiffs have appealed the SDNY decision.

With respect to additional matters and jurisdictions not encompassed by the settlements and orders referred to above,
UBS's balance sheet at 31 Decemnber 2024 reflected a provision in an amount that UBS believes to be appropriate under
the applicable accounting standard. As in the case of other matters for which we have established provisions, the future
outflow of resources in respect of such matters cannot be determined with certainty based on currently available
information and accordingly may ultimately prove to be substantially greater (or may be less) than the provision that we
have recognized.

4. Swiss retrocessions

The Federal Supreme Court of Switzerland ruled in 2012, in a test case against LBS, that distribution fees paid to a firm
for distributing third-party and intra-group investrnent funds and structured products must be disclosed and surrendered
to clients who have entered into a discretionary mandate agreement with the firm, absent a valid waiver. FINMA issued
a supervisory note to all Swiss banks in response to the Supreme Court decision. UBS has met the FINMA requirements
and has notified all potentially affected dients.

The Supreme Court decision has resulted, and continues to result, in a number of client requests to disclose and
potentially sumrender retrocessions. Client requests are assessed on a case-by-case basis. Considerations taken into
account when assessing these cases include, among other things, the existence of a discretionary mandate and whether
or not the dient documentation contained a valid waiver with respect to distribution fees.

LBS's balance sheet at 31 Decemnber 2024 reflected a provision with respect to matters described in this itern 4 in an
armount that UBS believes to be appropriate under the applicable accounting standard. The ultimate exposure will depend
on dient requests and the resolution thereof, factors that are difficult to predict and assess. Hence, as in the case of other
matters for which we have established provisions, the future outflow of resources in respect of such matters cannot be
determined with certainty based on currently available information and accordingly may ultimately prove to be
substantially greater (or may be less) than the provision that we have recognized.

5. Mortgage-related matters

Government and requiatory related matters: DO RMBS sattlement - In January 2017, Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC
(CSS LLC) and its current and former US subsidiaries and US affiliates reached a settlernent with the US Department of
Justice (DOJ) related to its legacy Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities (RMBS) business, a business conducted through
2007. The settlement resolved potential civil daims by the DOJ related to certain of those Credit Suisse entities’ packaging,
marketing, structuring, arrangement, undenariting, issuance and sale of RMBS. Pursuant to the terms of the settlement
a civil monetary penalty was paid to the DOJ in January 2017. The settlernent also required the Credit Suisse entities to
provide certain levels of consurmer relief measures, induding affordable housing payments and loan forgiveness, and the
DO) and Credit Suisse agreed to the appointment of an independent monitor to oversee the completion of the consumer
relief requirements of the settemnent. UBS continues to evaluate its approach toward satisfying the remaining consumer
relief cbligations. The aggregate amount of the consumer relief obligation increased after 2021 by 5% per annum of the
w.lll:ftanding amount due until these obligations are settled. The monitor publishes reports periedically on these consumer
relief matters.

Civil litigation: Repurchase litigations - Cradit Suisse affiliates are defendants in various civil litigation matters related to
their roles as issuer, sponsor, depositor, underwriter andfor servicer of RMBS transactions. These cases curmently include
repurchase actions by RMBS trusts andfor trustees, in which plaintiffs generally allege breached representations and
warranties in respect of mortgage loans and failure to repurchase such mortgage loans as required under the applicable
agreements. The amounts disclosed below do not reflect actual realized plaintiff losses to date. Unless otherwise stated,
these amounts reflect the original unpaid principal balance amounts as alleged in these actions.
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Mote 18 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continuad)

DU Mortgage Capital, Inc. (DL is a defendant in Mew York State court in five actions: An action brought by Asset Backed
Securities Corporation Home Egquity Loan Trust, Series 2006-HE7 alleges damages of not less than USD 374m. In
December 2023, the court granted in part DLI's motion to dismiss, dismissing with prejudice all notice-based daims; the
parties have appealed. An action by Hore Equity Asset Trust, Series 2006-8, alleges damages of nat less than USD 436m.
An action by Home Equity Asset Trust 2007-1 alleges damages of not less than USD 420m. Following a non-jury trial,
the court issued a decision in December 2024 that the plaintiff had established breaches of representations and
warranties relating to 210 of the 783 loans at issue. The court deferred decision as to damages, which will either be

d upon by the parties or briefed for further decision by the court. An action by Home Equity Asset Trust 2007-2
alleges damages of not less than USD 495m. An action by CSMC Asset-Backed Trust 2007-NC1 does not allege a
darnages amount.

6. ATA litigation

Since Movernber 2014, a series of lawsuits have been filed against a number of banks, including Credit Suisse, in the US
District Court for the Eastern District of New York (EDNY) and the SDNY alleging claims under the United States Anti-
Terrorism Act (ATA) and the Justice Against Sponsors of Terrorism Act. The plaintiffs in each of these lawsuits are, or are
relatives of, wvictims of various terrorist attacks in rag and allege a conspiracy andfor aiding and abetting based on
allegations that various interational financial institutions, induding the defendants, agreed to alter, falsify or omit
information from payment ressages that involved Iranian parties for the express purpose of concealing the Iranian
parties’ financial activities and transactions from detection by US authorities. The lawsuits allege that this conduct has
made it possible for Iran to transfer funds to Hezbollah and other terrorist organizations actively engaged in harming US
military personnel and civilians. In January 2023, the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit affimed a
Septemnber 2019 ruling by the EDMNY granting defendants’ motion to dismiss the first filed lawsuit. In October 2023, the
United States Supreme Court denied plaintifts’ petition for a writ of certiorari. In February 2024, plaintiffs filed a motion
to vacate the judgment in the first filed lawsuit. Of the other seven cases, four are stayed, induding one that was
dismissed as to Credit Suisse and most of the bank defendants prior to entry of the stay, and in three cases plaintiffs have
filed amended complaints.

7. Customer account matters

Several dients have claimed that a former relationship manager in Switzerland had exceeded his investment authority in
the management of their portfolios, resulting in excessive concentrations of certain exposures and investment losses.
Credit Suisse AG has investigated the claims, as well as transactions among the dients. Credit Suisse AG filed a criminal
complaint against the former relationship manager with the Geneva Prosecutor's Office upon which the prosecutor
initiated a criminal investigation. Several clients of the former relationship manager also filed criminal complaints with
the Geneva Prosecutor's Office. In February 2018, the former relationship manager was sentenced to five years in prison
by the Geneva criminal court for frawd, forgery and criminal mismanagement and ordered to pay damages of
approximately USD 130m. On appeal, the Criminal Court of Appeals of Geneva and, subsequently, the Swiss Federal
Supreme Court upheld the main findings of the Geneva criminal court.

Civil lawsuits have been initiated against Credit Suisse AG and / or certain affiliates in various jurisdictions, based on the
findings established in the criminal proceedings against the former relationship manager.

In Singapore, in a civil lawsuit against Credit Suisse Trust Lirmited, the Singapore Intemnational Commercial Court issued
a judgrent finding for the plaintiffs and, in September 2023, the court awarded damages of USD 742.73m, excluding
postjudgment interest. This figure does not exclude potential overlap with the Bermuda proceedings against Credit
Suisse Life (Bermuda) Ltd., described below, and the court ordered the parties to ensure that there shall be no double
recovery in relation to this award and the Bermuda proceedings. On appeal from this judgment, in July 2024, the court
ordered some changes to the calculation of damages and directed the parties to agree adjustments to the award. The
court ordered a revised award of USD 461m, including interest and costs, in October 2024,

In Bermisda, in the civil lawsuit browght against Credit Suisse Life (Bermuda) Ltd., the Supreme Court of Bermuda issued
a judgment finding for the plaintiff and awarded damages of USD 607.35m to the plaintiff. Credit Suisse Life (Bermuda)
Ltd. appealed the decision and in June 2023, the Bermuda Court of Appeal confirmed the award Bssued by the Supremse
Court of Bermuda and the finding that Credit Suisse Life (Bermuda) Ltd. had breached its contractual and fiduciary duties,
but overturning the finding that Credit Suisse Life (Bermuda) Ltd. had made fraudulent misrepresentations. In March
2024, the Bermuda Court of Appeal granted a motion by Credit Suisse Life (Bermuda) Ltd. for leave to ap;:eal the
judgment to the Judicial Committee of the Privy Council and the notice of such appeal was filed. The Court of Appeal
also ordered that the current stay continue pending determination of the appeal on the condition that the damages
awarded remain within the escrow account plus interest calculated at the Bermuda statutory rate of 3.5%. In December
2023, UsD 75m was released from the escrow account and paid to plaintiffs.

In Switzerland, civil lawsuits have been commenced against Credit Suisse AG in the Court of First Instance of Geneva,
with statements of claim served in March 2023 and March 2024.
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Mote 18 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continuad)

8. Mozambigue matter

Credit Suisse was subject to investigations by requlatory and enforcement authorities, as well as dvil litigation, regarding
certain Credit Suisse entities' arrangement of loan financing to Mozambigue state enterprises, Proindicus S.A. and
Emnpresa Mogambicana de Atum S.A. (EMATUM), a distribution to private investors of loan participation notes (LPM)
related to the EMATUM finandng in September 2013, and certain Credit Suisse entities’ subseguent role in arranging
the exchange of those LPMs for Eurcbonds issued by the Republic of Mozambigue. In 2019, three former Credit Suisse
employees pleaded guilty in the EDNY to accepting improper personal benefits in connection with financing transactions
carried out with two Mozambigue state enterprises.

In October 2021, Credit Suisse reached settlements with the DO, the US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the
UK Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and ANMA to resolve inguiries by these agencies, induding findings that Credit
Suisse failed to appropriately organize and conduct its business with due skill and care, and manage risks. Credit Suisse
Group AG enterad into a three-year Deferred Prosecution Agreement (DPA) with the DO in connection with the criminal
information charging Credit Suisse Group AG with conspiracy to commit wire fraud and Credit Suisse Securities (Europe)
Limnited (CSSEL) entered into a Plea Agreement and pleaded guilty to one count of conspiracy to violate the US federal
wire fraud statute. Under the terms of the DPA, UBS Group AG (as successor to Credit Suisse Group AG) continued
compliance enhancement and remediation efforts agreed by Credit Suisse, and undertake additional measures as
outlined in the DPA In January 2025, as permitted under the terms of the DPA, the DOJ elected to extend the term of
the DPA by one year.

9. ETM-related litigation

XV litigation: Since March 2018, three class action complaints were filed in the SDNY on behalf of a putative dass of
purchasers of VelocityShares Daily Inverse VI Short-Termn Exch Traded Notes linked to the S&P 500 VIX Short-Term
Futures Index {(XIV ETNs). The complaints have been consolidated and asserts claims against Credit Suisse for violations
of warious anti-fraud and anti-manipulation provisions of US securities laws arising from a decline in the value of XV ETMs
in February 2018. On appeal from an order of the SDNY dismissing all claims, the Second Circuit issued an order that
reinstated a portion of the claims. In decisions in March 2023 and February 2025, the court granted dass certification for
twi of the three dasses proposed by plaintiffs and denied dass certification of the third proposed class.

10. Bulgarian former dients matter

In Decernber 2020, the Swiss Office of the Attorney General brought charges against Credit Suisse AG and other parties
concerning the diligence and controls applied to a historical relationship with Bulgarian former dients who are alleged
to have laundered funds through Credit Suisse AG accounts. In June 2022, following a trial, Credit Suisse AG was
corvicted in the Swiss Federal Criminal Court of certain historical organizational inadequades in its anti-money-
laundering framework and ordered to pay a fine of CHF 2m. In addition, the court seized certain clent assets in the
amount of approximately CHF 12m and ordered Credit Suisse AG to pay a compensatory claim in the amount of
approsimately CHF 19m. Credit Suisse AG appealed the dedision to the Swiss Federal Court of Appeals. Following the
merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG, UBS AG confirmed the appeal. In Novernber 2024, the court issued a judgment
that acquitted UBS AG and annulled the fine and compensatory claim ordered by the first instance court. The court of
appeal’s judgment may be appealed to the Swiss Federal Supreme Court.

11. Supply chain finance funds

Credit Suisse has received requests for documents and information in connection with inguiries, investigations,
enforcement and other actions relating to the supply chain finance funds (SCFFs) matter by AINMA, the FCA and other
regulatory and govermmental agencies.

In February 2023, FINMA announced the condusion of its enforcerent proceedings against Credit Suisse in connection
with the SCFFs matter. In its order, FINMA reported that Credit Suisse had seriously breached applicable Swiss supervisory
laws in this context with regard to risk management and appropriate operational structures, While AINMA recognized
that Credit Suisse had already taken extensive organizational measures to strengthen its gowvernance and control
processes, FINMA ordered certain additional remedial measures. These include a requirement that Credit Suisse
documents the responsibilities of approximately 600 of its highestranking managers. This measure has been made
a?gjcable to UBS Group. FINMA has also separately opened four enforcement proceedings against former managers of
Credit Suisse.

In May 2023, ANMA opened an enforcement proceeding against Credit Suisse in order to confirm compliance with
supervisory reguirennents in response to inguiries from FINMA's enforcement division in the SCFFs matter. FAINMA has
closed the enforcement proceeding, finding that Credit Suisse breached its cooperation obligations with FINMA
Enforcement. FINMA refrained from ordering any remedial measures as it did not find similar issues with UBS.

In December 2024, the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (C55F) concluded its investigation.
The CSSF identified non-compliance with several obligations under Luxermbourg law and imposed a sanction of EUR
250,000,
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Mote 18 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

The Attorney General of the Canton of Zurich has initiated a criminal procedure in connection with the SCFFs matter and
several fund investors have joined the procedure as interested parties. Certain former and active Credit Suisse employees,
armong others, have been named as accused persons, but Credit Suisse itself was not made a party to the proceeding.

Certain civil actions have been filed by fund investors and other parties against Credit Suisse andfor certain officers and
directors in various jurisdictions, which make allegations induding mis-selling and breaches of duties of care, diligence
and other fiduciary duties. In June 2024, the Credit Suisse SCFFs made a voluntary offer to the SCFFs investors to redeem
all outstanding fund units. The offer expired on 31 July 2024, and fund units representing around 92% of the SCFFs’ net
asset value were tendered in the offer and accepted. Fund units accepted in the offer were redeermed at 90% of the net
asset value determined on 25 February 2021, net of any payments made by the relevant fund to the fund investors since
that time. Investors whose units were redeemed released any daims Th?r may have had against the SCFFs, Credit Suisse
or UBS. The offer was funded by UBS through the purchase of units of feeder sub-funds.

12_ Archegos

Credit Suisse and UBS have received requests for documents and information in connection with inguiries, investigations
andfor actions relating to their relationships with Archegos Capital Management (Archegos), induding from FINMA
lassisted by a third party appointed by FINMA), the DOJ, the SEC, the US Federal Reserve, the US Commadity Futures
Trading Commission {CFTC), the LS Senate Banking Cornmittee, the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA), the FCA, the
WEKD, the Hong Kong Competition Commission and other regulatory and governmental agendies. UBS i cooperating
with the authorities in these matters. In July 2023, €51 and CSSEL entered into a settlernent agreement with the PRA
providing for the resolution of the PRA'S investigation. Also in July 2023, FINMA issued a decree ordering remedial
measures and the Federal Reserve Board issued an Order to Cease and Desist. Under the terms of the order, Credit Suisse
paid a civil money penalty and agreed to undertake certain remedial measures relating to counterparty credit risk
management, liquidity risk management and non-financial risk management, as well as enhancements to board oversight
and governance. UBS Group, as the legal successor to Credit Suisse Group AG, is a party to the FINMA decree and Federal
Reserve Board Cease and Desist Order.

Cil actions relating to Credit Suisse's relationship with Archegos have been filed against Credit Suisse andfor certain
officers and directors, including claims for breaches of fiduciary duties.
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Mote 19 Other liabilities

a) Other financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

LS
Other sccroed evperdes

Acoedherestegenss

Tetal ather Enandal lisbilites sessured at amortized cost

b) Other financial liabilities designated at fair value

LS EIRFX) 2.3
MIMM&WH—HHMM!&M o L 15322

Funding from VRS Group AG! 5,342 2,350

Total ather Enancial liabifties designated at fair walue 34,041 27,366

1 T Fancing from UBS Goup &G conslsts of subordinaned dete of LIBS &3 and s subsldinies teard UBS Gioup A5 Subordinated delt comssrs of unsscuned det oblig theat s coneractall
inright of pasyreeer 10 all other present and fene o sabordinaned abligarions of die s pective Baiing e

) Other non-financial liabilities
LS A2 EYR W]

Compensation-nelsted Rabidities 5,897 4526

Texal aiher non-finandal lisbilites 1,511 £,682
T Inclazes Tatibties Sor pawall Lo 405 Sraiken vackion, ] RERer 20 SO 29 108 rore IMGImation Ao the ageeseat i 5ol Sec PorTiohs Serecng.

Annual Report 2024 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments 203

476/619



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Additional information

Note 20 Expected credit loss measurement

a) Expected credit losses in the period

Total net credit loss expenses were USD S44m in 2024, reflecting net credit loss releases of USD 63m related to stage 1
and 2 positions and net credit loss expenses of USD 608m related to credit-impaired (stage 3) positions, predominantly
in the corporate lending portfolios.
¥ Refer to Note 20b for more information regarding changes to expected credit boss models, scenarios, scenario weights and the
post-model adjustments and to Note 20c for more information regarding the development of ECL allowances and provisions

Credit loss expense / (release)

LD Sasqes 1 and 2 Sage 3 Total

For the year ended 311224
i M

. = 5
Tetal 153 [ 544
(@

b) Changes to ECL models, scenarios, scenario weights and key inputs

Refer to Mote 1a for information about the principles governing expected credit loss (ECL) models, scenarics, scenario
weights and key inputs.

Govarnance

Comprehensive Uass-functml and cross-divisional QOVEMance ProCesses ane in place and are used to discuss and approve
scenario updates and w:i to assess whether significant increases in credit risk resulted in stage transfers, to review
model outputs and to reach conclusions regarding post-model adjustments.

Model changes

During 2024, the model review and enhancement process led to adjustments of the probability of default (PD), loss given
default (LGD) and credit conversion factor (CCF) models, resulting in a USD 49m increase in ECL allowances. This induded
an increase of USD 68m in the Investment Bank related to large corporate clients and a USD 17m decrease in Global Weealth
hanagement related to lending for ship financing.
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Mote 20 Expected cradit loss measurement (continuad)

Secenanio and key input updates

During 2024, the scenarics and related macroeconomic factors were updated from those applied at the end of 2023 by
considering the prevailing economic and political conditions and uncertainty. The review focused on events that significantly
changed the economic cutlook during the year: the milder inflation cutlook and the start of a ronetary policy easing cyde,
and geopalitical uncertainties, ECLs for legacy Credit Suisse positions were calculated based on legacy Credit Suisse models,
including the same scenario and scenario weight inputs as for UBS's existing business activity.

Baseline scenario: the projections of the baseline scenario, which are aligned to the economic and market assumptions
used for UBSs business planning punposes, are broadly in line with external benchmarks, such as those from Bloomberg
Consensus, Owford Economics and the Intemnaticnal Monetary Fund World Economic Outlock. The expectation for 2025
is that global growth slows due to rising uncertainty, with the prospect of renewed tariff escalation, and a deceleration
in US economic growth. Unemployment rates are forecast to increase somewhat from their 2024 levels. After dedining
over 2024, long-term interest rates are expected to remain broadly stable in 2025. The outlook for house prices
workdwide remains resilient, including in Switzerland.

Mild! debt crisis scenario: The first hypothetical downside scenario is the mild debt crisis scenario. The mild debt crisis
assumes that political, solvency and liquidity concems cause a sell-off of snua‘ei?n debt in emerging markets and the
peripheral Eurozone. The global economy and financial markets are negatively affected, and central banks are assurned
to ease thedr monetary policy.

Stagflationary geopolitical crisis scenario: The second downside scenario is aligned with the 2024 Group binding stress
scenario and was updated in 2024 to reflect expected risks, resulting in minimal changes. Geopaolitical tensions cause an
escalation of security concerns and undermine globalization. The ensuing economic regionalization leads to a surge in
global commedity prices and further disruptions of supply chains and raises the specter of prolonged stagflation. Central
banks are forced to further tighten monetary policy to contain inflationary pressures.

Asset price appreciation scenarfo: The upside scenario is based on positive developments, such as an easing of geopolitical
tensions across the globe and a rebound in Chinese economic growth. A combination of lower commeodity prices,
effective monetary policies and easing supply chain disruptions helps to reduce inflation. Improved consumer and
business sentiment lead to a global economic rebound, enabling central banks to normalize interest rates, which causes
asset prices to increase significanitly.

The table below details the key assumptions for the four scenarios applied as of 31 December 2024,

Scenario generation, review process and governance
A team of economists within Group Risk Control develops the forward-looking macroeconomic assumptions, with a
broad range of experts also being involved in that process.

The scenarios, their weights and the key macroeconomic and other factors are subject to a critical assessment by the
IFRS 9 Scenaric Sounding Sessions and ECL Management Forum, which include senior management from Group Risk
and Group Finance. Important aspects for the review include whether there may be particular credit risk concerns that
mla],r not be capable of being addressed systematically and require post-model adjustments for stage allocation and ECL
allowances.

The Group Model Governance Committee {the GMGC), as the highest authority under UBS's model govermance
framewaork, ratifies the decisions taken by the ECL Management Forum.

Scenario weights and post-model adjustments
Scenario weights, as illustrated in the table below, are unchanged.

However, unguantifiable risks continue to be relevant, as the geopaolitical risks remained high in 2024, and the impact
on the world economy from escalations with unforesesable consequences could be severe. In the near term, this
uncertainty relates primarily to developrnents in the Russia-Ukraine war and Middle East conflicts. Models, which are
based on supportable statistical information from past experiences regarding interdependencies of macroeconomic
factors and their implications for credit risk portfolios, cannot comprehensively reflect such extracrdinary events, such as
a pandemic or a fundamental change in the world political order. Rather than creating multiple additional scenarios to
attemnpt to gauge these risks and applying model parameters that lack supportable information and cannot be robustly
validated, management continued to also apply post-model adjustrents.

Total stage 1 and 2 allowances and provisions were USD 1,110m as of 31 Decemnber 2024 and included post-model
adjustments of USD 235m (31 Decemnber 2023: USD 133m). Post-model adjustments are to address uncertainty levels,
including those arising from the geopolitical situation, and to align Credit Suisse’s rodel results with the results expected
under the applicable UBS madel, after the migration of positions.
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Note 20 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)
Economic stenaros and weights applied
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Note 20 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

¢) Development of ECL allowances and provisions

The ECL allowances and provisions reuu?md in the period are impacted by a variety of factars, such as:

- the effect of selecting and updating forward-locking scenarics and the respective weights;

- origination of new instruments during the period,

~ the effect of passage of time (lower residual lifetime PD and the effect of discount urwind) as the ECL on an instrument
for the remaining lifetime decreases (all other factors remaining the same);

- derecognition of instruments in the period,

- change in individual asset quality of instruments;

- movements from a maximum 12-month ECL to the recognition of Efetime ECL (and vice versa) following transfers
betwean stages 1 and 2;

- movements from stages 1 and 2 to stage 3 (credit-impaired status) when default has become certain and PD increases
to 100% (or vice versa);

= changes in models or updates to model parameters;

- write-off; and

foreign exchange translations for assets denominated in foreign currencies.

The table below explains the changes in the ECL allowances and provisions for on- and off-balance sheet financial

instruments and credit lines in scope of ECL requirements between the beginning and the end of the period due to the

factors listed above.
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- Movements with profit or loss impact. Stage 1 and 2 ECL allowances and provisions increased on a net basis by
USD 530m.

- Merger with Cradit Suisse AG portfolios: Expected credit loss (ECL) allowances and provisions of USD 591m for
performing loans were recognized as of the merger date.

- Net movement from new and derecognized transactions includes stage 1 increases of USD 6m and stage 2 increases
of USD 21m. Stage 2 increases are predominantly driven by expenses on the corporate lending portfolios.

- Remeasurements with stage transfers indude USD 3 1m increases in stage 2, following a number of corporate and real
estate lending credit reviews and transfers to stage 2.

- Model changes: refer to Note 20b for more information.

Movements without profit or loss impact: Stage 1 and 2 allowances increased by USD Sm. Stage 3 and PCI allowances
decreased by USD 379m, mainly driven by net write-offs.
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Note 20 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Development of ECL allowances and provisions
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d) Maximum exposure to credit risk

The tables below provide UBS AG's maximum exposure to credit risk for financial instruments subject to ECL requirements
and the respective collateral and other credit enhancements mitigating credit risk for these classes of financial
instruments.
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Note 20 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

The maximurm exposure to credit risk includes the car arnounts of finandal instruments recognized on the balance
sheet subject to credit risk and the notional amounts for ry.t;?f balance sheet arrangements. Where information is available,

collateral is presented at fair value. For other collateral, such as real estate, a reasonable alternative value is used. Credit
enhancemants, such as credit derivative contracts and guarantees, are included at their notional armounts. Both are
capped at the maximum exposure to credit risk for which they serve as security. The "Risk management and control”
section of this report describes management’s view of credit risk and the related exposures, which can differ in certain
respects from the requirements of IFRS Accounting Standards.

Maximum exposure to credit risk
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Note 20 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

@) Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on UBS AG's intemal credit
rating S{S!E‘ITI and year-end stage classification. Under IFRS 9, the credit risk rating reflects UBS AG's assessment of the
probability of default of individual counterparties, prior to substitutions, The amounts presented are gross of impaiment
allowances.

¥ Refier to the "Risk management and contral” section of this report for more detalls regarding UBS AG™s internal grading system

Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category
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Note 20 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category
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Mote 20 Expected cradit loss measurement (continuad)

f) Sensitivity information
As putlined in Note 1a, ECL estimates involve significant uncertainties at the time they are made.

ECL models

The models applied to determine point-in<time PD and LGD rely on market and statistical data, which has been found
to correlate well with historically observed defaults in sufficiently homogeneous segments. The risk sensitivities for
each of the ECL reporting seqgments to such factors are surnmarized in Mote 10.

Sustainability and climate risk

Sustainability and climate risk may negatively affect dients or portfolios due to direct o indirect transition costs, or
expasure to chronic and acute physical risks in locations likely to be impacted by climate change. Such effects could lead
to a deterioration in credit worthiness, which in tum would have an impact on ECLs,

While sorme macroeconomic indicators used in the current PD models could be influenced by climate change, UBS
currently does not use a specific sustainability and dimate risk scenario in addition to the typically four general economic
scenarios applied to derive the weighted-average ECL. The rationale for the approach at this point in time is the
significance of model risks and challenges in calibration and probability weight assessments given the paucity of data.
Instead, UBS focuses on the process of vetting clients and business transactions, where both physical and transition risks
for selected sensitive portfolios use intermally developed, counterparty level, climate assessment modeds. This review
process mauead to a downward revision of the counterparty's credit rating, or the adoption of risk mitigating actions,
impacting the individual contribution to ECLs.

At the portfolio level, UBS has started to use stress loss assuml;:tiuns to assess the extent to which sustainability and
climate risk may affect the quality of the loans extended to small and medium-sized entities, large corporate clients and
financial institutions.

The tests used were based on a set of assumptions and methodologies from a mainstream leading climate model vendor
and complemented by the Network for Greening the Financial System (the NGFS) (202 3) climate pathway scenarics. Such
analysis undertaken during 2024 as part of a regulatory climate scenario analysis exercise mandated by FINMA concluded
that the counterparties are not expected to be significantly impacted by physical or transition risks, mainly as there are
no raterial risk concentrations in high-risk sectors. The analysis of the corporate loan book has also shown that any
potential significant impacts from transition costs or physical risks would materialize over a time horizon that exceads in
most cases the contractual lifetime of the underlying assets. The analysis and its results are also subject to challenges in
model assumptions, calibration and heightensd model uncertainty, as are other climate models in the novel disdpline of
climate risk modeling. Based on current internal modeling exerdses, this conclusion holds for the portfolio of private
clients with mortgages and the portfolio of real estate financing.

As a result of the aforementioned factors, it was assessed that the magnitude of any impact of sustainability and dimate
risk on the weighted-average ECL would not be material as of 31 December 2024, Therefore, no specific post-model
adjustment was made in this regard.
¥ Refer to the "UBS AG consolidated supplemental diselosures required under SEC regulations™ section of this report for mare
Information about the maturity profile of UBS AG's core loan book

Forward-looking scenarios

Depending on the scenario selection and related macroeconomic assumnptions for the risk factors, the components of
the relevant weighted-average ECL change. This is particularly relevant for interest rates, which can move in both
directions under a given growth assumption, e.g. low growth with high interest rates in a stagflation scenario, versus
lowy growth and falling interest rates in a recession. Management generally looks for scenario narratives that reflect the
key risk drivers of a given credit portfolic.

As forecasting modeds are complex, due to the combination of rmultiple factors, simple what-if analyses involving a change
of individual parameters do not necessarily provide realistic information on the exposure of segments to changes in the
macroeconomy. Portfolio-specific analyses based on their key risk factors would also not be meaningful, as potential

compensatory effects in other segments would be ignored. The table below indicates some sensitivities to ECLs, if a key
macroeconomic variable for the forecasting period is amended across all scenarios with all other factors remaining

unchanged.
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Note 20 Expected credit loss measurement (continued)

Potential effect on stage 1 and stage 2 positions from changing key parameters a3 of 31 December 2024

v
-
-

Sensitivities can be more meaningfully assessed in the context of coherent scenarios with consistently developed
macroeconomic factors. The table above outlines favorable and unfavorable effects, based on reasonably possible
alternative changes to the economic conditions for stage 1 and stage 2 positions, The ECLimpact is calculated for material
portfolios and discdosed for each scenario.

The forecasting horizon is limited to three years, with a moded-based mean reversion of PD and LGD assurned thereafter.
Changes to these timelines may have an effect on ECLs: depending on the cycle, a longer or sharter forecasting horizon
will lead to different annualized lifetime PD and average LGD estimaticns, This is currently not deemed to be material for
EHF_., as a large proportion of loans, including maortgages in Switzerland, have maturities that are within the forecasting

orizon.

Scenario weights and stage allocation

Potential effect on stage 1 and stage 2 positions from changing scenario weights or moving to an ECL lifetime caloulation as of 31 December 2024
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Mote 20 Expected cradit loss measurement (continuad)

Potential effect on stage 1 and stage 2 positions from changing scenario weights or moving to an ECL lifetime caloulation as of 31 December 2003

Peo farma ECL
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alowances and sisusing 4l
preniEion, podifions being
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Frivate dients with maslgage: (133 [FE] [F11] (] 368
Relgtmtefinanciog B B4 o,  ee 1w
ale clieny 52) 11 (252} {125)
Othersegments . Wew e 0Em  0sn o Q&)
Tensl (5804 {395) (1,323} 437 (1,193)
Scenario weighits

ECLis sensitive to changing scenaric weights, in particular if narratives and parameters are selected that are not close to
the baseline scenario, highlighting the non-linearity of credit losses.

As shown in the table above, the ECLs for stage 1 and stage 2 paositions would have been USD 818m (31 December
2023: USD 396m) instead of USD 1,110m (21 December 2023: USD 580m) if ECLs had been deterrnined solely on the
baseline scenario. The weighted-average ECL therefore amounted to 135% (31 Decernber 2023: 146%) of the baseline
value. The effects of weighting each of the four scenarics 100% are shown in the table above.

Stage allocation and SICR

The determination of what constitutes an SICR is based on managernent judgment, as explained in Note 1a. Changing
the SICR trigger will have a direct effect on ECLs, as more or fewer positions would be subject to lifetime ECLs under any
SCENArio.

The relevance of the SICR trigger on overall ECL is demonstrated in the table above with the indication that the ECL
allowances and provisions for stage 1 and stage 2 positions would have been USD 2,234m, if all non-impaired positions
across the portfolio had been measured for lifetime ECLs irmespective of their actual SICR status. This amount companes
with actual stage 1 and 2 allowances and provisions of USD 1,110m as of 31 December 2024.

Maturity profile

The maturity profile is an important driver in ECLs, in particular for transactions in stage 2. & transfer of a transaction
into stage 2 may therefore have a significant effect on ECLs. The current maturity profile of most lending books is relatively
short.

Lending to large corporate clents is generally between one and two years, with related loan commitments up to four
years. Real estate lending is generally between two and three years in Switzerland, with long-dated maturities in the US.
Lombard-lending contracts typically have average contractual maturities of 12 months or less, and incdude callable
features.

A& significant portion of our lending to SMEs and Real estate financings is documented under multi-purpose credit
agreements, which allow for various forms of utilization but are unconditionally cancelable tT LBS at any time: (i) for
drawings under such agreemenits with a fixed maturity, the respective term is applied for ECL calculations, or a masimurm
of 12 months in stage 1; (i) for unused credit lines and all drawings that have no fived maturity (e.g. current accounts),
UBS generally applies a 12-month maturity from the reporting date, given the credit review policies, which require either
continugus monitoring of key indicators and behavioral pattems for smaller positions or an annual formal review for any
other limit. The ECLs for these products are sensitive to shortening or extending the maturity assumption.
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Mote 21 Fair value measursment

a) Valuation principles

All financial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured or disclosed at fair value are categorized into one of three
fair value hierarchy levels in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards. The fair value hierarchy is based on the
transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. In certain cases, the inputs
used to measure fair value may fall within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. For disclosure purposes, the level in
the hierarchy within which an instrurnent is classified in its entirety is based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the position's fair value measurement:

- Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities;

- Level 2 - valuation technigues for which all significant inputs are, of are based on, observable market data; or

- Level 3 - valuation technigues for which significant inputs are not based on observable market data.

Fair values are determined using quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, where available. Where
the market for a finandal instrument or non-finandial asset or liability is not active, fair value is established using a
valuation technigue, including pricing models, Valuation adjustments may be made to allow for additional factors,
including medel, liquidity, credit and funding risks, which are not explicitly captured within the valuation technique, but
which would nevertheless be considered by market participants when establishing a price. The limitations inherent in a
particular valuation technique are considered in the determination of the classification of an asset or liability within the
fair value hierarchy. Generally, the unit of account for a financial instrument is the individual instrument, and UBS AG
applies valuation adjustments at an individual instrument level, consistent with that unit of account. However, if certain
conditions are met, UBS AG may estimate the fair value of a portfolio of financial assets and liabilities with substantially
similar and offsetting risk exposures on the basis of the net open risks.
* Refer to Note 21d for maere information

b) Valuation governance

LIBS AG's fair value measurement and model governance framework includes numerous controls and other procedural
safeguards that are intended to maximize the quality of fair value measurernents reported in the financial statements.
New products and valuation technigues must be reviewed and approved by key stakeholders from the risk and finance
control functions. Responsibility for the ongoing measurement oFtEmam:iaI and non-financial instruments at fair value is
with the business divisions.

Fair value estimates are validated by the risk and finance control functions, which are independent of the business
divisions. Independent price verification is performed by Finance through benchmarking the business divisions' fair value
estimates with observable market prices and other independent sources. A governance framework and associated
controls are in place in order to monitor the quality of third-party pricing sources where used. For instruments where
valuation models are used to determine fair value, independent valuation and model control groups within Finance and
Risk Control evaluate UBS AG's models on a regular basis, including valuation and model input parameters, as well as
pricing. As a result of the valuation controls employed, valuation adjustments may be made to the business divisions’
estimates of fair value to align with independent market data and the relevant accounting standard.
¥ Refer ta Mote 21d for mare information
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

c) Fair value hierarchy

The table below provides the fair value hierarchy classification of finandial and non-financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value. The narrative that follows describes valuation technigues used in measuring their fair value of different
product types (induding significant valuation inputs and assumptions used) and the factors considered in determining
their classification within the fair value hierarchy.

During 2024, and for Credit-Suisse-related assets and liabilities for the period between the merger date and 31 December
2024, assets and liabilities that were transferred from Level 2 to Level 1, or from Level 1 to Level 2 and were held for the
entire reporting period, were not material. As of 31 December 2024, Level 3 assets and Level 3 liabilities increased by
USD 7.5bn and USD 7.0bn, respectively, compared with 31 December 2023, following the merger of UBS AG and Credit
Suisse AG.

Determination of fair values from quoted market prices or valuation techmigues'
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Determination of fair values from quoted market prices or valuation technigues (continued]”
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Valuation technigues

LBS AG uses widely recognized valuation technigques for determining the fair value of financial and non-financial
instruments that are not actively traded and quoted. The most frequently applied valuation techniques indude discounted
value of expected cash flows, relative value and option pricing methodologies.

Discounted value of expected cash flows is a valuation technique that measures fair value using estimated expected
future cash flows from assets or liabilities and then discounts these cash flows using a discount rate or discount margin
that reflects the credit and / or funding spreads required by the market for instruments with similar risk and liquidity
profiles to produce a present value, When using such valuation technigues, expected future cash flows are estimated
using an observad or implied market price for the future cash flows or by using industry-standard cash flow projection
models. The discount factors within the calculation are generated using industry-standard yield curve modeling
technigues and modals.

Relative value models measure fair value based on the market prices of equivalent or comparable assets or liabilities, making
adjustments for differences between the characteristics of the observed instrument and the instrument being valued.

Option pricing models incorporate assumptions regarding the behavior of future price movements of an underlying
referenced asset or assets to generate a probability-weighted future expected payoff for the option. The resulting
probability-weighted expected payoff is then discounted using discount factors generated from industry-standard yiel
curve modeling technigues and maodels. The option pricing model may be implemented using a dosed-form analytical
formula or other mathematical technigues (e.g. binomial tree or Monte Carlo simulation).

Where available, valuation technigues use market-cbhservable assumptions and inputs. If such data is not available, in;:ut;
may be derived by reference to similar assets in active markets, from recent prices for comparable transactions or from
other observable market data. In such cases, the inputs selected are based on historical experience and practice for similar
o analogous instrurnents, derivation of input kevels based on similar products with observable price levels, and knowledge
of current market conditions and valuation approaches.

For more complex instruments, fair values may be estimated using a combination of cbserved transaction prices,
Consensus pricing services and relevant quotes. Consideration is given to the nature of the quates (e.g. indicative or firm)
and the relationship of recently evidenced market activity to the prices provided by consensus pricing senices. UBS AG
also uses internally developed models, which are typically based on valuation methods and techniques recognized as
standard within the industry. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include benchmark interest rate
curves, credit and funding spreads used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, equity index prices, foreign
exchange rates, levels of market wolatility and correlation. Refer to Mote 21e for more information. The discount curves
used by UBS AG incorporate the funding and credit characteristics of the instruments to which they are applied.
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Financial instruments excluding derivatives: valuation and classification in the fair value hierarchy

Product Valuation and dassification in the fair value hierarchy
Governmsent bills Walugtion — Generally valued using prices obtsned directly fram the markst.
and bonds Irstruments nat priced disectly using active-market data are valued using discounted cash flow valuation
technigues that incorporabe market data for similar government irstruments,
Fair walue — Generally traded in active markets with prices that can be obitained disectly from these markets, resulting
hierarchy in casification as Level 1, while the remaining positions are classified as Level 2 or Level 3.
Corporate and Valugtion —- Generally valued wsing prices obtained directly from the market for the security, of similas securities,
municipal bonds adjusted lof seniority, maturity and liguidity.

= When prices are not svailable, instrurments are valued usting discounted cash flow valustion techniques
incomparating the credit spresd of the Bswer of similar e

= For convertible bonds without directly comparable prices, issuances may be priced using & convertible
bend madel,

Faif walle — Generally classified & Level 1 o Level 2, depending mﬂ&pﬁdt&dhgm@b&ﬂmmmm
hierarchy = Level 3 instruments heve no suitsble pricing information available.
Traded loans and Valuation = Walued directly using market prices that reflect recent trarabctions o quoted desler prices, whene svadable.
loans measured at = Whene no market price data it available, loars are valued by relative value benchmarking using pricing
fair value derived fram debl instruments in comparable entities or differant products in the same entity, of by using
a credit defauly swap valustion techreque, which requires inputs for credit spreads, credit recovery ribes
and interest rabes,

- Securtization lending faciities are wvalued wsing a discounted cashflow analyis that incorporates
adjustmerits for any bespoke leatures of the loan and collsteral, Recently oniginated commercial real estate
lnans are measured using & securitization approach based on rating apency guidelines.

Faif walue ~ Irsbruments with suitably desp and liquid pricing information are dassified as Level 2.
hierarchy — Pasitions requiring the use of valuation technigues, or for which the price sources have insufficient trading
depith, are classdied as Level 3.
Inwestment fund Valuation - Predominantly exchal with readily svalable quoted prices in liguid markets, Where market
units prices are not available, fair value may be measured using net asset values (HAWS).
Fair walue ~ Listed units are dasdied &s Level 1, provided there & sufficent trading activity 1o justify sctive-market
hierarchy classification, while othes pesitions are dassilied as Level 2,

~ Pasitions for which NaVs are not available, or whese the unit o undeslying investments ane illiquid, are

classified as Level 3.
Asset-backed Valuation — For liquid securities, the valuation process will use trade and price data, updated for movements in market
securities (ARS) levels beteween the time of trading and the time of valuation, Less liquid instruments ase mastised wing
discounted expecied cash flows incofporating price data lor instrurments of indices with similar risk profiles.
Faif walle — Residential mortgage-backed secuities, commercial morigape-backed securties and other ABS are
hierarchy gererally clesified as Leved 2 when reliable external price quotes are available. However, # significant
inputs are unobsenable, or il market of fundamental data is not availshle, they are classified as Level 3,
Auction rate Valuation = ARS ase valued wilizing & discounted cash flow methodology. The model caplures inberest rate risk
securities (ARS) emanating from the note coupon, credit risk attributable 1o the underying cdosed-end fund investments,
ligquidity rick a2 & function of the kevel of trading valume in thess positiond, and extension risk, a3 ARS are
perpetual insruments that require an assumption regarding their maturity or gswer redemption date,
Faif walue - Granular and liquid pricing information is generally not available for ARS. A & result, thess securities are
hierarchy classified as Level 3.
Exquity instruments Valuation = Listed equity instruments are generally valued using prices obtsined directly from the market.

— Unlisted equity holdings, including private equity positions, are initially marked st thesr trarsaction price
and are revalued when relisble svidence of price movement becomes availshle or when the position is
deemed to be impained,

Faif walue — The majority of equity securities are actively traded on public stock exchanges where quoted prices are
hierarchy readily and regulary available, resulting in Level 1 classification,

= Exquilty securities less actively traded will be cassfied as Level 2, and illiquid positions a5 Level 3.

Financdial assets for Walugtion — The majority of sets are listed on exchanges and fair values are determined using quated prices.
unit-Hnked
inwestment Faif walue = Most assets are classified & Level 1 f actively traded, or Level 2 if trading i not active.
rontratis hierarchy = Irstruments lor which prices ane not readily svalable are classified as Level 3,
Securities Valugtion — Thess indtrurments are valued using discounted expecied cash Plow techniques. The discount rate sppled
financing i based on funding cunves that are relevant to the colateral eligibdity terms.
transactions
Fair walue = Collateral funding curves Tor these instruments are generally observable and, as 8 result, these positions
hierarchy are classdied o Level 2.

— Where the collateral terms are non-standard, the funding curve may be condidered unohiervable, and
these positions are dassified as Level 3.

Brokerage Valuation — Faif value is determined based on the value of the underling balances.

receivables and

payables ;mlrm — D 1o their on-demand nature, these receivables and payables are deemed as Level 2,
ierarchy
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Product Valuation and classification in the fair valwe hierarchy

Finandial liabilities Walustion — The fair values of investment contract labiities are determined by reference 1o the fair value of the

related to unit- corresponding asets,

linked investment

conteacts Fair value = The liabilities thamreehes are not actively traded, but are mainly referenced 50 instruments that are
hiesraschy actively traded and are therelore classified & Leved 2.

Precious metals and Walustion — Physical assets are valued wsing the spot rate obhaerved in the relevant market.

ather physical

commuodities Fair value — Generally traded in active markets with prices that can be obitsined dirsctly from these markets, resulting
hieranchy in classification as Level 1.

Debt igswed Walustion = The risk management and the valuation approaches for these instruments are closely aligned with the

designated at fair enuivalent desivatives business and the underlying risk, and the valuation lechnigues used for this

walue component ane the same &1 the relevant valuation tlechniques deseribed below,
Fair value — The absenvabdity & dosely aligned with the equivalent derivatives business and the underlying risk.
hieranchy

Commercial paper Walustion — Generally valued using discounted cath flow valuation techniques incorporating the spresd of the Esuer

and certificates of of sirrilar issuers over the underlying curency risk-free ourve.

depasit Fair value — Due to the shari-dated nature of the positions and liguid underying pricing inputs, they are generally
hieraschy classified s Leved 2.

Derivative instruments: valuation and classification in the fair value hierarchy

The curves used for discounting expected cash flows in the valuation of collateralized derivatives reflect the funding terms
associated with the relevant collateral arangement for the instrument being valued. These collateral arrangements differ
across counterparties with respect to the eligible currency and interest terms of the collateral. The majority of
collateralized derivatives are measured using a discount curve based on funding rates derived from ovemight interest in
the cheapest eligible currency for the respective counterparty collateral agreement.

Uncollateralized and partially collateralized derivatives are discounted using the altemnative reference rate (the ARR) (or
equivalent) curve for the currency of the instrument. As described in Note 21d, the fair value of uncollateralized and
partially collateralized derivatives is then adjusted by credit valuation adjustments (CVAs), debit valuation adjustrments
(D\As) and funding valuation adjustments (FvAs), as applicable, to reflect an estimation of the effect of counterparty
cradit risk, UBS AG's own credit risk, and funding costs and benefits.

¥ Refer to Mote 11 for more information about derivative instruments

Derivative product  Valuation and cdassification in the fair value hierardy

Interest rate Walustion = Iriterest rate Swap contracts are valued by estimating futuee inesest cash fiows and discounting thase cash
contracis e using & rate that reflects the appropriate funding rate for the position being measuned. The yisld
curves used bo estimate future index level and discount rates are generated using market-standard yield
curve models using interest rates uociated with curent market sctivity. The key inputs to the modek are
iriterest rate swap rates, lonsard rate agreement rates, shori-term inferest rate futures prices, basis swap
spreadk and inflation swap rates.
= Initesest rabe ncontiacts are valued using various market-standand odels, usi that
mmnﬁmﬂﬂmmm wolatiities and mrrdumw g fnpuss
— When the rratu ity of an inberest rate swap of option contrec exoseds the term for which standard market
quiates are absenvable for 8 significant input pasameter, the contracts ane valued by exrapolation from the
last absenable point using standand assumptions or by relerence to another chaervable oomparable input
paramete 1o represent @ suitable peoey foe that portion of the tesm.

Faif walue = The majority of interedt rate swaps are classified as Level 2, as the standard market contracts that form the
hierarchy inpuits for yield cunve model are generally traded in active and choenable rmardets.
— Optiors ane generally ireated as Level 2, & the calibration process enables the model output to be validated
1o sctive-market levels, Models calibeated in this way are then used 1o revalue the portialio of both standand
options and mone exatic products.
— Irrberest rabe swap of optioh contracts are classified as Level 3 when the terms exceed standand market-
absenable

quites.
= Exntic options for which appropriate volatility or corelation nput levels cannot be implied from abservable
market data ane classified & Leved 3,

Credit derivative Walustion = Credit dervative contracts are valued using industry-standard models based primarly on market credin
contracis spreadk, upfront pricing points and implied recoveny rates. Where & derivative credit spread is nat directly
waailable, it iy be derived from the price of the relerence cash bond.
= Asset-backed oredit derivatives are valued wing a valustion technique similar o that of the underying
security with an adjustment 1o reflect the funding differences betwesn cath and synithetic form.

Faif walue = Single-entity and portlolio credit dervative contracts are dassified as Level 2 when cedit spreads and
hierarchy recovery rabes are determined from actively traded obse rvable market dsta. Where the underlying reference
namels) are mot actively traded and the correlstion cannot be directly mapped to actively traded tranche
irstruments, thess comiracts are classified as Level 3,
= Aqwet-backed credit dervatives lollow the chasactenstics of the underlying security and are therelore
distributed across Level 7 and Level 3,
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Derivative product Valeation and dassification in the fair vabe hierarchy

Foreign exchange Walugtion = Open spot loreign exchange (Fx) contracts ane vabued using the Fx gpot rate observed in the market.
contracis = Fonward FX contracts ane valued wsing the FX spot rate adjusted for forsard pridng points absened from
standard market-based sounoes.

— Ower-the-counter (OTC) X option contracts are valued using market-standard eption valuation models.
The models wsed for shorer-dated options (Le. maturities of five years of less) tend to be different from
those used for lomger-dated options because the models needed lor lonper-dated OTC FX contracts requine
stditional eonsideration of imerest rate and FX rate inberdependency.

= The valustion for multi-dimensional P options uses a multiHocal volatility model, which is calibrated 1o the
obuerved FX volatilities for 8l relevant P pairs.

Faif walue = The markets for FX spot and FX forward pricing points are both actively traded and obsenable and,
hierarchy therefone, such FX contracts are generally classified a3 Level 2.
= A significant noof OTC FX contracts are dangified & Level 2 as i are derived
M?ﬂﬂmmmmtammmdMMEmkm s mesty

Exquity / index Walustion — Equity forward contracts have a single stock or index underlying and are valued using market-standard
contracis models. The key inputs to the modek are stock prices, estimated dividend rates and equity funding rites
{wehich are implied from prices of fonsard contracts observed in the market). Estimated cash flows are then
discoumed using markes-standard discounted cash flow models wsing a mte that reflects the appropriate
funding rate for that portion of the partialio, When no market data is availsble for the instrument matwrity,
they are valued by extrapolation of svailable dsta, vse of historical dividend data, or use of data for &
redated equity.

= Equity option contracts are valued using market-tandard models that estimate the equity forward level a5
duubedfnreq:gﬂmrdmmard inccrporate inputs for stock valatlity and for comelation
in & basket. The probabibity-weighted expected aption payoll generated is then
discounted wsing rmarket-atandard discounted cash flow models spplying & rate that reflects the
appropriate funding rate for that portion of the portfalio. When volatility, fonward of comrelation inputs are
nat available, they are valued wsing extrapolstion of availsble data, historical dividend, eomrelation or

valatility data, or the eguivalent data for a related egquity.

Fair walue = As inputs are desived mestly from standard market contracts traded in active and chservable markets, &
hierarchy significant proportion of equity fonsand contracts ane classfied as Level 2.
= Equity aption positions for which inputs are derived from standand market contracts traded in active and
observable markets are alio dassified as Level 2. Level 3 positions are thase for which valatiity, foreard or
comelation inpuis ane not obsenable.

Comemodity Walustion - Commodity foreard and swap contracts are measured using market-standard models that use market
contracts fanward bevels on standard instrumernts,
= Commodity option contracts afe rmexswed wing market-standard option models that estimate the
fonsard level & described for commadity farward and swap contracts, incorporating inputs
hrﬂeu:h'ﬂl of the u iredes o Far commod on baskets of commodities
of bespoke gmmﬁmg the ulummﬁdﬁm alusy Irmrpﬁ'mwmhptﬂ for the comelation
betwesn different commadities or commodity indices.

Faif walue = Individual commodity contracts are typically classified a3 Level 2, because active forward and wolatility
hierarchy rraatket data is svailable.
Loan commitments  Valuation = Walued directly usirg market prices that reflect recent trarsactions or quoted dealer prices, where svaiable.
measured at FVTPL — Where no market price data & svaiable, loan commitments. are valued by relative value benchmarking

uging pricing desived from debit instrurnents in comparable entities of different products in the same entity,
of by using & credit defaull swap valuation technigue, which requires inputs for credit spreads, credit
reconery rates and inbenest rates

Faif walue = Imssrurnents with suitably deep and liquid pricing information ane clasified as Level 2,
hierarchy — Positions requiring the use of valuation techniques, or lor which the price sources have insufficent trading
depth, are dassified as Level 3,

d) Valuation adjustments and other items

The cutput of a valuation technigue is always an estimate of a fair value that cannot be measured with complete certainty.
As a result, valuations are adjusted where appropriate and when such factors would be considered by market participants
in estimating fair value, to reflect dose-out costs, credit exposure, model-driven valuation uncertainty, funding costs and
benefits, trading restrictions and other factors.

Deferred day-1 profit or loss resarves

For new transactions where the valuation technique used to measure fair value requires significant inputs that are not
based on observable market data, the financial instrurnent is initially recognized at the transaction price. The transaction
price may differ from the fair value obtained using a valuation technigue, where any such difference is deferred and not
initially recognized in the income statement.

Deferred day-1 profit or loss is generally released into Other net income from financial instruments measwred at fair value
through profit or loss when pricing of equivalent products or the underlying parameters becomes observable or when
the transaction is dosed out.

The table below summarizes the changes in deferred day-1 profit or loss reserves during the respective period.
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Deferred day-1 profit or loss reserves

LS 024 023 022
Fusseoe halasnce &t the beginning of the year 7 422 418
Profit § (o) delensed on new bansaction 44 250 e
el o g h g T
mmi“' statemes 'm o S
Resrve halance &t the end of the year 41 97 412
O credit

Own credit risk is reflected in the valuation of UBS AG's fair value option liabilities where this component is considered
relevant for valuation purposes by UBS AG's counterparties and other market participants.

Changes in the fair value of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss related to own credit are
recognized in Other comprehensive income directly within Retained eamings, with no reclassification to the income
statement in future periods. This presentation neither creates nor increases an accounting mismatch in the income
staternent, as UBS AG does not hedge changes in own credit.

Own credit is estimated wsing own credit adjustment (OCA) curves, which incorporate observable market data, including
market-observed secondary prices for UBS's debt and debt curves of peers. In the table below, the change in unrealized
own credit consists of changes in fair value that are attributable to the change in LUBS AG's credit spreads, as well as the
effect of changes in fair values attributable to factors other than credit spreads, such as redemptions, effects from time
decay and changes in interest and other market rates. Realized own credit is recognized when an instrument with an
associated unrealized OCA is repurchased prior to the contractual maturity date. Life-to-date amounts reflect the
cumulative unrealized change since initial recognition.
¥ Refer 1o Note 16 for more information about debt issued designated at fair value

Own credit adjustments on financial liabilities designated at fair value

Inchuded in Other comprabensive iscome
For the year ended
LD .12 I iz
Russlized gain § flesa) (504 ] 1
Lnweafizad gain ! (hoss) (B} 1BET) ]
Total gain | lessh, bedore tax 341} 1B51) BET
. it secogriond duing ifve penine and dbsclved i the Soaterment of compreteriecome 78 861l BAT
af el recognized doon Bhe merger of LS Al and Ceeolt Suitse AG! (1,016

1 Beter v Motw 2 for mase inframanion aboet the masrger of USS A5 and Credit Suisie AG.

Lo nn nn
Reocgnized on the belance shewt & of #weendofthepeod

Unveskoed ile-w-date gain lfoss) [EE -
Ll O ... SO - ... SN ...
o ot cther nancrin’ abies cbiprated af i ke il 2B

Credit valuation adjustments

In order to measure the fair value of OTC derivative instruments, induding funded derivative instruments that are
classified as Financial assets at fair value not held for trading, CVAs are needed to reflect the credit risk of the counterparty
inherent in these instruments. This amount represents the estimated fair value of protection reguired to hedge the
counterparty credit risk of such instruments. A CVA4 is determined for each counterparty, considering all exposures with
that counterparty, and is dependent on the expected future value of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates,
applicable collateral or netting arrangernents, break clauses, funding spreads, and other contractual factors.

Funding valuation adjustments

Uncollateralized Fvas reflect the costs and benefits of funding associated with uncollateralized and partially collateralized
derivative receivables and payables and are calculated as the valuation effect from maoving the discounting of the
uncollateralized derivative cash flows from the ARR to OCA using the CVA framework, including the probability of
counterparty default. An FVA is also applied to collateralized derivative assets in cases where the collateral cannot be sold
or repledged and in cases where collateral agreements contain optionality regarding the type of collateral that can be
pledged or received.
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Debit valuation adjustments

A DVA is estimated to incorporate own credit in the valuation of derivatives where an VA is not already recognized. The
DVA calculation is effectively consistent with the CVA framework, being determined for each counterparty, considering
all exposures with that counterparty and taking into account collateral netting agreements, expected future mark-to-
market movements and UBS AG's credit default spreads.

COrther valuation adjustments

Instruments that are measured as part of a portfolio of combined long and short positions are valued at mid-market levels
to ensure consistent valuation of the long- and short-component risks. A liguidity valuation adjustment is then made to
the overall net long or short exposure to move the fair value to bid or offer as appropriate, reflecting current levels of
market liquidity. The bid-offer spreads used in the calculation of this valuation adjustment are obtained from market
transactions and other relevant sources and are updated periodically.

Uncertainties assodated with the use of model-based valuations are incorporated into the measurement of fair value
through the use of model reserves. These reserves reflect the amounts that UBS AG estimates should be deducted from
waluations produced directly by models to incorporate uncertainties in the relevant modeling assumptions, in the model
and market inputs used, or in the calibration of the model output to adjust for known model deficiencies. In arriving at
these estimates, UBS AG considers a range of market practices, including how it believes market participants would
assess these uncertainties, Model reserves are reassessed periodically in light of data from market transactions, consensus
pricing sefvices and other refevant sources.

Other valuation adjustment reserves on the balance sheet

s of

LA iz 11223

Credit valsytion adpstments! (125] el

Fusndfing irvd disbit vahuation scfjusssenty {96) [i%:]

Othes aliation aIments e L (2]
Ry W O
af vl model ucestainty ] 423

1 Aaroants do ot indede e aqaing defaulind coumeRanis.
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

e) Level 3 instruments: valuation techniques and inputs

The table below presents material Level 3 assets and liabilities, together with the valuation techniques used to measure
fair value, the inputs used in a given valuation technique that are considered significant as of 31 Decernber 2024 and
unobservable, and a range of values for those unobservable inputs.

The range of values represents the highest- and lowest-level inputs used in the valuation technigues. Therefore, the range
does not reflect the level of uncertainty regarding a particular input or an assessment of the reasonableness of UBS AG's
estimates and assumptions, but rather the different underlying characteristics of the relevant assets and liabilities held by
UBS AG. The ranges will therefore vary from period to pericd and parameter to parameter based on characteristics of
the instruments held at each balance sheet date. Furthermore, the ranges of uncbservable inputs may differ across other
financial institutions, reflecting the diversity of the products in each firm's inventory.

Valuation technigues and inputs used in the fair value measurement of Level 3 assets and liabilities
Fusir ‘vl Range ol inputs
Adiaty Lishilisies EIRFE] 31.12.23

Vahatiohn  uschaerable

vesighied weigited

LD A2 IALI HILM 2D mecheiquels inputfs)’ low  high  svesge’  low  high seerage’
]
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Significant unobservable inputs in Level 3 positions
This section discusses the significant unobservable inputs used in the valuation of Level 3 instruments and assesses the

potential effect that a change in each unobservable input in isolation may have on a fair value measurement. Relationships
between observable and uncbservable inputs have not been included in the summary below.

Input Description
Bond price - Where market prices are not available for @ bond, fair value is measured by comparson with ohaenable pricng data from
eqpuivalent similar instrurnents. Factors corsidened when selecting comparable instruments include eredit quality, matuity and industry

of the lswer. Fair value may be measured either by a direct price comparison o by comversion of an instrument price into &
yiedd {either s an outright yield or a2 a spread to the relevant benchmark rase).

- Fof corporate and municipal bonds, the range représents the range of prices from reference issuances wed in determining
fair value, Bonds priced at 0 are distressed to the point that no recovery i expected, while prices significantly in excess of
100 of par relste to inflation-inked o structured Baiances that pay a coupon in excess of the market benchmark as of the
mmsasurenment dite.

- Fof cedit dervatives, the bond price range represents the range of prices wsed for reference instruments, which are typically
comverted to an equivalent yield or credit spread & pan of the valugtion process,

Loan price - Where market prices are not svailable for @ traded loan of a loan commitment, tair value i measuned by comparison with

epuivalent obssrvable pricing deta for similar instrurents. Factor considensd when selecting comparable instruments indude industry
segmment, coliateral quality, maturity and issuer-specilic covenants. Fair value may be measuned sither by a diect price
comparison of by comersion of an instrument price into a yield. The range represents the range of prices derved Trom
relerence sswances ol a similsr credit quality used o messwre fair value for bans dessified as Level 3. Loans priced at 0 are
distressed 1o the point that o recoveny is expected, while & curent price of 100 represents a loan that is expected to be
respaid in full

Credit spraad = Valuation models for many credit derivatives and other credi-senditive peoducts requine an input for the credit spread, which
s & reflection of the credit quality of the associated referenced underying. The creds spread of 8 particular security i quoted
in relation to the yield on 8 benchmark sscurity or reference rate, typacally esther US Treasury of ARR, and i penesally
expressed in term of bats peints. An incresse / (decraase) in credit spread will increase J (decresse) the value of oedit
protection offered by credit default swaps and ather credit derivative products. The income statement effect from such
changes depends on the nature and direction of the pasitions held, Credit spreacks may be negative where the asset is mare
creditworthy than the benchmark against which the spread & calculated. & wider credit spread represents decreasin
creditworthiness. The range represents & diverse et of underlyings, with the lower end of the ange representing credits
the highest quality and the upper end of the range representing greater levels of ereds risk.

Discount margin ~ The discount mangin (D) spresd represents the discount rates applied to present value cash flows of an asset bo reflect
the market return required for undertaingy in the estimated cash flows. DM spreack are & rate of rates applied on top of &
foating index (e.g. Secured Owernight Financing Rate (SOFR)) 1o discount expected cash flows. Generally, a decresse /
{ircrease) in the DM in solation would sesult in @ highes £ (ower) tair value.

— The high end of the ranpe relates 1o securities that ane priced low within the market relative to the especed cash flow
schedute. This indicates that the market is pricing an increased risk of credit loss into the security that & grestes tham what
is bing captured by the expected cash flow generation process. The low ends of the ranges are typical of funding rates on
etter-quakity instruments,

Funding spread = Structured financing transactions ane valued using synthetic funding cunves that best represent the asets that are pledged
&4 collsteral for the transactions. They are not representative of where UBS AG can lund itsell on an ursecured basis but
provide an estimate of where UBS AG can sowce and deploy secured funding with counterparties for & given type of
collateral The funding spreads are expressed in terrs of basis points, and if funding spreads widen, this increases the effect
of discounting.

A srmall pmgﬂhnn!mmrd debt instnurments and non-structuned foed-rate bonds within financial Rabilities designated
At fair value had an exposure 1o funding spreads that was longer in duration than the actively traded market.

WVolatility = Volatility measunes the variabifty of future peices for a panticular instrument and s generally spresed Bs 8 percentage,
whene & higher number reflects & more volatie imstrument, Tor which future price movements afe more lkely to ooowr.
iodatility is & key input into aption models, where 2 is used 1o derive a probability-based distribution of future prices for the
uniderying instrument, The ellect of volatility on individual pesitions within the portialio is diven primarily by whether the
option contrad is & long or shoft position, In most cases, the Lair value of an option incresses s & resull of an increase in
volatiity and i reduced by & decrease in volatdity. Genesally, volatilty used in the measurement of tair value i derved fram
active-market option prices (relerred 1o as implied wolstiity). A key feature of impled volatlity is the volatilty “smile” or
g™, which nits the efiect of of different strikes @t diffesert implied volatility evels,

- wlmunfhvr?:rutumwd Mmﬁﬂm mhﬂﬂummughlnwum. hmlum. Huuw ! ELiffencas
sy have sigrificantly different implied volatlities,

Recovery rate = The projected recoveny rate reflects the estimated recovery that will be realized given expected defaults; it & an analogous.
peicing input far abe of sovereign credits. Reduction in recovery rates will result in lower expected cash flows into the
structune upan the ult of the instruments. In general, & significant incresse 7 (decrease) in the recovery rate in isolation
wiolld result in significantly haghes / (lowes) fair value for the respective underlying cash security. The impact of a change in
necovery rabe on & oredit desivative position will depend on whether credit protection has been bought or sald. The recoweny
rate is ultimately driven by the value recoverable from collateral held sfier default aoours relstive to the outstanding exposure

at that peint.

Comelation measunes the imerrelationship betwesn the movements of two vanables, It i expressed as & percentage between
—100% and +100%, whene +100% represents pedectly corelated variables (reaning a movement of one varisble i
associated with & movement of the other variabde in the same direction), and ~100% irplies that the vasiables are irverely
cormelated (meaning a movement of one variable B asodated with @ movernent of the other variable in the opposite
direction). The effect of corelation on the messurement of fair value depends on the specific terms of the irstruments being
walued, reflecting the range ol different payolf festunes within such imstruments.

Correlation
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

Input Deseription

Exquity dividend = The derivation of a foreard price for an individual stock or index is important for measuring fair value for fonsand of Seap

yields contracts and for measuring Tair value aption pricing models. The relationship between the current stock price and the
Tarssard price & based on & combination mﬁh&mﬂm%mdmmtmlmnd_mﬂm&umh

redesant funding rates applicable to the sock in question. Dividend yields are generally evpressed & an annualized percentage
of the share price, with the lowest Emit of 0% representing & stock that i not expected to pay any dividend. The dividend
yield and timing represent the most significant parameter in determining fair value lof imtruments that are sensitive 1o an
enuity lonaarnd price.

f) Level 3 instruments: sensitivity to changes in unobservable input assumptions

The table below summarizes those financial assets and labilities classified as Level 3 for which a change in one or more
of the uncbservable inputs to reflect reasonably possible favorable and unfavorable alternative assumptions would
change fair value significantly, and the estimated effect thereof. The table below does not represent the estimated effect
of stress scenarios. Interdependencies between Level 1, 2 and 3 parameters have not been incorporated in the table.
Furthermaore, direct interrelationships between the Level 3 parameters discussed below are not a significant element of
the valuation uncertainty.

Sensitivity data is estimated using a number of technigues, including the estimation of price dispersion among different
market participants, variation in modeling approaches and reasonably possible changes to assumptions used within the
fair value measurement process. The sensit.i-.rig ranges are not always syrmetrical around the fair values, as the inputs
used in valuations are not always predsely in the middle of the favorable and unfavorable range.

Sensitivity data is determined at a product or parameter level and then aggregated assuming no diversification benefit.
Diversification would incorporate estimated correlations across different sensitivity results and, as such, would result in
an overall sensitivity that would be less than the sum of the individual component sensitivities. However, UBS AG believes
that the diversification benefit is not significant to this analysis.

Sensitivity of fair value measurements to changes in unobservable input asumptions!

NI1LM 3233
Ferceable Uniavorable Favorshble Unfasarable
L chenges changes changes changes
Trded loare, loans mesowred nfir valueand quosantees, WS e B &

Sechrities finsrcing vansactions
Auclion rale weciiftied
Bat-barked securities

1 of st and [? detr s mpanied with The 6 by,

g) Level 3 instruments: movements during the period

The table below presents additicnal information about material Level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis. Level 3 assets and liabilities may be hedged with instruments dassified as Level 1 or Level 2 in the fair
value hierarchy, and, as a result, realized and unrealized gains and losses included in the table may not indude the effect
of related hedging activity. Furthermare, the realized and unrealized gains and losses presented in the table are not
limited solely to those arising from Level 3 inputs, as valuations are generally derived from both observable and
unobservable parameters. Assets and liabilities transterred into or out of Level 3 are presented as if those assets or
liabilities had been transferred at the beginning of the year,
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Mote 21 Fair value measuremeant (continued)

Movements of Level 3 instruments

Nuﬂ:; o ibich
Balance at  Efact from Fedntent o
the mesgerol  inchuded in dostuemants Eualence
beginning  UBS AG compre- st at it Translers Transfers  Foreign at the end
olthe  and Credil hesmive s of phe imo  owtel cuwreny  of the
LS period  Suiise AG! income? periad Puschises  Sales lisusnced Seifesents  Level 3 Level 3 iranslalion

For the twelve manths ended 31 Decernber 2024°
Finencial asbets at fair vahas held for
trading

1.8 18 oo a3 0.5

Finencial asbets at fair vahee not held
ot trading

of i Loans
ol duction atesecunitles 12 00 40 {4
. R Eqly anens

M e L L T -

5

g

s
3 E

E

g

ther financial Bskiliies desigrated
at fie value 23 19 0.1 1 0.0

For the twelve months ended 31 Decernber 2023
Finencial asbets at kair vahoe beld for
tradig 15 R T/ LI
o il Ealy Msciments af oy el ee @y 00 &g o8F @ a8 ar
k]
i

T L R—
bods

T A N 1 —

Derivative Bnandal instnaments —

sty

af it indared? e a5 ag

Finencial assets at fair valoe not held

fo bacing o o o1
et 07 w03 a3 {00 00 @4 8i

Diebt issued designaed at fair value 5.2 04 aF 1] 0o a5 33 0.5 L] 8
Other finansial atiliies desigrated at
fair wale

02
L e
i
28
0.8

03 a4 0o oo 1] W—g oo L] 23
7 efer 1o Koo 2 o Mone WRTATon aboat e margei of UBS AL and Cred Sabes AG. | F Nt gains | Ises Nosced It COTpHESTGRT T a0 eogniced It A IIERS ICore and Dol o (Rene i
financial inswaments mesuned an fair valus thiosgh or btz in the Income sunemsent, and abo s Gales § fiosss) fon own avdi os finescial Rabifies desiguated ar fab valis, Befor tae in te Scnemen of
en Income. 3 Tonal Leved 3 assets o of 31 December 1024 sese IS0 B4 Tha (31 Deoenizer 2023 USO 7.3bal Total Lesel 3 Radlfihe: as of 31 Decamber 3024 wease LED 23.4bn (31 Decombe 2003

LD 1
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

h) Maximum exposure to credit risk for finandal instruments measured at fair value

The tables below provide UBS AG's rmaximum exposure to oredit risk for financial instruments measured at fair value and
the respective collateral and other credit enhancements mitigating credit risk for these classes of finandal instruments.

The maximum exposure o credit risk includes the carrying amounts of finandal instruments recognized on the balance
sheet subject to credit risk and the notional amounts for off-balance sheet arrangements. Where information is available,
collateral is presented at fair value. For other collateral, such as real estate, a reasonable altemative value is used. Credit
enhancements, such as credit derivative contracts and guarantees, are included at their notional armounts. Both are
capped at the maximum exposure to credit risk for which they serve as security. The “Risk management and control”
section of this report describes management’s view of credit risk and the related exposures, which can differ in certain
respects from the requirements of IFRS Accounting Standards.

Maximum exposure to credit risk
N2
CM [fﬂw Wu
Collsieralized credit fisk
Masdimum Cash by esquity andd Credit  Guarentess afier collaseral
epare o collaberal debit  Secured by Other derivative andsub-  and cedit
LS credit risk received  instruments  resl emste  collateral  Netling  conlracl paicipationd enhancesels
Fingncial asbets measused ol
fair e on he balence sheet! : S
Financial astets al fair valie
Lheld b rading - debt instomenss®™  Ms ... a5
Derivative Enancial instruments®® JEEA
Brokerage receivables Pt}
Fraarid seac 5Tk aes ai .
hiddl for tradiog — debe instnuments® TiB o1 ns 1.0 41.3
Toral financisl ssets measred 1 fair value 306 [ 6.3 0.0 1.0 156.0 00 [T 9.7
(GUErEnbee o4 [iR] [1R1] [k} L]
31233
Callszeral Credit enhancements Exposure 10
Collaterslized credit sk
Wasdimum Cash by euity and Credt  Guasantess shier collsseral
wposwe o collateral debt  Sacured by Other derivative andauh-  and oedi
LS e credit risk feceived  instruments  esl enste  collateral  Metting  contrecti palicipationd enhenceswsily
Financial asbets measured a1
L L
Finencial asies al Fair vaoe
L |
mmmmmu’-‘ 51 . 91
Gokeagerecshables  ms oms 4
Finencial aseets al kaif valoe fot
hidd for trading — debt insinumentss 460 102 35.8
Totsl financisl susts meeuned o {ait value 43 oo 358 1] LE] 1176 L L] L] 0.8
GLErENlEe o o1 0.0

1 Thit ML SSPOaE: 0 ks & qenerally sgual 10 1he CHTARG amount and subject 1 haige ;e tine with maike movemams. 1 For the puspess ol ik diorsire, oilmeal and dudt Sphamoemom: s
mmﬂdnhm“ﬂwwhmﬁm i Do ot incled lnsedmens fund s & Inchdes USD MEm (31 Deoenier 1023 USD 21m) fair sabses of lean
commitrsnss and S0 20m (31 Decembss 30073 USD 32m) forward siarting irssse rep classifiod as The full comiracieal commimed amoum of forad saming mverss speciass
agrooments [genesally highly colzieralized) of USD 51.56n {11 Deceraber 2073: USD 60.4bn] and desivaiive loan commisments (mosily ssamed)-of USDH 14.8bn, of which IS 20 has been sab-pariicpaned [21
Decamzer 2023 USD .8, of which USD 1.4bn hag been sub-particaated), & pesemsd in Mote 11 wncer notional amauets. 5 The amoum shown in the “Meming® colmn sepeesets th neming potentis mn
moogrized o e hatanos shae. Rofer 1o Mot 22 for mae infomatian, lmunhdn-ﬁlnhﬂrmm-ﬂmh-ﬂmﬁnﬂlm.ﬁlnhln:ldihm-gﬂrnlm
bey ety and delat iretrersents covesbited of smacused inans and neverss oy
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Mote 21 Fair value measurameant (continuead)

i} Financial instruments not measured at fair value
The table below provides the estimated fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value
3.12.24 EIRFFE]

Ca Cariying
_Nm.l'; Fair ulue amaunt Faii walue

sppredsates apprciimates
LD b Tokal fair walue’  Lewell 1 Lewel 2 Lewel 3 Tiokal Tatd fairvaloe'  Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Level 2 Tansl

Iranisdlions measured stamoizedcost 1183 1151 D0 28 04 MBI 741 68T 00 38 15 741

B iy ... N, .. . WL N N N ... S N—_—

oo oo oo 323
bommddmostooiones S W M0 M5 %50 R4 S5

500 M3 04 365

cogt 50.3 0.5 13.2 310 18 57.5 M3 a0 12 296 26 541

Dasschions mtased stamorived cot!l MR 71 00 75 02 MR SE 51 00 04 04 SE
Cash collatersl payabies on deswuasive

Funding from UES Group AG meassred o
amonized ool

Bt e e s i o e oo wa as Cwma eer T ine os sir oo esg
Cther financial Hatilities seauned &1
asonized ool 1749 6.5 el a1 13 179 SE 9.8 0o 0.0 0o 9B

1 Inclaces certaln Trandal inmsnents where the amont b & easmable approdmation of fie i vk die 1o the i Fror thar e dr i pagable on cemand ai
with & semaining manusty (eschading the efecs of cal bk feareres) of thes morhs o lessl. 3 Bachides lares Babifivies.

The fair values included in the table above have been calculated for disclosure purposes only. The valuation techniques
and assurnptions described below relate only to the fair value of UBS AG's financial instruments not measured at fair
value. Other institutions may wse different methods and assumptions for their fair value estimations, and therefore such
fair value disdosures cannot necessarily be compared from one financial institution to ancther. The following principles
ware applied when determining fair value estimates for financial instrurnents not measured at fair value.

- For finandial instruments with remaining maturities greater than three months, the fair value was determined from
quoted market prices, if available,

- Where quoted market prices were not available, the fair values were estimated by discounting contractual cash flows
using current market interest rates or appropriate yield curves for instrurnents with similar credit risk and maturity.
These estimates generally include adjustments for counterparty credit risk or UBS AG's own credit.

— For short-term financial instrurments with remaining maturities of three months or less, the carrying amount, which is
net of credit loss allowances, is generally considered a reasonable estimate of fair value.
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Note 22 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

UBS AG enters into netting agreements with counterparties to manage the credit risks associated primarily with
repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions, securities borrowing and lending, over-the-counter derivatives, and
exchange-traded derivatives. These netting agreements and similar arangements generally enable the counterparties to
set off liabilities against available assets received in the ordinary course of business and / or in the event that the
counterparties to the transaction are unable to fulfill their contractual obligations.

The tables below provide a summary of financial assets and financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements and similar agreements, as well as financial collateral received or pledged to mitigate credit
exposunes for these financial instruments.

LBS AG emgages in a variety of counterparty credit risk mitigation strategies in addition to netting and collateral
arrangements. Therefore, the net amaunts presented in the tables below do not purport to represent their actual credit
risk exposure.

Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements

Aasits nabject 10 netling Snengements
Assets mol
Hetting polential rot recognized on  subject 1o netting
HWetting recognized an the balance shest the balance shest! umngm-uui Tial friets.
Nt assets Hasets afver Total sssets  Total assess
fecog hized consideration whd shef  recoghized
on the of consideration o the
GrOLs Asses Hetting with balsnce  Financial Collsseral netting uﬂu of petting Balsnce
Aol 7112 2 LSO by bedore netling  gross lishiflies sheet  liabilities  received potential bt paleritial ihest
Receivables bos seouriies Fnancing
Iransactions. meatured &1 smortized cost 111.4 133 o8 7 31} s ol o | n3 1183
Dierivative Snandal instnements 178.7 (28 176.1 (135.6) (7 135 103 38 186.4
e L
deivativeingruments! &0 W00 M0 @seh @s w7 1@ 18T M0
Financial assets al fais v
nothelddrwadng o m23 M s: 08 (B3 e 40 A1 952
o it revevse
FapFChane Agredmenty HIRE ] 25 (& el ar Lo La Fad
Tital frss 4445 [iLiETy] 3415 (16640  (147.7) T4 1024 1198 4439
Ag ol T 1223 N0 b
Rscehvables bos seouries fnancing
tnsacions messred stamorized cost | 632 (123 s68 (15 (|3 03 172 [ T—. |
Dierivative Snandal instnaments 1288 (2% 1263 (99.3) (74 7 54 a 131.7
Cash collsteral receivablies on
deivativeinsruments® s 00 35 @ea @S 87 0a I
Finencisl astets at fair vl
notheldorvadng 963 fese) 67 0B We oD S 7L SRR 7. NN, - B
ol etich s
B bl itiacind LX) (et L2 (L8 27 og ad &g 55
Tenal sty 2257 (1043) 1214 (1229 (58 126 BlLS LER| 3M.Aa
1mﬁmdﬂmhmndimmwﬂdwmmmnﬁmnmwmﬁnmnhﬂmmmhmhh
muhtm.ﬁ-:ﬁ;mkmrihﬁllhu&. ;I'lch-sl::uln:sqm:n ru n’uﬁh -"':. d: mlhl@:ﬂ-ﬂﬂslnm:
presiented ia the *herd m‘mm-q emmed in the “Hetting in the Rasilities table presemied Keting In sk cofuman
mmmg&m!p‘:-ﬂuﬂtﬁlu . r"f::!'g mn:n'-':m“nhnhﬂmhhhmﬂgnim

carnespan 10 1he AN0UTs presemted 1or mpurchase agrermenss in the " mmmm ARl e at anoiied and “ber Frendal Fabiies desigrened a fain vl lins in
MH“-LM_I‘. -lTIﬂnnuInMtﬂmMmmmEImmt::hLummmmmm-m;H;nﬂu
withir |egally af in mubsance unger 1S 33 prindizks and tachange-uaded derianives thar ane coonomically seoled on a daily basis.
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Note 22 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreemaents

Liskilities ssbject 40 mtting Smingements
Lisksifitiess mot
Nesting polential rot pecogrized
Metting recoghized on the balence dhest o the baance shest!
et
liabiligies Liskilities
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ligkiftias on the eceonsideration
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Dierivative Snandal instnaments 176.2 (26} 1736 [135.5) (3ma} 1.2
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Mote 23 Restricted and transferred financial assets

This Mote provides information about restricted finandial assets (Note 23a), transfers of financial assets (Note 23b and
23c) and financial assets that are received as collateral with the right to resell or repledge these assets (Note 23d).

a) Restricted financial assets

Restricted financial assets consist of assets pledged as collateral against an existing |iﬂbi|il?' or contingent Rability and
other assets that are otherwise explicithy restricted such that they cannot be used to secure funding.

Financial assets are mainly pledged as collateral in securities lending transactions, in repurchase transactions and in
relation to mortgage loans, which serve as collateral against loans from Swiss mortgage institutions and US Federal Home
Loan Banks, and in connection with the issuance of covered bonds. Of these pledged mortgage loans, approximately
USD 7.2bn as of 31 December 2024 could be withdrawn or used as collateral for future liabilities, covered bond issuances
or used for securities financing transactions backed by available retained covered bonds without breaching existing
collateral requirements {31 Decembser 2023: approximately USD 2.0bn). Existing liabilities against Swiss central mortgage
institutions and US Federal Home Loan Banks and for existing covered bond issuances were USD 48.4bn as of 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023; USD 15.4bn).

Repurchase and securities lending arrangements are generally entered into under standard market agreements. For
securities lending, the cash received as collateral may be more or less than the fair value of the securities loaned,
depending on the nature of the transaction. For repurchase agreements, the fair value of the collateral sold under an
agreement to repurchase is generally in excess of the cash borrowed.

Other restricted financial assets include assets protected under client asset segregation rules, assets held under unit-linked
investment contracts to back related liabilities to the policy holders and assets held in certain jurisdictions to comply with
explicit minimum local asset maintenance requirernents. The carrying amount of the liabilities associated with these other
restricted financial assets is generally equal to the carrying amount of the assets, with the exception of assets held to
comply with local asset maintenance requiremnents, for which the associated liabilities are greater.

Restricted finandal asiets
LoD 3.12.4 31.12.23

Financial asbets pledged & collaseral

Cash snd balances & cenirel banks! B76 09

i st : lﬂifﬂﬁﬂ'ﬂqﬂﬂﬂ?ﬁ,ﬁﬂﬂiﬂf
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Mote 23 Restricted and transferred financial assets (continued)

In addition to restrictions on financial assets, UBS AG and its subsidiaries are, in certain cases, subject to regulatony
requirements that affect the transfer of dividends and capital within UBS AG, as well as intercompany lending. Supervisory
authorities also may require entities to measure capital and leverage ratios on a stressed basis, such as the Federal Reserve
Board's Comprehensive Capital Analysis and Review (CCAR) process, which may limit the relevant subsidiaries’ ability to
make distributions of capital based on the results of those tests.

Supervisory authorities generally have discretion to impose higher requirements or to otherwise limit the activities of
subsidiaries.

Mon-requlated subsidiaries are generally not subject to such requirements and transfer restrictions. However, restrictions

can also be the result of different legal, regulatory, contractual, entity- or country-specific arrangements and / or
requirements.

b) Transferred finandial assets that are not derecognized in their entirety

The table below presents information for finandal assets that have been transferred but are subject to continued
recognition in full, as well as recognized liabilities assodated with those transferred assets.

Transferred financial assets subject to continued recognition in full

il 31224 31.12.23
Carrging smound of Carmying emous of
Comging amourl  assodaled lishile:  Camying asount  assotialed liabilies
o irareslemed recognized o irarbermed recogrined
T o balance thest sty on balsnce shest
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Financil iets atfor valse o hel o g Wl sy b ol of repledgad by e S SR
Cousderparties 2,566 2,12 2,110 1,976
Dbt sepurites casibed ds O Bnancal isels messined af amorid comthamay b e S B AR
seid of rapladgad by countiparties 7,891 7,847 £,299 5,978
Tetsl financisl seis iranslemed 48,588 29,144 52,333 31,278

Transactions in which finandal assets are transferred but continue to be recognized in their entirety on UBS AG's balance
sheet include securities lending and repurchase agreements, as well as other finandal asset transfers. Repurchase and
securities lending arrangernents are, for the most part, conducted under standard market agreements and are undertaken
with counterparties subject to UBS AG's normal credit risk control processes.

¥ Refer to Mote 1a item 2e for more information about repurchase and securitles lending agreements

Financial assets at fair value held for trading that may be sold or repledged by counterparties include securities lending
and repurchase agreements in exchange for cash received, securities lending agreements in exchange for securities
received and other financial asset transfers.

For securities lending and repurchase agreements, a haircut of between 0% and 15% is generally applied to the
transferred assets, which results in assodated liabilities having a carrying amount below the canrying amount of the
transferred assets, The counterparties to the associated liabilities included in the table abowve have full recourse to UBS AG.

In securities lending arrangements entered into in exchange for the receipt of other securities as collateral, neither the
securities received nor the obligation to return them are recognized on UBS AG's balance sheet, as the risks and rewards
of ownership are not transferred to UBS AG. In cases where such financial assets received are subsequently sold or
repledged in another transaction, this is not considered to be a transfer of finandial assets.

Other financial asset transfers primarily include securities transferred to collateralize derivative transactions, for which the
carrying amount of associated liabilities is not induded in the table above, because those replacement values are managed
on a portfolio basis across counterparties and product types, and therefore there is no direct relationship between the
spedific collateral pledged and the assodated liability.

Transferred financial assets that are not subject to derecognition in full but remain on the balance sheet to the extent of
LBS AG's continuing involvernent were not rmaterial as of 31 December 2024 and as of 31 December 2023.
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Mote 23 Restricted and transferred financial assets (continued)

) Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in their entirety with continuing involvement

Continuing imvaolvernent in a transferred and fully derecognized financial asset may result from contractual provisions in
the particular transfer agreement or from a separate agreement, with the counterparty or a third party, entered into in
connection with the transfer.

The fair value and carrying amount of UBS AG's continuing invalvernent from transferred positions as of 31 December
2024 and 31 Decemnber 2023 was not material. Life-to-date losses reported in prior periods primarily relate to legacy
positions in securitization vehicles that have been fully marked down, with no remaining exposure to loss,

d) Off-balance sheet assets received

The table below presents assets received from third parties that can be sold or repledged and that are not recognized on
the balance sheet but that are held as collateral, including amounts that have been sold or repledged.

Off-balance sheet assets received
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i sl et
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Note 24 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

a) Maturity analysis of carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

The table below provides an analysis of carrying amounts of balance sheet assets and liabilities, as well as off-balance
sheet exposures by residual contractual maturity as of the reporting date. The residual contractual maturity of assets
includes the effect of callable features. The residual contractual maturity of liabilities and off-balance sheet exposures is
based on the earliest date on which a third party could require UBS AG to pay.

Derivative finandial instruments and financial assets and liabilities at fair value held for trading are presented in the Due
within 1 month column; however, the respective contractual maturities may extend over significantly longer periods.
Assets held to hedge unit-linked investment contracts (presented within Financial assets at fair value not held for trading)
are presented in the Due within 1 month column, consistent with the maturity assigned to the related amounts due
under unit-linked investrment contracts (presented within Other financial fiabilities designated at fair value),

Other finandial assets and liabilities with no contractual maturity, such as equity securities, are presented in the Perpetual /
Not applicable column. Undated or perpetual instruments are dassified based on the contractual notice pericd that the
counterparty of the instrument is entitled to give. Where there is no contractual notice period, undated or perpetual
contracts are presented in the Perpetual / Not applicable column.

Mon-finandial assets and liabilities with no contractual maturity are generally included in the Perpetual f Not applicable
colurmnmn.

Annual Report 2024 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments 233

506/619



Note 24 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (continued)

EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

EINFe.]

Due
LS

within

1 month

Due between  Due butween

1and 3
sonths

Jand 12
months

Dt betvsen
1 ared 2 yuars

Dt bt
2and 5 years

L

Tenal Tinancisl maets measred o smarized coit

558.4

2

116.2

130.5

1247

Aroums doie from Banks

SRy ol
ey (Al SESel Fddiored A Amoviied casf

ez

N = S
29

L

L.

Total financisl maets measred o lar value through profi o
[

413.2

14.2

12.7

v assets ar K wlue wof teld B tradieg

417

12

&7

Finencial astets measured al far walue Swough other
comprehendiee incose

Tatel non-finandal st

Tonsl ety

0.5
128
98448

(o]

Ligtifisies

Tenal financisl Fabidities meatuned &1 smonized cosl

4539

M5

£ S

Tenal Tinancisl H.ﬁuurrmndlfmdmhaqh
ot o beus'

209.7

6.7

Tatel non-finandal Habilites
Tonel Fablities 1

128

0024

2%

7249

GuaranleE

Forward wtarting mm:ﬂmnnﬂm .

8.7

0.7

oo

Imewueable commited prokong aticn ol exating loams,
Total

1467

1.7

[1]

NArs

Due
LIS B

within

1 masfith

Due between  Due between

1and 3
moiths

Jand 12
months

Diue betveseen
1 o 2 yubrs

Dusé betwesen
Zand 5 yesrs

D wer

Aty
Total financisl maets measred o smartized cost

416.2

25.6

476

5.2

78

A ol dom banks
Loaver At Ahances 10 SuniRens

s

18
1355

as
[y

[

e
and

ad
(123

Ehﬂmmﬂlﬁ?dmhﬂmﬁpﬁu

6.7

14

118

el assets a1 B wlue wof feld B trading

&7

EL)

[

[X]

Finencisl astets measured al fai value teough other
g

01

oo

1.2

17

908

303

435

ol wich sbordinates

Tenal Tinancial Gabilities meatued o st vafue through
polit o bess'
Dot furisee e .uﬁhuh-

250.1
13!
5.2

1.4
e

16

g ME
18

233
230

a3
i

12.7
a7

Twlhhﬁu-

525

7.3

103.8

537

E2E]

E

mmw fervand staring iransscsisns?

Imevocable
Guarnles

Fﬂb\l‘d!.l.li'l] mrqnmu:nﬂmnnuhmﬂrg

a3n

0

B3

SR JOSPON -T J—

L I

T —

2g Bl |o

58

thiagh [ matwrialy diffesear fiom the camging ancam. 3 The notasal ameims mmdated with dekatie lnan conmimens, & wall & foreai sating
ﬁhf:mtwpnhuhnnpﬂmmmmﬂmnuummwhnh:nd:‘ﬂiumnﬂmﬁunmu

ard raTse

Annual Report 2024 | Consolidated financial staternents | UBS AG corsolidated financial staterments

507/619

234



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Note 24 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities (continued)

b) Maturity analysis of financial liabilities on an undiscounted basis

The table below provides an analysis of finandial liabilities on an undiscounted basis, including all cash flows relating to
lurlnr_lpal and future interest payments, The residual contractual maturities for non-derivative and non-trading financial
bilities are based on the earliest date on which LBS AG could be contractually required to pay. Derivative positions and
trading liabilities, predominantly made up of short sale transactions, are presented in the Due within T month column,
as this provides a conservative reflection of the nature of these trading activities. The residual contractual maturities may
extend over significantly longer periods.
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Mote 25 Hedge accounting

Derivatives designated in hedge accounting relationships

UBS AG applies hedge accounﬁnc};mt_r;interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk, induding structural foreign exchange
risk related to net investrments in foreign operations.
¥ Refer to "Market risk” in the "Risk management and control” section of this report for more information about how risks arise
and how they are managed by UBS AG

Hedging instruments and hedged risk

Interest rate swaps are designated in fair value hedges or cash flow hedges of interest rate risk arising solely from changes
in benchmark interest rates. Fair value changes arising from such risk are usually the largest component of the overall
change in the fair value of the hedged position in transaction currency.

Cross-currency swaps are designated as fair value hedges of foreign exchange risk. Foreign exchange forwards and
foreign exchange swaps are mainly designated as hedges of structural foreign exchange risk related to net investrnents
in foreign operations. In both cases the hedoged risk arises solely from changes in the spot foreign exchange rate.

The notional of the designated hedging instruments matches the notional of the hedged items, except when the interest
rate swaps are designated in cash flow hedges after the trade date, in which case the hedge ratio designated is
determined based on the swap sensitivity.

Hedged items and hedge designation

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk related to debt instruments and loan assets

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk related to debt instruments and loan assets involve swapping fixed cash flows
associated with loans to customers {including long-term fixed-rate mortgage loans in Swiss francs), debt securities held,
customer deposits, funding from UBS Group AG, debt issued to floating cash flows by em.u'ing into interest rate swaps
that either pay fixed and receive floating cash flows or that receive fixed and pay floating cash flows. The floating future
cash flows are based on the following benchmark rates: Secured Owvernight Financing Rate (SOFR), Effective Federal Funds
Rate (EFFR), Swiss Average Rate Overnight {SAROM), Euro Interbank Offered Rate (EURIBOR), Euro Short-Term Rate (ESTR),
Stering Overnight Index Average (SOMIA), AUD London Interbank Offered Rate (AUD LIBOR), Tokyo Ovemnight Average
Rate (TOMA), Singapore Overnight Rate Average (SORA) and Norwegian Erona Overnight Index Swap (NOK OIS).

Cash flow hedges of forecast transactions

LBS AG hedges forecast cash flows on non-trading finandal assets and liabilities that bear interest at variable rates or
are expected to be refinanced or reinvested in the future, due to movements in future market rates. The amounts and
timing of future cash flows, representing both principal and interest flows, are projected on the basis of contractual terms
and other relevant factors, including estimates of prepayments and defaults. The aggregate prindpal balances and
interest cash flows across all portfolios over time form the basis for identifying the non-trading interest rate risk of
LIBS AG, which is hedged with interest rate swaps, the maximum maturity of which is 15 years. Cash flow forecasts and
risk exposures are monitored and adjusted on an ongoing basis, and consequently additional hedging instruments are
traded and designated, or are terminated resulting in a hedge discontinuance.

Fair value hedges of foreign exchange risk related to debt instruments

Debt instruments denominated in currencies other than the US dollar are designated in fair value hedges of spot foreign
exchange risk, in addition to and separate from the fair value hedges of interest rate risk. Cross-currency swaps
economically convert debt instruments denominated in currencies other than the US dollar to US dollars. The hedge
designations also involve intragroup debt instruments that are eliminated upon consalidation but FX gains and losses
impact consalidated profit or loss.

Hedges of net investmants in foreign operations

UBS AG applies hedge accounting for certain net imvestments in foreign operations, which include subsidiaries, branches
and associates. Upon maturity of hedging instruments, typically one to three months, the hedge relationship is terminated
and new designations are made to reflect any changes in the net investments in foreign operations.

Economic relationship between hedged item and hedging instrumeant

The economic relationship between the hedged itemn and the hedging instrurnent is determined based on a qualitative
analysis of their critical terms. In cases where hedge designation takes place after the trade date of the hedging
instrument, a gquantitative analysis of the possible behavior of the hedging derivative and the hedged itemn during their
respective terms is also performed.

Spources of hedge inefTectiveness

In hedges of interest rate risk, hedge ineffectiveness can arise from mismatches of critical terms and / or the use of

different curves to discount the hedaged item and instrument, or from entering into a hedge relationship after the trade

date of the hedging derivative.

In hedges of foreign exchange risk related to debt instrurents, hedge ineffectiveness can arise due to the discounting of

:1& hedging instruments and undesignated risk components and lack of such discounting and risk components in the
edged items.
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Note 25 Hedge accounting (continued)

In hedges of net investments in foreign operations, ineffectiveness is unlikely unless the hedged net assets fall below the
designated hedged amount. The exceptions are hedges where the hedging currency is not the same as the currency of
the foreign operation, where the currency basis may cause ineffectiveness.

Hedge ineffectiveness from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in Other net
incoma from financial instruments measured af fair value through profit or lass.

Derivatives not designated in hedge accounting relationships

Mon-hedge-accounted derivatives are mandatorily held for trading with all fair value movements taken to Other net
income from financial instruments measured at fair value throwgh profit or loss, even when held as an economic hedge
or to facilitate client dearing. The one exception relates to forward points on certain short- and long-duration foreign
exchange and interest rate coniracts acting as economic hedges, which are reported in Net inferest income,

All hedges: designated hedging instruments and hedge ineffectiveness
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Note 25 Hedge accounting (continued)
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans

a) Defined benefit plans

LBS AG has established defined benefit plans for its employees in various jurisdictions in accordance with local regulations
and practices. The major plans are located in Switzerland, with smaller plans mainky in UK, US and Germany. The level of
benefits depends on the spedific plan rules.

Major Swiss pension plans

The major Swiss pension plans consist of the UBS Swiss plan and the Credit Suisse Swiss plan, covering employees of
LBS AG in Switzerland and employees of companies in Switzerland that have dose economic or financial ties with
UBS AG, and exceed the minimum benefit reguirements under Swiss pension law. A significant number of employees
are employed by UBS Business Solutions &G and Credit Suisse Services AG, which are subsidiaries of UBS Group AG.
LBS AG, UBS Business Solutions AG and Credit Suisse Services AG each are legal sponsors of the Swiss plans. The
sponsoring entities apply proportionate defined benefit accounting, i.e. the net pension cost and the net pension asset /
liability of the Swiss pension plans are allocated proportionally between UBS AG, UBS Business Solutions AG and Credit
Suisse Services AG based on the aggregated net pension cost and defined benefit obligations related to their employees.
The Swiss plans offer retirement, disability and survivor benefits and are governed by Pension Foundation Boards. The
responsibilities of these boards are defined by Swiss pension law and the plan rules. The UBS Swiss plan covers
contributions for all salary levels. The Credit Suisse Swiss plan covers contributions up to a salary of CHF 144,060
(USD 158,639), and contributions above that salary go into the Credit Suisse Swiss 1e plan, which is accounted for under
IFRS Accounting Standards as a defined contribaution plan.

Savings contributions to the Swiss plans are paid by both the employer and the employee. For the UBS AG Swiss plan,
depending on the age of the employee, UBS AG pays a savings contribution that ranges between 6.5% and 27.5% of
the contributory base salary and between 2.8% and 9% of the contributory variable compensation. Employees can
chioose the level of savings contributions paid by thern, which vary between 2.5% and 13.5% of the contributory base
salary and between 0% and 9% of the contributory variable compensation, depending on age and choice of savings
contribution category. For the Credit Suisse Swiss plan, depending on the age of the employee, UBS AG pays a savings
contribution that ranges between 7.5% and 25.0% of the contributory base salary and 6% of the contributory variable
compensation. Employees can choose the level of savings contributions paid by them, which vary between 5.0% and
14.0% of the contributory base salary and between 3% and 9% of the contributory variable compensation, depending
on age and choice of savings contribution category. UBS AG also pays risk contributions that are used to fund disability
and survivar benefits.

The plans offer to members at the normal retirement age of 65 a choice between a lifetime pension and a partial or full
lurnp sum payment. Participants can choose to draw early retirement benefits starting from the age of 58, but they can
also continue employment and remain active members of the plan until the age of 70. Employees can make additional
purchases of benefits to fund early retirement benefits.

The pensicn amount payable to a participant is calculated by applying a conversion rate to the accurmulated balance of
the participant’s retirement savings account at the retirerent date. The balance is based on credited vested benefits
transferred from previous employers, purchases of benefits, employee and employer contributions made to the
participant's retirement savings account, and interest accrued. The annual interest rate credited to participants is
determined by the Pension Foundation Boards at the end of each year.

Although the Swiss plans are based on a defined contribution promise under Swiss pension law, they are accounted for
as defined benefit plans under IFRS Accounting Standards, primarily because of the obligation to accrue interest on the
participants’ retirement savings accounts and the payment of lifetime pension benefits.

Actuarial valuations in accordance with Swiss pension law are performed regularly. Should an underfunded situation on
this basis occur, the Pension Foundation Board of the respective plan is required to take the necessary measures to ensure
that full funding can be expacted to be restored within a maximum period of 10 years. If a Swiss plan were to become
significantly underfunded on a Swiss pension law basis, additional employer and employes contributions could be
required. In this situation, the risk is shared between employer and employees, and the employer is not legally obliged to
cover more than 50% of the additional contributions required. As of 31 Decernber 2024, the technical funding ratio in
accordance with Swiss pension law was 120.6% at a 0.5% technical interest rate for the UBS Swiss plan and 125.7% at
a 1.31% technical interest rate for the Credit Suisse Swiss plan (UBS Swiss plan 31 December 2023: 119.2% at a 0.5%
technical interest rate).

The investment strategies of the Swiss plans comply with Swiss pension law, inchuding the rules and requlations relating
to diversification of plan assets, and are derived from the risk budget defined by the Pension Foundation Boards based
on reqularly performed asset and lability management analyses. The Pension Foundation Boards strive for a medium-
and long-term balance between assets and liabilities.
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)

As of 31 December 2024, the Swiss plans were in surplus situations on an IFRS Accounting Standards measurement basis,
as the fair value of the plan assets exceeded the defined benefit obligation (DBO) by USD 2,683m for the UBS Swiss plan
and USD 2,474m for the Credit Suisse Swiss plan (UBS Swiss plan 21 Decernber 2023: USD 3,585m). However, a surplus
is only recognized on the balance sheet to the extent that it does not exceed the estimated future economic benefit,
which equals the difference between the present value of the estimated future net service cost and the present value of
the estimated future employer contributions. As of both 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the estimated
future economic benefit of the UBS Swiss plan was zero and therefore no net defined benefit asset was recognized on
the balance sheet; as of 31 December 2024 a net defined benefit asset of USD 17m was recognized by UBS AG for
prepaid contributions held at the Credit Suisse Swiss plan.

The reqular employer contributions in 2025 are estimated at USD 297m for the UBS Swiss plan and USD 200m for the
Credit Suisse Swiss plan.

Financial information
The tables below provide an analysis of the movement in the net asset / liability recognized on the balance shest for
defined benefit plans, as well as an analysis of amounts recognized in net profit and in Other comprefensive income.
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)

Income satement — expenses relssed to defined bemefit plars!

Mg Sdas plare FTRF T JELAF¥I]
Dt — M B

et periodic expensed recognised in met prolit for mijor Swis plans 53 236
Othes plarns
et perindic expenses. recognized in net profit for other plans Fij FE]

Tk ned pericadic exxpensss recognized in et peofit 380 258
1 Befer e Mote 7. J Inchuding Crexdit Sebse A5 from 30 May 2004 5 indleces dffernoes beowesn acial and ecinaied poritmance Jad a0l

Other compreherntie indome — gains | (azses) on defined benefit plans

LD

Major Swiss plans 3.12.24" I.12.13
Other comprahensie income recognized upen the menger of UBS AG nd Credi Suisse AG? ) ) 1.
Romssucartof geloedbanelobionton e JROSR (LS)
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At celing effe exduding maenest expense and fonsion cumency andation 955 1,332
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Oiher plans

Tenal gain J {ledses) recognized in other compreheniive income for other plans B3} (47
Tonal gains / {lesses) recognized in other comprehensive income [53p (103
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The table below provides information about the duration of the DBO and the timing for expected benefit payments.

Major Swits defined benedit pland, A2 311223
Duration of the defined benefit abligation fin yews) [EE DY

Maturity arcihysis of benefits expecied b be paid
LS
Berwelts eopected to be paid within 12menthe .. s B

Benefits eopeectid b be paid between 6 and 11 years ) i M8 4,233
Beswelits expecied 1o be paid between 11 and 16 years 6607 1878
Birselits eopectid to be puaid in more than 16 peers ) ) WEIE 13750

1 T durarion of 1he cetined ereth naligatian IepESenrs & seigned Jweiage aoms te UES and Credi Sukse plans.

Actuarial assumptions
The actuarial assumptions used for the defined benefit plans are based on the economic conditions prevailing in the
jurisdiction in which they are offered. Changes in the defined benefit obligation are maost sensitive to changes in the
discount rate. The discount rate is based on the yield of high-quality corporate bonds quoted in an active market in the
currency of the respective plan. A decrease in the discount curve increases the DBO, UBS AG regularly reviews the
actuarial assumptions used in calculating the DBO to determine their continuing relevance.

¥ Refer to Note 1a item 5 for a deseription of the sccounting policy for defined benefit plans
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)

The tables below show the significant actuarial assumptions used in calculating the DEO at the end of the year.

Significant actuarial assumptions of major Swiss defined benefit plans

% ETRF ¥ TR FFL]
Discount rate 0 148
Ferte of salary increass ’ ) ) 28 136
e of psrain incraie ' ) ) 000 0.00
PR AR g o s

1 Represens welghitd serage acites 1he UES and Crodil 5okt plares,

aned B5 soed 45
Switis mortakity table: BYWG 2020 G with CW 2023 projections 31224 313 iz 12z
Life expesctancy at age 65 for & sale member cumently 214 e 135 235
Life expescisncy al age 65 for & lemale sesher cumently FLT s 52 5.1

11 B33, BWG 20005 with TMI 13T meapecions sak et

Sensitivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions

The table below presents a sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption, showing how the DBO would
have been affected by changes in the relevant actuarial assumption that were reasonably possible at the balance sheet
date. Unforeseen circumstances may arise, which could result in variations that are cutside the range of alternatives
deemed reasonably possible. Caution should be used in extrapolating the sensitivities below on the DBO, as the
sensitivities may not be linear.

Senditivity analysis of significant actuarial assumptions of major Swizs defined benefit plans

Increase | (decrase] in defined benelil atligation
ERFEC] LA FE]
R ) B 57
1893 a7s

L B

LB e
C T

TEs 4

1 T sBRSitRATy analyes o bassd o & chani in obe msamption whils haldieg all other amemprions oo, o0 th Imertepen fendies St the asaimption: o sckited 3 4 1he amemed e of pesion
I W 0% % of 31 Deosmbar J024 and a5 of 11 Deoemiser 2023, 3 dosmasaid dhange i ssamprian & sot applicable.
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)

Composition and fair value of Swiss defined benefit plan assets

1224 EN N ]

Flen auet Flan asset
Faif vl sllozstion % Fair walue location %
Quated

Toal fair walue of plan ausets 947 10,189 35135 100 12,652 6,681 19,333 100
NI ELR k]

Tl fair alue of plan assets 35135 18,333

of Wil imesimants i URT Growe A6

B
Bank acoounts &f U Goug 4G 782 a9

LB GupAGdiieigunets e B e o .
L Gy A shaver & 2
mmumsmpm e 467

. &m .u: R -

L #Hu-lﬂ'lﬂﬂ Gmn; e e
AF (&) £k
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b) Defined contribution plans

UBS AG sponsors several defined contribution plans, with the most significant plans in the US and the UK. UBS AG's
obligation is limited to its contributions made in accordance with each plan, which may include direct contributions and
matching contributions. Employer contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense and were
LI5S0 408m in 2024 and USD 320m in 2023.

¥ Refier to Mote 6 for more informethon
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Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans (continued)

) Related-party disclosure

LBS AG is the principal provider of banking services for the pension funds of UBS and Credit Suisse in Switzerland. In this
capacity, UBS AG is engaged to execute most of the pension funds' banking activities. These activities can include, but
are not limited to, investment management fees, trading, securities lending and borrowing and derivative transactions.
The non-Swiss UBS AG pension funds do not have a similar banking relationship with UBS AG. During 2024, UBS AG
receivad USD 25m in fees for banking services from the major UBS AG plans (2023: USD 20m). As of 31 December 2024,
the Swiss, UK and US post-employrent benefit plans held USD 378m in UBS shares (31 December 2023 USD 3%6m).

¥ Refer to the "Composition and fair value of Swiss defined benefit plan assets™ table in Note 26a for more information about fair

value of investments in UBS AG and UBS Group AG instrumenits held by the major Swiss pension funds

Note 27 Employee benefits: variable compensation

a) Plans offered

LBS has several share-based and other deferred compensation plans that align the interests of Group Executive Board
(GEB) members and other employees with the interests of investors,

Share-based awards are granted in the form of notional shares and, where permitted, carry a dividend equivalent that rmay be
paid in notional shares or cash. Awards are settled by delivering UBS shares at vesting, except in jurisdictions where this is not
perrnitted for legal or tax reasons.

Deferred compensation awards are generally forfeitable upon, among other circumstances, voluntary termination of
employment with UBS. These compensation plans are also designed to meet regulatory requirements and include special
provisions for regulated employees. For the majority of variable compensation awards granted under such plans to
employees of UBS AG, the grantor entity is UBS Group AG. Expenses associated with these awards are charged by UBS
Group AG to UBS AG. For the purpose of this Mote, references to shares refer to UBS Group AG shares.

The most significant deferred compensation plans are desoribed below.
¥ Refer to Note 1aitem 4 for a description of the stcounting policy related to share-based and other deferred compensation plans

Mandatory deferred compensation plans

Long-Termn Incentive Plan
The Long-Term Incentive Plan (the LTIF) is a mandatory deferral plan for GEB members and Managing Directors (MDs)
reporting to the GEB and their direct reports at MD level.

The number of notional shares delivered at vesting depends on two equally weighted performance metrics over a three-
year performance perod: return on common egquity tier 1 (CET1) capital and relative total shareholder return (TSR), which
compares the TSR of UBS with the TSR of an index consisting of listed Global Systerically Important Banks as determined
by the Finandal Stability Board {excluding UBS). The final number of shares vest ower three years following the
performance period for GEB members and cliff vest in the year following the performance period for selected senior
management.

Equity Ownership Flan / Fund Ownership Plan
The Equity Ownership Plan {the EOP) is the deferred share-based compensation plan for employees whose deferral is not
within the scope of the LTIP. EOP awards generally vest over three years,

Certain Asset Management employees receive some or all of their EOP in the form of notional funds (Fund Cwnership
Plan or FOP, previously named A EOP). This plan is generally delivered in cash and vests over three years. The amount
delivered depends on the value of the underlying investment funds at the time of vesting.

Deferred Contingent Capital Plan

The Deferred Contingent Capital Plan (the DCCP) is a deferred compensation plan for all employees who are subject to
deferral requiremnents. Such employees are awarded notional additional tier 1 (AT1) capital instruments, which, at the
discretion of UBS, can be settled in cash or a perpetual, marketable AT1 capital instrument. DCCP awards generally bear
notional interest paid annually (except for certain regulated emplovess) and vest in full after five years. Awards are
forfeited if a viability event ocours (i.e. if the Swiss Finandal Market Supenisory Authority (FINMA) notifies the firm that
the DCCP awards must be written down to mitigate the risk of insolvency, bankruptoy or failure of UBS) or if the firm
receives a commitment of extraordinary support from the public sector that is necessary to prevent such an event. DCCP
awards are also written down if the Group®s CET1 capital ratio falls below a defined threshold. In addition, GEB members
forfeit 20% of DCCP awards for each loss-making year during the vesting period.
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Note 27 Employee benefits: variable compensation (continued)

Deferred compensation plans awarded to employees of Credit Suisse

Existing compensation plans offered to employees of Credit Suisse prior to the acquisition

Credit Suisse offered a range of compensation plans to its employees. Generally, cutstanding deferred awards continue
to vest according to their original terms. Awards referenced to shares of the Credit Suisse Group were converted into
units owver UBS Group shares according to the exchange ratio applied to the merger transaction (1 share in UBS for 2248
shares in Credit Suisse).

Unvested awards include upfront cash awards, share awards and other deferred awards settled in cash and continue to
be expensed over the future service period.

Upfront cash awards are subject to repayment (clawback) by the employee in the event of voluntary resignation,
termination for cause or other specified events within three years from the grant date. The expense is recognized over
the three-year service period according to the dawback provisions.

Share awards that were granted as part of the annual performance incentive typically vest over three years with one-
third of the award vesting on each of the three anniversaries of the grant date.

Retention awards were offered to selected employess of the Credit Suisse Group in 2023 prior to the acquisition date.
These awards were contingent on the completion of the acquisition and were delivered 50% in cash (in general vesting
60 days from the completion of the acquisition} and 50% in shares (in general vesting on the first anniversary of the
completion of the acquisition). Vesting periods are longer for certain regulated employees.

Financial advisor variable compensation

In line with market practice for US wealth management businesses, the compensation for US financial advisors in Global
Wealth Management consists of cash compensation, determined using a formulaic approach based on production, and
deferred awards.

Cash compensation reflects a percentage of the compensable production that each financial advisor generates.
Compensable production is generally based on transaction revenue and investment advisory fees and may reflect further
adjustments, The percentage rate generally varies based on the level of the production and firm tenure.

Financial advisors may also be granted deferred awards. These amounts ganerally vest over a six-year period. The deferred
award takes into account the overall percentage rate and production.

Cash compensation and deferred awards may be reduced for, among other things, errors, negligence or carelessness, or
failure to comply with the firm's rules, standards, practices and / or policies, and / or applicable laws and regulations.
Financial advisors may also participate in additional programs to support promoting and developing their business or
supporting the transition of client relationships where appropriate. Financial advisor compensation also indudes expenses
related to compensation comrmitments with finandial advisors entered into at the time of recruitment that are subject to

vesting reguirements.

b) Effect on the income statement

Effect on the income statemnent for the financial year and future periods

The table below provides information about compensation expenses related to total variable compensation that were
recognized in the financial year ended 31 Decernber 2024, as well as expenses that were deferred and will be recognized
in the incomne staterment for 2025 and later. Deferred expenses related to compensation plans granted to employees of
Credit Suisse in 2023 and earlier years are presented under Variable compensation — other. The expense recognized in
2024 associated with these awards was USD 122m for outstanding deferred compensation plans that existed on the
date of the acquisition.

The majority of expenses deferred to 2025 and later that are related to the 2024 performance year pertain to awards
granted in February 2025. The total unamortized compensation expense for unvested share-based awards granted up to
31 December 2024 will be recognized in future periods over a weighted average period of 2.4 years.
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Note 27 Employee benefits: variable compensation (continued)

Variable compensation
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‘ariable compensation (continued)
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Note 27 Employee benefits: variable compensation (continued)
ariable compensation (continued)

Expentes recognized in 3022 Experdes defemed 1o 2037 and later!
Reslated 1o the Retated 1o the
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) Outstanding share-based compensation awards

Share and performance share awards
Movemnents in outstanding share-based awards granted by UBS AG and its subsidiaries to employees during 2024 and
2023 are provided in the table below.

Movements in outstanding share-based compensation awards

Weighted Weighted

Wberofshaes | dmelr Mmberolws el

2024 vale (USE) 3 vale (USE)

Outstanding, 5t the begining of the yeur 75,305 19 E14A28 17
Sttt bligations assused at menger with Creit Suisse AG TEEISE n

e dhuring the yaar ' 151964 i 7930 0

bty e e

ey Hdunr-gnrw 0 e T 0L 4D 17 R

Outstanding, &t the end of the year 7,184,565 o TEE805 19

e e e s

The total carrying amount of the liability related to cash-settled share-based awards as of 31 December 2024 and
31 December 2023 was USD 22m and USD 14m, respectively.

d) Valuation

LIBS share awards

UBS measures compensation expense based on the average market price of UBS shares on the grant date as quoted on
the SIX Swiss Exchange, taking into consideration post-vesting sale and hedge restrictions, non-vesting conditions and
market conditions, whers agflicable.TMfair value of the share awards subject to post-vesting sale and hedge restrictions
is discounted on the basis of the duration of the post-vesting restriction and is referenced to the cost of purchasing an
at-the-money European put option for the term of the transfer restriction. The grant date fair value of notional shares
without dividend entitlements also includes a deduction for the present value o% future expected dividends to be paid
between the grant date and distribution.
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Mote 28 Interests in subsidiaries and other antities

a) Interests in subsidiaries

LBS AG defines its significant subsidiaries as those entities that, either individually or in 2ggregate, contribute significantly
to UBS AG's financial position or results of operations, based on a number of criteria, including the subsidiaries’ equity
and contribution to UBS AG's total assets and profit or loss before tax, in accordance with the reguirements set by
IFRS 12, Swiss regulations and the rules of the US Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC).

Individually significant subsidiaries

The table below lists UBS AG's individually significant subsidiaries as of 31 December 2024. Unless othenwise stated, the
subsidiaries listed below have share capital consisting of ordinary shares held entirely by UBS AG and the proportion
of cwnership interest held is equal to the voting rights held by UBS AG.

The country where the respective registered office is located is also the principal place of business. UBS AG operates
through a global branch network and a significant proportion of its business activity is conducted outside Switzerland,
including in the LK, the US, Singapore, the Hong Kong SAR and other countries. UBS Europe SE has branches and offices
in a number of EUJ Member States, induding Germany, France, Italy, Luxernbourg and Spain. Share capital is provided in
the currency of the legally registered office.

individually significant subsidiaries of UBS AG as of 31 December 20241
Ciainpény Registerad affice Frimany bisines Share capital in million  Equity inleredt socumulated in %
Londion, LK 1] T,267.5 76
'H'l'ﬂl'lwl'l. e g
m*mn
om0 w T

LIRS Switzesland G Turich, Switzer and Fersonal & Coporate Banking CHF 10,0 1000

1 Incliges dinect and inched mindciares of UES &5, 3 Comsists of common shane capial of USD 1,000 and nas-voding profered share capial of USD 2 5bn. 3 Consits of comman shase capital of LU0 190,000
aind nenevting profermed share casial of USD 1L3bn

Other subsidiaries

The table below lists other direct and indirect subsidiaries of UBS AG that are not individually significant but contribute
to UBS AG's total assets and aggregated profit before tax thresholds and are thus disclosed in accordance with
requirements set by the SEC.

Orther subsidiaries of UBS AG as of 31 December 2024

Exuity inlesess

Compéany Share capital in milion accumnulaled in %
Banco di Investisenias Credit Suise (Brasd) SA ERL i64.8 1000
e e
e

mmmnmt&muw ........................................................ e - E . .... —
Credit Swisse Securities (USA) LLC wsD 0.0 1000
Credit Swisse Securities (Lapan] Limited Iy 78,500.0 1000

L5 Aot Moracement [Amasicss) L

U85 Secures Homg Kong Uinited

LIES Securities Lipan Co., L,

LUIBS SubE TRUST Wealth Management Ca., Lid, IFY 5,065.0 510
1 nclaces a naminal amoem relating 1o edeenabl o s
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Mote 28 Interasts in subsidiaries and othar antities (continued)

Consolidated structured entities

Consolidated structured entities (SEs) include certain investment funds, securitization vehicles and client investment
vehicles. UBS AG has no individually significant subsidiaries that are SEs.

In 2024 and 2023, UBS AG did not enter into any contractual obligation that could require UBS AG to provide financial
support to consolidated SEs. In addition, UBS AG did not provide support, financial or otherwise, to a consolidated SE
when UBS AG was not contractually obligated to do so, nor does UBS AG currently have any intention to do so in the
future. Furthermore, UBS AG did not provide support, financial or otherwise, to a previously unconsolidated SE that
resulted in UBS AG controlling the SE during the reporting period.

b) Interests in associates and joint ventures

Az of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, no assodiate or joint venture was individually material to UBS AG.
Also, there were no significant restrictions on the ability of assodates or joint ventures to transfer funds to UBS AG orits
subsidiaries as cash dividends or to repay loans or advances made. There were no quoted market prices for any associates
or joint ventures of UBS AG.

Investments in assodates and joint ventures

LS 024 2023
Carying amount & the beginning of the yesr 583 1,10
Balance recugeized upon the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suise nG® T

Carmying amount & the end of the pear
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of i SO roue AG, Zunidhd
of ol aher atsiites

1 Ferler %2 hioew 2 Tor mass infasTaron aboan 1he merger of UES 4G and Ll Subss AG. 3 Foi 2028, corbits o USD 40m fom assecaiss and USD 33m Bon jn: vemsams (o 2003, cobssss of negahe
WS 163m ton amocians). 3 Fo 2004, consiss of USD 31m from assocines fer 2023, censiss of megative USD 17m from assodaies, 4 3024, UES &35 legal eouity inerest amaemed 1 34% (o 2003,
LS &S qqmmmmmmmumuumﬂm & In Oicoizer 0124, UES A encoresd I8t an agieenent 10 sl s 0% inlesest in Swiscasd AECS GrbH_ Rele
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¢) Unconsolidated structured entities

UBS AG is considered to sponsor another entity if, in addition to engoing involvement with that entity, it had a key role
in establishing that entity or in bringing to?erher relevant counterparties for a transaction facilitated by that entity. During
2024, UBS AG sponsored the creation of various SEs and interacted with a number of non-sponsored SEs, including
securitization vehicles, client vehicles and certain investment funds, that UBS AG did not consolidate as of 31 December
2024 because it did not control them,

Interests in unconsolidated structured entities

The table below presents UES AG's interests in and maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated SEs, as well as the
total assets held by the SEs in which UBS AG had an interest as of year-end, except for investment funds and other
wehicles sponsored by third parties, for which the carmying amount of UBS AG's interest as of year-end has been disclosed.

As a consequence of the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG and the resulting increase in interests in structured
entities, interests in dient vehicles fsgansmed by UBS AG are presented separately to other vehicles sponsored by third
parties, to dearly distinguish the different types of entities that UBS AG is in with.

Sponsored unconsolidated structured entities inwhich UBS AG did not have an interest at year-end

During 2024 and 2023, UBS AG did not earmn material income from sponsored uncensalidated SEs in which UBS AG did
not have an interest at year-end.

During 2024 and 2023, UBS AG and third parties did not transfer any assets into sponsored securitization vehicles created
in the year. UBS AG and third parties transferred assets, alongside deposits and debt issuances (which are assets from
the perspective of the vehicle), of USD 2.5bn and USD 3.0bn, respectively, into sponsored dient vehicles created in 2024
(2023: USD 0.5bn and USD 0.5bn, respectivedy). For sponsored investrnent funds, several new open ended and close
ended funds were created during the year with further transfers arising from managernent of the strategy and investor
activity, which, when combined with market movements, resulted in a net asset value movernent of USD 3bn in 2024
{2023: USD 3bn).
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Mote 28 Interasts in subsidiaries and othar antities (continued)
Interests in unconsolidated stroctured entities
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thisd parties.

UBS AG retains or purchases interests in unconsolidated SEs in the form of direct investments, financing, guarantees,
letters of credit and derivatives, as well as through management contracts. UBS AG's maximum exposure to loss is
generally equal to the carmying amount of UBS AG's interest in the given SE, with this subject to change over time with
market movernents. Guarantees, letters of credit and credit derivatives are an exception, with the given contract's
notional amount, adjusted for losses already incurred, representing the maximnurn loss that UBS AG is exposed to.

The maximum exposure to loss disclosed in the table above does not reflect UBS AG's risk management activities,
including effects from financial instruments that may be used to economically hedge risks inherent in the given
unconsolidated SE or risk-reducing effects of collateral or other cradit enhancements.

In 2024 and 2023, UBS AG did not provide support, finandal or otherwise, to any unconsolidated SE when not
contractually obligated to do so, nor does UBS AG currently have any intention to do so in the future.

In 2024 and 2023, income and expenses from interests in unconsolidated SEs primarily resulted from mark-to-market
movernents recognized in Other net income from financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or lass,
which were generally hedged with other financial instrumnents, as well as fee and commission income received from LBS
AG-sponsored funds.

Interests in securitization wehicles

As of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, UBS AG held interests, both retained and acguired, in various
securitization vehiches that relate to financing, undenwriting, secondary market and derivative trading activities. In addition
to the interests disclosed in the table above, UBS AG manages the assets of certain securitization vehicles and receivies
fees based, in whole or in part, on the asset value of the vehicles. Interest in such vehicles, as a result of the merger of
UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG, is not represented by the on-balance sheet fee receivable but rather by the future exposure
to variable fees. The net asset value of such vehicles was USD 24bn as of 31 December 2024 and has been excluded
from the table above.
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Mote 28 Interasts in subsidiaries and other entities (continuad)

The numbers outlined in the table above may differ from the securitization positions presented in the 31 December 2024
Pillar 3 Report, available under “Fillar 3 disclosures™ at ubs.comfinvestors, for the following reasons: (i) exdusion of
synthetic securitizations transacted with entities that are not SEs and transactions in which UBS AG did not have an
interest because it did not absorb any risk; (i} a different measurement basis in certain cases (e.g. IFRS Accounting
Standards carrying amount within the table above compared with net exposure amount at default for Fillar 3 disclosures);
and (jii} different classification of vehicles viewed as sponsored by UBS AG versus sponsored by third parties.

¥ Refer to the 31 December 2024 Pillar 3 Report, available under “Pillar 3 disdosures™ &t whs comfrvestors, for more information

Interests in chient vehicles sponsored by UBS AG

LBS AG-sponsored client vehides are established predominantly for dients to gain exposure to specific assets or risk
exposunes. Such vehicles may enter into derivative agreements, with UBS AG or a third party, to align the cash flows of
the entity with the investor's intended investment objective, or to introduce other desired risk exposures.

As of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, UBS AG retained interests in client vehicles sponsored by UBS AG that
relate to financing, secondary market and derivative trading activities, and to hedge structured product offerings.

Interests in investment funds

Investrnent funds have a collective investrment objective, and are either passively managed, so that any dedsion-making
does not have a substantive effect on variability, or are actively managed and investors or their governing bodies do not
have substantive voting or similar rights.

LBS AG holds interests in a number of imvestment funds, primarily resulting from seed investments or in order to hedge
structured product offerings. In addition to the interests disdosed in the table above, UBS AG manages the assets of
VEFIOUS led investrnent funds and receives fees based, in whole or in part, on the net asset value of the fund and / or
the performance of the fund. The specific fee structure is determined based on various market factors and considers the
fund's nature and the jurisdiction of incorporation, as well as fee schedules negotiated with dients. These fee contracts
represent an interest in the fund, as they align UBS AG's exposure with investors, providing a variable return based on
the performance of the entity. Depending on the structure of the fund, these fees may be collected directly from the
fund's assets and / or from the investars. Any amounts due are collected on a regular basis and are generally backed by
the fund's assets. Therefore, interest in such funds is not represented by the on-balance sheet fee receivable but rather
by the future exposure to variable fees. The net asset value of such funds were USD 547bn and USD 356bn as of
31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, respectively, and has been excluded from the table above. UBS AG did not
have any material exposure to loss from these interests as of 31 Decemnber 2024 or as of 31 December 2023,

Interests in other vehicles sponsored by third parties
Interests in other vehicles sponsored by third parties include loans with a high LTV and credit-impaired loans provided to
third-party structured entities.
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Note 29 Changes in arganization and acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and businesses

Disposals of subsidiaries and businesses

Agresment to sell Select Portfolio Servicing

On 13 Auwgust 2024, UBS AG entered into an agreement to sell Select Portfolic Servicing, the US mortgage senvicing
business of Credit Suisse, which is managed in Mon-core and Legacy. Completion of the transaction is subject to
regulatory approvals and other customary closing conditions. As of 31 Decernber 2024, the associated assets and
liabilities were presented as Assets of disposal groups held for sale and Liabilities of disposal groups held for sals,
respectively, and amounted to USD 1,823m and USD 1,212m, respectively. UBS AG does not expect to recognize a
material profit or loss upon completion of the transaction.

Agreement to sell Swisscard AECS GmbH

In October 2024, UBS AG entered into an agreement to sell to American Express Swiss Holdings GmbH (American Express)
its 50% interest in Swisscard AECS GmbH (Swisscard), a joint venture in Switzerand between UBS AG and American
Express, subject to certain dosing conditions. Also in October 2024, UBS AG entered into an agreement with Swisscard
to transition the Credit Suisse-branded card portfolios to UBS AG. In January 2025, UBS AG completed the purchase of
the card portfolios, with the actual client migration expected to take place over the following quarters. The two
transactions will result in similar profit and loss effects over the course nf 2025 and, therefore, on a net basis are not
expected to have a material impact for UBS AG. In the fourth quarter of 2024, UBS AG recorded an expense of USD 41m
in connection with the termination of the Swisscard joint venture.

Changes in organization

Legal structure integration
On 31 May 2024, the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG was completed. UBS AG succeeded to all rights and
obligations of Credit Suisse AG, including all cutstanding Credit Suisse AG debt instruments.

¥ Refer to Note 2 for more information about the merger of UBS AG and Credit Sulsse AG

On 7 June 2024, the transition to a single US intermediate holding company was completed.

On 1 July 2024, the merger of UBS Switzerland AG and Credit Suisse (Schweiz) AG was completed. UBS Switzerland AG
succeaded to all ights and obligations of Credit Suisse (Schweiz) AG.

Mote 30 Related parties

Related parties of UBS AG are:

- enftities within UBS Group, i.e. the parent entity, UBS Group AG, and fellow subsidiaries consolidated within
UBS Group (induding Credit Suisse subsidiaries from the date of the acquisition of the Credit Suisse Group);

- assodiates {entities that are under the significant influence of UBS AG or other group entities consolidated within
LIBS Group);

— joint ventures (entities in which UBS AG or other group entity consolidated within LIBS Group shares control with
another party);

- post-employment benefit plans for the benefit of UBS AG's employees or employees of entities related to UBS AG;

- key management personnel and close family members of key management personnel; and

- entities over which key management personnel or their close family members have solely or jointly a direct or indirect
significant influence.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing, and controlling
the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. UBS AG considers the rembers of the Board of Directors {the BoD) and
the Executive Board (the EB) of UBS AG and the members of the Board of Directors (the BoD) and the Group Executive
Board (the GEB) of UBS Group AG to constitute key management personnel.

a) Remuneration of key management personnel

The Vice Chairman of the BoD has a specific management employment contract and receives pension benefits upon
retiremnent. Total remuneration of the Chairman and the Vice Chairman of the BoD and all EB and GEB members (as
defined above) is induded in the table below.
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Mote 30 Related parties (continuad)
Remuneration of key management personnel
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The independent members of the BoD, including the Chairman, do not have employment or service contracts with
LBS AG, and thus are not entitled to benefits upon termination of their service on the BoD. Payments to these individuals
for their senices as independent members of the BoD amounted to USD 13.1m (CHF 11.5m} in 2024, USD 11.7m
(CHF 10.6m) in 2023 and USD 11.1m (CHF 10.7m) in 2022.

b) Equity holdings of key management personnel
Equity holdings of key management personnel’
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Of the share totals above, no shares were held by close family members of key management perscnnel on 31 December
2024 and 31 Decemnber 2023. Mo shares were held by entities that are directly or indirectly controlled or jointly controlled
by key management personnel or their dose family members on 31 Decernber 2024 and 31 December 2023. As of
31 December 2024, no member of the BoD or EB was the beneficial owner of more than 1% of the shares in
UBS Group AG.

) Loans, advances, mortgages and deposit balances with key management personnel

The non-independent members of the BoD and EB members are loans, fived advances and mortgages in the
ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms and conditions that are available to other employees,
including interest rates and collateral, and neither involve more than the normal risk of collectability nor contain any other
unfavorable features for the firm. Independent BoD members are granted loans and mortgages in the ordinary course of
business at general market conditions.

Outstanding balances with key management personnel were as follows.

Loans, advances and mortgages to key management personnel!
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In addition, there were outstanding deposit balances with key management personnel that amounted to USD 139m
(CHF 126m) as of 31 December 2024 and USD 21m (CHF 18m) as of 31 December 2023.

d) Other related-party transactions with entities controlled by key management personnel

In 2024 and 2023, UBS AG did not enter into transactions with entities over whom key management personned or their
close family members have solely or jointly a direct or indirect significant influence and as of 31 December 2024,
21 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 there were no outstanding balances related to such transactions.
Furthermore, in 2024 and 2023, such entities did not sell any or provide any services to UBS AG and therefore did
not receive any fees from LIBS AG. UBS AG also did not provide services to such entities in 2024 and 2023 and therefore
also received no fees.
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Mote 30 Related parties (continuad)

&) Transactions with associates and joint ventures
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In addition to the items in the table above, transactions with associates and joint ventures also include off-balance sheet
expaosures of USD 1.1bn, which are provided on an am's length basis.
¥ Refer to Note 28 for an overview of investments in associates and joint ventures

f) Receivables and payables from / to UBS Group AG and other subsidiaries of UBS Group AG
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Note 31 Invested assets and net new moneay

The following disclosures provide a breakdown of UBS AG's invested assets and a presentation of their development,
including net new money, as required by the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA),

Invested assets

Invested assets consist of all dient assets managed by or deposited with UBS AG for investment purposes. Invested assets
include managed fund assets, managed institutional assets, discretionary and advisory wealth management portfolios,
fiduciary deposits, time deposits, savings accounts, and wealth management securities or brokerage accounts. All assets
held for purely transactional purposes and ¢ -<only assets, including corporate client assets held for cash
management and transactional purposes, are excluded from invested assets, as UBS AG only administers the assets and
does not offer advice on how they should be invested. Also excuded are non-bankable assets (e.g. art collections) and
deposits from third-party banks for funding or trading purposes.

Discretionary assets are defined as client assets that UBS AG decides how to invest. Other invested assets are those where
the dient ultimately decides how the assets are invested. When a single product is created in one business division and
sold in another, it is counted in both the business division managing the investment and the one distributing it. This
results in double counting within UBS AG's total invested assets and net new money, as both business divisions are
independently providing a service to their respective dients, and both add value and generate revenue.

Mat new money

Met new money in a reporting pericd is the amount of invested assets entrusted to UBS AG by new and existing clients,
less those withdrawn by exdsting clients and clients who terminated relationships with UBS AG.

Met new money is calculated using the direct methad, under which inflows and outflows to / from invested assets are
determined at the dient level, based on transactions. Interest and dividend income from invested assets are not counted as
net new money inflows. Market and currency movements, as well as fees, commissions and interest on loans charged, are
excluded from net new money, as are effects resulting from any acquisition or divestrent of a UBS subsidiary or business.
Reclassifications between invested assets and custody-only assets as a result of a change in service level delivered are
generally treated as net new money flows. However, where the change in service level directly results from an externally
impased regulation or a strategic decision by UBS AG to exit a market or specific service offering, the one-time net affect is
reported as Other affects.

The Investment Bank does not track invested assets and net new money. However, when a client is transferred from the
Investrment Bank to another business division, this may produce net new money even though the dient's assets were
already with UBS AG.

Invested aisets and net new money
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MNote 32 Currency translation rates

The following table shows the rates of the main currencies used to translate the financial information of UBS AG's
operations with a functional currency other than the US dallar into US dollars.
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Note 33 Main differences betwean IFRS Accounting Standards and Swiss GAAP

The consolidated financial staterments of UBS AG are prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards. The Swiss
Financial Market Supenisory Authority (FINMA) requires financial groups presenting finandal statements under IFRS
Accounting Standards to provide a narrative explanation of the main differences between IFRS Accounting Standards
and Swiss generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) (the FINMA Accounting Ordinance, FINMA, Circular 202041
"Accounting - banks” and the Banking Ordinance (the BOY). Induded in this Note are the significant differences in the
recognition and measurement between IFRS Accounting Standards and the provisions of the BO and the guidelines of
FIMMA governing true and fair view financial staternent reporting pursuant to Art. 25 to Art. 42 of the BO.

1. Consolidation

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, all entities that are controlled by the holding entity are consalidated. Under Swiss
GAAP controlled entities deerned immaterial to a group or those held only temporarily are exempt from consolidation,
but instead are recorded as participations accounted for under the equity method of accounting or as financial
investrnents measured at the lower of cost or market value.

2. Classification and measurement of financial assets

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, debt instruments are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FUTPL), depending on the nature of the business
model within which the particular asset is held and the characteristics of the contractual cash flows of the asset. Equity
instruments are accounted for at FYTPL by UBS. Under Swiss GAAP, trading assets and derivatives are measured at PyTPL,
in line with IFRS Accounting Standards. However, non-trading debt instrurnents are generally measured at amortized
cost, even when the assets are managed on a fair value basis. In addition, the measurement of finandal assets in the
form of securities depends on the nature of the asset: debt instruments not held to maturity, i.e. instruments available
fior sale, and equity instruments with no permanent holding intent, are classified as Anandial investments and measured
at the lower of (amortized) cost or market value. Market value adjustments up to the original cost amount and realized
gains or losses upon disposal of the investment are recorded in the income statemnent as Other income from ardinary
activities. Equity instruments with a permanent holding intent are classified as participations in Non-consolidatad
investments in subsidiaries and other participations and are measured at cost less impairment. Impairment losses are
recorded in the income statement as impairment of investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries and other participations,
Reversals of impairments up to the original cost amount and realized gains or losses upon disposal of the investrment are

recorded as Extraordinary income [ Extraordinary expenses,

3. Fair value option applied to financial liabilities

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, UBS applies the fair value option to certain financial liabilities not held for trading.
Instruments for which the fair value option is applied are accounted for at FYTPL. The amount of change in the fair value
attributable to changes in UBS's own credit is presented in Other comprehensive income directly within Retained eamings.
The fair value option is applied primarily to issued structured debt instruments, certain non-structured debt instrurments,
certain payables under repurchase agreements and cash collateral on securities lending agreements, amounts due under
unit-linked investrnent contracts, and brokerage payables.

Under Swiss GAAP, the fair value option can only be applied to structured debt instruments consisting of a debt host
contract and one o more embedded derivatives that do not relate to own equity. Furthermore, unrealized changes in
fair value attributable to changes in UBS's own credit are not recognized, whereas realized own credit is recognized in

Net trading income.
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Note 33 Main differences between IFRS Accounting Standards and Swiss GAAP (continued)

4. Allowances and provisions for credit losses

Swiss GAAP permit use of IFRS Accounting Standards for accounting for allowances and provisions for credit losses based
on an expected credit loss (ECL) model. UBS has chosen to apply the IFRS 9 ECL approach to those exposures that are in
the ECL scope of bath frameworks, IFRS Accounting Standards and Swiss GAAP.

For the small residual exposures within the scope of Swiss GAAP ECL reguirernents, which are not subject to ECL under

IFRS Accounting Standards due to dassification differences, UBS applies alternative approaches.

= For exposures for which Pillar 1 intermal ratings-based models are applied to measure credit risk, ECL is determined by
the regulatory expected loss (EL), with an add-on for scaling up to the residual maturity of exposures maturing beyond
the next 12 months, as appropriate. For detailed information on regulatory EL, refer to the “Risk management and
control” section of this report.

- For exposures for which the PFillar 1 standardized approach is used to measure credit risk, ECL is determined using a
portfolio approach that derives a conservative probability of default (PD) and a conservative loss given default (LGD)
for the entire portfolio.

5. Hedge accounting

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, when cash flow hedge accounting is applied, the fair value gain or loss on the effective
portion of a derivative designated as a cash flow hedge is recognized initially in equity and reclassified to the income
staternent when certain conditions are met. When fair value hedge accounting is applied, the fair value change of the
hedged itern attributable to the hedged risk is reflected in the measurement of the hedged iter and is recognized in the
income statemnent along with the change in the fair value of the hedging derivative. Under Swiss GAAP, the effective
portion of the fair value change of a derivative instrument designated as a cash flow or as a fair value hedge is deferred
on the balance sheet as Other assets or Other liabilities. The carrying amount of the hedged itern designated in fair value
hedges is not adjusted for fair value changes attributable to the hedged risk.

6. Goodwill and intangible assets

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, goodwill acquired in a business combination is not amortized but tested annually for
impairment. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are also not amartized but tested annually for impairment.
Under Swiss GAAP, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are amaortized over a period not exceeding
five years, unless a longer useful life, which may not excesd ten years, can be justified. In addition, these assets are tested
annually for impairment.

7. Post-employment benefit plans

Swiss GAAP permit the use of IFRS Accounting Standards or Swiss accounting standards for post-employrent benefit
plans, with the election made on a plan-by-plan basis.

LBS has elected to apply 145 19 for the non-Swiss defined benefit plans in the UBS AG standalone finandial staterments
and Swiss GAAP (FER 16} for the Swiss pension plan in the UBS AG and the UBS Switzerland AG standalone financial
staternents. The requirements of Swiss GAAP are better aligned with the specific nature of Swiss pension plans, which
are hybrid in that they combine elements of defined contribution and defined benefit plans, but are treated as defined
benefit plans under IFRS Accounting Standards. Key differences between Swiss GAAP and IFRS Accounting Standards
include the treatment of dynamic elements, such as future salary increases and future interest credits on retirement
savings, which are not considered under the static method wsed in accordance with Swiss GAAP. Also, the discount rate
used to determine the defined benefit obligation in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards is based on the yield of
high-quality corporate bonds of the market in the respective pension plan country. The discount rate used in accordance
with Swiss GAAP (i.e. the technical interest rate) is determined by the Pension Foundation Board based on the expected
returns of the Board's investment strategy.

For defined benefit plans, IFRS Accounting Standards require the full defined benefit obligation net of the plan assets to
be recorded on the balance sheet subject to the asset ceiling rules, with changes resulting from remeasuremnents
recognized directly in equity. However, for non-Swiss defined benefit plans for which IFRS Accounting Standards are
elected, changes due to remeasurements are recognized in the income statement of UBS AG standalone under Swiss
GAAP.

Swiss GAAP require employer contributions to the pension fund to be recognized as personnel expenses in the income
staternent. Swiss GAAP also require an assessment of whether, based on the pension fund’s finandal staterments prepared
in accordance with Swiss accounting standards (FER 26), an economic benefit to, or obligation of, the employer arises
from the pension fund that is recognized in the balance shest when conditions are met. Conditions for recording a
pensicn asset or liability would be met if, for example, an employer contribution reserve is available or the employer is
required to contribute to the reduction of a pension deficit (on an FER 26 basis).
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Note 33 Main differences between IFRS Accounting Standards and Swiss GAAP (continued)

8. Leasing

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, a single lease accounting model applies that requires UBS to record a right-of-use
(Rol) asset and a corresponding lease liability on the balance sheet when UBS is a lessee in a lease arrangement. The
Roll asset and the lease liability are recognized when UBS acquires control of the physical use of the asset. The lease
liability is measured based on the present value of the lease payments over the lease term, discounted using UBS's
unsecured bormowing rate. The Roll asset is recorded at an amount equal to the lease liability but is adjusted for rent
prepayments, initial direct costs, any costs to refurbish the leased asset and / or lease incentives received. The Rol) asset
is depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset.

Under Swiss GAAP, leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards, but not necessarily legal title in the
underlying assets, are dassified as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Whereas finance
leases are recognized on the balance sheet and measured in line with IFRS Accounting Standards, operating leases are
not recognized on the balance sheet, with payments recognized as General and administrative expenses on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, which cormmences with control of the physical use of the asset. Lease incentives are treated
as a reduction of rental expense and recognized on a consistent basis over the lease term.

9. Netting of derivative assets and liabilities

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, derivative assets, derivative liabilities and related cash collateral not settled to market
are reported on a gross basis unless the restrictive netting requirements under IFRS Accounting Standards are met:
(i) existence of master netting agreements and related collateral arrangements that are unconditional and legally
enforceable, in both the normal course of business and the event of default, banknuptcy or insclvency of UBS and its
counterparties; and (i} UBS's intention to either settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. Under Swiss GAAP, derivative assets, derivative liabilities and related cash collateral not settled to market
are generally reported on a net basis, provided the master netting and the related collateral agreements are legally
enforceable in the event of default, banknuptcy or insobvency of UBS's counterparties.

10. Negative interest

Under IFRS Accounting Standards, negative interest income arising on a financial asset does not meet the definition of
interest income and, therefore, negative interest on financial assets and negative interest on financial Habilities are
presented within interest expense and interest income, respectively. Under Swiss GAAP, negative interest on financial
assets is presented within interest income and negative interest on financial liabilities is presented within interest expense.

11. Extraordinary income and expense

Certain non-recurring and non-operating income and expense items, such as realized gains or losses from the disposal
of participations, fixed and intangible assets, and reversals of impairments of participations and fixed assets, are classified
as extraordinary iterns under Swiss GAAP. This distinction is not available under IFRS Accounting Standards.

Note 34 Supplemental guaranter information

In 2015, the Personal & Corporate Banking and Wealth Management businesses booked in Switzerland were transferred
from UBS AG to UBS Switzerland AG through an asset transfer in accordance with the Swiss Merger Act. Under the
terms of the asset transfer agreement, UBS Switzerland AG assumed joint liability for contractual obligations of LBS AG
existing on the asset transfer date, including the full and unconditional guarantee of certain SEC-registered debt securities
issued by LBS AG. The joint liability of UBS Switzerland AG for contractual obligations of UBS AG decreased in 2024 by
UsSD 0.7bn to USD 2.6bn as of 31 December 2024. The decrease substantially refates to a combination of contractual
maturities, fair value movemnents and foreign currency effects.

LBS AG, together with UBS Group AG, has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the outstanding SEC-registered debt
securities of Credit Suisse (USA) LLC, which as of 31 December 2024 consisted of a single outstanding issuance with a
balance of USD 742m maturing in July 2032. Credit Suisse (USA) LLC is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of UBS AG.
LBS AG assumed Credit Suisse AG's obligations under the guarantee as of 31 May 2024 (i.e. the date of the merger). In
accordance with the guarantee, if Credit Suisse (USA) LLC fails to make a timely payment under the agreemsants governing
such debt securities, the holders of the debt securities may demand payment from either UBS Group AG or UBS AG,
without first proceeding against Credit Suisse (USA) LLC. 4
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Management's report on internal control over financial reporting

Management's responsibility for internal contral over financial reporting

The Board of Directors and management of UBS AG are responsible for establishing and raintaining adequate intemal
controd over financial reporting. UBS AG's internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASE).

UBS AG's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

- pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and
dispositions of assets;

- provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of UBS AG management; and

- provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial staternenis.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstaterments.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management's assessment of internal control over finandial reporting as of 31 December 2024

UBS AG management has assessed the effectiveness of UBS AG's internal control over financial reporting as of
31 December 2024 based on the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Comrnission (COS0) in Intermal Control = Integrated Framework (2013 Framework). Based on this assessment for the
reasons discussed below, management believes that, as of 31 December 2024, UBS AG's internal control over financial
reporting was not effective because of the material weakness described below related to the Credit Suisse business
acquired in 2023,

A rnaterial weakness is a defidency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control over finandal reporting such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of a registrant’s financial statements will not be prevented
or detected on a timely basis.,

Prior to the acquisition, Credit Suisse management had identified and disclosed three material weaknesses, one of which
related to controls to design and maintain an effective risk assessment process. Management concluded that as of
31 December 2024, changes made to the risk assessment process were designed effectively, but that additional time, in
part due to the broader integration and migration efforts undenway, is required to conclude that these controls are
operating effectively on a sustained basis.

Femediation of Credit Suisse material weaknesses

In March 2023, prior to the acquisition by UBS Group AG, the Credit Suisse Group and Credit Suisse AG disclosed that
their management had identified material weaknesses in internal controd over financial reporting as a result of which the
Credit Suisse Group and Credit Suisse AG had concluded that, as of 31 December 2022, their internal control over
financial reporting was not effective, and for the same reasons, reached the same conclusion regarding 31 December
2021. Following the acquisition and merger of Credit Suisse Group AG into UBS Group AG in June 2023, Credit Suisse
AG concluded that as of 31 December 2023 its internal control over financial reporting continued to be ineffective. For
the year ended 31 December 2023, UBS AG concluded that its internal control over financial reporting was effective.

In May 2024, Credit Suisse AG and UBS AG merged with UBS AG as the surviving entity. Although Credit Suisse AG is
n longer a separate legal entity, numerous of its booking, accounting and risk management systems remain in use for
activities that have not yet been exited or migrated to UBS systerns.

The material weaknesses that were identified by Credit Suisse related to the failure to design and maintain an effective
risk assessment process to identify and analyze the risk of material misstatements in its finandal staternents and the
failure to design and maintain effective monitoring activities relating to (i) providing sufficient management oversight
owver the intemnal control evaluation process to support Credit Suisse internal control objectives; (i} invalving appropriate
and sufficient management resources to support the risk assessment and monitoring objectives; and (i) assessing and
communicating the severity of deficiencies in a timely manner to those parties responsible for taking corrective action.
These material weaknesses contributed to an additional material weakness, as the Credit Suisse Group managerment did
niot design and maintain effective controls over the classification and presentation of the consolidated statement of cash
flowws under LS GAAP.

Since the Credit Suisse acquisition, we have executed a remediation program to address the identified material
weaknesses and have implemented additional controds and procedures. As of 31 December 2024, management has
assessed that the changes to intermal controls made to address the material weaknesses relating to the classification and
presentation of the consolidated staternent of cash flows as well as assessment and communication of the severity of
deficiencies are designed and operating effectively.
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The remaining material weakness relates to the risk assessment of intemal controls. We have integrated the Credit Suisse
control framework into the UBS internal control framework and risk assessment and evaluation processes in 2024. In
addition, UBS has reviewwed the processes, systems and intemnal control processes in connection with the integration of
the financial accounting and controls environment of Credit Suisse into UBS, and implernentation of updated or additional
processes and controls to reflect the increase in complexity of the accounting and financial control emironment following
the acquisition.

Managerment has assessed that the risk assessrent process was designed effectively. Howewver, in light of the increased
complexity of the intemal accounting and control environment, the remaining migration efforts still undenway and limited
time to demonstrate operating effectiveness and sustainability of the post-merger i ated control environment,
management has concluded that additional evidence of effective operation of the remediated controls is required to
conclude that the risk assessment processes are operating effectively on a sustainable basis. In light of the above,
management has conduded that there i a material weakness in internal control over financial reporting at 31 December
2024,

Reports of the independent registered public accounting firm / statutory auditor included in this report

The accompanying report of the independent registered public accounting firm on the consolidated financial statements
Report of independent registered public accounting fimm on the consolidated financial statements of UBS AG is included
in our filing on 17 March 2025 with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 20-F pursuant to US reporting
obligations.

The accompanying statutory auditor's report on the audit of the consolidated finandal statements of UBS AG Statutory
auditor's repart on the audit of the consolidated financial statements, in addition to the aforementioned report, is

included in our UBS AG Annual Report 2024 available on our website and filed on 17 March 2025 with all other relevant
non-Us exchanges.
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UBS AG standalone financial statements (audited)

Income statement
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Balance sheet
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Balance sheet {continued)
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Off-balance sheat items

Contingent liabilities indude indemnities and guarantees issued by UBS AG for the benefit of subsidiaries and creditors
of subsidiaries.

Where the indemnity amount issued by UBS AG is not specifically defined, the indemnity refates to the sobvency or
minimurm capitalization of a subsidiary, and therefore no amaount is included in the table above.

Joint and several liability - value-added tax
UBS AG is jointly and severally liable for the combined value-added tax (VAT) liability of UBS entities that belong to the
VAT group of UBS in Switzerland. This contingent liability is not included in the table above.

Guarantess — LIBS Europe SE

Foliowing the combined UK business transfer and cross-border merger of UBS Limited into UBS Europe SE in March 2019,
UBS AG issued a guarantee for the benefit of counterparties of UBS Europe 5E's investment banking business, covering
transactions subject to master netting agreements.

A similar guarantee that UBS AG issued in 2003 for the benefit of each counterparty of UBS Limited also continues to be
effective. This guarantee covers transactions in accordance with and contemnplated under any agreerment entered into by
UBS Limited prior to the merger into UBS Eurcpe SE, to the extent that such an agreement has not been amended by
UBS Europe SE thereafter.

Under both guarantees, LUBS AG promises to pay to the beneficiary counterparties any unpaid liabilities covered under
the terms of the guarantees on demand. These guarantees are induded as contingent liabilities in the off-balance sheet
iterns table above.

Indemnities — UBS Europe SE

In connection with the establishing of UBS Europe SE in 2016, UBS AG entered into agreements with UBS Europe SE
under which UBS AG would provide UBS Europe SE with limited indemnification of payment obligations that may arise
from certain litigation, regulatory and similar matters.

A5 of 31 December 2024, the amount of such potential payment obligations could not be reliably estimated and the
likelihood of an outflow is not considered to be probable or the probability of an cutflow was assessed to be remote;
therefore, the table above does not incude any amount related to this limited indemnification.

In addition, in accordance with the bylaws of the Deposit Protection Fund of the Association of German Banks, UBS AG
issued an indemnity in favor of this fund on behalf of UBS Eurcpe SE. The probability of an outflow was assessed to be
remote, and as a result, the table above does not include any exposure arising under this indemnity.
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Statement of changes in equity
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Note 1 Mame, legal form and registered office

UBS AG is inconporated and domiciled in Switzerdand. Its registered offices are at Bahnhofstrasse 45, CH-8001 Zurich
and Aeschenvorstadt 1, CH-4051 Basel, Switzerland. UBS AG operates under Art. 620 et seq. of the Swiss Code of
Obligations and Swiss banking law as an Aktiengeselschaft, a corporation limited by shares.

LIBS AG is aregulated bank in Switzerland and is 100% owned by UBS Group AG, the ultimate parent of the UBS Group.
UBS AG holds imvestments in and provides funding to subsidiaries, induding the other banking subsidiaries of the UBS
Group. In addition, UBS AG operates globally, including business activities from all five UBS business divisions and Group
functions. In the ordinary course of business, the main contributors to the net profit / (loss) of UBS AG are Group Treasury,
Global Wealth Management, the Investrent Bank and Group Services. The balance sheet is mainly composed of financial
assets and liabilities from the Investrent Bank, Global Wealth Managernent and Group Treasury, as well as investments
in subsidiaries and other participations in Group Treasury and fixed assets of Group Services.

UBS AG employed 18,161 personnel on a full-time equivalent basis as of 31 Decermnber 2024, compared with 10,398
personnel as of 31 Decernber 2023.

MNote 2 Accounting policies

a) Significant accounting polices

LIBS AG standalone financial statements are prepared in accordance with Swiss GAAP {the FINMA Accounting Ordinance,
FIMMA Circular 20201 “Accounting - banks™ and the Banking Ordinance) and represent “reliable assessment statutory
single-entity finandal statements”. The accounting polices are principally the same as those outlined in Note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements of UBS AG induded in the UBS AG Annual Report 2024, Major differences between
the Swiss GAAP requirements and IFRS Accounting Standards are described in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
staternents of UBS AG. The significant accounting policies applied for the standalone financial statements of UBS AG are
discussed below.
¥ Refer to the "Consolidated financial statements™ section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2024, available under “Annual reporting™
&t wbs comylmvestors, for mare information

Compensation policy

The compensation structure and processes of UBS AG conform to the compensation principles and framework of UBS
Group AG.
¥ Refer to the UBS Group AG Compensation Report 2024, available under “Annual reporting” st wbs.cominvestors, for more
infarmation

Deferred compensation

Expenses for deferred compensation awards granted by UBS Group AG to employees of UBS AG in the form of UBS
shares, notional investrent funds and notional additional tier 1 (AT1) capital instrumenits are charged by UBS Group AG
o UES AG.
¥ Refer to "Mote 27 Employee benefiis: variable compensation” in the "Consolidated financial stetements™ section of the UBS AG
Annual Report 2024, available under "Annual reporting” &t whs. cowmdrvestors, for more information

Foreign currency translation

Mon-Us dollar-denominated transactions are translated into US dallars at the spot exchange rate on the date of the
transaction. At the balance sheet date, all non-US dollar-denominated monetary assets and liabilities, as well as non-US
dollar-denominated equity instrurments recorded in Trading portfolio assets and Financial investments, are translated into
Us dollars wsing the closing exchange rate. Mon-rnonetary items measured at historic cost are translated at the spot
exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Assets and liabilities of branches with functional currendies other than the
US dollar are translated into US dollars at the dlosing exchange rate. Income and expense items of such branches are
translated at weighted-average exchange rates for the period. All currency translation effects are recognized in the
income statemant.
¥ Refer to Note 2¢ for information about the retroactive translation of Credit Suisse AG's financial information in 2024 following
the merger of UBS AG and Credit Subse AG

The main currency translation rates used by UBS AG are provided in Note 32 to the UBS AG consolidated financial
staternents in the UBS AG Annual Report 2024,
¥ Refer to the "Consolidated financial statements™ section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2024, available under “Annual reporting™
&t wbs comylmvestors, for mare information
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Mote 2 Accounting policies (continued)

Presentation currencies

The primary presentation currency of the finandal statements of UBS AG is the US dollar. Amounts in Swiss francs are
additionally presented for each component of the financial statements. UBS AG applies the modified closing rate method
for converting the US dollar presentation currency amounts into Swiss francs: assets and liabilities are comerted at the
closing rate, equity positions at historic rates and income and expense items at the weighted-average rate for the period.
The resulting currency translation effects are recognized separately in Voluntary earmings reserva.

On 31 May 2024, UBS AG completed the absorption merger of Credit Suisse AG and retroactively recognized Credit
Suisse AG's balance sheet as of 1 January 2024, and its accounting records for the period from 1 January to 31 May
2024, expressed in Credit Suisse AG's presentation currency, Swiss francs. Thereby, the merger balance sheet was
translated to LBS AG"s primary presentation currency, the US dollar, at the exchange rate of the opening balance sheet,
and the transactions recorded in profit and loss were translated at the monthly average exchange rate. The balance sheet
as of 31 May 2024 was translated at the 31 May 2024 closing rate. The resulting currency effects were recognized in
Statutory capital resarve,
¥ Refer to Mote 2c for more information

Structurad debt instruments

Structured debt instruments consist of debt instruments issued and transacted over the counter and include a host

contract and one or more embedded derivatives that do not relate to UBS AG's own equity. By applying the fair value

option, the vast majority of structured debt instruments are measured at fair value as a whole and recognized in Financial

liabilities designated at fair value. The fair value option for structured debt instruments can be applied only if the following

criteria are cumulatively met:

= the structured debt instrument is measured on a fair value basis and is subject to risk management that is equivalent
to risk managernent for trading activities;

- the application of the fair value option eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwizse arise; and

= changes in fair value attributable to changes in unrealized own credit are not recognized.

Fair value changes related to financial fabilities designated at fair value, excluding changes in unrealized ocwn credit, are

recognized in Met trading income. Interest expense on Financial abilites designated at fair value is recognized in inferest

expense.

Where the designation criteria for the fair value option are not met, the embedded derivatives are assessed for bifurcation

for measurement purposes. Bifurcated embedded derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss and

presented in the same balance sheet line as the host contract.,
¥ Refer to Mote 20 for more information

Group-internal funding

UBS AG obtains funding from UBS Group AG in the form of loans that are subject to mandatory conversion and / or debit
waiver, as explained below, and generally either qualify as loss-absorbing tier 1 capital or as gone concern loss-absorbing
capacity, L.e. total funding eligible as total loss-absorbing capacity (TLAC), at the UBS AG consolidated and standalone
levels. A portion of Group-intermal funding obtained is further on lent by UBS AG to certain subsidiaries in the form of
lpans.

¥ Refer to Note 21 for information about funding eligible &s total loss-absorbing capacity &t the UBS AG level

UBS AG's obligations arising from Group-internal funding it has received are presented as Funding received from UBS
Group AG maeasured at amovtized cost and Funding received from UBS Group AG within Financial fiabilities designated
at fair value. UBS AG's claims arising from the Group-internal funding it has provided are presented as Funding provided
1o significant regulated subsidiaries eligible as total loss-absorbing capacity and are measured at amortized cost less any
allowance for expected credit losses.

Subordinated assets and liabilities

Subordinated assets are composed of claims that, based on an irmevocable written declaration, in the event of liguidation,
bankruptcy or compasition concerming the debtor rank after the claims of all other creditors and may not be offset
against amounts payable to the debtor nor be secured by its assets. Subordinated labilities are composed of
corresponding obligations.

Subordinated assets and liabilities that contain a point-of-non-viability dause in accordance with Swiss capital
requirements pursuant to Art. 29 and 30 of the Capital Adequacy Ordinance are disclosed as being Swubfect to mandatory
conversion and [ or debt waiver and provide for the claim or the obligation to be written off or converted into equity in
the event that the issuing bank reaches a point of non-viability.
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Mote 2 Accounting policies (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries and other participations

investments in subsidiaries and other participations are Equiﬁ,r interests that are held to camy on the business of UBS AG
or for other strategic purposes. They indude all subsidiaries directly held by UBS AG through which UBS AG conducts its
business on a global basis. The investments are measured individually and carried at cost less impairment. The carmyng
armount is tested for impairment when indicators of a potential decrease in value exist, which include significant operating
losses incurred or a severe depreciation of the currency in which the investrnent is denominated. If an investment in a
subsidiary is impaired, its value is generally written down to the net asset value or a value above the net asset value if, in
the opinion of management, forecasts of future profitability provide suffident evidence that a carrying amount above
net assets is supported. Subsequent recoveries in value are recognized up to the original cost value based on either an
increased net asset value or a value above the net asset value if aforementioned conditions are met. Management may
exercise its discration as to what extent, and in which pericd, a recovery in value is recognized. Impaiments of investrments
are presented as impaimment of investments in subsidiaries and other participations and reversals of impairments are
presented as Extraordinary income in the income statement. Impairrnents and partial or full reversals of impaimients for
a subsidiary during the same annual period are determined on a net basis.
3 Refer to Note 4 for more informathon

Hedge accounting for Investments in subsidiaries and other participations

UBS AG applies hedge accounting for certain investments in subsidiaries and other participations denominated in
currencies other than the US dollar, which are designated as hedged items. For this purpose, foreign exchange (FX)
derivatives, mainly FX forwards and FX swaps, are used and designated as hedging instruments.

The hedged risk is determined as the change in the ing amaount of the hedged item arising solely from changes in
spot FX rates. Consequently, UBS AG only designates the spot element of the FX derivatives as hedging instruments.
Changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments attributable to changes in forward points are not part of a hedge
accounting designation. These amounts, therefore, do not form part of the effectiveness assessment and are recognized
in Net trading income.

The effective portion of gains and losses of these FX derivatives is deferred on the balance sheet as Other assets or Other
liabilities to the extent no change is recognized in the camying amount of the hedged item arising from changes in spot
FX rates. Othenwise, the effective portion of gains and losses of these FX derivatives is matched with the cormesponding
valuation adjustments of the hedged item recorded in the income statement and recorded either as a reduction of
impairment of investments in subsidiaries and other participations or as Extracrdinary income.

Revenue and expense transfers with other Group entities

LBS AG pays to and receives amounts from other Group entities in connection with revenue-sharing arangements.
Revenues transferred to and received from Group entities are settled in cash as entity revenue transfers paid or received.
When the nature of the underying transaction between UBS AG and the Group entity contains a single, clearly
identifiable service component, related incorne and expenses are presented in the respective income staternent line item,
e.4. Fee and commission income from securities and investment business and other fee and commission income, Fee and
commission expense or Net frading income. To the extent the nature of the underlying transaction contains various
senvice components and is not cearly attributable to a particular incorne statement line item, related income and expenses
are presented in Sundry ordinary income and Sundry ordinary expenses.

UBS AG receives services from UBS Business Solutions AG, mainly relating to the Group Operations and Technology
Office, as well as certain other services from other Group entities.

LBS AG provides services to Group entities, mainly relating to real estate and selected other Group Services functions.

Senvices received from and provided to Group entities are setthed in cash as entity cost transfers paid or received. Entity
cost transfers paid are presented within General and administrative expenses and entity cost transfers received are
presented within Sundry ordinary income or lncome from real estate holdings.

* Refer to Motes 5 and 7 for more information
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Mote 2 Accounting policies (continued)

Post-employment benefit plans

Swiss GAAP permit the use of IFRS Accounting Standards or Swiss accounting standards for post-employrent benefit
plans, with the election made on a plan-by-plan basis.

LBS AG has elected to apply Swiss accounting standards for the Swiss pension plans in its standalone financial statements.
The requirements of the Swiss accounting standards are better aligned with the specific nature of Swiss pension plans,
which are hybrid in that they combine elements of defined contribution and defined benefit plans but are treated as
defined benefit plans under IFRS Accounting Standards. Swiss accounting standards require that the employer
contributions to the pension fund are recognized as Personmel expenses in the income statemnent. The employer
contributions to the Swiss pension fund are determined as a percentage of contributory compensation. Furthermaore,
Swiss accounting standands require an assessment as to whether, based on the financial statements of the pension funds
prepared in accordance with Swiss accounting standards (Swiss GAAP FER 26), an economic benefit to, or obligation of,
LBS AG arises from the pension funds that is recognized in the balance sheet when conditions are met. Conditions for
recording a pension asset or liability would be met if, for example, an employer contribution reserve is available or LBS AG
is required to contribute to the reduction of a pension deficit (on the pension plan’s Swiss GAAP FER 26 basis).

Key differences between Swiss accounting standards and IFRS Accounting Standards incdude the treatment of dynamic
elements, such as future salary increases and future interest credits on retirement savings, which are not considered
under the static method used in accordance with Swiss accounting standards. Also, the discount rate used to determine
the defined benefit obligation in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards is based on the yield of high-guality
corporate bonds of the market in the respective pension plan country. The discount rate used in accordance with Swiss
accounting standards, i.e. the technical interest rate, is determined by the Pension Foundation Boards.

¥ Refer to Mote 23 for more information

LBS AG has elected to apply IFRS Accounting Standards (IAS 19) for its non-Swiss defined benefit plans. However,
remeasurernents of the defined benefit obligation and the plan assets are recognized in the income statement rather
than directly in egquity.
¥ Refer to the "Consolidated financial statements” section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2024, available under *Annual reparting™
&t whs.comyimvestors, for more information

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are not recognized in UBS AG's standalone financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities may
be recognized for taxable temporary differences. Changes in the deferred tax liability balance are recognized in the
income staterment.

Allowances and provisions for expected credit losses

LBS AG is required to apply expected credit loss (ECL) approaches for credit-impaired and non-credit-impaired financial
instruments in its standalone financial statements.

For the substantial majority of non-credit-impaired exposures within the scope of the Swiss GAAP ECL reguirements,
UBS AG has chosen to apply the IFRS Accounting Standards ECL approach, which is also applied in its consolidated
financial staterments. These exposures include all financial assets that are measured at amortized cost under both
framewaorks, Swiss GAAP and IFRS Accounting Standards, fee and lease receivables, daims arising from Group-intemal
funding presented as Funding provided fo significant regulated subsidiaries eligible as fotal loss-absorbing capacity,
guarantees, imevocable loan commitments, revolving revocable credit lines, and fonward starting reverse repurchase and
securities bormowing agreements. Further information about the ECL appmach under IFRS Accounting Standards is
provided in Mote 1 to the consolidated financial statements of UBS AG.
¥ Refer to the "Consolidated financial statements” section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2024, available under *Annual reparting™
Bt whs. comAmvastors, for more information

For the small residual population of exposures within the scope of the Swiss GAAP ECL requirements, which are not

subject to ECL under IFRS Accounting Standards due to dassification differences, alternative approaches are applied.

= For exposures for which Fillar 1 internal ratings-based models are applied for maasurement of credit risk risk-weighted
assets (RWA), ECL for such exposures is calculated as the regulatory expected loss (EL), with an add-on to scale up to
the residual maturity of exposures maturing beyond the next 12 months. This approach is rmainly applied for brokerage
receivables presented within Due from customers, which generally mature within 12 months. For detailed information
about regul EL, refer to the "Risk management and control” section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2024,

= For exposures for which the standardized approach is applied for the measurement of credit risk RWA, ECL is
determined using a portfolio approach that derives a conservative probability of default (PD) and a conservative loss
given default (LGD) for the entire portfolio. This approach is mainly applied for a small number of loans to large
corporate clients presented within Due from customers.
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Mote 2 Accounting policies (continued)

UBS applies a single definition of default for credit risk managerent purposes, regulatory reporting and ECL, with a
counterparty dassified as defaulted based on quantitative and qualitative criteria.
¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contrel” section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2024, available under “Annual reporting” at
ub.comyfnvestors, for more information

An allowance for credit losses is reported as a decrease in the carnying amount of a finandial asset. For an off-balance
sheet item, such as a commitment, a provision for credit losses is reported in Prowisions. Changes to allowances and
provisions for credit losses are recognized in Credit loss (expensel [ release.

¥ Refer to Mote 13 for more information

Dispensations in the standalone financial statements

As UBS AG prepares consolidated financial staternents in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, UBS AG is exemnpt
from various disdosures in the standalone financial statements. The dispensations indude the management report, the
staternent of cash flows and various note disdosures, as well as the publication of full interim finandal statements,

b) Changes in accounting policies

In 2024, the following accounting policies were adopted in context of the absorption merger of Credit Suisse AG.

In an absorption merger executed retroactively for accounting purposes in accordance with Swiss law, currency effects
arising upon the initial recognition of the merger balance sheet and the activity of the absorbed entity until the legal
effective date of the merger are recorded directly in the Statutory capital reserve in equity to the extent such effects relate
to the translation of financial information presented by the absorbed entity in a currency other than UBS AG's
presentation currency, the US dollar.

The income staternent effect resulting from the initial application of UBS AG's accounting policies and practices to the
merger balance sheet is recognized as a merger adjustment in Extracrdinary expenses.
¥ Refer to Mote 9 for more informatian

) Change in organization

In 2024, UBS continued the integration of Credit Suisse, with a focus on client account migrations, infrastructure
decommissioning and legal entity integration.
¥ Refer to the "Our business model and environment™ section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2024, available under ~Annual
reporting™ &t whe comdnvestors, for more Information

Merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG

In December 2023, the Board of Directors of UBS Group AG approved the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG, and
both entities entered into a definitive merger agreement, as amended on 30 April 2024. On 31 May 2024, UBS AG
formally completed the merger by absorption of Credit Suisse AG. In the standalone financial staterments of UBS AG, the
acquisition has been accounted for retroactively as of 1 January 2024, applying the previous book values of Credit Suisse
AG. The merger balance sheet with assets of USD 306,447m (CHF 257,935m) and liabilities of USD 275,105m
(CHF 231,554m) was recognized, together with a corresponding increase of Statutory capital reserves in equity of
USD 31,343m (CHF 26,381m), of which USD 55,47 1m (CHF 46,690m) was attributed to Capital contribution reserve and
negative USD 24,129m (negative CHF 20,309m) to Other statutory capital resenve.

UBS AG's accounting polices and methodologies were applied retroactively from 1 January 2024. This resulted in an
adjustment, which was recorded in Extracrdinary expenses of USD 598m (CHF S04m).
¥ Refer to Mote 9 for more informatian

Furthermore, the retroactive translation of Credit Suisse &4G's financial information, previously expressed in Swiss francs,
li.e. the merger balance sheet, the accounting policy application and the activity from 1 January 2024 to 31 May 2024)
to UBS AG's presentation currency, the US dollar, resulted in a foreign currency translation effect of USD 2,043m
(CHF 1,851m), which was recorded as a reduction of Other statutony capital resenves within Statutony capital resenses.

Profit and loss information for 2024 includes the full-year profit and loss of the merged Credit Suisse AG. Comparative
full-year profit and loss information for 2023 and the balance sheet as of 31 Decernber 2023 indude pre-merger UBS AG
standalone data only.

Other integration activities

In Jume 2024, following the merger with Credit Suisse AG, UBS AG contributed its subsidiary Credit Suisse Holdings
(USA), Inc. to the entity holding its Americas business, UBS Americas Holding LLC.

In July 2024, UBS Switzerland AG completed its merger by absonption of Credit Suisse (Schweiz) AG.
3 Refer to Note 4 for more informathon
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Note 2 Accounting policies (continued)
d) Events after the reporting period

Thera were no significant events after the reporting period.

&) Risk management

UBS AG is fully integrated into the Group-wide risk management process described in the audited part of the “Risk
management and contral” section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2024,

Further information about the use of derivative instruments and hedge accounting is provided on the following pages
and in Motes 1, 11 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements of UBS AG.
¥ Refer to the "Consolidated financial statements” section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2024, available under “Annual reporting™
&t whs.comdinmvestors, for more infarmation

Note 3a Met trading income by business
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Note 4 Investments in subsidiaries and other participations

The table below provides the camying amount, the equity interest and the registered office information regarding the
investrnents in subsidiaries and other participations.

Exaity inenest
accumdated in % Camying amount in USD m Cennying amaint in CHF m

.13 g 3.12.24 EY R
LIRS Americas Holding LLC 100 31,83 3,484 26,500
UBS Swilzland A5 T w7985 1066 Ba21
UBSEwopeSE W A 3gm
LIES Aaoed Mansgemunt A6 N 2 173
Cther B.73%9 2,976
Tenal irwestrnents in ssbsidiaries and other partidpations 73,108 48,080
Reorganizations

As of 1 January 2024, the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG resulted in an increase in the carrying amount of
Investments in subsidiaries and ather participations of USD 33.9bn (CHF 28.5bn), mainly driven by Credit Suisse Holdings
(USA) Inc. (USD 6.4bn (CHF 5.4bn)), Credit Suisse (Schweiz) AG (USD 13.6bn (CHF 11.5bn)) and Credit Suisse International
{USD 8.2bn (CHF 6.9bn).

In June 2024, as part of the transition to a single US intermediate holding company, UBS AG contributed its investment
in Credit Suisse Holdings (USA) Inc. to UBS Americas Holding LLC, increasing the camying amount of UBS Americas
Holding LLC by USD 6.3bn (CHF 5.7bn).

As of 1 July 2024, the merger of UBS Switzerland AG and Credit Suisse (Schweiz) AG was completed, increasing the
carrying amount of LBS Switzerland AG by USD 13.0bn (CHF 11.7bn).

Impairments and reversal of impairments

In 2024, UBS AG recognized dmpairments of imvestrments in subsidiaries and other participations of USD 543m
(CHF 500m). In 2023, UBS AG recognized Impairments of investments in subsidiaries and other participations of
UsSD 2,715m (CHF 3,343m), mainly due to an impairment related to UBS Americas Holding LLC as the recoverable
amount of this participation declined, mostly due to lower forecasted profits and dividend payouts.

In 2024, UBS AG recognized Reversal of impairments of investments in subsidiaries and other participations of
LSD 2,996m (CHF 3,497m), mainly due to a reversal of an impairment related to Credit Suisse International as the
recoverable amount of this participation increased, mainly due to progressed integration including improved actual
financials and forecasted financial performance.

Dividends and capital repayments

Dividend income from investments in subsidiaries and ather participations of USD €,275m (CHF 5,730m) in 2024 and
UsSD 5,430m (CHF 4,862m) in 2023 was mainly attributable to UBS Switzerland AG, UBS Americas Holding LLC, UBS
Asset Managernent AG and UBS Europe SE. In addition, in 2024 Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited contributed a
substantial dividend.

In December 2024, UBS Americas Holding LLC repaid capital of USD 6.0bn (CHF 5.4bn) and Credit Suisse International
repaid capital of USD 7.0bn {CHF 6.3bn) to UBS AG.

Note 5 Sundry ordinary income and expenses
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Note 6 Personnel expenses

U0 e CHF m
Far the yaer ended Fir thee year ended
ELRF) E1R FRE] 1224 1223
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MNote 7 General and administrative expenses

o iy slhare sendces oty chamed by LBS Group AG or i suboilanies 5577 2805 4911 258

Tetsl genersl and adssinitratie expenses 8097 4118 7,144 3,684
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Note 8 Changes in provisions for litigation, regulatory and similar matters, and other provisions

2024 included litigation expenses of USD 1,005m (CHF 905m), largely in the Mon-core and Legacy business division.
¥ Refier to "Note 18 Provisions and contingent liabilities” in the “Consolidated financial stetements” section of the UBS AG Annual
Report 2024, evailable under "Annual reporting” &t wbscomydimvestors, for more infarmation

Note 9 Extraordinary income and expenses

UEDm CHFm
Far the yesr ended Forr the ypesad ercdesd
31.12.4 EL R b 1M 311223
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Gains from dispasals of subsidiaries and other participations in 2024 induded a gain of USD 169m {CHF 155m) on the
sale of Credit Suisse Senvices India Ltd, a former subsidiany of Credit Suisse AG, to UBS Business Solutions AG.

Accounting policy and methodology alignment effect upon merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse AG

As a result of the merger of UBS AG and Credit Suisse &G, UBS AG's accounting policies and methodologies were applied
to the merger balance sheet of Credit Suisse AG as of 1 January 2024,

This resulted in a merger adjustment of USD S38m (CHF 504m), which was recorded in Extracrdinary expenses. The
adjustment included the alignment of methodologies related to credit allowances and provisions (USD -555m
(CHF =471mj), which Credit Suisse AG generally accounted for by reference to US GAAP compared with UBS AG's
general application of IFRS Accounting Standards, own credit adjustment curves {ISD -537m (CHF -452m)), and smaller
adjustrnents related to the dassification of certain debt instruments at fair value compared to a legacy Credit Suisse AG
amortized cost treatment, and full expense recognition of certain loan origination costs and fees at inception, which were
previpusly deferred and recognized over time by Cradit Suisse AG. These effects were partly reducad by the affects of
electing the fair value option for certain structured TLAC instruments under UBS AG's accounting policies (USD 513m
LCHFfd.?.Zm}J, and smaller adjustments related to the measurement of real estate and the recognition of net defined
enefit assets.
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Mote 10 Taxes
UsDe CHF m
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An income tax expense of USD 461m (CHF 416m) was recognized for UBS AG in 2024, compared with USD 279m
(CHF 255m) for 2023, The income tax expense for 2024 was reduced by a benefit of USD 36m (CHF 32m) in respect of

the utilization of tax losses carried forward, primarily in Jersey and Singapore.

The income tax expense for 2023 was reduced by a benefit of USD 15m (CHF 13m) in respect of the utilization of tax

losses carried forward, primarily in Jersay.

The income tax expenses for 2024 and 2023 related to UBS AG's taxable profits that are not offset by tax losses carried

forward.

For 2024, the average tax rate, defined as income tax expense divided by the sum of operating profit and extracrdinary
incorme minus extracedinary expenses and capital tax, was 8.2% (2023: 15.5%). This reflected the aforementioned
benefit in respect of the wtilization of tax losses carmied forward and also that no tax expense was recognized in respect

of dividends that UBS AG received from its subsidiaries.

MNote 11 Securities financing transactions
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Mote 12a Collateral for loans and off-balance shaet transactions
EIRFE ETRFRE]

Sicured Taital
Secured by collstersl Secured by Secwed by collatersl Sacured by
ather coedit ather credit
collstersl’  enhancessnts®

" _W7HEE
5116

20,403
Tetsl or-halance shest, grats BABE 102479 4515 87,305  HI2TEE 5116 65884 48 71,136 142,184
Mawances M (w9 fa) (1584 (1,740) [ 0 (e (@29
Tetsl ar-halance shest, et BATS LI 4,475 85,721 01,045 5106 65821 48 70,974 141,353

Off-balance sheet

e S WSRO NATE 38R samEsANEAS 880 8135 31360
Imevocable commilmests, oo [ nEm BTE_ 17020 44489 S50 9365 154 9E31 19300

Teral ofi-balance shest T68 108,510 4,004 0,217 143459 5501 04,136 1,044 18961 114,791
1 Wainky inches cash and soniiies. T loudes guaames. ) Indages prire beokorage mangin lending secoisales. and prime bickerage mceivables iladng m secerites Srandeg ramacons. ¢ Pamardy
ransis of amoems dus from subsdinies and other Goug enides. 5 Consisms of o¥ios and business premises, incustrial pronises and e TONgags.

EIR R ) EIR i)

Secured Tarial
Sected by collsteral ‘Secured by Secwed by collateral Securesd by
wther credit ather credil
(¥ it Risl sitate  collstersl’  enhamcesenn’ Resl szste  colalerd’  enhencesens’

On-balance sheet

Duefomesomers gross! 37 @061 4100 960 136BIE  SSAS4 40 35026 9062
of ihich: osfer morigages” 2908 FL e 1804
T L
miu-ahuungu:?:“ I0GEE 3G 24,788 24,748
Total ar-halance shewt, gk 7706 93,061 4100 79281 184148 4306 55454 40 SRATY 119675
Mlerwanices [ ) 37 (1438 (1,580 ] 56} ] (3 (E
Tetsl or-halance shest, et 7,509 97 95} 4,064 77843 1H25ER 4306 55307 A0 50,742 119,486

Ofi-balance sheet
Contingent abiities, gross

N, 17,881 B33

Wm0 46 TR W9 RIS NG

it TSSO ...\ - SO ... | SO - ... NSO, - .. . 3

other equisies 4 4 4 4
Tensl off-batance shest [ 08,538 3,636 27480 130311 461 70,233 063 15959 GEA19

T Mainly Incedes it and secalbks. 3 INOEOes gUINIETs. B IRCRKIES SreE Diotesge margin kagiag el puimve ik de relaning 1o seniits finacing maraciaes. 4 Prmarily
consists of amoems dus from subsdiasies and other Group entibes. 5 Consies of o¥ioe and besiness prombes, incusirial prenises and ofen mongags.

UBS AG standalone finandial statements {audited) 2

548/619



EDINETOOOO

00000000000 0O(E05852)

Mote 12b Credit-impaired financial instruments
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Note 13 Allowances and provisions

Allowances and provisions of USD 4,869m (CHF 4,422m) as of 31 December 2024 included allowances and provisions
for credit losses of USD 1,896m (CHF 1,722m). Allowances and provisions of USD 2,249m (CHF 1,893m) as of
31 December 2023 included allowances and provisions for credit losses of USD 294m (CHF 247m).

The 2024 increase in allowances and provisions for credit bosses of USD 1,602m (CHF 1,475m) included USD 1,551m
(CHF 1,205m) from the merger with Credit Suisse &G as of 1 January 2024, net credit loss expenses of USD 206m
ICHF 179m) recognized in the income statement, primarily related to creditdmpaired positions, as well as USD 155m
(CHF 9mj) other allowances and provision movements without ECL profit or loss impact, mainly from the merger with
Credit Suisse AG, for write-offs and other movements that did not impact the income statement.

Allowances of USD 1,492m (CHF 1,256m) and provisions of USD 1,290m (CHF 1,086m) recognized upon the merger
with Credit Suisse AG, a total of USD 2,782m (CHF 2,342m), include a merger adjustment of USD 577m (CHF 486m)
recognized in the income statement and recorded in Extraordinary expenses. This adjustment largely relates to UBS
accounting policy adoption and method alignment on credit loss allowances and provisions for Credit Suisse AG's
transactions, including those with direct and indirect subsidiaries of UBS AG. UBS AG's Swiss GAAP palicy for recognizing
credit loss allowances and provisions is to the largest extent possible aligned with IFRS, whereas Credit Suisse AG's Swiss
GAAP policy was generally calibrated to US GAAP. Certain allowances and provisions recognized by Credit Suisse AG as
of 31 December 2023 related to Non-Core and Legacy positions were measured by LUBS AG at fair value and not included
in UBS AG's allowances and provisions at the merger date.
¥ Refer Note 2 and Note 9 for more information
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Mote 13a Allowances for credit losses

The
Balane with inthe iin the Riscerasies Foreign  Balence
ol Credit Suisse income income and past Reclesificstions  cumengy asal
LS 1233 A siatement  sialement  Wribeobs  due imensst Jaother  iranslation  39.12.24
Default fk relaling fo on-balance sheet espasures. 333 4er W OGN oM B % W0 1762
_deArborwionltbees 202020202 M 1 2 W o em 8 % Wt
_ Ofwhich epecedowirbeses LA L B e @ A  eemeemeenem LA L o
Other T 1] 1] 1] 1] o L] (1) 13
Total dlowances M1 1,492 7 @n (276} B a6 ] 1,768
Balance
recoghized Inciskie Redissse
upon the  recognized  recognized
Balance  mesger waith in the i the Rectroesiog Foreign  Balence
miol Credi Susse income income ol pist Reclmailications  cumency asal
(HF E R AG glslement  slalement  WeieoMs  due inteses fother  manslation  31.12.24

Mote 13b Provisions

Balance Frowisions
recogized Irncresase Ralsaie e i
the recogeized  recognized Fereign
Balance mﬁﬂwﬂ in the n e w Balance
ol Coefil Suisse income income  dedgnased trarelation wol
LS 31.12.23 MG asbemenl  tatement Recoeeries  Reclassifications ather 1121
Diefai stk relatied Bo oif-balance shest
Memsaederedafvs 60 M @ 0 5 4 -

n 0 L]
1} o 0
Tensl peenitiong 2008 1,250 1,653 (158 [1,658) 1 96 (121} 3101

1 Bedaies o the by LPBES A4 of ther orfer mase in Jane 2024 by the Coadic Suimse supply chain finance fands 1 sedeen all of thelr cetsanding units. Post the expiny of 1 ofle, USD 90n was mobssited om
dorhaarive andiies l'ru-puhtlsidﬂmmm“ﬂmmhm—rhmﬁm'ﬂnmmﬂm“ﬂ'hhmﬁum'un:h-u‘
the LS &5 Annual Gopon 2024, asadable ender *Annsal reporting” an uis M infy 1 Indlates. p o oneroes comacs of USD 3Tm i of 31 Decembor 2024 (31 Deceniber
33 S0 ATm) and O for kst k of UED 103 a5 of 31 Deoember I024 (31 Deceriber 2023 USDE6m).

CHF 3.12.23
Diefau stk refated no off-halance shest

Tensl peewitions 1,680 1,086 1,478 1139 (1,424 1 S 108 1816
1 o by UES AG e 1 Jr 2024 By the Coodt Setise supply chain faance 14605 15 ieccers 3l of ek outwanding enits. Fost She exgiy of e offer, CHF i was rectsiiod from
dhorkaarive abiliies back imio provisions in nolation 10 ivsesions. who Sid nos aooest e sedem prion offer. Refor to “Note 13 Froskions and contingent labiliies” in the *Consolidaied finascial stamments® secion of
the LIES AS Aanual Brport 2024, availabie wedes “Annsal repoiting” atuts formoR T Inclazies p o onesois comeacs of CHF 79 a5 of 31 December 2024 (31 Deoombes 2033:
CHF 39m) and oosl i bols imy of CHF 34m as of 31 Detemier 2004 {31 Decenber 2023 CHF S5m)
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Note 13¢ Development of allowances and provisions for credit losses

LS Toksl
Balance &4 of 31 Decernber 2003 (294)
. Balence reccgnived upon the mesger with Credit Susse AG ol 1024 0 LERY (1BS)
. Met mousrnent hem new and derecogeived mamactins’ . B @

Totsl ECL allowancs mowerments with profit or o impact (206)

Miwessents witheut profit of lost impac farite-off, FX and atherf 155 3

Balance 2 of 31 Decemier 3024 {1,896] (1504 {1,520

Lug-uud;huu "’mu ﬂ:lm;ﬂll-. :wmumnm1m-ﬁ.n-m:::=;*mu ;w;w:ﬁmz

pmnrhﬂnd-pimdhpnummldﬂafri changes in 1h peclile, PO asd LGS0 and unrwinging of the tine walae.
»

4 Ropmewnes 1he changs in the allewanos and posisions mkoed in mastek and :mhmhmwmmﬂ ity ol The ECL alloaamnoy
apinet e grss carying anoum when all or pan of a fnandal asser b desned encolkecribie o foigiven and in faign pech "

Wi L.

(HF it Totsl Siage 1
Balance a3 of 31 December 2023 (2471 {112}

Bulence recognised upon the misger vith Credit Suse AG & of 1.1.24 {1.205) {135
_ Met moverent hom new and derecognioed mamsactions” W %

charges!
Tetsl ECL allowance movements with profit of los impact {179) ki

Movesient withoist profit of loss impaa barite-off, FX snd atherfs F] an
Balance a5 of 31 Decernber 2024 {1,722 205 {1,380

1 Papiess ths inciease and deovase i aloeances and prvdsions nsaking om fnancial incmrers (adeding Jeramees and fackined that originared, puischised af iendwes and 11 1 faal
dermgaician of lnas o facilities on their matery daie of asilia ﬂlp'mﬂmuﬂun-hmn1knd1-lﬁﬂilud-::=;*ndu ;w:w-mu

s relaied 1o danges i model Ty, | changes in changes i 1k polile, P and LSD and urwiagiag of the time walae.
#mﬁhlnhiﬁ:mmhm 4 Represenrs the deaase In abowances and provbinns resehing from srie-a¥s of Se ECL allesana
againet e gross canying amoum when all on par of a fiandal s b desmed encolkeciible o foghen and I frmsaign change wr

Ea%ﬁ}}
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Note 13¢ Development of allowances and provisions for credit losses (continued)

] Totsl
Balance a4 of 31 Decernber 2022

.

{12] 0

Tenal ECL allowance mowerments with profit of los impact @ 7 (139

Bt withcast profil or o impact harite-off, FX snd atherf 1 {1 7

Batance & of 31 Decernber 2003 (133 {4} {1200

1 Fgiesns this incisase and decvase in alosances and prydsions nssking om fnancial nsneres (ededing quaramiees and faciites) that originated, puschaed ar sengwes and fiom 1 daal

derengaician of lnass or facilities on their materhy date o aaies lmﬁm"m1m-h!uﬂ::z;:*m ;w;w-m.n

relaied o changes in model inputs o assuTgions, | changes in changes; in 1h PO and LSD and umwinging of the tire walar.

i-mﬁ:lgllld'lim.l: d:aunphnmtm :mhmhmﬁ:’:‘mﬂﬂg wi-os of e ECL allowanoe
aairet e grss carying anoum when all oo pan of a fnandal asser b desned encolkecribie o foigiven and in fmaign eechangs nes.

115}
Tenal ECL allowance mowerments with profit of los impact (13 @ (159
Movesserds without profit of loss impae harite-olf, FX sad therf 33 1 17
Batance 8 of 31 December 2023 (247} {117 {101)

1 the Inciease and decose i alosances and from fimancial insrarets and facilithes) ihas wenemed and hem 1he daal
m“ﬂjl:ui lnans o faciities o d-m-rqu.numn-.Thgmumnmm?mm':h!umm*mu_?ww;w-MH

relanes inmodel in i in inth PO and LSD and of the time walae.
e e oo b s ot it 1 e s g :mhwmnmwmmnmw.?umm
aairet e grss carying anoum when all oo pan of a fnandal asser b desned encolkecribie o foigiven and in faign .
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Note 13d Balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions subject to ECL

The tables below provide information about ECL exposures, allowances and provisions for financial instrurnents and
certain non-financial instruments that are subject to ECL.

LS .12

Canrying asourn’ ECL allcrmances
Finencial instruments measuned a1 amonizned oost Toldl  Stagel  Stage?  Slaged Total  Slege 1  Sege?  Sged
Cash &nd halances & central banks 69614  E9614
17338

Total or-halance sheet firancial ssurts within the scope of ECL 4BOSM  AEmTM O 3733 30A7 {1763 {14%) {10 (1504)

Off-tualamen shoet (aithin the scope of ECL) Toldl  Stagel  Stage?  Slaged Total  Slege 1  Seage?  Suged
Condngent fabiiles, guoss | ams Mim W oa W #w 0 B
Imewecable commiments, gross . 443 EOBIE 3526 M5 02 04 om0
Ferveard aring Iransactions (securities Enandng transtctionsh LT T [ 0 0 0 0 [

Gedifoe i w4 5000 o
Irewucable comritied prolongation of exating kam M5 M5 [} 0 0 0 0 0

Tenal off-bakance shest financial instruments and credit lines within the scope ol ECL. 141,947 138085 3708 173 {134 (78 [40% (16}
Tetal allwances snd provisions {1.896) {25 f150p (15200

1 T casying amount of financial assets measered af amormized co6l sepeeses The 05l oGS ExpoGers net of 1he iespecie ECL alosanoes. T Indlaces aomponens of accrued | BETERT st within Tae soope of
ECL jmwwm:u:hd-mmtinnLliﬁru.pmmmnhmﬁﬁw.ﬂd-mvﬂhhnp:fﬂlmhmmuhhnmm 4 Inchdes forwand

ST MOVETSE o st st hin e soope of ECL.

L e NALM

Camying asount’

Stage 1
63217
106, 555

Financial insiruments measured & smaortized oost

e
P o b vl s i v g A e B e R e B B

Teksl i hilarece shest firneial sa within the soope of ECL

Off-halsnce sheet (within the scope of ECL) Tolsl  Stage 1
Imevicable

Imevicatde commited prolongation of edsing lans m m
Totl off-bakince shest financial instrurments and credit lnes within the scope of ECL 128,901 125367 3377 157 (123 el (38) ]
Tetal allowances snd provisions 1,723 {205) {138 (1380
1 T camying amoum of financial ases measaied O amored ooe repseents. 1 1ol gross epaws aet of te mspective ECL allswanoos. 2 |ncludes components of aoced intovest aets sithin 1he soope of

ECL :Ihﬂ.num::':un‘drmml-imLBSElu.pi.Gl'rlnldl.‘ilnhﬂl!mnnhm.ﬂ.ﬂlmdm_linuun1hhmlm 4 Inclugies foswand
ST OVETSE Mo Aot sl hin e soope of ECL.
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LS

Finencial instrumments measured & smonized cost

Carsyirny asscunt’

Stage 1

Stage 2

EIN L]

Hage 3

- M H m.. mn‘ w S N —
Dhue from banks
Fcefvablies s securifies financing Iransacions

MWWW:WH&H&W&MM

Ihtpgeluu
Acoved icome sndprepaidepenses.
Other sigutst
Tensl ar-halance shest firancial stsets. within the soope of ECL 320,783

H hﬁ’éég

56,0872
69,381

e

450

B

218
EJCRENS

Off-buslemce shaeet fwithin the scope of ECL Talal

mm&mgm 19,900

Forward suafig ransactions secuites fnancing wansactions 950

CI'HI'I. hu 41T

1907

—

Tedsl aiff-bakance shest financial instruments and cedit lines. within the scope of ECL H.IH

o507

1,918

135 (22 (2]

Tenal allowances and provisions.

(239

133 (#1120

1 T carying aroait of Snandal sets massLne & ATOriosd CE IpRSET i il TS EOORiEe ne of th nspectve EOL dlowanos. 2 Inckides companents of maen moasatks fi fom UBS Goep AG
aned sebskdiaries in the UBS Group and othes assos within the soope of ECL. Bofer i Mote 172 i mase infomation. 3 Incudes fonsand saring reverss repuschase agroemmens. within the scope of ECL

Total on-balance sheet firancial assets within the soope of ECL

Off-halance sheet (within the scope of ECL) Totsl  Stage 1

Stage 2

Hage 3

Imevocable

- s
Forward staffing transactions (securties fnanding wnsachionsy 786

“Credit Enes ]
Imevocable commitied prolongation of edting hans 1,605

2603

s

T7E
1605

111?_.

Teasl off-bakance shest finsncil instiumenls snd dedit lines within the scope of ECL 60075

B35

1,615

15

{51}

20 18]

Tenal allwances snd provisions

(247}

[iEE] a4 o)

T The Canying amount of FIRancial 3ssets MEsErnd & ATOrizod cos! sptesEs The (00 GIoGS CAPOSETE Bet oF 1he Rspectiet ELL Jlosances, T ouses,

and sebeidiaries in the UBS Group and othes assers within the soope of ECL. Sefer 1 Mot 1 7 i mose information. 3 Incudes fonsad saring e
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Note 13e Financial assets subject to credit risk, by rating category

The table below shows the credit guality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s internal credit
rating system and year-end stage classification.

Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category

LD EIRFN]
Rt catying
amount
Credit- Tl gross (manimumn
impaised  camying ECL 1]
Ratinng calegery [l -3 45 8 913 (defauhed)  smount allowances ooudit rigk)
i
Cash snd halarces & central hanks 69,375 Fi 3 ] L] 0 69514 L] BOE14
of i stge 1 9375 215 i g a & 8REN [ SREN
Chie from banks 0,08 E295T 150 1572 14 0 9257 (14 06243
B S - 1. = N N (T2 O . 1
of i stge 7 & [ I 2 g Eid f il
Ruceivablis bom sacurities finandng transsciions. 50,251 B5H 1333 HTH 1,513 o 17340 (] 117,338
of ik stige 1 SRI51 35S 23 MM 153 8 Nz 7 117338
Chi# from culsomers 5426 52373 18711 B4pE2 7,136 333 150,665 {Uﬁ 148,955
_ofwhdamge? AN LA N8 eRls S48 0__MisO 10y et
| ofwhich: sage 7 R S = - 7. - . (L Y - B ..
of ik stage 7 & & f) d 2 3 3i L LE33
mwnnﬁmmm-ﬁm;
okl les-alsorting capacity [
o whichy stage 1 i)
losns i3
of i suge ! a
o ity stage 7
o At e 5 o B s t
Acorued income and prepaid expenses 6 [] [
aof ihich stage ! & BCCI— g
o which sage 7 & K} i) Ii]
Diher 2szets EL 416 a 1Lus 16 3 17 (5] LT
_afwhig gmge T My a8 a LA L] e 414 [ — L1
of il stage § [ [ i g [ § [ i 7
Total in seope of ECL sssets | ECL smounts by stanes 135870 205,306 33,837 ML36E 1033 3538 401,265 (1,762 489,504
Off-balance sheet positions and credit lines subject to expected credit loss by rating category
[ Iz
Tetal off-
balance sheet
Sposu
Credit-  (madmum

] 3 45 68 913 (defaubied)  coeditrisk) ECL peowhion:

Off-balance dheet Mﬁ‘i the soope of ECL)

Contingent BES 3204 m
o Mﬂ#f LAl 4
of whidh stage 7 ) 0
o ihicy stage Fil el

Imevocable commitments, grods 0,045 (128)
of inhich stage ! 4889 N
o i 0

i e 5 I S g
Fisrveaid 4xaring iranssctions (securities Enanding transictions] L] o (UL 0 1] 21,954 0
of ik stige | [ & 8 22054 & J 2254 &
Credit nest 7 MBS T a5 115 3 3} ]
o il suage 1 A" . — g
ol gage . U SUUROT SOOI S - L -
of ik stige 7 7 [l [ g & £ £ &
Imevocable commited prolongation of edsting leans [ 245 1] Q [ [] 45 [
of il stage 1 [ 245 [ g [ d M5 [
Tedsl aifl-balance shest financisl instruments and credit lines 18,160  SBA4B6 14033 35511 15,626 130 141,947 {134)
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Note 13e Financial assets subject to credit risk, by rating category (continued)
Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category

CHF it ETRFF]
Rt catying
amount
Credit-  Totsl gross (maimim
impaired  camjing Bl epoiweto
Ratieng categery [l - 45 8 913 (deluhed)  smount allowances ooudit rigk)
Fingncial instrufments fessured &l smonized cost
Cash and belances & central banks 62,900 196 I [ 0 o 63217 [ 63,217
of il stge T 62588 [ Fi 7 [ ¢ &7 [ 2207
Diie from banks 9175 753 1363 1,427 112 o BrAN [{E] 81,39
of ik stage 1 Gi7  FRRM M7 4% 5= 8 E7iag iF] 7327
Ceebremer g R - g Frd o kil
Receivables bom securisies finandng ransaciions. 45633 3% 1080 170G 1,383 O 106,557 (] 106,555
of i stige 1 J5E3T NI M0 058 1aEd g s 7] 108,555
Due-from cussomers 4928 47560 1B 445 SA3B4  G4R 30 136818 (1,553 135,266
Coefwdidegage L AR SR4AD | M600 SN 482 B S .. LT
_ofwhidagel L i 3 Los3 LS5 [ [ L5685
of ik stage 3 & & Fi) a 2 T - LEE
Fiending provided 1o significant requlated subsiiasies eligible a
ot les-abworting capadity L 1] ] L] 0 39662 21 30,640
of il stage 1 [T [ d [ T [ e
Korgage laans 1 4 s 4 133 187 7660 (] 7,661
of ik stige 1 z 5 (478 3813 1A7F g FIse fFd ZIsE
of whidl stge 7 ) B S N B B/ A |
of ik stige 7 o [ Fi a a 183
Accrued income and prepeid expenses 3 137 F. TE2 65 2807
B T .. S . ST N, N - A AT
of il stage F [ [ 5 7 K] g
Oither assets 316 7 7S 14 1472
| ofwhideaaget ... At Fm a7 LAs M L&
of ity stage § [ [ i i a Z
Tensl in weope of ECL assets | ECL amounts by stages 123,300 185430 30727 01050  03ER 444,518
Off-balance sheet positions and credit lines subject to expected credit loss by rating category
CHF it EIRF]
Teilal olf-
balance sheet
aposun
Coedil-  (mapdssum
impained  epesure b
-1 -3 45 68 913 (defslted) ot risk) ECL pronisions
the soope of ECL}
Contingent kabillies, gross 5171 11863 2910 1350 62l 7] 31,7713 [
N T T T TR e
of ik stage 7 & k] & i 10w J 1M &
of ik stige 7 ) B T T e S T
Ievicabe comiritments, grois 1314 9553 912 GESS 13464 ] [ECH ({7
o which suage 1 LFM 408 AS80  AEF IRTET A EEL T
of ik stage 7 [ 150 I xE 2me J E¥ a7
of A e 7 - 5
Forvand staring transactions {securities Enanding trantacions] [] 1] 0 20844 [1] 0 20,844 []
of i stie 1 [l [ 0 meEd [ J TEd 7
Credit lines 6 3ES4 Tz 3198 04 3 35,680 L]
B — & FLERT L & N -1 - B &
B A LBV A g ¢ LA g
of ik stage 7 [ g g a 7 5 5 7
Imevocatie commimed prolongation of edsting leans [ m [ a o [ 2 [
of i stage 1 [ 227 g o [ [ 22 [
Teasl aff-balance shest finscal instiuments and dedd ines 16491 53,111 12744 3228 14190 118 128,901 {123

¥ Refer to "Mote 10 Financial assets at amortized cost and other positions in scope of expected credit loss messurement” and "Naote
20 Expected credit loss measurement” in the “Consolidated finandal statements” section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2024,

avallable under “Annual reporting” at s, comyfnvestors, for more information about ECL in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards

UBS AG standalone finandial statements {audited) i

556/619



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Note 13e Financial assets subject to credit risk, by rating category (continued)
Financial assets subject to credit risk by rating category

L0 ETRFFE]
Ml camying
St
Credit-  Totsl gross {meximum
impaiced  cannying Bl epoiure b
=1 -3 45 & 913 (defaubef)  smount  slowances coesdil rigk)
Fingncial instrufments fessured &l smonized cost
Cash and balares o central hanks 40,186 262 1] [ 1] [T [] 49,440
of i, stage T 45 1% 7 [ [ [ g 45449 [ 5445
Due froen banks 1128 S,671 [7E] [7] 13 0 50,0H7 [E] 56,082
of wlich: stage | 1178 537 &3 457 [Z] & SE0ET ] 087
Rieceivables booms securifies finanding transscions 2453 MMG6 5285 15507 1091 0 6a3E3 12 69,381
of wiich: stage | A5 M4 5286 Iaso7  LOST [ E [ &9 381
Dt from eustomers 1,551 43831 10578 4HEM 2607 3| 107665 207 07,463
o ihich saage 7 g 1 M5 442 55 1294 LS 1275
i — g . L g A2
Funding provided 1o Sgnificant regulined subsidiaries eligible =
wotal capacity 0 maB 1] [ 0 0 29403 (22 29,380
o which: stage | [T [ [ [ [T e 8380
lasng L] 1 e 1M5 1,039 LRE] 5,116 [ 5,116
I L L 658 L2 nme . LN 4597
o wibich stage 7 ] & ) 3 & 8 3 o &
Al g 5 B B B B8
Aeorued income and prepaid expanues 156 143 7 ] 54 ] 3,000 [ 3,000
B — LT HE L L I (<~ [ 289!
o hich stge 7 g [ 4 2 k] ¢ & [ &
Dither sty ] ] 14 (=3 ] 2 a0 [F] 918
of which: stage I R i 172 L e & .8 SE . 518
of ich: stage F ] [ i g & 2 2z fr.] [
Total in scope of ECL assets | ECL armounts by stages 75496 152973 17806 6947 4AN & 3 (33 320,789
Off-balance sheet positions and credit lines subject to expected credit loss by rating category
LD ETRFEE
Tatal camying
Amount
Coesfil- (masisum
i'l'lﬂl'!ﬂ ExpaLne o
Rating calegory -1 -3 45 68 913 (deleslled)  creditsk)  ECL penision
Of-balsnce dhaet ol ECL
Conlingent grass TEES 9045 1w 1977 i [] 31,360 [}
o which: shage Jrese  BNE 22012 1987 s g A &
_ ol i sage 7 . — SR A A LL L SRR - S |,
of il stage § [ g J [ & ] ] [
Iimevecable commitmets, gross 1077 5488 477 1515 5908 ] 19,900 1561
o hich stage | LIZF 5489 475 2407 4639 [ 18477 (a3
o il soage 7 — B A S o8 LEE SN~ =S 1
o i stage 3 [ g g [ & 73 7 2
Fervand saning iransactions (securities Enanding transactions] 9,062 M [T] 135 [ 0 8,500 []
o wich stage | 2067 219 & 135 & [ 2500 a
Crenit ines [T 19 4405 142 1 9,177 [0}
T O 36N M8 4483 IIE 0 a4 ]
of i stige 7 [ 34 45 Ej 245 & Ei] g
Imevocatie comritsed prolongation of exdsting loans o 1907 1] 0 '] a 1,907 o
of lch stige | [ 1907 g ] [ [ L8 [
Total off-ballance shest financial instruments and cedi ines TEE AR I 5in 305 8 72,484 1601
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Note 13e Financial assets subject to credit risk, by rating category (continued)
Financial assets subject to credit risk, by rating category

CHF v ETRFFE]
Ml camying
St
Credit-  Totsl gross {meximum
impaiced  cannying Bl epoiure b
=1 -3 45 & 913 (defaubef)  smount  slowances coesdil rigk)
Fingncial instrufments fessured &l smonized cost
Cash and balares o central hanks 41,400 1] 1] [] [ 0 MEn [] 41,520
of i, stage T A4 Z [ [ [ g ALE [ ALEX
Diie from banks 950 45175 1] = ikl ] L] 47,204
of wlich: stage | 9% 45i7S a3 7T} 1" [T F] 4 47204
Risceivaiblis brom securisies financing ransscicns 1|4 MW 4 130 918 0 5830 i 58,308
of wiich: stage | 1874 7% 4449 11057 gig [ [ i
Dt from eustomers 1906 606H 8903 M09 1194 I\ 9En [ 90451
of which stage | UL T L R T
ol e 7 SR N S AN .~ . S L LT
of il stage § [ [ i) i a 27
mwwmﬁ:mmw&;
0 M 1] [ 0 47
ufuuu&-uger 0 MAHE [ [ [ M7
lnang 1] 1 552 LT E1r] 4,306
ol it age £ L = | ANE
of ik sage 7 ] & ) E; & 5
B o e S I RSt Sassr e S
Acesued income and prepaid expenues 131 1356 E13 TIE 45 1525
. ofwhich: suage £ S A== - R A5
o hich stge 7 g [ 4 f 2 7
Other assuts 17 151 iF] 3 7 7
_afwhihamgel W W w7 L2
of ich: stage F ] [ i g & [
Total in scope of ECL assets | ECL amounts by stages 3,548 18751 14305 SA4E 4050 270,005

Off-balance sheet positions and credit lines subject to expected credit loss by rating category
CHF o R ]

im I'Ei: EpEUre b
o= -3 45 58 8-13 MF:HEI el risk)  ECL proision

Contingent gess MRS 7ENE &7 1664 64 3 26,395 [E]}
of wiich stage | R - 11 N d EL . i
_ ol i sage 7 . — e & F & g L.
of il stage § [ i J [1] [ E] E] [
Imevocabie comrritmens, gress 990 4&m 397 2117 502 2 16,749 =]
o hich stage | E T T~ T T ¢ 15500 29
ol ik sage I . — e e W e L L L . )
o i stage 3 [ i J [1] [ 17 7 [7]
Forveand 1taing transsctions (securities Enanding transactions] 7,637 185 70 114 [] 7 7,996 [
o wich stage | 7627 185 7 7] [ I 7996 [
Credit lines 0 3083 185 ATEd 1,198 1] 81X L]
B — & o5 124 amr L L B a
of i stige 7 [ F] 47 7 b i 77 [
Imevocable commited prolongation of exdsting leans L] 1,605 a a o 5] 1,605 L]
of lch stige | & LS g [ [ 0 L&DS [
Total off-bakance sheet financial instruments and ced lines AST 17,190 6090 16 6494 15 60,375 151}
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Note 14 Trading portfolio and other financial instruments measured at fair value

UED = CHFm
A2 R b ELR Fl ] 2.3

Assets
Teading portilio ssets 148,686 124,682 135,022 104,943
o 2 e e e e Lo
- Hmmf'?“.“.“... e .

of i precious mietad s otker iyl commodites g5 2735 4705

Todsl oy measuved o Iair ualue 148,586 124,653
_ofwhich: (b vabe decked abrg g velombor e A28 a0 2537
oo i sescunivier aligribl for repurchare transacnte iy accorovce wit Sty regelasions” 15547 12067

Liabilities

Tensl Galslities. fieasured o {6t value 132,216 108,138 120,065
oo il Mk e e wedigy o vkt ol TIZMT a5858 rorasr
1 Ingudes moaey makn pape. 1 Comskits of high-quality s debt seauities than ame cligitle for epuichas wanmdions at the Swiss National Bask oo othes comaal basks. ¥ Rrler 10 Mot 20 for mose
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Teal notioaal

31.02.23

b
E

0.3

18.1

Credit derivative contraces

7 S
JTolrensesgs B

0.4

1.7

Exchange-iraded options [E]
Tenal

23

Tetsl behore netsing 1738

1&:1

o il raching cleratives I7rg

feg
16z
ag
ag

Mesting with cash collaseral payables | necebisbles.

Replacement welue netting [LELN]

11317

Teksl s retting 1.9

4.0

aF

o iy e client coumispurties 18T

a5

"1 Etuscaned evmbedzed ConleiEEs AT HESSTIS o0 (e T [GIanCe ¥ s, 25 1hel hos CoRITacts and an escleced from (his Tatle. The replacement valtes and siaipd Maronal wrkess of Hr Sorhamees wes
o marerial for the pesiods preseeed. ¢ Tosal novional wakses indede USD 15.50m (31 Decomber 3003 USD 13,8 relating oo derhaises that ane cleand tough sithes a conmal counterpany of an exchange.
4 Motional amoupts edaed 10 RS RNg CONTTCTS
inoead by USDH . 7om aranpuised with 31 Decenba 2003, mainly reflecing the offect of 1 merger of LES AG and Credh Saken AG, and higher bisines volims in e kresiment Bk . & indutes derivatha

Thee tair ke of these desivarives net of the comesponding cash margin wers not naienal foo amy of the pasiogs
Inan cammiments with notiotal valses of USD 23he a5 of 31 Decerber 1038 (31 Decmber 2003 USD Sha) ans negasies

¥ Incleres fwward ram

roplacement wikies of USD 137w (31 Decembar 1033 S0 2 lm).
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Mote 15 Derivative instruments (continued)!

LR FEL) 30223

Teasl 13 1
Tedsl behore neting 157.9 154.5 25,536 106.8
of which saclrcevbeatiees  MF0 MRF M4 rEz
o el K sl cemvad LG 3 wlualon madel fid] 1519 158 TI2E

o i TGS T ETT T B oG RO T e
. Hm#ﬂwmwmwi .".m.mm. 7 .
Mestinng with cash collateral payables | receivables 18.4) 213 {15.1)
Risplacement welue netting 1 {1195 [E]

Tetal sher retting 19.9 127 85

T Efucared T the s b shiset b a6 thel b comtracts and ane esdced from thes table. The replacemen values and sefared novional wekies of thes Servaries e
o mrarerial for ohe peiods prosesmed. 2 Toal nersional walees inciude CHF 14T (31 Decerber 2003: CHF | Lt sekating o desatives miat are otard thecegh sither & contral coamierpamy of an exciange.
Thee taie ke of these i o 1 r g cash rargin wers not manierial fon any of fie presamec, jlﬂml‘uwdmm 4 Motianad amoants rebaied 5 inest rane ConrCs
Increased by CHF 3. 5 compared sith 31 Decerber 2023, mainly reflecting e e¥ect of the mesger of S5 A5 and Credit Sebse 85, and higher butiess voleme in the 8 Inchud lan
commitmess with national valees of CHF 20ta a5 of 31 Deoember 2002 (31 December 2023 CHF San and regative seplacomen valees of CHF 125m (31 Deconiber 30230 CHF 1Tl
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LD

Diebst inssuments

T S —

_ o i i for sse
Ewlysiments

Tetal firancisl investments

oo v sescuiitier aligrible for rapurchure transacste i accorolvice Wit Sty regelations?

A8

1 (uaitied parsdiparion
e TaRsaions a1 1 Swhis Manional Bank or other oo anks

T i in which UBS &G bodss 10% o mose of the il capital or bas ar kst 10% of 1ol woting righs. 3 Conshis of bighequalitg ligeid debe seourices tha an eligisls fo

MM 31223

CHF

Carepng ameurd Feirvée  Canying amaunt

Dbt insrumerits

_ofwhich heltomay

o O ol ol
B

o iy gealiad particiuations |
Cther

... N ... -
L LT -
T L. .

L

Teasl firancisl invesiments

36,158

o iy sevominier gl o repurchane fransecnies i accoolaece etk iy

A2 M 515

1 (uaitied parsiparion
e AR a1 1 Swhis Manional Bank or other oo anks

T i in which UBS &G bodss 10% o mose of the wtal capital or bas ar kst 10% of 1ol woting righs. 3 Conshis of bighequalitg ligeid debe seouries tha an eligiols fo

MNote 16b Financial investments by counterparty rating - debt instruments

sl m

39224 EY R

Irrigsrial LS rating'

—— 31‘M1 P LT s b R

1 Bafer 22 Mot 19 ol noee Inkmation,

Mote 17a Other assets

USDm

IZM 1223 0.12.23

Other
R o B
Tedsl cither asesst

13,918

3005

1 Fafer 1o hem | in Ko BED to ae UES AG comolidaned Srandal snenens i he UES A5 Antwal

2024 for mom inlematon.

1 Indacis mmpanns and
subsidianies in T UES Geowp and ooer asts omaling LED 2,072m (CHF 1,972m} a6 of 31 Demier 2024 S0 918m [CHF 772n) a5 of 31 Derenzer 30230, siiich ame within the soope of exped aedin ks
anmanzing. Eafer 1o Koo 134 for mos information.

of other eoeivables dat tam USS Group 4G

UBS AG standalone finandial statements {audited)

562/619



EDINETOOOO
00000000000 0O(E05852)
oOoOooodn

Note 17b Other liabilities

USDm CHF m

Iz M E LA ] E LI el 1223

of which: oher pupablir doe o DS Grovp AT and subsidianes in the LB Group LEES a0 L7z 758
Tietal cither lisbilities 5,196 1,755 4,718 1,475
1 Enclates capital i pagables.

Note 18 Pledged assets

The table below provides information about pledged assets, other than assets placed with central banks related to
undrawn credit lines and for payment, dearing and settlement purposes (31 Decernber 2024: USD 1.1bn (CHF 0.9bn),
31 Decernber 2023: USD 3.5bn {CHF 2.9bn)) and those pledged in connection with securities financing transactions (refer
to Note 11 for more information).

M ERN ]
Camying amount of Carrying amount of
LS phedged assets plediged aisets
e, 12 LN
Fropersy® 2,025 2187
Tesal pledged saets 14,137 10,138

1 Inchudes saoities piedged T deriartve mandions, wheit the mplosne valies ane nanaged on 3 porolio 23Sk s0eT O RIS and pooic s, and herrioe thes & oo cied eboonchiz bewom
thes spacific collaneral pldged and the asocined Rasdiy. T Thess plecged maperies save as oolaienal for an exkming momgage loan fom VRS Switmiand AG, the camying amsns of which wes UED 2.521m as
of 31 Dexemiber 1024 (USD 1E04m a5 of 30 December 1023

M ERN P

Camying amount of Carrying amoust of
CHF phedged assets pladged sisets
e ... ... SO
Prepersy 1,839 1,841
Tenal pledged assets 11538 8,584

1 Inchides saasites pledged o deriartve Atk whsit the pacenen valies ane Managed of 3 parmiolio 235 wveet O RIHTGTES A EoficT hyss, and herke thes & oo ciad whboonehiz e
the spacific collaneral plodged and the ssedaied ably. 3 Thess pledged propories seve as oollaivral foe an eaksting mongage baan fom USS Switzrland A, 1he camylag amourn of waiich was CHF 2,289 as
of 31 Doxmmiber 3024 [CHF 2,360m as of 31 Decamber 2073},
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Note 19 Country risk of total assets

The table below provides a breakdown of total non-5wiss assets by credit rating, after netting of assets and liabilities as
recognized on the balance sheet but before other risk mitigants. The credit ratings reflect the sovereign credit rating of
the country to which the ultimate risk of the underlying asset is related. The ultimate country of risk for unsecured loan
pasitions is the domicile of the immediate borrower or, in the case of a legal entity, the domicile of the ultimate parent
entity. For collateralized or guaranteed positions, the ultimate country of risk is the domicile of the provider of the
collateral or guarantor or, if applicable, the domidile of the ultimate parent entity of the provider of the collateral or
guarantor. For mortgage loans, the ultimate country of risk is the country where the real estate is located. Similarly, the
ultimate country of risk for property and equipment is the country where the property and equipment are located. Assets
for which Switzerland is the ultimate country of risk are provided separately at the bottom of the table in order to provide
a recongiliation to total balance shest assets.
¥ Refer to the "Risk management and contrel” section of the UBS AG Annual Report 2024, available under “Annual reporting” at
s commfnvestors, for more information

Oafication Intemal URS rating’  Description Service SEP Fitch LIS i
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3
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3 e e -t 1 e e e e e e e e e e e e St - e e
4 Baal 1 Baal OB+ I BEE: BOE+ to BEE 18,000

5 Basd BEE— BEE- 6ETE
& Gbinensenmgade Bl 00+ . BiE
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B O 1|1~ M = <1 S <1< N I
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Distregsed Dedault Defaulted [} [} 119
Subtotal
Switzerland

607,688
183,608
Total assets - __ T
1 Inoemmal ratiags ane mapped 1o i enenal ratiags in e with B bk patlished in the "Rk managenen and control” sxction of T USS Goug &G Aanual Sopan 3004,
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=

BEE-
BE
A

Qo= C

Erde oo

T Incomial fatings ane mappes 10 e axemal ralings 15 Be wilh 746 10k pablsaed in the ~REL Masagerel a30 Contrnl Sction of The LS5 G &G Al Boporl 2004,
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Mote 20 Structured debt instruments

The table below provides a breakdown of finandial liabilities designated at fair value that are considered structured debt
instruments.

UsDm CHm
M s nzH s
Fdawbondswhancoredeowrs 0000 BEM R TEE AT

CCommodgnked T e a3 3118

Finked 1,253 639 1,138 569
mmmuasmmmwumuw 4908 i 4,538 1,382
Stuciured over-the-counter (0TC) debt instrumeents. T e wm nwe T
Totsl firnancisl Rablities desigrated at kair value 102,501 BOLESS 93444 G6B,058

1 Inclages peaciows metalwinked cobt nsmumens swed. Rt m Kme 21 4o mose isformacion

In addition to Financial liabilities designated at fair value, certain structured debt instruments were reported within the
balance sheet lines Due to banks, Due fo customers and Bonds issued. These instruments were bifurcated for
measurement purposes. As of 31 Decernber 2024, the total carrying amount of the host instruments was USD 8,258m
(CHF 7,499m) (31 December 2023: USD 7,555m (CHF 6,359m)) and the total camying amount of the bifurcated
embedded derivatives was positive USD 63m (CHF 57m) (31 December 2023: positive USD 58m (CHF 49m).

Note 21 Funding eligible as total loss-absorbing capacity at the UBS AG level

LED = CHF m
31.12.4 EL R b 1M 311223
Fuunding eligible as total lne-stiorbing capadty at the UBS AG leve induded in:
Funding receved from UBS Geoup AG designated at fakvaee 4=\ anl asw 218
S s T “ﬁ T e
Tenal funding eligible = totsl lous-sheorbing capacity i the UBS AG level! 113,401 102,580 58,381
mmrmqu.ﬂdmmmjt;Tmmum:umﬁt?n:mummmslnmamm:ﬁmm

mgulaimey infosTanion” section of this repart 4o mone inlomation bt Swiss SRE going and gone concem capial
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MNote 22a Share capital

UBS AG shares issued and outstanding

As of 31 December 2024, UBS AG's share capital of USD 386m (CHF 380m) consisted of 3,858,408,466 fully paid-up
reqistered issued and outstanding shares with a nominal value of USD 010, which each entitle the holder to one vote at
the meeting of the shareholders of UBS AG, if enterad into the share register as having the right to vote, as well as a
proportionate share of distributed dividends (unchanged from 31 December 2023). UBS AG's shares are not subject to
any restrictions or limitations on their transferability. All shares were held by UBS Group AG.

Conditional share capital

ﬂ.; S:;n-f MB; December 2024, the following conditional share capital was available to the Board of Directors (the BoD) of
- Conditional capital in the amount of USD 38,000,000, for the issuance of a maximum of 380,000,000 fully paid
registered shares with a nominal value of USD 0.10 each {unchanged from 31 December 2023), to be issued through
the voluntary or mandatory exercise of conversion rights and / or warrants granted in connection with the issuance of
bonds or similar financial instruments on national or international capital markets. This conditional capital allowance
was approved at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 26 November 2014, having originally been approved at
the Annual General Meeting (the AGM) of UBS AG on 14 April 2010. The BoD has not made use of such allowance.

Conversion capital

As of 31 Decernber 2024, UBS AG had conversion capital in the amount of USD 70,000,000, for the issuance of a
maximum of 700,000,000 fully paid registered shares with a nominal value of USD 0.10 each. The issuance of fully paid
registered shares anly occurs through the mandatory conversion of claims arising upon occurrence of one or more trigger
events under financial market instruments with contingent conversion features issued by UBS AG. The creation of this
conversion capital was approved at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (the AGM) held on 23 April 2024.

Meon-distributable reserves

Mon-distributable reserves consist of 50% of the share capital of UBS AG, amounting to USD 193m (CHF 190m) as of
21 December 2024 (unchanged from 31 December 2023).

MNote 22b Significant shareholders

The sole direct shareholder of UBS AG is UBS Group AG, which holds 100% of UBS AG shares. These shares are entitled
to voting rights. Indirect shareholders of UBS AG induded in the table below are the direct shareholders of UBS Group AG
lacting in their cwn name or in their capacity as nominees for other investors or beneficial owners) that were registered
in the UBS Group AG share register with 3% or more of the share capital of UBS Group AG as of 31 December 2024 or
as of 31 December 2023. The shares and share capital of UBS AG held by indirect shareholders, as shown in the table
below, represent their relative holding of UBS Group AG shares. They do not have voting rights in UBS AG.

31224 3.02.23
LIS v, en ebhere vl Share capited hefd  Sheves hedd (%) Share capital hedd  Shares held (%)
Significar divect sharshalder of LBS AG
UEBS Group AG E 00 EL= 100
Significant indirect shareholders of UBS AG
DAC [Cede & Co., Hﬁﬂ'ﬂt" 5 & 9 7
. lbmmuunmm "
" The LIS secuiies cloaring oranatian DIC (Ceoe & o), Nem Tork, - The Depashory Tnet Congats”, i a Us seaulies cRasng nganizrson.
.24 30223
(Pt e Helveve dnoicated’ Share capited hefd  Sheves hedd (%) Share capital hedd  Shares held (%)
Significar divect sharshalder of LBS AG
UEBS Group AG 380 00 EL 100
Significant indirect shareholders of UBS AG
DC [Cede & Co.), Mew York® 5 & 1B 7
ot R L Lo
"V T# L seou iR Caing cogMIGaNian DIC (oo & Co.), Rim YOk, B 4 US se0isties dearing Srganzation.
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Note 23 Post-employment benefit plans

a) Assets related 1o defined benefit plans ushm HF

ERFRT] EIRSE] HALM ERFRL)
Met delined benefil assets for defined benelit plans' o8 344 388 90
Tetsl ity for defined benefit plars 8 44 388 200

1 A of 31 Doceraber 1034, USD £2Em {CHF Z8Em) mainly seiecod S0 362m (CHF 339m) for the UES UC dofined benefit plan, USD 35m (CHF 33m) for the Coecl Suisa & usmsny defined benoth plan, USD 120
|CHF 20m] for the UBS US Invesiron Bank detined benefit plan and WSO Gm (0HF Gm) for the Credic Seisee Swiss pomion plan_ & of 31 Decerber 2073, USD 384m |CHF 290m) mainly reflected USD 341m
|CHF ZETm) for the UES UK defined ot plan and USD 3m 0RF 2m) for the USS LS cefined benefh plan.

b) Lisbilities relsted to defined benefit plans USD m CHF

ETRFE]] EIRFEE] FIRFET] FTREEL
Prowision far Suits pension plans ] 0 [ 0
Mt chfirned Beenesit lisbiities for celinad tenefil plin e 6 55 55
Tetal prevision far defined benets plare &1 & 55 56
Banik accounts at UBS and UBS debt insrurments hedd by Swiss pension funds m n 266 10
LUBS deiusive financial isteusents habd by Swits perion funds BT Y] 14 m
Totel Babiities. reated 1o defirned benefit plans k] 12 335 34

T A5 of 31 Deconbar 2024, USD 61 (CHF 55m) il elecies US0 35m (CHF 32ni] for e UBS U5 plars, US0 12m (CRF 11) fr 1he US5 UK pian aed USD Bm (CFF 700 Jai the UES Taman gln. & 0

31 Demmber 133, USD B6m (CHF 56mp mainly reflecied USD 37 (CHF 3 1m)do the UBS LS plns, USD bém 4CHF 12m) for the UES UK play and USD 1 1m [CHF Sm) for the UES Taiwan pln.

c) Swwiizs pengion plan 5D m CHF m
A o or for the year ended
EY R N3 3.12.24 31,1223
Penion plan suphe’ 1,155 3 1,085 188
ey T T e
(Change in economic benefit | (obligation) recogrized in the incose sixtement o 1] L] ]
Total pension expense recognized in the income sissement within Personnel experdes 184 3 163 28

1 The pension plan sarples s deemmined in aocondance with Swiss GASF (FER 28) and consias of the sesrve for e udunsion in aset ke and 3 prepaid comtenion. The iesome foo 1 teouasion il o
TEpTESERE an e0anormic benedit for LSS 45 in aonsrtanas with Seis GASF (R 16) a5 of both 31 Decersber 2024 and 31 Deoemizer 20323

LBS AG has elected to apply FER 16 for its Swiss pension plan and IFRS Accounting Standards (A5 19) for its non-Swiss
defined benefit plans. However, remeasurements of the defined benefit cbligations and assets for non-Swiss defined
benefit plans are recognized in the income statement rather than directly in equity.

In 2024, an expense of USD 277m (CHF 243m) was recognized in the income statement, driven by expenses of USD 130m
(CHF 116m) related to defined contribution plans and USD 148m (CHF 127m) related to defined benefit plans. In 2023,
an expense of USD 124m (CHF 115m) was recognized in the income statement, driven by expenses of USD 76m
(CHF 68m) related to defined contribution plans and USD 49m (CHF 47m) related to defined benefit plans.

The Swiss pension plans had an employer contribution reserve of USD 6m as of 31 December 2024 and none as of
31 December 2023.
¥ Refier to Mote 2 for more informetion
¥ Refer to "Note 26 Post-employment benefit plans” in the “Consolidated financial statements” section of the UBS AG Annual
Report 2024, svailable under "Annual reporting” 8t wbscomyinvestors, far more infarmation about defined benefit plans in
socordance with IFRS Accounting Standards
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Mote 24 Related parties

Transactions with related parties are conducted at internally agreed transfer prices or at arm's-length terms and neither
invohve rmare than the normal risk of collectability nor contain any other untavorable features for the firm. Loans, fixed
advances and mortgages granted to non-independent members of the governing bodies in the ordinary course of
business are also on substantially the same terms and conditions that are available to other employees, induding interest
rates and collateral. Independent members of the governing bodies are granted loans and mortgages in the ordinary
course of business at general market conditions.

CAR P EAR Pl
LS Amcunts due from Assournis due o Amounts due from Amounts due o
Qualified sharsholders! 3199 123,802 4344 77.758
JM&M:’HM . 207 ) 2590 ) Fa 2575
o ibichy ieavcling receded o DBS Grogp A meiired st amoitined cosr 113898 A
ol WA el ocoben o 55 oo s sy o o s {M e z?”
& ) JT492
. S ... SRR . - . M.
o iy ieavelogg poneitte for it eyt selmtilianier sliln Ao fdal nes-
Affliated enttio’ 502 1,397
R
ke E—
Estnal uditcrs ’ ) i} ) 4
Other related parties? 2] n 1

1 T qualiied shassholder of UES AG bUES Geoep AG. 3 Afilaied ervities of UES A5 e all dinec sudsdiates of UBS Gioup A5, inchuding Credi Sakss A7 a5 of 31 Deosmber 2023, § Indedes amouns cus
1 oo chien participaion s

31224 IR b
CHF Amounts due frem Aswoinils dué 1o Amounts dus frem Amounts due B

o iy iaveling receded o DBY Grogp AG meicred 5t snortined cosr 103 431 59440
o ibicly iavcling receded o DBS Grogp AG cksvipiated af B iale 4599 2287

1 T qualifiod shassholder of UES AG b/UES Gaoep AG. 7 Afiiaies erities of UES AG amw all dinec sussdiates of UBS Group &G, inchuding Credin Sabss A as of 31 Deosmiber 2023, § Indedes amoums cus
1 J o ocher participations.

As of 31 December 2024, offbalance sheet positions related to subsidiaries amounted to USD 14.2bn (CHF 12.9bn)
i21 Decernber 2023: USD 8.6bn (CHF 7.2bn}), of which USD 8.4bn (CHF 7.6bn) related to guarantees to third parties
(31 Decernber 2023; USD 6.4bn (CHF 5.4bn)) and USD 1.9bn (CHF 1.7bn) related to loan commitrments (31 December
2023: USD 0.5bn (CHF 0.dbn}).

As of 31 Decemnber 2024, there were no off-balance sheet positions related to affiliates (31 December 2023: USD 1.0bn
{CHF 0.8bn)).

Loans to and depasits from members of governing bodies were immaterial for all periods presented.
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Fiduciary transactions encompass fransactions entered into by UBS AG that result in holding or plading assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts, defined benefit plans and other institutions. Unless the recognition citeria for the assets are
satisfied, these assets and the related income are exduded from UBS AG's balance sheet and income staternent but are
disdosed in this Mote as off-balance sheet fiduciary transactions. Client deposits that are initially placed as fiduciary
transactions with UBS AG may be recognized on UBS AG's balance sheet in situations in which the deposit is subsequently
placed within UBS AG. In such cases, these deposits are not reported in the table above.

Note 26a Invested assets and net new money

USD ba CHF bn
B of or for the year ended Aol or for e year ended
311224 31233 311224 1223
e ... S . S . N— .

[11) 21

Note 26b Development of invested assats

LS b CHF b
31.12.24 311223 39224 R

Total iovasted assets ad the beglaning of the year”

It ssets rcognied upon the merger o UBS AG o i Sise A

Markel mumsements

454

&7
(10}

B
-

468 416 432

T m i isi i=i TH isi isa imias. T Ty i i i T e isi is TP i=i T i T e T ey
Oither effects (18] {1 (14} (1
Teksl irwested assets ab i end of the pear! 905 434 2 416

T Inclases 60 deuhin counss, T Inwesood assets secogaland 4 pon 1o of UES &G and Crodil Sussn A werD nigasard and mpared i of 31 Way 2004, 50 nrger oTocies da, 15 aigameal sih U5
aoomnting policks cutlined In Koo 31 v e USS 4G omsoldand siatmments in he UES AG Annual Repor 2034 ¥ Inclags intorest and civicend inceme.

¥ Refer to "Note 31 Invested assets and net new money” in the "Consolidated financial statements™ section of the UBS AG Annual
Report 2024, svailable under "Annual reporting” 8t wbscomyinvestors, far more infarmation
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of UBS AG

Opinion on the Financia Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of UBS AG and subsidiaries (“the Group”) as of 31
December 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated income statements, statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2024, and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements, including the information identified as “audited” as described in Note
1 (collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financia statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2024 and 2023, and the results of
its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2024, in conformity with the
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

Thesefinancial statements are the responsibility of the Group’s Board of Directors. Our responsibility isto express an
opinion on the Group’s financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the
PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Group in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its
internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on atest
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financia statements. Our audits also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the financial statements
that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relate to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective or complex
judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not ater in any way our opinion on the consolidated financia
statements, taken as awhole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate
opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.
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Valuation of complex or illiquid instruments at fair value

Description of the
Matter

At 31 December 2024, as explained in Notes 1 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group held financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value of USD 476,340 million and USD
401,555 million, respectively, including financial instruments that did not trade in active markets.
These instruments are reported within the following accounts: financial assets and liabilities at fair
value held for trading, derivative financial instruments, financial assets at fair value not held for
trading, debt issued designated at fair value, brokerage payables designated at fair value, and other
financial liabilities designated at fair value. In determining the fair value of these financial
instruments, the Group used valuation techniques, modelling assumptions, and estimates of
unobservable market inputs which required significant management judgment.

Auditing management’ s judgments and assumptions used in the estimation of the fair value of
these instruments was complex due to the highly judgmental nature of valuation techniques, key
modelling assumptions and significant unobservable inputs. Auditing the valuation of complex or
illiquid instruments at fair value included consideration of any incremental risks arising from the
impact of current macroeconomic influences on valuation techniques and inputs, such as
geopolitics and inflation. The valuation techniques that required especially complex judgement
included discounted cash flow and earnings-based valuation techniques. Highly judgmental
modelling assumptions result from arange of different models or model calibrations used by
market participants. Valuation inputs which were particularly complex and subjective included
those with alimited degree of observability and the associated extrapolation, interpolation or
calibration of curves using limited and proxy data points. Examples of such inputs included
unobservable credit spreads and bond prices, interest rate and FX correlation and equity volatility.

How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

Expected credit losses

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the
controls over management’s financial instrument valuation processes, including controls over
market datainputs, model and methodology governance, and valuation adjustments.

We tested the valuation techniques, models and methodol ogies, and the inputs used in those
models, as outlined above, by performing an independent revaluation of certain complex or
illiquid financial assets and liabilities with the support of specialists. We used independent models
and inputs, and compared inputs to available market data among other procedures. We also
independently challenged key judgmentsin relation to a sample of fair value adjustments.

We also assessed management’ s disclosures regarding fair value measurement (within Notes 1 and
21 to the consolidated financial statements).
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Description of the
Matter

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s allowances and provisions for expected credit losses (“ECL")
were USD 3,527 million. As explained in Notes 1, 10 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, ECL is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, fee and lease receivables, financial
guarantees, and loan commitments not measured at fair value. ECL is also recognized on the
undrawn portion of committed unconditionally revocable credit lines, which include the Group’s
credit card limits and master credit facilities. The allowances and provisions for ECL consists of
exposures that are in default which are individually evaluated for impairment (“stage 3”), aswell
as losses inherent in the loan portfolio that are not specifically identified (stage 1 and stage 2).
Management’'s ECL estimates represent the difference between contractual cash flows and those
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate. The method used to
calculate ECL is based on a combination of the following principal factors: probability of default
(“PD"), loss given default (“LGD”) and exposure at default (“EAD”).

Auditing management’s estimate of the allowances and provisions for ECL was complex due to
the highly judgmental nature of forward-looking economic scenarios that form the basis of the
ECL calculation, their probability weightings, post-model adjustments, and the credit risk models
used to estimate stage 1 and stage 2 ECL. The macroeconomic developments during 2024,
including persisting geopolitical tensions and inflation, contributed to further uncertainty and
complexity in estimating ECL. As aresult, the ECL estimation required higher management
judgement, specifically within the following three areas: (i) scenario selection, including
assumptions about the scenario severity, underlying macroeconomic variables, and the number of
scenarios hecessary to sufficiently cover the bandwidth of potential outcomes, as well as related
scenario weights; (ii) credit risk models, since the output from historic data based models may not
be indicative of current or future conditions; and (iii) post-model adjustments.

Additionally, auditing the measurement of individual ECL for stage 3 was complex dueto the high
degree of judgment involved in management’s process for estimating ECL based on assumptions.
These assumptions take into account expected future cash flows from collateral and other credit
enhancements or expected payouts from bankruptcy proceedings for unsecured claims and, where
applicable, timeto realization of collateral and the seniority of claims.
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How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’s controls over the ECL estimate, including management’s choice of forward-
looking economic scenarios used to measure ECL and the probability weighting assigned to such
scenarios. We evaluated management’ s methodol ogies and governance controls for developing
and monitoring the economic scenarios used and the probability weightings assigned to them, and
selected post-model adjustments. Supported by specialists, we assessed the key macroeconomic
variables used in the forward-looking scenarios, such as real gross domestic product growth,
unemployment rate, interest rates and house price indices, and evaluated the modelled correlation
and trandlation of those macroeconomic factors to the ECL estimate. We further assessed the
appropriateness of the post-model adjustments by considering management’s governance process,
assumptions used and sensitivity analysis.

We also obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over credit risk models used in the ECL estimate, including controls over the
completeness and accuracy of dataflow and calculation logic in the ECL calculation. With the
support of specialists, on a sample basis, we performed an evaluation of management’s models
and tested the model outcomes by inspecting model documentation, reperforming model
calculations, and comparing data used as inputs to management’s forecast to external sources,
among other procedures.

For the measurement of stage 3, we obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over management’s process, including an evaluation of the
assumptions used by management regarding the future cash flows from debtors continuing
operations and/or the liquidation of collateral. Supported by specialistsin certain areas, we
additionally tested collateral valuation, cash flow assumptions and exit strategies by performing
inquiries of management, inspecting underlying documents, such as loan contracts, financial
statements, covenants, budgets and business plans, and by reperforming discounted cash flow
calculations among other procedures, on a sample basis.

We also assessed management’s disclosures regarding financial assets at amortized cost and other
positions in scope of expected credit loss measurement (within Notes 1, 10 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements).

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Description of the
Matter

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s deferred tax assets (“DTAS’) were USD 10,481 million (see
Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements). DTAS are recognized to the extent it is probable
that taxable profits will be available, against which applicable deductible temporary differences or
the carryforward of unused tax losses within the loss carryforward period can be utilized. Thereis
significant judgment exercised when estimating future taxable income that is not based on the
reversal of taxable temporary differences. Management’s estimate of future taxable profitsis
based on its strategic plan and tax planning strategies which would be utilized if necessary to
generate additional future taxable income as well as the consideration of expiry dates of unused tax
losses.

Auditing management’ s assessment of the recognition of the Group’s DTAs was complex due to
the judgmental nature of estimating future taxable profits and the use of tax planning strategies.
Estimating future profitability isinherently subjective and tax planning strategies require
judgement in applying applicable tax law.
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How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’s controls over DTA valuation, which included the consideration of tax planning
strategies, assumptions used in developing the strategic plan and estimating future taxable income.

We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the input data used for the estimations of future
taxable income and the appropriateness of tax planning strategies used in management’s DTA
recognition assessment. Thisincluded consideration of the expiry dates of unused tax losses.

We involved specialiststo assist in assessing the key economic assumptions embedded in the
strategic plans. We compared key assumptions used to forecast future taxable income to externally
available historical and prospective data and assumptions and assessed the sensitivity of the
outcomes using reasonably possible changes in assumptions.

We also assessed management’s disclosure regarding recognized and unrecognized deferred tax
assets (within Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements).

Legal provisions and contingent liabilities

Description of the
Matter

At 31 December 2024, the Group'’s provisions for litigation, regulatory and similar matters and
contingent liabilities (legal provisions) were USD 3,598 million. As explained in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group operatesin alegal and regulatory environment that is
exposed to significant litigation and similar risks arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings.
Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and the outcomes may be difficult to predict. These
uncertainties inherently affect the amount and timing of potential outflows with respect to the legal
provisions which have been established.

Auditing management’ s assessment of legal provisions was complex and judgmental due to the
significant subjectivity involved in management’s estimate of the amount and probability that an
outflow of resources will be required for existing legal matters, including inquiries regarding
cross-border wealth management businesses (Note 18b.1), mortgage-rel ated matters (Note 18b.5),
and customer account matters (Note 18b.7). The legal provisions for these matters are based on
management’s estimation of the amount and likelihood of the occurrence of certain scenarios.

How We Addressed
the Matter in Our
Audit

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’s controls over the legal provision process. Our procedures included testing
management’s review of the accuracy of the inputs to the estimation of the amount and likelihood
of the occurrence of certain scenarios.

Where appropriate, we assessed the methodol ogies on which the provision amounts were based,
recal culated the provisions and tested the underlying information. We inspected internal and
external legal analyses of the matters supporting the judgmental aspects impacted by legal
interpretations. We obtained correspondence directly from external legal counsel to assess the
information provided by management and performed inquiries with external counsel as necessary.
We also assessed the appropriateness of the accounting treatment for the remeasurement of legal
provisions.

We also assessed management’ s disclosure regarding legal provisions (within Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements).
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Ernst & Young Ltd

We have served as the Group’s auditor since 1998.

Basdl, Switzerland

14 March 2025
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@ 2024 Share ownership/entitlements of GEB
members Total of all vested and unvested shares of GEB members Number of shares of BoD
members Total of all blocked and unblocked shares of BoD Members
IFRS
1SA SA-CH
EXPERT

http://ww.expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report

CO 728 a PS-CH890

E.
Maurice McCormick Robert E. Jacob, Jr.
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To the General Mesting of Basdl, 14 March 2025

UBS AG, Zurich & Basel

Statutory auditor’s report on the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UBS AG and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, and the consolidated income statements,
statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended 31 December 2024, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, including the
information identified as “audited” as described in Note 1 (collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financial
statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give atrue and fair view of the consolidated financia
position of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 31 December 2024 in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards and comply with Swiss law.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law, International Standards on Auditing (ISA) and Swiss Standards on
Auditing (SA-CH). Our responsibilities under those provisions and standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the provisions of Swiss law, together with the requirements of the
Swiss audit profession, as well as those of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants International Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.
Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Valuation of complex or illiquid instruments at fair value

Area of focus

At 31 December 2024, as explained in Notes 1 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group held financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value of USD 476,340 million and USD
401,555 million, respectively, including financial instruments that did not trade in active markets.
These instruments are reported within the following accounts: financial assets and liabilities at fair
vaue held for trading, derivative financial instruments, financial assets at fair value not held for
trading, debt issued designated at fair value, brokerage payables designated at fair value, and other
financial liabilities designated at fair value. In determining the fair value of these financial
instruments, the Group used valuation techniques, modelling assumptions, and estimates of
unobservable market inputs which required significant management judgment.

Auditing management’ s judgments and assumptions used in the estimation of the fair value of
these instruments was complex due to the highly judgmental nature of valuation techniques, key
modelling assumptions and significant unobservable inputs. Auditing the valuation of complex or
illiquid instruments at fair value included consideration of any incremental risks arising from the
impact of current macroeconomic influences on valuation techniques and inputs, such as
geopolitics and inflation. The valuation techniques that required especially complex judgement
included discounted cash flow and earnings-based valuation techniques. Highly judgmental
modelling assumptions result from arange of different models or model calibrations used by
market participants. Valuation inputs which were particularly complex and subjective included
those with alimited degree of observability and the associated extrapolation, interpolation or
calibration of curves using limited and proxy data points. Examples of such inputs included
unobservable credit spreads and bond prices, interest rate and FX correlation and equity volatility.

Our audit response

Expected credit losses

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the
controls over management’s financial instrument valuation processes, including controls over
market data inputs, model and methodology governance, and valuation adjustments.

We tested the valuation techniques, models and methodologies, and the inputs used in those
models, as outlined above, by performing an independent revaluation of certain complex or
illiquid financial assets and liabilities with the support of specialists. We used independent models
and inputs, and compared inputs to available market data among other procedures. We aso
independently challenged key judgments in relation to a sample of fair value adjustments.

We also assessed management’ s disclosures regarding fair value measurement (within Notes 1 and
21 to the consolidated financial statements).
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Area of focus

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s allowances and provisions for expected credit losses (“ECL")
were USD 3,527 million. As explained in Notes 1, 10 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, ECL is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, fee and lease receivables, financial
guarantees, and loan commitments not measured at fair value. ECL is also recognized on the
undrawn portion of committed unconditionally revocable credit lines, which include the Group’s
credit card limits and master credit facilities. The allowances and provisions for ECL consists of
exposures that are in default which areindividually evaluated for impairment (“stage 3"), as well
aslossesinherent in the loan portfolio that are not specifically identified (stage 1 and stage 2).
Management’'s ECL estimates represent the difference between contractual cash flows and those
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate. The method used to calculate
ECL is based on a combination of the following principal factors: probability of default (“PD"),
loss given default (“LGD”) and exposure at default (“EAD”).

Auditing management’s estimate of the allowances and provisions for ECL was complex due to
the highly judgmental nature of forward-looking economic scenarios that form the basis of the
ECL calculation, their probability weightings, post-model adjustments, and the credit risk models
used to estimate stage 1 and stage 2 ECL. The macroeconomic developments during 2024,
including persisting geopolitical tensions and inflation, contributed to further uncertainty and
complexity in estimating ECL. As aresult, the ECL estimation required higher management
judgement, specifically within the following three areas: (i) scenario selection, including
assumptions about the scenario severity, underlying macroeconomic variables, and the number of
scenarios necessary to sufficiently cover the bandwidth of potential outcomes, as well as related
scenario weights; (ii) credit risk models, since the output from historic data based models may not
be indicative of current or future conditions; and (iii) post-model adjustments.

Additionally, auditing the measurement of individual ECL for stage 3 was complex due to the high
degree of judgment involved in management’s process for estimating ECL based on assumptions.
These assumptions take into account expected future cash flows from collateral and other credit
enhancements or expected payouts from bankruptcy proceedings for unsecured claims and, where
applicable, timeto realization of collateral and the seniority of claims.
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Our audit response

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’s controls over the ECL estimate, including management’s choice of forward-
looking economic scenarios used to measure ECL and the probability weighting assigned to such
scenarios. We evaluated management’ s methodol ogies and governance controls for developing
and monitoring the economic scenarios used and the probability weightings assigned to them, and
selected post-model adjustments. Supported by specialists, we assessed the key macroeconomic
variables used in the forward-looking scenarios, such as real gross domestic product growth,
unemployment rate, interest rates and house price indices, and evaluated the modelled correlation
and translation of those macroeconomic factors to the ECL estimate. We further assessed the
appropriateness of the post-model adjustments by considering management’s governance process,
assumptions used and sensitivity analysis.

We also obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over credit risk models used in the ECL estimate, including controls over the
completeness and accuracy of data flow and calculation logic in the ECL calculation. With the
support of specialists, on asample basis, we performed an evaluation of management’s models
and tested the model outcomes by inspecting model documentation, reperforming model
calculations, and comparing data used as inputs to management’ s forecast to external sources,
among other procedures.

For the measurement of stage 3, we obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over management’s process, including an evaluation of the
assumptions used by management regarding the future cash flows from debtors continuing
operations and/or the liquidation of collateral. Supported by specialistsin certain areas, we
additionally tested collateral valuation, cash flow assumptions and exit strategies by performing
inquiries of management, inspecting underlying documents, such as loan contracts, financial
statements, covenants, budgets and business plans, and by re-performing discounted cash flow
calculations among other procedures, on a sample basis.

We also assessed management’s disclosures regarding financial assets at amortized cost and other
positions in scope of expected credit 1oss measurement (within Notes 1, 10 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements).

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Area of focus

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s deferred tax assets (“DTAS’) were USD 10,481 million (see
Note 9 to the consolidated financia statements). DTAs are recognized to the extent it is probable
that taxable profits will be available, against which applicable deductible temporary differences or
the carryforward of unused tax losses within the loss carryforward period can be utilized. Thereis
significant judgment exercised when estimating future taxable income that is not based on the
reversal of taxable temporary differences. Management’s estimate of future taxable profitsis
based on its strategic plan and tax planning strategies which would be utilized if necessary to
generate additional future taxable income as well as the consideration of expiry dates of unused tax
losses.

Auditing management’s assessment of the recognition of the Group’s DTAs was complex dueto
the judgmental nature of estimating future taxable profits and the use of tax planning strategies.
Estimating future profitability isinherently subjective and tax planning strategies require
judgement in applying applicable tax law.
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Our audit response

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’ s controls over DTA valuation, which included the consideration of tax planning
strategies, assumptions used in developing the strategic plans and estimating future taxable
income.

We assessed the completeness and accuracy of the input data used for the estimations of future
taxable income and the appropriateness of tax planning strategies used in management’s DTA
recognition assessment. This included consideration of the expiry dates of unused tax 10sses.

We involved specialiststo assist in assessing the key economic assumptions embedded in the
strategic plans. We compared key assumptions used to forecast future taxable income to externally
available historical and prospective data and assumptions and assessed the sensitivity of the
outcomes using reasonably possible changes in assumptions.

We also assessed management’s disclosure regarding recognized and unrecognized deferred tax
assets (within Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements).

Legal provisions and contingent liabilities

Area of focus

At 31 December 2024, the Group’s provisions for litigation, regulatory and similar matters and
contingent liabilities (legal provisions) were USD 3,598 million. As explained in Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group operatesin alegal and regulatory environment that is
exposed to significant litigation and similar risks arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings.
Such matters are subject to many uncertainties and the outcomes may be difficult to predict. These
uncertainties inherently affect the amount and timing of potential outflows with respect to the legal
provisions which have been established.

Auditing management’s assessment of legal provisions was complex and judgmental dueto the
significant subjectivity involved in management’s estimate of the amount and probability that an
outflow of resources will be required for existing legal matters, including inquiries regarding
cross-border wealth management businesses (Note 18b.1), mortgage-related matters (Note 18b.5),
and customer account matters (Note 18b.7). The legal provisions for these matters are based on
management’ s estimation of the amount and likelihood of the occurrence of certain scenarios.
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Our audit response  We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’ s controls over the legal provision process. Our procedures included testing
management’ s review of the accuracy of the inputs to the estimation of the amount and likelihood
of the occurrence of certain scenarios.

Where appropriate, we assessed the methodol ogies on which the provision amounts were based,
recal culated the provisions and tested the underlying information. We inspected internal and
external legal analyses of the matters supporting the judgmental aspects impacted by legal
interpretations. We obtained correspondence directly from external legal counsel to assess the
information provided by management and performed inquiries with external counsel as necessary.
We also assessed the appropriateness of the accounting treatment for the remeasurement of legal
provisions.

We also assessed management’s disclosure regarding legal provisions (within Note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements).

Other information in the annual report

The Board of Directorsisresponsible for the other information in the annual report. The other information comprises al
information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements of UBS Group AG

and UBS AG, the standalone financial statements of UBS Group AG, the compensation reportl, and our auditor's reports
thereon.

Our opinions on the consolidated financial statements of UBS Group AG and UBS AG, the standalone financial statements

of UBS Group AG and the compensation report1 do not cover the other information in the annual report and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsihility isto read the other information in
the annual report and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

! Specifically, the following tablesin the compensation report: “ Share ownership/entitlements of GEB members," "Total
of all vested and unvested shares of GEB members," "Number of shares of BoD members,” and "Tota of all blocked and
unblocked shares of BoD Members.”
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Board of Directors responsibilities for the consolidated financia statements

The Board of Directorsis responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, which give atrue and
fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards and the provisions of Swiss law, and for such internal control as
the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statementsthat are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directorsis responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
aternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financia statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Swiss
law, ISA and SA-CH will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of userstaken on the basis of these consolidated financia statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financia statementsislocated on
EXPERTsuisse' s website at: https://www.expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report. This description forms part of our auditor’'s
report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with article 728a para. 1 item 3 CO and PS-CH 890, we confirm that an internal control system exists, which
has been designed for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of

Directors.

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Maurice McCormick Robert E. Jacab, Jr.

Licensed audit expert Certified Public Accountant (U.S.)
(Auditor in charge)
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To the General Mesting of Basdl, 14 March 2025

UBS AG, Zurich and Basel

Report of the statutory auditor

Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of UBS AG (the Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31
December 2024, the income statement and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financia statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements comply with Swiss law and the Company’s articles of incorporation.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Standards on Auditing (SA-CH). Our responsibilities
under those provisions and standards are further described in the “ Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Swisslaw and
the requirements of the Swiss audit profession, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the “ Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements”
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the financia statements.

Vauation of investments in subsidiaries and other participations
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Areaof focus As of 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of UBS AG's investments in subsidiaries and other
participationsis USD 73.1 billion. Investments in subsidiaries and other participations are equity
interests that are held to carry on the business of UBS AG or for other strategic purposes. They
include all subsidiaries directly held by UBS AG through which UBS AG conducts its business on
aglobal basis.

The investments are measured individually and carried at cost less impairment. The carrying
amount is tested for impairment annually, with the recoverable amount being determined using a
discounted dividend model.

Due to the inherent uncertainties in valuing investments in subsidiaries, including forecasting and
management's judgments, and considering the significance of the account we identified this area as
akey audit matter.

Our audit response  Our audit procedures included the review of management's process over the valuation of
investments in subsidiaries and other participations,
including impairment tests.

We obtained an understanding and evaluated the relevant controls addressing the identified risks
and tested the design and operating effectiveness of these controls. Our focus was on controls over
the review of the valuation models and the estimation of future cashflows, as well as governance
and oversight over management's valuation process.

We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation methodology, taking into account the nature of
the investment and the underlying business. With the support of valuation specialists, we assessed
the assumptions and methodol ogies used by management, to determine the recoverable amount of
the investment in subsidiaries and other participations.

We also assessed the relevant disclosures regarding investments in subsidiaries and other
participations (within note 4 to the financial statements).

Vauation of complex or illiquid instruments at fair value
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Area of focus

At 31 December 2024, UBS AG held financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value,
including financial instruments that did not trade in active markets. These instruments are reported
within the following accounts: financial assets and liabilities at fair value held for trading,
derivative financial instruments, financial assets at fair value not held for trading, debt issued
designated at fair value, brokerage payables designated at fair value, and other financial liabilities
designated at fair value. In determining the fair value of these financial instruments, the Company
used valuation techniques, modelling assumptions, and estimates of unobservable market inputs
which required significant management judgment.

Auditing management’ s judgments and assumptions used in the estimation of the fair value of
these instruments was complex due to the highly judgmental nature of valuation techniques, key
modelling assumptions and significant unobservable inputs. Auditing the valuation of complex or
illiquid instruments at fair value included consideration of any incremental risks arising from the
impact of current macroeconomic influences on valuation techniques and inputs, such as
geopolitics and inflation. The valuation techniques that required especially complex judgement
included discounted cash flow and earnings-based valuation techniques. Highly judgmental
modelling assumptions result from arange of different models or model calibrations used by
market participants. Valuation inputs which were particularly complex and subjective included
those with alimited degree of observability and the associated extrapolation, interpolation or
calibration of curves using limited and proxy data points. Examples of such inputs included
unobservable credit spreads and bond prices, interest rate and FX correlation and equity volatility.

Our audit response

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of the
controls over management’s financial instrument valuation processes, including controls over
market data inputs, model and methodology governance, and valuation adjustments.

We tested the valuation techniques, models and methodologies, and the inputs used in those
models, as outlined above, by performing an independent revaluation of certain complex or
illiquid financial assets and liabilities with the support of specialists. We used independent models
and inputs and compared inputs to available market data among other procedures. We aso
independently challenged key judgmentsin relation to a sample of fair value adjustments.

We also assessed management’s disclosures regarding fair value measurement (within Notes 15,
16a and 16b to the financial statements).
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Areaof focus

UBS AG appliesin its standalone financial statements the ECL approach whichisused inits
consolidated financial statements under the IFRS Accounting Standards.

ECL isrecognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost, fee and lease receivables,
claims arising from Group-internal funding presented as Funding provided to significant regulated
subsidiaries eligible as total |oss-absorbing capacity, guarantees, irrevocable loan commitments,
revolving revocable credit lines, and forward starting reverse repurchase and securities borrowing
agreements. The allowances and provisions for ECL consists of exposures that are in default which
areindividually evaluated for impairment (“stage 3" aswell aslossesinherent in the loan portfolio
that are not specifically identified (“stage 1 and stage 2"). Management’s ECL estimates represent
the difference between contractual cash flows and those the Company expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The method used to calculate ECL is based on a
combination of the following principal factors: probability of default (“PD”), loss given default
(“LGD") and exposure at default (“EAD”).

Auditing management’s estimate of the allowances and provisions for ECL was complex dueto
the highly judgmental nature of forward-looking economic scenarios that form the basis of the
ECL calculation, their probability weightings, post-model adjustments, and the credit risk models
used to estimate stage 1 and stage 2 ECL. The macroeconomic developments during 2024,
including persisting geopolitical tensions and inflation, contributed to further uncertainty and
complexity in estimating ECL. As aresult, the ECL estimation required higher management
judgement, specifically within the following three areas: (i) scenario selection, including
assumptions about the scenario severity, underlying macroeconomic variables, and the number of
scenarios necessary to sufficiently cover the bandwidth of potential outcomes, aswell as related
scenario weights (i) credit risk models, since the output from historic data based models may not
be indicative of current or future conditions; and (iii) post-model adjustments.

Additionally, auditing the measurement of individual ECL for stage 3 was complex due to the high
degree of judgment involved in management’s process for estimating ECL based on assumptions.
These assumptions take into account expected future cash flows from collateral and other credit
enhancements or expected payouts from bankruptcy proceedings for unsecured claims and, where
applicable, time to realization of collateral and the seniority of claims.
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Our audit response

Legal provisions

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
management’s controls over the ECL estimate, including management’s choice of forward-
looking economic scenarios used to measure ECL and the probability weighting assigned to such
scenarios. We evaluated management’s methodol ogies and governance controls for devel oping
and monitoring the economic scenarios used and the probability weightings assigned to them, and
selected post-model adjustments. Supported by specialists, we assessed the key macroeconomic
variables used in the forward-looking scenarios, such as real gross domestic product growth,
unemployment rate, interest rates and house price indices, and evaluated the modelled correlation
and trandation of those macroeconomic factors to the ECL estimate. We further assessed the
appropriateness of the post-model adjustments by considering management’s governance process,
assumptions used and sensitivity analysis.

We also obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operating effectiveness of
controls over credit risk models used in the ECL estimate, including controls over the
completeness and accuracy of dataflow and calculation logic in the ECL calculation. With the
support of specialists, on a sample basis, we performed an evaluation of management’s models and
tested the model outcomes by inspecting model documentation, reperforming model calculations,
and comparing data used as inputs to management’ s forecast to external sources, among other
procedures.

For the measurement of stage 3, we obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of controls over management’s process, including an evaluation of the
assumptions used by management regarding the future cash flows from debtors continuing
operations and/or the liquidation of collateral. Supported by specidistsin certain areas, we
additionally tested collateral valuation, cash flow assumptions and exit strategies by performing
inquiries of management, inspecting underlying documents, such as loan contracts, financial
statements, covenants, budgets and business plans, and by re-performing discounted cash flow
calculations among other procedures, on a sample basis.

We al so assessed management’s disclosures regarding financial assets at amortized cost and other
positions in scope of expected credit |oss measurement (within Notes 13ato 13e to the financial
statements).

Areaof focus

UBS AG operatesin alegal and regulatory environment that is exposed to significant litigation
and similar risks arising from disputes and regulatory proceedings. Such matters are subject to
many uncertainties and the outcomes may be difficult to predict. These uncertainties inherently
affect the amount and timing of potential outflows with respect to the legal provisions which have
been established.

Auditing management’ s assessment of legal provisions was complex and judgmental due to the
significant subjectivity involved in management’s estimate of the amount and probability that an
outflow of resourceswill be required for existing legal matters, including inquiries regarding
cross-border wealth management businesses. The legal provisions for these matters are based on
management’ s estimation of the amount and likelihood of the occurrence of certain scenarios.
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Our auditresponse  We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested the operational effectiveness of
management’s controls over the legal provision process. Our procedures included testing
management’s review of the accuracy of the inputs to the estimation of the amount and likelihood

of the occurrence of certain scenarios.

Where appropriate, we assessed the methodol ogies on which the provision amounts were based,
recal culated the provisions and tested the underlying information. We inspected internal and
external legal analyses of the matters supporting the judgmental aspects impacted by legal
interpretations. We obtained correspondence directly from external legal counsel to assess the
information provided by management and performed inquiries with external counsel as necessary.
We also assessed the appropriateness of the accounting treatment for the remeasurement of legal
provisions.

We also assessed management’s disclosure regarding legal provisions (within Note 13b to the
financial statements).

Other information
The Board of Directorsis responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Board of Directors responsibilities for the financia statements

The Board of Directorsis responsible for the preparation of the financial statementsin accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework for banks, the provisions of Swisslaw and the Company's articles of incorporation, and for
such internal control as the Board of Directors determinesis necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financia statements, the Board of Directorsis responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as agoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern, and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable

assurance isa high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Swiss law and SA-
CH will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
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considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statementsislocated on EXPERTSsuisse' s website
at: https./lwww.expertsuisse.ch/en/audit-report. This description forms an integral part of our report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with Art. 728a para. 1 item 3 CO and PS-CH 890, we confirm that an internal control system exists, which
has been designed for the preparation of the financial statements according to the instructions of the Board of Directors.

Based on our audit in accordance with Art. 728a para. 1 item 2 CO, we confirm that the proposal of the Board of Directors

complies with Swiss law and the Company’s articles of incorporation. We recommend that the financial statements
submitted to you be approved.

Ernst & Young Ltd

Maurice McCormick Kristina Prenrecg

Licensed audit expert Licensed audit expert
(Auditor in charge)
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